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Item 1. BUSINESS

Organizational History arr nd Subsidiaries

United Bankshares, Inc. (�United,� �we,� �us,� �our,� or the �Companm y�) is a West Virginia corporr ration registered
as a finff ancial holding company pursuant to the Bank Holding Compam ny Act of 1956, as amended. United was incorporated
on March 26, 1982, organized on Septembem r 9, 1982, and began conducdd ting business on May 1aa , 1984 with the acquiq sition of
three wholly-owned subsidiaries. Since its formation in 1982, United has acquirq ed thirty-three banking institutions. United
has one banking subsidiaryrr �doing business� under the name of United Bank, operating under the laws of Virginia. United
Bank offersff a fulff l range of commercial and retail banking services and producdd ts. United also owns nonbank subsidiaries
which engage in other community banking services such as asset management, real property title insurance, finff ancial
planning, mortgage banking, and brokerage services.

Web Site Address

United�s web site address is �www.ubsi-inc.com�. United makes availablea free of charga e on its web site the annual
report on Form 1rr 0-K, quarterly reportsrr on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments thereto, as soon as
reasonably practicabla e after United filff es such reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�). The referencff e
to United�s web site does not constitutt e incorporation by referenceff of the information contained in the web site and should
not be considered part of this document. The SEC also maintains a website at www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and
information statements and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC.

Business of United

As a finaff ncial holding company, United's present businesses are community banka ing and mortgage banking. As of
December 31, 2021, United's consolidated assets appra oximated $29.3 billion and total shareholders' equity approximated
$4.7 billion.

United is permitted to acquirq e other banks and bank holding companies, as well as thrift institutions. United is also
permir tted to engage in certain non-banking activities which are closely related to banking under the provisions of the Bank
Holding Company Act and the Federal Reserve Board's Regulation Y. Management continues to consider such
opportunt ities as they arise, and in this regard, management from time to time makes inquiries, proposals, or expressions of
interest as to potential opportunities, although no agreements or understandings to acquire other banks or bank holding
companies or non-banking subsidiaries or to engage in other nonbanking activities, other than those identified herein,
presently exist.

On Decemberm 3, 2021, United completed its acquisition of Community Bankers Trust Corporation (�Community
Bankers Trust�), the parent company of Essex Bank (�Essex�) with $1.8 billion in assets, headquartered in Richmond,
Virginia. The acquisiq tion of Community Btt ankers Trust enhanced United�s existing presence in the DC Metro MSA and
took United into new markets including Baltimore, Annapolis, Lynchbuh rg, Richmond, andaa the Northernt Neck of Virginia. It
also strategically connects our Mid-Atlantic and Southeast footprints. On May 1, 2020, United completed its acquisition of
Carolina Financial Corporation (�Carolina Financial�), the parent compam ny of CresCom Bank (�CresCom�) with $5.0
billion in assets, headquartered in Charleston, South Carolina. The acquisition of Carolina Financial broadened United�s
footpritt nt in the Southeast region with some of the most desirable banking markets in the nation. See Note B - Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of United�s mergers with Community Bankers Trust and Carolina
Financial. Prior to Carolina Financial, United more than doubleu d its size through three acquisiq tions in less than three and a
half years. In January 2014, United closed its acquisition of Virginia Commerce Bancorp, Inc., followed by the Novembem r
2015 announcement of the Bank of Georgetown transaction which closed June 2016. In August 2016, United announced
the Cardinal Financial Corporation acquisition which closed AprA il 2017.

Business of Subsiu diaries

United, through its subsidiaries, engages primarily in community bt anking and mortgage banking offering most
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types of business permitted by law and regulation. Included among the banking services offered are the acceptance of
deposits in checking, savings, time and money market accounts; the making and servicing of personal, commercial, and
floor plan loans; and the making of construction and real estate loans. Also offereff d are individuad l retirement accounts, safeff
deposit boxes, wire transfersff and other standard banking producdd ts and services. As part orr f its lending functff ion, United Bank
offers credit card services.

United Bank maintains a trust department which acts as trusrr tee under wills, trusts and pension and profit sharing
plans, as executor and administrator of estates, and as guardian forff estates of minors and incompetents, and in addition
performs a variety of investmentt and security servirr ces. United Bank provides services to its correspondent banksa such as the
buying and selling of federff al funds.

George Mason Mortgarr ge, LLC (�George Mason�), a wholly-owned subsidiary of United Bank, is engaged in the
operation of a general mortgage and agency business, including the origination and acquisition of residential real estate
loans for resale and generally the activities commonly conducted by a mortgage banking company. Residential real estate
loansa are sold without the servirr cing rights retained. These loansa are for single-family, owner-occupiuu ed residences with either
adjustabla e or fixeff d rate terms, with a variety of maturities tailored to effectff ively serve its markets.

Crescent Mortgage Company (�Crescent�), a wholly-owned subsidiary of United Bank, is primarily a
correspondent/wholesale mortgage company appra oved to originate loans in 48 states partnering with community banks,
credit unions and mortgage brokers. Much like George Mason, Crescent is also engaged in the operation of a general
mortgage and agency business, including the origination and acquisition of residential real estate loans for resale and the
activities commonly conducted by a mortgrr age banking company. However, depending on the pricing of residential real
estate loans sold, Crescent may retain the servicing rights. In addition, at certain times, Crescent may purchase rights to
service mortgage loans fromff third parties.

United Brokerage Servirr ces, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of United Bank, is a fulff ly-disclosed broker/dealer and
a Registered Investment Advisor with the Financial Indusd try Rrr egulatory Arr uthorit ty (�FINRA�), the Securities andaa Exchange
Commission, and a membem r of the Securities Investor Protection Corporation. United Brokerage Services, Inc. offerff s a
wide range of investment productsdd as well as comprem hensive finff ancial planning and asset management servicrr es to the
general publu ic.

United Bank is a member of a network of automated teller machines known as the New York Currency Exchange
(�NYCE�) ATM network. The NYCE is an interbank network connecting the ATMs of various financial institutitt ons in thet
United States and Canada.

United Bank offers an Internet banking service, Smart Touch Online Banking, which allows customers to perform
various transactions using a computer or tablea t froff m any location or froff m a mobile device such as a smart phone or other
cellular device as long as they have access to thet Internet,rr applicable softwarett and a secure browser. Specifically, customers
can check personal account balances, receive information about transactions within their accounts, make transaa fers between
accounts, stop payment on a check, and reorder checks. Customers may also pay bills online and can make payments to
virtually any business or individuadd l. Customers can set up recurring fixff ed payments, one-time future payments or a one-time
immediate payment. Customers can also set up their own merchants, view and modify that merchant list, view pending
transactions and view their bill payment history with approximately three (3) months of history.

United Bank also offers an automated telephone banka ing system, Telebanc, which allows customers to access their
personal account(s) or business account(s) information from a touch-tone telephone.

Lending Activities

United�s loan and lease portfolio, net of unearned income, increased $432.2 million or 2.46% in 2021 due mainly to
the acquisition of Communitym Bankers Trust partially offsetff by a decline in Payment Protection Program (�PPP�) loans. The
loan and lease portfolio is mainly comprised of commercial, real estate and consumer loans including credit card anda home
equity lt oans. Commercial, financia al and agriculturaltt loans and leases increased $458.0 million or 4.28% as commercial real
estate loans increased $1.1 billion or 15.81% while commercial loans and leases (not secured by real estate) decreased
$592.1 million or 14.60%. Constructrr ion and land development loans increased $187.8 million or 10.28%. Residential real
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estate loans decreased $208.3 million or 5.34%. Consumer loans were flat, decreasing $8.8 million or less than 1%.

Commercial Loans and Leases

The commercial loan and lease portfolio consists of loans and leases to corporate borrowers primarily in small to
mid-size industrial and commercial companies, as well as automobile dealers, servirr ce, retail and wholesale merchants.
Collateral securing these loans includes equipment, machinery, inventory, receivabla es, vehicles and commercial real estate.
Commercial loans and leases are considered to contain a higher level of risk than other loan types although care is taken to
minimize these risks. Numerous risk factors impact this portfolff io including indusd try srr pecific risks such as economy, new
technology, labor rates and cyclicality, as well as customer specific factors, such as cash flow,ff financa ial structure, operating
controls and asset quality.t United diversifies risk within this portfolio by closely monitoring industry concentrations and
portfolios to ensure that it does not exceed established lending guidelines. Diversificff ation is intended to limit the risk of
loss froff m any single unexpected economic event or trend. Underwriting standards require a comprehensive credit analysis
and independent evaluation of virtuat lly all larger balance commercial loans by the loan committee prior to approval.

Real Estate Loans

Commercial real estate loans consist of commercial mortgages, which generally are secured by nonresidential and
multi-family residential properties. Also included in this portfoliff o are loans that are secured by owner-occupied real estate,
but made forff purposes other than the construcr tion or purchase of real estate. Commercial real estate loans are to many of
the same customers and carry similar industry risks as the commercial loan portfolio. Real estate mortgage loans to
consumers are secured primarily by a firstff lien deed of trust. These loans are traditional one-to-four family residential
mortgages. The loans generally do not exceed an 80% loan to value ratio at the loan origination date and most are at a
variable rate of interest. These loans are considered to be of normal risk. Also included in the category or f real estate
mortgage loans are home equity lt oans.

As of December 31, 2021, approximately $366.7 million or 2.03% of United�s loan pa ortfrr olff io were real estate loans
that met the regulatory definition of a high loan-to-value loan. A high loan-to-value real estate loan is defined as any loan,
line of credit, or combim nation of credits secured by liens on or interests in real estate that equals or exceeds a certain
percentage established by United�s primary regulator of the real estate�s appraisa ed value, unless the loan has other
appropriate credit support.rr The certain percentage varies depending on the loan type and collateral. Appropriate credit
support may include mortgage insurance, readily marketable collateral, or other acceptable collateral that reduces thet loan-
to-value ratio below the certain percentage.

Consumer Loans

Consumer loans are secured by automobiles, boats, recreational vehicles, and other personal property. Personal
loans, studentt loans and unsecured credit card receivables are also included as consumer loans. United monitors the risk
associated with these types of loans by monitoring such factff ors as portfolio growth, lending policies and economic
conditions. Underwriting standards are continually evaluated and modified based upou n these factors.

Underwriting Standards

United's loan underwriting guidelines and standards are updated periodically anda are presented for appa roval by the
Board of Directors of United Bank. The purpose of the standards and guidelines is to grant loans on a soundu and collectible
basis; to invest available funff ds in a safe, profitablea manner; to serve the legitimate credit needs of the communities of
United's primary market area; and to ensure that all loan applicants receive fair and equal treatment in the lending process.
It is the intent of the underwriting guidelines and standards to minimize loan losses by carefulff ly investigating the credit
history of each appa licant, verify the source of repayment and the ability ot f the applicanta to repay, collateralize thost e loans in
which collateral is deemed to be required, exercise care in the documentation of the appa lication, review, appra oval, and
origination process, and administer a comprehensive loan collection program.

United�s undeu rwriting standards and practices are designed to originate both ft ixff ed and variablea rate loan producdd ts in
a manner which is consistent with the prudrr ent banking practices applicable to these exposures. Typically, both fixed and
variable rate loan underwriting practices incorporarr te conservative methodology, including the use of stress testing forff
commercial loans, and other productd appropriate measures designed to provide an adequate margin of safety for the fulff l



7

collection of both principal and interest withint contractual termsrr . Consumer real estate secured loansa are underu wrirr tten to thet
initial rate, and to a higher assumed rate commensurate with normarr l markerr t conditions. Therefore, it is the intent of United�s
underwriting standards to ensure thatt adequaqq te primary repaymenaa t capacity ett xists to address both future increases in interest
rates, and fluctuations in the underlying cash floff ws availablea for repaymaa ent. Historically, and at Decemberm 31, 2021, United
has not offereff d �teaser rate� loans, and had no loan portfoliff o producd ts which were specifically designed forff �sub-u prime�
borrowers. Management defines �sub-prime� borrowers as consumer borrowers with a credit score of less than 660.

The above guidelines are adhered to and subject to the experience, background and personal judgment of the loan
officer assigned to the loan application. A loan officer may grant, with justification, a loan with variances from the
underwriting guidelines and standards. However, the loan officff er may not exceed his or her respective lending authority
without obtaining the prior, proper approval as outlined in United�s loan policy from a supeu rior, a regional supervisor or
market president (dual approval per policy) or the Loan Committee, whichever is deemed appropriate for the nature of the
variance.

Loan Concentrations

United has commercial loans, including real estate and owner-occupied, income-producing real estate and land
development loans, of approximately $13.0 billion as of December 31, 2021. These loans are primarily secured by real
estate located in West Virginia, southeastern Or hio, southwestern Pr ennsylvania, Virginia, Marylrr and, North Carolina, South
Carolina and the District of Columbia. United categorizes these commercial loans by industry according to the North
American Industry Classification System (�NAICS�) to monitor the portfolio for possible concentrations in one or more
industries. As of the most recent fiscal year-end, United has one such industry classificff ation that exceeded 10% of total
loans. As of December 31, 2021, approximately $8.7 billion or 48.22% of United�s total loan portfolff io were for real estate
and construcrr tion. The loans were originated by United's subsidiary bank using underwriting standards as set forff th by
management. United's loan administration policies are focused on the risk characteristics of the loan portfolrr io, including
commercial real estate loans, in terms of loan approval and credit quality. It is the opinion of management that these loans
do not pose any unusual risks and that adequate consideration has been given to the aboa ve loans in establishing the
allowance for loan losses.

United does not have a loan classification concentration in the restauraa ants, hotel and accommodations industry.rr As
of December 31, 2021, approximately $1.0 billion or 5.66% of United�s total loan portfrr olff io were to hotels and other traveler
accommodations. In addition, United does not have a loan classificff ation concentration in the mining, quarryirr ng and oil and
gas extraction industry.rr As of Decemberm 31, 2021, approximately $157.9 million or less than 1% of United�s total loan
portfolio were forff the purposr e of extracting, manufacff turing and distributing oil, coal and natural gas.

Secondary Markets

United generally originates loans within the primary markerr t area of United Bank. United may from time to time
make loans to borrowers and/or on properties outside of its primary mrr arket area as an accommodation to its existing
customers.

United Bank, George Mason, and Crescent originate and acquire residential real estate loans forff resale in the
secondary mrr arketrr . Mortgage loan originations are generally intended to be sold in the secondary market on a best efforff tsrr or
mandatory brr asis. Depending on the pricing in the marketplace, servicing rights are either sold or retained.

During 2021, United originated $6.2 billion of real estate loans for sale in the secondary mr arket and sold $6.4
billion of loans designated as held for sale in the secondary market. Net gains on the sales of these loans during 2021 were
$171.7 million.

The principal sources of revenue froff m United�s mortgarr ge bankaa ing business are: (i) loan origination feesff ; (ii) gains
or losses from the sale of loans, (iii) interest earnedrr on mortgage loans during the period that they are held by United
pending sale, if any; and (iv) income on mortgage loans with servicrr ing retained.

Loan Servicing

United through its mortgage banking subsiu diary, Crescent, may retain the rights to service a portion of the loans
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sold in the third-party market, as part of its mortgage banking activities, for which United receives service fee income. In
addition, at certain times United may purchase rights to service from third parties. These rights are known as mortgage
servicing rights, or MSRs, where the owner of the MSR acts on behalf of the mortgage loan owner and has the contractualtt
right to receive a stream of cash flows in exchange for performing specified mortgage servicing functions. These duties
typically include, but are not limited to, performing loan administration, collection, and defaula t activities, including the
collection and remittance of loan payments, responding to customer inquiqq ries, accountiu ng for principal and interest, holding
custodial (impom und) funds for the payment of property taxes and insurance premiums, counseling delinquent mortgagors,
modifyiff ng loans and supeu rvising foreclosures and property dispositions. United subservices the dutid es and responsibilities
obligated to the owner of the MSR to a third party provider forff which we pay a feeff .

Investment Activities

United's investment policy stresses the management of the investment securities portforr lio, which includes both
securities held to maturt ity at nd securities available for sale, to maximize returtt n over the long-term irr n a manner that is
consistent with good banking practices and relative safetff y of principal. United currently does not engage in trading account
activity. The Asset/Liabia lity Management Committee of United is responsible for the coordination and evaluation of the
investment portfoliff o.

Sources of funds forff investment activities include "core deposits". Core deposits include certarr in demand deposits,
savings and NOW accounts. These deposits are relatively stabla e and they are the lowest cost source of fundsff available to
United. Short-term borrowings have also been a significant source of funds. These include federal funds purchased,
securities sold under agreements to repurchase and FHLB borrowings.

United's investment portfolrr io is comprised of a significant amount of mortgage-backed securities, asset-backed
securities and corporate securities. Obligations of States and Political Subdivisions are comprm ised of primarily "investment
grade" rated municipal securities. Interest and dividends on securities forff the years of 2021, 2020, and 2019 were $61.9
million, $66.8 million, and $74.3 million, respectively. For the year of 2021, United realized net gains on sales of securities
of $2.8 million. For the years of 2020 and 2019, United realized net gains on sales of securities of $3.2 million and $373
thousand, respectively. In the year 2019, United recognized other-than-temporary impairmem nt (�OTTI�) charges of $198
thousand.

Human Capia tal

At United, one of our key competitive advantages is our people. Investment in our human capital is a top priorityt
forff the Company. As of December 31, 2021, United and its subsidiaries had approximately 2,966 employees and officers.ff
Of the 2,966 employees and offiff cers, approximately 2,342 are employed in the community banking segment, 557 are
employed in the mortgage banking segment and 67 are in a general support and administrative function for the Company.
None of these employees are represented by a collective bargaining unit and management considers employee relations to
be excellent. We emphasize positive attitudtt es, communication, teamwork, goal attainment, personal growth, and the pursuit
of excellence when it comes to delivering high-quaq lity service to our customers and felloff w employees.

Our human capita al management strategy focuff ses on recruitirr ng, developing, and engaging a talented and diverse
workforce. We emphasize embodyid ng our core values of integrity, teamwork, hard work, and caring, and foster positive
attitudes, communication, goal attainment, personal growth, and the pursuit of United�s mission of excellence in servicrr e to
our shareholders, our customers, our communities, and our emplm oyees.

Focusing on talent selection and developing top talent remains a strong pillar of our organization. Our primary
focus is to attract and advance the careers of employees with different backgrounds, experiences, ideas, and skills.

We host exceptional college recruiting and internship programs that attract candidates froff m a variety of colleges
and universities within our footff prt int. These two programs build a continuous talent pipeline and prioritize these individualdd s
for internal openings.

Our Leadership Development Program provides an opportunity for the Compam ny�s rising talent from across our
footprint and various business lines to strengthen their leadership and communication skills, increase their visibility within
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the organia zation, and establish internal networks, helping to cultivate a futureff pipeline of leaders across the institutt ion. Over
a period of fourff years, these individuals are empowered to work on pertinent projeo cts designed to enhance revenue, reduce
expenses, and improve risk management funff ctions, while developing the membem rs� leadership, interactive, and managerial
skills. Past members now hold key positions across the Company ranging froff m Departmrr ent Managers to Line of Business
Leaders to Executive Officers.

One of our strategic priorities to ensure leadership continuity is effective succession plannia ng. The Companym has a
formal plan to identify potential successors and actively develop those employees. The plan includes all critical
management positions throughout the organization and is updu ated annually. This process is dynamic, and we have added
additional management positions to the plan as the Compam ny continues to evolve and grow. The Company�s executives
constantly review and evaluate personnel to identify pools of candidates with high levels of leadership potential and
promote their progress by engineering their range of work experiences. We also have an expansive internal and externar l
training platform to ensure our employees have the necessary tools to fill these key positions effectively.

United also has an effective and effiff cient onboarding program, introducing new team members to the culture and
enablia ng an environment that helps them be engaged in their roles. We have rigorous interdepartmental training and
development programs that provide employees with capabilities to perform their job functions, deliver results, anda advance
their careers.

We partnered with West Virginia University to develop an executive training program aimed at developing the
technical, theoretical, and appa lied skills needed forff a successful launch into a career in Business Banking. High-performirr ng
employees are given opportunit ties to attend state and national banking schools, conferences, industry peer groups, and
training webinars. All United employees have access to career development and skills-based training through our internal
online Human Resources Management System.

United makes every er ffort to ensure that our compensation and benefits packages are inclusive and competitive to
attract and retain talent. Our comprehensive benefit plans are designed to fully support our fulff l-time and eligible part-rr time
employees and their families through every stage of their life cycle, recognizing our employees� individual needs and
offeff ring flexible benefit options. We provide comprm ehensive health at ndaa wellness plansa for all eligible emplm oyees as well as
retirees of United. We also provide other paid-time off bff enefits such as vacation, sick time, personal days, and birthdrr ays.
The Company also provides financial wellness benefits to all employees through our 401K Plan in which the Company
provides a competitive match of employee contributions. Employees may also take advantage of United�s Employee Stock
Purchase Plan through payroll deductions.

We are committed to providing a safe and healthy work environment forff our emplmm oyees and offerff services to foster
the best physical, mental, and social well-being of our workfrr orff ce. United�s comprmm ehensive Employee Assistance Program
provides all employees a comprehensive and personalized process with a tailored approach to meet employees where they
are and suppu orts them through whatever journerr y they may be facing. The Emplm oyee Assistance Program provides
unlimited phone access for information, resources, and referrals and provides sessions with a counselor for the employee
and their famff ily membem rs. The employee, and their famiff ly, can also take advantage of a host of web-based resources the
program provides as well.

The commitment to our emplm oyees and their famff ily�s well-being remains at the forefront for United and allows us
to remain competm itive in attracting and retaining top talent and ensuring our employee benefits remain competm itive when
compared with other institutt ions.

In addition, at United, we are committed to nurturt ing an inclusive culture that: is reflective of the communities we
serve; celebrates diversity of thought, backgroundsu , and experience; promotes respect and a shared purpose; andaa aligns witht
our core values. United has a cross-funff ctional Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Council (�DE&I Council�) to advise
executive and senior leadership on the Company�s diversity, equity, and inclusion strategy and to implement and manage
programs to accomplish and support these priorities. United added a diversity trainer to the Learnirr ng & Talent Development
Team who facff ilitates workshops availabla e to all emplm oyees. In 2021, 100% of employees participated in DE&I training on
topics such as implicit bias and cultivating inclusive teams.
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DE&I employee liaisons were selected through an appa lication process, received training on courageous
conversations, and then held open forums with local colleagues related to various DE&I topics. The MIS team has
collaborated with the Human Resources department to appa ly best practices in data governance to the metrics that are so
critical to measuring success in DE&I.

To continuen to cultivate our inclusive culturt e, United offers employees a way to report confidential andaa anonymous
issues of concern through our website. Whether it is a compliance or regulatory violation, wrongdoing, impropm er conduct,
or harassment, the confidential report will be instantly and discreetly forwarded for review.

Compem tition

United facff es a high degree of competition in all of the markets it serves. We faceff strong compem tition in gathering
deposits, making loans and obtaining client assets for management by our investment or trust operations. United considers
all of West Virginia to be included in its market area. This area includes the fivff e largest West Virginia Metropolitan
Statistical Areas (�MSA�): the Parkersburg MSA, the Charleston MSA, the Huntington MSA, the Morgantown MSA and
the Wheeling MSA. United serves the Ohio counties of Lawrence, Belmont, Jefferff son and Washington and Fayette countu ytt
in Pennsylvania primarily because of their close proximity ttt o thet Ohio and Pennsylvania borders and United banking officff es
located in thost e counties or in nearby West Virginia. United�s Virginia markets include the Marylrr and, northerr rn Virginia and
Washington, D.C. MSA, the Winchester MSA, the Harrisonburg MSA, and the Charlottesville MSA. Through its
acquisq ition of Carolina Financial, United�s market also includes the Coastal, Midlands, and Upstate regions of South
Carolina, including the Charleston (Charleston, Dorchester and Berkeleyr Counties), Myrtle Beach (Horry and Georgetown
Counties), Columbia (Richland and Lexington Counties), and the Upstate (Greenville and Spartanburg Counties) areas as
well as areas in North Carolina including Wilmington (New Hanover County)tt , Raleigh-Durham (Durham and Wake
Counties), Charlotte-Concord-Gastonia (NC and SC) and the southeastern coastal region of North Carolina (Bladen,
Brunswick, Columbus, Cumberm land, Duplin andaa Robeson Countu ies). Through its acquisition of Community Bankers Trusrr t,
United added new markets in Baltimore and Annapolis, Maryland and Lynchburg and Richmond, Virginia as well as the
Northern Neck of Virginia. United considers all of the aboa ve locations to be the primary market areas for the business of its
banking and mortgage banking subsidiaries.

With prior regulatory arr ppra oval, Virginia banks are permitted unlimited branch banking throughout each state. In
addition, interstate acquisitions of and by Virginia banks and bank holding companies are permissible on a reciprocal basis,
as well as reciprocal interstate acquisitions by thrift iff nstitutitt ons. These conditions serverr to intensify competition within
United's market.

As of December 31, 2021, there were 68 bank holding companies operating in the State of West Virginia registered
with the Federal Reserve System and the West Virginia Board of Banking and Financial Institutt ions, 121 bank holding
companies operating in the Commonwealth of Virginia registered with the Federal Reserve System and the Virginia State
Corporation Commission, 87 bank holding companies operating in the State of North Carolina registered with the Federal
Reserve System and the N.C. Office of the Commissioner of Banksa and 75 bank holding companies operating in the State of
South Carolina registered with the Federal Reserve System and the South Carolina State Board of Financial Institutions.
These holding companies are headquaq rtered in various states and control banks throughout West Virginia, Virginia, North
Carolina and South Carolina, which competm e forff business as well as for the acquisition of additional banks.

Regulation and Supervision

United, as a finff ancial holding company, is subject to the restrictions of the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as
amended, and is registered pursuant to its provisions. As such, United is subjeb ct to the reporting requirements of and
examination by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System ("Board of Governors").

The Bank Holding Companm y Act prohibits the acquisition by a bank holding companm y of direct or indirect
ownership of more than fivff e percent of the voting shares of any bank within the United States without prior approval of the
Board of Governors. With certain exceptions, a bank holding company also is prohibited from acquiring direct or indirect
ownership or control of more than fivff e percent of the voting shares of any company which is not a banka , anda from engaging
directly or indirectly in business unrelated to the business of banking, or managing or controlling banks.
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The Board of Governors, in its Regulation Y, permits financial holding companies to engage in preapproved non-
banking activities closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks. Approval of the Board of Governors is
necessary to engage in certain other non-banking activities which are not preapproveda or to make acquisitions of
corporations engaging in these activities. In addition, on a case-by-case basis, the Board of Governors may approve other
non-banking activities. A financial holding company may also engage in finff ancial activities, including securities
underwriting and dealing, insurance agency and underwriting activities, and merchant banking activities.

As a finff ancial holding company doing business in West Virginia, United is also subject to regulation and
examination by the West Virginia Board of Banking and Financial Institutions (the �West Virginia Banking Board�) and
must submiu t annual reports to the West Virginia Banking Board. Further, any acquisition application that United must
submit to the Board of Governors must also be submitted to the West Virginia Banking Board for approval.

The Board of Governors has broad authority to prohibit activities of financial holding companies and their non-
banking subsidiaries that represent unsafe and unsound banking practices or which constitutt e violations of laws or
regulations. The Board of Governorsrr also can assess civil money penalties for certain activities conducd ted on a knowing
and reckless basis, if those activities causea d a substu antial loss to a depository ir nstitutit on. The penalties can be as high as $1
million for each day the activity continues.

United Bank, as a Virginia state membem r bank, is subju ect to supervuu ision, examination, and regulation by the Federal
Reserve System, and as such, are subject to appa licable provisions of the Federal Reserve Act and regulations issued
thereunder. United Bank is subject to the Virginia banking statutestt and regulations, and is primarily regulated by the
Virginia Bureau of Financial Institutions. As a member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corpor ration (�FDIC�), United
Bank�s deposits are insured as required by fedff eral law. Bank regulatory authorities regularly examine revenues, loans,
investments, management practices, and other aspects of United Bank. These examinations are conducted primarily to
protect depositors and not shareholders. In addition to these regular examinations, United Bank must furff nish to regulatory
authorities quarterly reports containing fulff l and accurate statements of its affairs.

United is also under the jurisdiction of the SEC and certain state securities commissions in regard to the offerinff g
and sale of its securities. Generally, United must filff e under the Securities Exchange Act of 1933, as amended, to issue
additional shares of its common stock. United is also registered under and is subju ect to the regulatory and disclosure
requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as administered by the SEC. United is listed on the
NASDAQ Global Select Market under the quotation symbol �UBSI,� and is subject to the rules of the NASDAQ for listed
companies.

SEC regulations require us to disclose certain types of business and finff ancial data on a regular basis to thet SEC and
to our shareholders. We are required to file annual, quarterly and current reports with the SEC. We prepare and file an
annual report on Form 10-K with the SEC that contains detailed financial and operating informarr tion, as well as a
management response to specificff questions about United�s operations. SEC regulations require that our annual reports to
shareholders contain certirr fied finff ancial statements and other specificff items such as managa ement�s discussion andaa analysis of
our financial condition and results of operations. We must also filff e quarq terly reports with the SEC on Form 10-Q that
contain detailed finff ancial and operating inforff mation for the prior quarter and we must file current reports on Form 8-K to
provide the pubic with informff ation on recent material events.

In addition to periodic reporting to the SEC, we are subjeb ct to proxy rules and tender offer rulerr s issued by the SEC.
Our officers, directors and principal shareholders (holding 10% or more of our stock) must also submit reports to the SEC

regarding their holdings of our stock and any changes to such holdings, and they are subject to short-rr swing profitff liability.

Dividends and Stock Repurchases

The principal source of United�s liquiq dity is dividends from United Bank. The prior approval of the Federal
Reserve Board is required if the total of all dividends declared by a state-chartered memberm banka in any calendar year would
exceed the sum of the bank�s net profits for that year and its retained net profits for the preceding two calendar years, less
any requiq red transfers to surplrr us or to fund the retirement of preferreff d stock. Federal law also prohibits a state-chartered,
member bank from paying dividends that would be greater than the bank�s undivided profits. United Bank is also subjeb ct to
limitations under Virginia state law regarding the level of dividends that may be paid.
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In addition, United and United Bank are subjeb ct to other regulatory policies and requirements relating to the
payment of dividends, including requirements to maintain adequaq te capital above regulatory minimums. The appropriate
federal regulatory authority itt s authorized to determine under certain circumstances relating to the financial condition of a
bank holding company or a bank that the payment of dividends would be an unsafe or unsound practice and to prohibit
payment thereof. The appra opriate fedff eral regulatory authorities have stated that paying dividends that deplete a bank�s
capital base to an inadequate level would be an unsafe aff nd unsound banking practice and that banka ing organizations should
generally pay dividends only out of current operating earnings. In addition, in the current finff ancial and economic
environment, the Federal Reserve Board has indicated that bank holding companies should carefully review their dividend
policy and has discouraged payment ratios that are at maximum allowable levels unless both asset quality and capital are
very strong.

In July 2019, the fedff eral banka regulators adopted final rulerr s (the �Capiaa tal Simplificff ations RulRR es�) that, among other
things, eliminated the standalone prior approval requirement in the Basel III Capital Rules for any repurchase of common
stock. In certain circumstances, United�s repurchases of its common stock may be subject to a prior approval or notice
requirement under other regulations, policies or superu virr sory expectations of the Federal Reserve Board. Any redemptim on or
repurchase of preferred stock or subordinated debt remains subjeu ct to the prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board.

Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010

On July 21, 2010, President Obama signed the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reforff m and Consumer Protection Act (the
Dodd-Frank Act), into law. The Dodd-Frank Act significff antly changesaa regulation of finff ancial institutions and the financial
services industry. The Dodd-Frank Act includes, among other things, provisions creating a Financial Services Oversight
Council to identify eff merging systemic risks and improve interagency cooperation; centralizing the responsibility ftt orff
consumer financial protection by creating a new agency, the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau,a which is responsible
for implementing, examining and enforcff ing compliance with fedff eral consumer financial laws; permanently raising the
current standard maximum deposit insurance amount to $250,000; establishing strengthent ed capitaa al standards for banks, and
disallowing trust preferredff securities as qualifyiff ng for Tier 1 capital (subju ect to certain grandfather provisions for existing
trust preferred securities); establishing new minimum mortgarr ge underwriting standards; grantia ng the Federal Reserverr Board
the power to regulate debit card interchange feesff ; and implm ementing corporater governance changes.

On May 24, 2018, President Trumprr signed into law the �Economic Growth, Regulatory Relief, and Consumer
Protection Act (the EGRRCPA Act)� which provides certain limited amendments to the Dodd-Frank Act, as well as certain
targeted modificatff ions to other post-financial crisis regulatory requirements. In addition, the legislation establa ishes new
consumer protections and amends various securities- and investment company-related requirements. The EGRRCPA Act
primarily amends several other laws, including thet Truth it n Lending Act (TILA), Federal Credit Union Act, Federal Deposit
Insurance Act, Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA) and Securities Act of 1933. The Act is divided into six titles, which aim
to: improve consumer access to mortgage credit (Title I); provide regulatory relief and protect consumer access to credit
(Title II); protect the credit information of consumers, including veterans and servirr cemembers (Title III); tailor regulations
for certain bank holding compam nies, including raising the threshold levels for exemption froff m certain prudential standards
and stress testing (Title IV); encourage capital formation by reforming certairr n Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
regulations (Title V); and protect studtt ent borrowers (Title VI).

Deposit Insurance

The deposits of United Bank are insured by the FDIC to the extent provided by law. Accordingly, United Bank is
also subject to regulation by the FDIC. United Bank is subjeu ct to deposit insurance assessments to maintain the Deposit
Insurance Fund (�DIF�) of the FDIC. The FDIC utilizes a risk-based assessment system that imposes insurance premiums
based upou n a risk matrix that takes into account a bank�s capital level and supervisory rating (CAMELS rating) and certain
financial measures to assess an institution�s ability to withstand asset-related stress and funding-related stress. The risk
matrix utilizes four risk categories which are distinguished by capita al levels and supervisory ratings.

In October 2010, the FDIC adopted a new DIF restoration plan to ensure that the fund reserve ratio reaches 1.35%
by September 30, 2020, as required by the Dodd-Frank Act. Under the new restoration plan, the FDIC will update its loss
and income projections at least semi-annually for the funff d and, if needed, will increase or decrease assessment rates,
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following notice-and-comment rulemaking if required.

In April 2011, the FDIC implemented rulemaking under the Dodd-Frank Act to reform the deposit insurance
assessment system. The final rule redefined the assessment base used for calculating deposit insurance assessments.
Specificff ally, the rule bases assessments on an institutit on�s total assets less tangible capia tal, as opposed to total deposits.
Since the new base is larger than the prior base, the FDIC also proposed lowering assessment rates so that the rules would
not significantly alter the total amount of revenue collected fromff the industrd y.rr The new assessment scale ranges froff m 2.5
basis points forff the least risky ikk nstitutions to 45 basis points for the riskiest.

As part orr f its changes in April 2011, thet FDIC establisa hed a new methodology for determirr ning assessment rates for
large and highly complm ex institutit ons, as defined in the rules. In October 2012, the FDIC announced revised changes to
some of the definff itions used to determine assessment rates for these large and highly complex insured depositoryrr
institutions. The rulr e generally appa lies to FDIC-regulated banks with assets greater than $10 billion and took effeff ct April 1,
2013. In the second quarter of 2018, United Bank was reclassifieff d as a large institutt ion for deposit insurance assessment
purpor ses. Generally, this new classification resulted in higher FDIC insurance premiums.

On Septemberm 30, 2018, the Deposit Insurance Fund Reserve Ratio reached 1.36%, exceeding the statutortt ily
required minimum reserve ratio of 1.35% ahead of the September 30, 2020, deadline required under the Dodd-Frank Act.
FDIC regulations provide forff two changes to deposit insurance assessments upou n reaching the minimumm : (1) surcharges on
insured depository institutit ons with total consolidated assets of $10 billion or more (large banks) ceased on December 28,
2018; and (2) small banks will receive assessment credits for the portion of their assessments that contributed to thet growth
in the reserve ratio from between 1.15% and 1.35%, to be applied when the reserve ratio is at or above 1.38%. United
benefited froff m both these changes.

United�s FDIC insurance expense totaled $8.3 million, $10.1 million, and $8.1 million in 2021, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

Capital Requirements

United and United Bank are each required to complm y with at ppa licable capia tal adequacqq y standards establa ished by the
Federal Reserver Board (the �Basel III Capital Rules�). Since fully phased in on January 1, 2019, the Basel III Capitalaa Rules
require United and United Bank to maintain the folff lowing:

 A minimum ratio of Common Equity Tier 1 (�CET1�) to risk-weighted assets of at least 4.5%, plus a
2.5% �capia tal conservation buffer� (resulting in a minimum ratio of CET1 to risk-weighted assets of
7.0%);

 A minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets of at least 6.0%, plus the capital conservation
buffff erff (resulting in a minimum Tier 1 capital ratio of 8.5%);

 A minimum ratio of total capia tal (Tier 1 capital plus Tier 2 capia tal) to risk-weighted assets of at least
8.0%, plus the capital conservation bufferff (resulting in a minimumm total capital ratio of 10.5%); and

 A minimum leverage ratio of 4.0%, calculated as the ratio of Tier 1 capital to average consolidated assets
as reported on consolidated finaff ncial statements (knowk n as the �leverage ratio�).

Banking institutions that fail to meet the effectiff ve minimum ratios once the capital conservatrr ion buffeff r is taken into
account, as detailed aboa ve, will be subju ect to constraints on capital distributions, including dividends and share repurchases,
and certain discretionary err xecutive compemm nsation. The severity ott f the constraints depends on the amount of the shortfall and
the instituttt ion�s �eligible retained income� (that is, the greater of (i) net income for the preceding four quarters, net of
distributions and associated tax effectsff not reflected in net income and (ii) the average net income over the preceding four
quarters).

The Basel III Capital Rules and the Capital Simplification Rules also provide forff a numberm of deducdd tions from anda
adjustments to CET1. These include, for example, the requirement that certain deferff red tax assets and significff ant
investments in non-consolidated finff ancial entities be deducted from CET1 to the extent that any one such category exceeds
25% of CET1. Prior to the adoption of the Capia tal Simplification Rules in July 2019, amounts were deducted from CET1 to
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the extent that any one such category exceeded 10% of CET1 or all such items, in the aggregate, exceeded 15% of CET1.
The Capia tal Simplification Rules took effecff t forff United and United Bank as of January 1, 2020. These limitations did not
impact our regulatory crr apital during any of the reported periods.

In addition, under the general risk-based capital rules, the effecff ts of accumulated other comprm ehensive income
items included in capital were excluded for the purposesrr of determining regulatory capital ratios. Under the Basel III Capital
Rules, the effeff cts of certain accumulated other comprm ehensive income items are not excluded; however, non-advanced
approaches banking organizations, including United and United Bank, were able to make a one-time permanent election to
continue to exclude these items. Both United and United Bank made this election in order to avoid significant variations in
the level of capital depending upou n the impact of interest rate fluff ctuat tions on the fair value of their available-for-sff ale
securities portfolioff . Under the Basel III Capital Rules, trust preferreff d securities no longer included in our Tier 1 capital mayaa
nonetheless be included as a compom nent of Tier 2 capital on a permanent basis without phase-out.

In February 2019, the federal bank regulatory agencies issued a final rulr e (the �2019 CECL RulRR e�) that revised
certain capital regulations to account forff changes to credit loss accounting under U.S. GAAP. The 2019 CECL RulRR e
included a transition option that allows banking organizations to phase in, over a three-year period, the day-one adverse
effects of adopting a new accounting standard related to the measurement of current expected credit losses (�CECL�) on
their regulatory capia tal ratios (three-year transition option). In March 2020, the federal bank regulatory arr gencies issued an
interim final rule that maintains the three-year transition option of the 2019 CECL Rule and also provides banking
organizations that were required under U.S. GAAP (as of January 2020) to implement CECL before the end of 2020 the
option to delay forff two years an estimate of the effect of CECL on regulatory capital, relative to the incurred loss
methodology�s effect on regulatory capital, follff owed by a three-year transition period (five-year transition option). We
elected to adopt the five-year transition option.

The Basel III Capital Rules prescribe a standara dized appra oach for risk weightings that expanded the risk-weighting
categories from the general risk-based capital rules to a much larger and more risk-sensitive number of categories,
depending on the naturt e of the assets, generally ranging from 0% for U.S. government and agency securities, to 600% for
certain equity et xposures (and higher percentages forff certain other typey s of interests), and resulting in higher risk weights for
a variety of asset categories. In November 2019, the fedff eral banking agencies adopted a rulr e revising the scope of
commercial real estate mortgages subjeu ct to a 150% risk weight.

In December 2017, the Basel Committee published standards that it described as the finaff lization of the Basel III
post-crisis regulatory reforms (the standards are commonly referred to as �Basel IV�). Among othert things, these standards
revise the Basel Committee's standardized approach forff credit risk (including by recalibrating risk weights and introducidd ng
new capia tal requirements for certain �unconditionally cancellabla e commitments,� such as unused credit card lines of credit)
and provides a new standardized approa ach for operational risk capita al. Under the Basel framework, these standards
generally became effective on January 1r , 2022, with an aggregate outputt t floff or phasing in through January 1, 2027. Under
the current U.S. capital rulr es, operational risk capita al requirements and a capital floor apply only to advanced appa roaches
institutions, and not to United or United Bank. The impact of Basel IV on us will depend on the manner in which it is
implemented by the federal bank regulators.

Failure to meet statuttt orily mandated capital guidelines or more restrictive ratios separately established for a
financial institutit on could subjeb ct United to a variety ott f enforcemenff t remedies, including issuance of a capital directive, the
termination of deposit insurance by the FDIC, a prohibition on accepting or renewing brokered deposits, limitations on the
rates of interest that the institution may pay on its deposits and other restrictions on its business. As described below,
significant additional restrictions can be imposed on United if it would fail to meet applicable capital requirements.

Prompt Corrective Action

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 ("FDICIA") establishes a regulatory scheme,
which ties the level of supeu rvisory ir ntervention by bank regulatory authorities primarily to a depository institutt ion's capia tal
category.rr Among other things, FDICIA authorizes regulatory authorities to take "prompt corrective action" with respect to
depository institutit ons that do not meet minimum capital requirements. FDICIA establishes five capital tiers: well
capitalized, adequately capita alized, undercapia talized, significff antly undercapia talized and critically undercapitalized.
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Effective January 1, 2015, under the Basel III Capital Rules, the current prompt corrective action requirements forff
an instituttt ion to be "well-capia talized" is a total risk-based capital ratio of 10% or greater, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of
8% or greater, a CET1 ratio of 6.5% or greater and a Tier 1 leverage ratio of 5 percent or greater.

United Bank was considered a "well capitalized" institutit on as of December 31, 2021. Well-capitalized instituttt ions
are permitted to engage in a wider range of banking activities, including among other things, the accepting of "brokered
deposits," and the offeff ring of interest rates on deposits higher than the prevailing rate in their respective markets.

Community Rt einvestment Act

The Community Reinvestment Act of 1977 (�CRA�) requiq res depository irr nstitutions to assist in meeting thet credit
needs of their market areas consistent with safe and sound banking practice. Under the CRA, each depository institution is
required to help meet the credit needs of its market areas by, among other things, providing credit to low- and moderate-
income individuad ls and communities. Depository institutt ions are periodically examined for compliance with the CRA aRR nd
are assigned ratings. Banking regulators take into account CRA ratings when considering approa val of a proposed
transaction. United Bank received a rating of �outstanding� in its most recent CRA examination.

In December 2019, the FDIC and the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (�OCC�) jointly proposed rulr es
that would significff antly change existing CRA rR egulations. The proposed rules are intended to increase bank activity itt n low-
and moderate-income communities where there is significff ant need forff credit, more responsible lending, greater access to
banking services, and improm vements to critical infrastrucrr ture. The proposals change fourff key areas: (i) clarifying what
activities qualify for CRA credit; (ii) updating where activities count for CRA credit; (iii) providing a more transaa parent and
objective method for measuring CRA performance; and (iv) revising CRA-related data collection, record keeping, and
reporting. The OCC issued a finff al rule effective October 1, 2020; however, the FDIC did not join with the OCC when it
issued the final rulr es. In Septemberm 2020, the FRB issued an Advance Notice of Proposed RulRR emaking (�ANPR�) that
invites public comment on an approa ach to modernize the regulations that implement the CRA by strengthening, clarifyiff ng,
and tailoring them to reflect the current banking landscape and better meet the core purpose of the CRA. The ANPR sought
feedback on ways to evaluate how banks meet the needs of low- and moderate-income communities and address inequiq ties
in credit access. In December 2021, the OCC issued a final rulr e to rescind its June 2020 finff al rule in favoff r of working with
other agencies to put forwarff d a joint rulr e. We will continue to evaluate the impact of any changes to the regulations
implementing the CRA and their impact to our financial condition, results of operations, and/or liquidity, which cannot be
predicted at this time.

The Coronavirusrr Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (the �CARES Act�)

The CARES Act, which became law on March 27, 2020, provided over $2 trillion to combam t the coronavirus
(�COVID-19�) and stimulate the economy. Many of the CARES Act�s programs, including the Paycheck Protection
Program (�PPP�), are dependent upon the direct involvement of U.S. financial institutions and have been implemented
through ruler s and guidance adopted by federal departments and agencies, including the U.S. Department of Treasury, the
Federal Reserverr and other federal banking agencies, including those with direct supervisory jurisdiction over United and
United Bank. Furthermore, as the on-going COVID-19 pandemic evolves, fedff eral regulatory authorities continue to issue
additional guidance with respect to the implementation, lifecycle, and eligibility requirements for the various CARES Act
p gprograms as well as indu ystry p-specific recov yery pproceduresdd for COVID-19.

On Decemberm 27, 2020, then President Trumprr signed into law the 2021 Consolidated Appropriations Act (the
�CAA�), an approximately $900 billion bill, which extended several provisions of the CARES Act as well as provided
additional COVID-19 relief. In particular, the CAA extended weekly unemployment benefits, provided another round of
economic stimulus payments to individuals and families, lengthened temporarym suspensions and modificff ations of several-
bank related pprovisions an pd provided more aid to small businesses.

On March 11, 2021, newly elected President Joe Biden signed into law the $1.9 trillion American Rescue Plan Act
of 2021. The legislation included additional stimulus checks to eligible individuals and an extension of the $300-per-week
supplement to federal unemployment benefitsff through Septemberm 6, 2021. The legislation also allocates funding to small
businesses, state and local governmerr nts, and COVID-19 vaccination and testing and tracing efforts. The legislation also
modified the PPP to clari yfy that the SBA affiliation rules would not ppapplyy to certarr in ppapplicants. Sppecifi ycally, 50 (1( )( )c)(3)
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organizations that employ not more thant 500 employees per physical location of thet organization would become eligible for
the program. The legislation also provided an additional $7.25 billion forff the program. However, the legislation did not
extend the March 31, 2021 appppla ication deadline.

On March 27, 2021, the COVID-19 Bankruprr tcy Relief Extension Act of 2021 was enacted, extending the
bankruptcu y relief provisions enacted in the CARES Act of 2020 bill until March 27, 2022. These provisions provide
financiallyy distressed small businesses and individuals ggreater access to bankrupptcu yy relief.

On March 30, 2021, President Biden signed into law the PPP Extension Act of 2021. This bill extended the PPP
through June 30, 2021. For the final 30 days of the program (i.e., fromff June 1 until June 30), the SBA may only process
ppapplications submitte pd prior to June 1, and it m yay not acc pept a yny new loan pappplications.

On June 24, 2021, President Biden announced that the three federal agencies that t back mortgages � the Department
of Housing and Urbanr Development (HUD), Department of Veterans Affairs (VA), and Departmrr ent of Agriculture (USDA)
� extended their respective forff eclosure moratorium for one, final month, until July 31, 2021. The Federal Housing Finance
Agency (FHFA) also announced that it extended the foreclosure moratorium for mortgages backed by Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac until Julyy 31, 2021. President Biden pemphasized that this was the final extension.

The Company continues to assess the impact of the CARES Act and other statues,tt regulations and supervisory
guidance related to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Cybersecurity

In Februarrr y 2018, the SEC publu ished interprer tive guidance to assist public companies in preparing disclosures
about cybersecurity rt isks and incidents. These SEC guidelines, and any other regulatory guidance, are in addition to
notification and disclosure requirements under state and fedff eral banking law and regulations.

The federal banking regulators regularly issue new guidance and standards, and updu ate existing guidance and
standards, regarding cybersecurity intended to enhance cyber risk management among financial institutit ons. Financial
institutions are expected to comply with such guidance and standards and to accordingly develop appropriate security
controls and risk management processes. If we fail to observe such regulatory guidanca e or standards, we could be subject to
various regulatory sanctions, including financial penalties.

Recently, in November 2021, the federal banking agencies adopted a finaff l rulr e, with compliance requirq ed by
May 1, 2022, that requiresq banking organizations to notify their primary banking regulator within 36 hours of determining
that a �computer-security incident� has materially disrupteu d or degraded, or is reasonably likely to materially disruptu or
degrade, the banking organization�s abia lity to carry out banking operations or deliver banking products and services to a
material portion of its customer base, its businesses and operations that would result in material loss, or its operations that
would impact the stability ot f the United States.

In the ordinary course of business, United relies on electronic communim cations and information systems to conducd t
its operations and to store sensitive data. United employs an in-depth, layered, defensive approach that leverages people,
processes and technology to manage and maintain cybersecurity ctt ontrols. United employs a variety of preventative and
detective tools to monitor, block, and provide alertsrr regarding suspicious activity,t as well as to report on any suspected
advanced persistent threats. Notwithstanding the strength of its defensive measures, thet threat froff m cyber-attacks is severe,
attacks are sophisticated and increasing in volume, and attackers respond rapidly to changes in defensive measures. While to
date, United and United Bank have not experienced a significant cnn ompromise, significff ant data loss or any material financa ial
losses related to cybersecurity attacks, United�s systems and those of its customers and third-party service providers are
under constant threat and it is possible that United could experience a significant event in the futurtt e.

Risks and exposures related to cybersecurity attacks, including litigation and enforcement risks, are expected to be
elevated for the foreseeable future dued to the rapidly evolving naturett and sophistication of thest e thret ats, as well as due to the
expanding use of Internet banking, mobile banking and other technology-based products and services by United and its
customers. See Item 1A. Risk Factors for a furtherff discussion of risk related to cybersecurity.
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Deposit Acquisition Limitation

Under West Virginia banking law, an acquisition or merger is not permitted if thet resulting depository irr nstitution or
its holding company, including its affiliated depository institutions, would assume additional deposits to cause it to control
deposits in the State of West Virginia in excess of twenty five percent (25%) of such total amount of all deposits held by
insured depository institutit ons in West Virginia. This limitation may be waived by the Commissioner of Banking by
showing good cause.

Consumer Laws and Regulations

In addition to the banking laws and regulations discussed above, bank subsidiaries are also subject to certain
consumer laws and regulations that are designed to protect consumers in transactions with banks. Among the more
prominent of such laws and regulations are the Truth in Lending Act, the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act, the Truth in
Savings Act, the Electronic Funds Transfer Act, the Expedited Funds Availability Act, the Equalq Credit Opportunity At ct,
the Fair Credit Reporting Act, the Fair Debt Collection Act, the Right to Financial Privacy Act and the Fair Housing Act.
These laws and regulations mandate certain disclosure requirements and regulate the manner in which financial institutions
must deal with customers when taking deposits or making loans to such customers. United�s bank subsidiary must comply
with the applicable provisions of these consumer protection laws and regulations as part of its ongoing customer relations.

As discussed above, the Dodd-Frank Act centralized responsibility forff consumer financial protection by creating
the CFPB, and giving it responsibility for implementing, examining and enforcing compliance with federal consumer
protection laws. The CFPB has broad rulrr emaking, supervuu isory and enforcement autaa ht ority over consumer finaff ncia al productsdd
and services, including deposit products,d residential mortgrr ages, home-equity loans, and credit cards. The CFPB�s funcff tions
include investigating consumer complaints, rulemaking, supervising and examining banks� consumer transactions, and
enforcing rules related to consumer finff ancial products and services. Banks with more than $10 billion in assets, such as
United Bank, are subjeu ct to supeu rvision by the CFPB with respect to these federal consumer financial laws.

Anti-Money Laundering and the USA Patriot Act

A major focus of governmrr ental policy on financial institutions in recent years has been aimed at combating money
laundering and terrorist financing. The USA PATRIOT Act of 2001, or the USA Patriot Act, substu antially broadened the
scope of United States anti-money laundering laws and regulations by imposim ng significant new compliance and due
diligence obligations, creating new crimes and penalties and expanda ing the extra-territorial jurisdiction of thet United States.
Financial institutions are also prohibited froff m entering into specifieff d finff ancial transactions and account relationships and
must use enhanced due diligence procedures in their dealings with certain typesy of high-risk customers and implement a
written customer identification program. Financial institutions must take certain steps to assist government agencies in
detecting and preventing money laundering and report certain types of suspicious transactions. Regulatory authorities
routinely examine finff ancial institutt ions for compliance with these obligations, and faiff lure of a finaff ncial institutitt on to
maintain andaa implemem nt adequaq te programs to combat money laundu ering and terrorist finff ancing, or to comply with all of thet
relevant laws or regulations, could have serious financial, legal and reputational consequenqq ces forff the institution, including
causing applicabla e bank regulatory authorities not to appa rove merger or acquisition transactions when regulatory arr ppaa roval is
required or to prohibit such transactions even if approval is not required. Regulatory ar uthorities have impom sed cease and
desist orders and civil money penalties against institutions found to be violating these obligations.

The Anti-Money Launa dering Act of 2020 (�AMLA�), which amends the Bank Secrecy Act of 1970 (�BSA�), was
enacted in January 2r 021. The AMLA is intended to be a comprem hensive reform and modernization to U.S. bank secrecy and
anti-money laundering laws. Among othert things, it codifieff s a risk-based approach to anti-money launaa dering complimm ance for
financial institutions; requires the U.S. Department of the Treasury to promulgate priorities forff anti-money laundering and
countering the financing of terrorism policy; requirq es the development of standards forff testing technology and internal
processes for BSA compliance; expands enforff cement- and investigation-related authority, including increasing availablea
sanctions for certain BSA violations; and expands BSA whistleblower incentives and protections. Many of the statutory
provisions in the AMLA will require additional rulrr emakings, reportsrr and other measures, anda the impact of the AMLA will
depend on, among other things, rulrr emaking anda implementation guidanca e. In June 2021, the Financial Crimes Enforff cement
Network, a bureau of the U.S. Departmenrr t of the Treasury,rr issued the priorities forff anti-money laundering and countering
the financing of terrorism policy required under the AMLA. The priorities include: corruption, cybercrime, terrorist
financing, fraud, transnational crime, drug trafficking, human traffiff cking and proliferation finff ancing.
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Incentive Compensation

The Federal Reserve Board reviews, as part of its regular, risk-focused examination process, the incentive
compensation arrangements of banking organizations, such as United, that are not �large, complex bankia ng organizations.�
These reviews are tailored to each organization based on the scope and complexity of the organization�s activities and the
prevalence of incentive compensation arrangemea nts. The finff dings of this supervisory initiative will be included in reports of
examination. Deficff iencies will be incorporated into the organization�s supervirr sory ratings, which can affecff t the
organization�s ability to make acquisitions and take other actions. Enforcement actions may be taken against a banking
organization if its incentive compem nsation arraa ngements, or related risk-management control or governance processes, pose
a risk to the organization�s safety and soundness and the organiza ation is not taking prompt and effective measures to correct
the deficff iencies.

In June 2010, the Federal Reserve Board, OCC and FDIC issued comprehensive final guidance on incentive
compensation policies intended to ensure that the incentive compensation policies of banking organizations do not
undermine the safety at nd soundness of such organizations by encouraging excessive risk-taking. The guidance, which
covers all employees that have the abia lity to materially affecff t the risk profile of an organization, either individuad lly or as
part of a group,u is based upon the key principles that a banking organiza ation�s incentive compensation arrarr ngements should
(i) provide incentives that do not encourage risk-taking beyond the organization�s abia lity to effectively identify aff nda manage
risks, (ii) be compatible with effective internal controls and risk management, and (iii) be supported by strong corporate
governance, including active and effecff tive oversight by the organization�s board of directors.

In April and May of 2016, thet Federal Reserverr Board, other federalff banka ing agencies and the SEC (thet �Agencies�)
jointly publiu shed proposed rulr emaking designed to implm ement provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act prohibiting incentive
compensation arrangements that would encourage inappropriate risk taking at a covered institution, which includes a bank
or bank holding company with $1 billion or more of assets, such as United. The proposed rulr e expanded beyond the June
2010 principals based guidance and broadened the scope to include community banks. The proposed rules (i) prohibit
incentive-based compensation arrangements that encourage executive officers, employees, directors or principal
shareholders to expose the institution to inappra opriate risks by providing excessive compensation (based on the standards
for excessive compensation adopted pursuanta to the FDIA) and (ii) prohibit incentive-based compem nsation arrangements for
executive officers, emplm oyees, directors or principal shareholders that could lead to a material finaff ncial loss for the
institution. The proposed rule requires covered institutions to establa ish policies and procedures for monitoring and
evaluating their compensation practices. As of February 2r 022, final rulr es have not been adopted. If these or other
regulations are adopted in a forff m similar to that initially proposed, they will imposm e limitations on the manner in which we
may structuret compensation for our executives.

The scope and content of the U.S. banking regulators� policies on incentive compensation are continuing to
develop. It cannot be determined at this time whether or when a finff al rule will be adopted and whether compliance with
such a final rule will adversely affecff t the ability ott f United and United Bankaa to hire, retain anda motivate their key emplm oyees.

.
Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

United is subjeb ct to risks inherent to the Companm y�s business. The material risks and uncertarr inties that management
believes affect the Compam ny are described below. Beforeff making an investment decision, you should carefully consider the
risks and uncertainties described below together with all of the other informaff tion included or incorporated by reference in
this report. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones facing the Company. Additional risks and
uncertainties that management is not aware of or focuff sed on or that management currently deems immaterial may also
impair United�s business operations. This report is quaq lified in its entirety by these risk factors.

RISKS RELATEDEE TO THE COVID-19 PANDEMICPP

The ongoing COVID-19 pandaa emic has created economic and financial disruprr tions that have advedd rsely affeff cted, andaa
are likely to continue to adversely affect, United�s business, finff ancial condition, liquidity at nd results of operations. The

United’s business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations have been, and will likely continue to be, adversely 
affected by the COVID-19 pandemic.
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extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will continue to negatively affecff t United�s business, financial condition, liquiditytt
and results of operations will depend on futurett developments, which are highly uncertairr n anda cannot be predicted, including
the scope and durd ation of the pandemic, the continued effecff tiveness of United�s business continuity plan, the direct and
indirect impact of the pandemic on United�s employees, customers, clients, counterparties and service providers, as well as
other market participants, and actions taken, or that may yet be taken, by governmental authorities and other third parties in
response to the pandemic, and publu ic acceptance of any vaccines for COVID-19.

Although finff ancial markets have largely rebounded froff m the significant declines that occurred earlier in the
pandemic and global economic conditions showed signs of improvement, many of the circumstances that arose or became
more pronounced after the onset of the pandemic persist, including:

� Increased unemployment and decreased consumer confidence and business generally, leading to an increased
risk of delinquencies, defaulta s and foreclosures.
� Ratings downgrades, credit deterioration and defaulaa ts in many industries, including natural resources, hospitality,tt
transportation and commercial real estate.
� A sudden and significff ant reducd tion in the valuation of the equity, fixed-income and commodity mt arkets and the
significant increase in the volatility of those markets.
� A decrease in the rates and yields on U.S. Treasury srr ecurities, which may lead to decreased net interest income.
� Increased demands on capia tal and liquiq dity.
� A reduction in the value of the assets that the Compam ny manages or otherwise administers or services forff others,
affeff cting related feeff income and demand for the Company�s services.
� Heightened cybersecurity, information security and operational risks as a result of work-from-home
arrangements.

Governmental authorities have taken unprecedented measures to provide economic assistance to individual
households and businesses, stabilize the markets and support economic growth. The success of these measures is unknok wn
and they may not be sufficient to fully mitigate the negative impacm t of the COVID-19 pandemic. Additionally, some
measures, such as a suspension of mortgage and other loan payments and forff eclosures, may have a negative impact on
United�s business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations. United also facesff an increased risk of litigation
and governmental and regulatory scrutiny as a result of the effecff ts of COVID-19 on market and economic conditions and
actions governmenrr tal authorities take in response to those conditions.

The length of the pandemic and the efficacy of the extraordinary mrr easures being put in place to address it are
unknown. Until the pandemic subsides, the Company expects continued draws on lines of credit, reduced d revenues in our
trust operations and other businesses and increased customer and client defaulta s, including defauff lts in unsecured loans.

Even after the pandemic subsides, the U.S. economy may experience a recession, and United anticipates the
Company�s businesses would be materially and adversely affected by a prolonged recession.

As a participating lender in the PPP, United and United Bank are subju ect to additional risks of litigation froff m United Bank�s
customers or other partierr s regarding United Bank�s processing of loans for the PPP and risks that the SBA may not fund
some or all PPP loan guarantees.

Under the PPP, small businesses and other entities and individuadd ls applied forff loans fromff existing SBA lenders anda
other approved regulated lenders that enrolled in the program, subjecb t to numerous limitations anda eligibility criteria. United
Bank participated as a lender in the PPP. The PPP opened on April 3, 2020; however, because of the short timeframe
between the passing of the CARES Act and the opening of the PPP, there was some ambiguity in the laws, rules and
guidance regarding the operation of the PPP, which exposed United and United Bank to risks relating to noncomplim ance
with the PPP. In addition, United Bank�s participation in the PPP as a lender may adversely affect the Company�s revenue
and results of operations depending on the timing and amount of forgff iveness, if any, to which borrowers are entitled.

Since the opening of the PPP, several othet r larger banks have been subject to litigation regarding the process and
procedures that such banks used in processing applications for the PPP and claims related to agent fees. United and United
Bank may be exposed to the risk of similar litigation, from both customers and non-customers that approached United Banka
regarding PPP loans, regarding its process and procedures used in processing applications for the PPP, or litigation from
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agents with respect to agent feeff s. If any such litigation is fileff d against United or United Bank and is not resolved in a
manner favff orable to United or United Bank, it may result in significant finff ancial liability or adversely affecff t their
reputation. In addition, litigation can be costly, regardless of outcome. Any financia al liability, litigation costs or reputational
damage caused by PPP related litigation could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

United Bank also has credit risk on PPP loans if a determination is made by the SBA that there is a deficiency in
the manner in which the loan was originated, funded, or serviced by United Bank, such as an issue with the eligibility of a
borrower to receive a PPP loan, which may or may not be related to the ambiguity in the laws, rules and guidanca e regarding
the operation of the PPP. In the event of a loss resulting from a defaultff on a PPP loan and a determination by the SBA that
there was a deficiff ency in the manner in which the PPP loan was originated, funded, or serviced by United Bank, the SBA
may deny its liability under the guaranty,t reduce the amount of the guaranty,t or, if it has already pdd aid under the guaranty,t
seek recovery orr f any loss related to the deficff iency from United Bank. Additionally, if a borror wer under the PPP loan fails to
qualify for loan forgiveness, United Bank is at the heightened risk of holding the loan at an unfavorable interest rate as
compared to loans to customers that United Bank would have otherwise extended credit.

CREDIT RII ISKS

There are no assurances as to adequacy of the allowance for credit losses.

The FASB's Accounting Standards Update 2016-13, effective forff United as of January 1, 2020, substantially
changes the accounting forff credit losses on loans, leases and other financial assets held by banks, financial institutions and
other organizations. The new standard requires the recognition of credit losses on loans, leases and other financial assets
based on an entity'st current estimate of expected losses over the lifetime of each loan, lease or other financa ial asset, referred
to as the Current Expected Credit Loss ("CECL") model as opposed to the previous "incurred loss" model, whichrequired recognition of losses on loans, leases andother finaff ncial assets onlywhen those losses had incurred.Under
the CECL model, United is required to present these certain financial assets, carried at amortized cost, at the net amount
expected to be collected over the life of the finff ancial asset. The measurement of expected credit losses is based on
information aboa ut past events, including credit quality, our historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and
supportable macroeconomic forff ecasts that may affect the collectability of the reporterr d amount. This measurement will take
place at the time a financial asset is first added to the balance sheet and at least quarterly thereafteff r.

CECL also requires management judgment that is supported by new models and more data elements, including
macroeconomic forecasts, than the previous allowance standard. This is expected to increase the compmm lexity att nd associated
risk, particularly in times of economic uncertainty or other unforeseen circumstances, which could impact United�s results
of operations and capia tal levels as well as place stress on our internal controls over financial reporting.

The determination of the appropriate level of allowance for credit losses inherently involves a high degree of
subjectivity and requires us to make significant estimates related to current and expected future credit risks anda trends, all of
which may undergo material changes. Continuing deterioration in economic conditions affecting borrowers and securities
issuers; new information regarding existing loans, credit commitments and securities holdings; the continuation of the
COVID-19 pandemic or other global pandemics; natural disasters and risks related to climate change; and identification of
additional problem loans, ratings down-grades and other factors, both within and outside of our control, may requirq e an
increase in the allowances forff credit losses on loans, securities and off-balance sheet credit exposures. In addition, federal
and state regulators, as an integral part of their respective supervu isory functu ions, periodically review United�s allowance for
credit losses on loans, and may require an increase in the provision forff credit losses or the recognition of furthrr er loana
charge-offs,ff based on judgments differff ent than those of management. Any increases in the allowance for credit losses on
loans will result in a decrease in net income and, possibly, capital, and may have a material adverse effeff ct on United�s
business, finff ancial condition and results of operations.

See the section captioned �Provision for Credit Losses� in in the Management�s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations included in Part II, Item 7 of this Form 10-K for furthet r discussion related to
our process for determining the appropriate level of the allowance forff credit losses.
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United is subjeb ct to credit risk in its loan portfolio.

There are risks inherent in making any loan, including risks with respect to the period of time over which the loan
may be repaid, risks resulting fromff changes in economic and industry conditions, risks inherent in dealing with individuad l
borror wers and risks resulting from uncertainties as to the future value of collateral. United seeks to mitigate the risk inherent
in its loan portfolio by adhering to prudent loan approval practices. Although United believes that its loan approval criteria
are appropriate forff the various kinds of loans the Company makes, United may incur losses on loans that meet our loan
approval criteria. A significant decline in general economic conditions causea d by inflation or deflation, recession,
unemplm oyment, changes in governmerr nt fiscal and monetary policies, acts of terrorism, or other facff tors beyond our control
could cause our borrowers to defauff lt on their loan payments, and the collateral values securing such loans to decline and be
insufficient to repay any outstanding indebtedness. In such events, we could experience significantaa loan losses, which could
have a material adverse effect on our finff ancial condition and results of operations.

Certain of our credit exposures are concentrat ted in industries that may be more susceptible to thet long-term rrr isks of
climate change, naturt al disasters or global pandemics. To the extent that these risks may have a negative impact on the
financial condition of borrowers, it could also have a material adverse effectff on our business, financial condition and results
of operations. See the section capta ioned �Loans� in Item 7, Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financa ial Condition
and Results of Operations elsewhere in this report forff further discussion related to commercial and industrial, energy,
construction and commercial real estate loans.

OPERATIONALNN RISKS

United�s inforff mation systems may experience an interruptu ion or breach in security.tt

United relies heavily on communications and information systems to conduct its business. In addition, as part of its
business, United collects, processes and retains sensitive and confidff ential client and customer information. United�s
facilities and systems, and those of our third-party st ervice providers, may be vulnerable to security breaches, acts of
vandalism, computm er virusrr es, misplaced or lost data, programming anda /odd r humh an errors, or othert similar events. Any failure,
interruptu ion or breach in security ot f these systems could result in faiff lures or disruptiu ons in the Company�s customer
relationship management, general ledger, deposit, loan and other systems. While United has policies and procedurdd es
designed to prevent or limit the effect of the failure, interrurr ptiu on or security breach of its inforff mation systems, there can be
no assurance that any such failures, interrupr tions or security breaches will not occur or, if they do occur, that they will be
adequately addressed. The occurrence of any faiff lures, interruptiuu ons or security breaches of the Company�s inforff mation
systems could damage United�s reputation, result in a loss of customer business, subjeb ct United to additional regulatoryr
scrutiny, or expose the Company to civil litigation and possible financial liability, any of which could have a material
adverse effecff t on United�s finff ancial condition and results of operations.

Unauthorized disclosure of sensitive or confidential client or customer inforff mation, whether through a cyber-attack, other
breach of our computer systems or otherwise, could severely harm our business.

In the normal course of our business, we collect, process and retain sensitive and confideff ntial client and customer
informaff tion on our behalf and on behalf of other third partiesrr . Despite the security measures we have in place, our facilities
and systems may be vulnerable to cyber-attacks, security breaches, acts of vandalism, computer viruses, misplaced or lost
data, programming and/or human errors, or other similar events.

Informff ation security risks for finff ancial institutions like us have increased recently in part because of new
technologies, the use of the internet and telecommunications technologies (including mobile devices) to conduct financial
and other business transactions, emplom yees working froff m home and the increased sophistication and activities of organized
crime, perpetrators of fraud,ff hackers, terrorists and others. In addition to cyber-attacks or other security breaches involving
the theft of sensitive and confidential information, hackers have engaged in attacks against large financial institutit ons,
particularly denial of servirr ce attacks, designed to disruptu key business services such as customer-facing web sites. We are
not able to anticipate or implement effectff ive preventive measures against all security bt reaches of these types. Although we
employ detection and response mechanisms designed to contain and mitigate security incidents, early detection may be
thwarted by persistent sophisticated attacks and malware designed to avoid detection.
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We also facff e risks related to cyber-attacks and other security breaches in connection with card transactions that
typically involve the transmission of sensitive inforff mation regarding our customers through various third parties. Some of
these parties have in the past been the target of security bt reaches and cyber-attacks, and becausea the transactions involve
third partierr s and environments that we do not control or secure, future security breaches or cyber-attacks affecting any of
these third partiesrr could impam ct us through no fauff lt of our own, and in some cases we may have exposure and suffeff r losses
for breaches or attacks relating to them. We also rely on numerous other third-partyrr service providers to conducd t other
aspects of our business operations and faceff similar risks relating to them. While we conduct security assessments on our
higher risk thit rd parties, we cannot be sure that their informarr tion security protocols are sufficient to withstand a cybey r-attack
or other security breach.

Any cyber-attack or other security breach involving the misappropriation, loss or other unauthort ized disclosure of
confidential customer inforff marr tion could severely damage our reputation, erode confidence in the security ot f our systems,
producd ts and services, expose us to the risk of litigation and liability, disruptu our operations and have a material adverse
effect on our business.

United�s business continuity pt lansa or data security systems could prove to be inadequatqq e, resulting in a material interruption
in, or disruption to, its business and a negative impact on results of operations.

United relies heavily on communications and informaff tion systems to conduct its business. Any faiff lure, interruption
or breach in security of these systems, whether due to severe weather, naturtt al disasters, cyber-attack, acts of war or
terrorism, criminal activity ott r other factors, could result in failures or disruptions in general ledger, deposit, loan, customer
relationship management and other systems. While United has disaster recovery and other policies and procedures designed
to prevent or limit the effect of the failure, interruptu ion or security breach of its informatiff on systems, there can be no
assurance that any such faiff lures, interruptu ions or security breaches will not occur or, if they do occur, that they will be
adequately addressed. The occurrence of any failff ures, interruptions or security breaches of United�s information systems
could damage its reputation, result in a loss of customer business, subjeb ct it to additional regulatory scrutiny or expose it to
civil litigation and possible finaff ncial liabia lity, any of which could have a material adverse effect on results of operations.

The negative economic effects caused by terrorist attacks, including cyber-attacks, potential attacks and other
destabia lizing events would likely contribute to the deterioration of the quality of United�s loan portfolff io and could reduce its
customer base, level of deposits, and demand for its finff ancial producd ts such as loans.

High inflation, natural disasters, acts of terrorism, including cyber-attacks, an escalation of hostilities or other
international or domestic occurrences, and other factors could have a negative impam ct on the economy of the Mid-Atlantic
and Southeast regions in which United operates. An additional economic downturn in its markets would likely contribute to
the deterioration of the quality of United�s loan portfolio by impam cting the abia lity of its customers to repay loans, the value
of the collateral securing loans, and may reduce the level of deposits in its bank and the stability of its deposit fundff ing
sources. An additional economic downturn could also have a significant impact on the demand forff United�s products and
services. The cumulative effectff of these matters on United�s results of operations and finaff ncial condition would likely be
adverse and material.

Our growth-oriented business strategy could be adversely affected if we are not abla e to attract and retain skilled employees
or if we lose the servirr ces of our senior management team.

Our ability to manage growth will depend upon our ability tt o continue to attract, hire and retain skilled emplm oyees.
The unanticipated loss of members of our senior management team, could have a material adverse effecff t on our results of
operations and abia lity ttt o execute our strategic goals. Our success will also depend on the ability of our officers and key
employees to continue to implement and improve our operational and other systems, to manage multiple, concurrent
customer relationships and to hire, train and manage our employees.
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United�s vendors could faiff l to fulfiff ll their contractualtt obligations, resulting in a material interruptiu on in, or disruption to, its
business and a negative impact on results of operations.

United is dependent upon third partiesrr for certain information system, data management and processing services
and to provide key components of its business infrastff ructure. United has entered into subcou ntracts for the supply of current
and future services, such as data processing, mortgage loan processing and servicrr ing, and certain property mt anagement
functions. These services must be available on a continuous and timely basis and be in compliance with any regulatory
requirements. Failure to do so could substantially harm United�s business.

United often purchases servirr ces fromff vendors under agreements that typiy cally can be terminated on a periodic
basis. There can be no assurance, however, that vendors will be able to meet their obligations under these agreements or that
United will be able to compem l them to do so. Risks of relying on vendors include the folff lowing:

 If an existing agreement expires or a certain servrr ice is discontinuednn by a vendor, then United may not be abla e
to continue to offer its customers the same breadth of products and its operating results would likely sufferff
unless it is abla e to finff d an alternate supply of a similar service.

 Agreements United may negotiate in the futff urt e may commit it to certain minimum spending obligations. It is
possible United will not be abla e to create the marketrr demand to meet such obligations.

 If market demand for United�s productdd s increases suddenly, its current vendors might not be able to fulfff illff
United�s commercial needs, which would require it to seek new arrangements or new sources of supply, and
may result in substantu ial delaysaa in meeting market demand.

 United may not be ablea to control or adequatelqq y monitor the quality of servicr es it receives from its vendors.
Poor quality stt ervices could damage United�s reputation with its customers.

In addition, these third party stt ervice providers are sources of operational and inforff marr tional security rtt isk to United,
including risks associated with operational errors, inforff mation system interruptu ions or breaches, and unauta horized
disclosures of sensitive or confidential client or customer informatr ion. If third partyrr service providers encounter any of these
issues, or if United has difficff ulty communicating with them, United could be exposed to disruprr tion of operations, loss of
service or connectivity ttt o customers, reputational damage, andaa litigation risk that could have a material adversdd e effectff on our
results of operations or our business.

Potential problems with vendors such as those discussed above could have a significanta adverse effect on United�s
business, lead to higher costs and damage its reputation with its customers and, in turn, have a material adverse effect on its
financial condition and results of operations.

MARKET AND INTEREST RATE RISKS

Changes in economic and political conditions could adversely affectff our earnings, as our borrowers� ability ttt o repay loans
and the value of the collateral securing our loans decline.

United�s success depends, to a certain extent, uponu local and national economic and political conditions, as well as
governmental monetary policies. Conditions such as an economic recession, rising unemplm oyment, changesa in interest rates,
money supply and other factors beyond its control may adversely affect United�s and United Bank�s asset quality, deposit
levels and loan demand and, therefore,ff its earnings. Because United has a significant amount of real estate loans, decreases
in real estate values could adversely affect the value of property used as collateral. Adverse changes in the economy may
also have a negative effecff t on the ability of our borrowers to make timely repayments of their loans, which could have an
adverse impact on our earninrr gs. Consequently, declines in the economy in our market area could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

While recent economic conditions have seen improving trends since the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, there
can be no assurance that this improvement will continue. Evolving responses from federal and state governments anda other
regulators, and our customers or our third-party partners or vendors, to new challenges such as climate change have
impacted and could continue to impact the economic and political conditions under which we operate. Economic and
inflaff tionary prr ressure on consumers and uncertarr inty regarding continuing economic improvement could result in changea s in
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consumer and business spending, borrowir ng and savings habits.a Such conditions could have a material adverse effectff on the
credit quaq lity ott f our loans and our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The value of certain investment securities is volatile and futuff re declines in value could have a materially adverse effectff on
future earnings and regulatory cr apital.

Continued volatility it n the fair value forff certain investment securities, whether caused by changes in market
conditions, interest rates, credit risk of the issuer, the expected yield of the security,t or actual defaulta s in the portfolff io could
result in significaff nt fluctuat tions in the value of the securities as well as any regulatory rulerr making such as the Volcker RulRR e
which could exclude or limit the holdings of certain investment securities. This could have a material adverse impact on
United�s accumulated other comprehensive income and shareholders� equity depending on the direction of the fluctuatt tions.
Furthermore, futuff re downgrades, defaulff ts or prepayments, including the liquidation of the underlying collateral in certain
securities, could result in the recording of an allowance for credit losses related to these securities. This could have a
material impact on United�s futff urt e earnir ngs, although the impact on shareholders� equity will be offset by any amount
alrea ydy included in other compprehensive income.

United operates in a highly competitive market.

United facff es a high degree of compem tition in all of the markets it serves. United facesff strong competition in
gathering deposits, making loans and obtaining client assets for management by its investment or trusrr t operations. United
considers all of West Virginia to be included in its market area. This area includes the five largest West Virginia
Metropolitan Statistical Areas (�MSA�): the Parkersburg MSA, the Charleston MSA, the Huntington MSA, the
Morgantown MSA and the Wheeling MSA. United serves the Ohio counties of Lawrence, Belmont, Jefferson and
Washington and Fayette county in Pennsylvania primarily becausaa e of their close proximity to the Ohio and Pennsylvania
borders and United banking offices located in those counties or in nearbyr West Virginia. United�s Virginia markets include
the Maryland, northern Virginia and Washington, D.C. MSA, the Winchester MSA, the Harrisonburg MSA, and the
Charlottesville MSA. Through its acquisition of Carolina Financial, United�s market also includes the Coastal, Midlands,
and Upstate regions of South Carolina, including the Charleston (Charleston, Dorchester and Berkeley Counties), Myrtle
Beach (Horry arr nd Georgetown Counties), Columbia (Richland and Lexington Counties), and the Upstate (Greenville and
Spartanburg Counties) areas as well as areas in North Carolina including Wilmington (New Hanover County), Raleigh-
Durham (Durham and Wake Counties), Charlotte-Concord-Gastonia (NC and SC) and the southeastern coastal region of
North Carolina (Bladen, Brunswick, Columbus, Cumberland, Duplin and Robeson Counties). Through its acquisition of
Community Bt ankers Trust, United added new markets in Baltimore and Annapoa lis, Maryland and Lynchburg and
Richmond, Virginia as well as the Northern Nrr eck of Virginia. United considers all of the above locations to be the primary
market area for the business of its banking and mortgage banking subsu idiaries.

There is a risk that aggressive compem tition could result in United controlling a smaller share of these markets. A
decline in marketrr share could lead to a decline in net income which would have a negative impact on stockholder value.

United may be adversely affecff ted by the soundness of other financial institutions.

Financial services institutions are interrelated as a result of trading, clearing, counterparty, or other relationships.
United has exposure to many differentff industries and counterpartrr ies, and routinely executes transactions with counterparties
in the financial services industry,r including brokers and dealers, commercial banks, investment banks, mutuat l and hedge
funds, or other institutional clients. Recent defaults by financial servicrr es institutions, and even rumorr s or questions about a
financial institutit on or the finaff ncial services industry irr n general, have led to markerr t wide liquidity problems and could lead
to losses or defaults by United or other institutit ons. Any such losses could adversely affect United�s finanff cial condition or
results of operations.

Changes in interest rates may adversely affecff t United�s business.

United�s earnirr ngs, like most financial institutions, are significantly dependent on its net interest income. Net
interest income is the diffeff rence between the interest income United earns on loans and other assets which earn interest anda
the interest expense incurred to funff d those assets, such as on savings deposits and borrowed money. Therefore, changes in
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general market interest rates, such as a change in the monetary policy of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System or otherwise beyond those which are contemplam ted by United�s interest rate risk model and policy, could have an
effect on net interest income. For more information concernirr ng United�s interest rate risk model and policy, see the
discussion in Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk included in Part II, under Item 7A of this Form
10-K.

Uncertainty relating to the LIBOR determination process and LIBOR discontinuance may adverdd sely affect our results
of operations.

The London Interbank Offerff ed Rate (�LIBOR�) and certain other �benchmarksr � are the subjeu ct of recent national,
international, and other regulatory guidance and proposals forff reform.rr These reforff ms may cause such benchmarks to
perform differff ently than in the past or have other consequenq ces, which cannot be predicted. On July 27, 2017, the United
Kingdom�s Financial Conduct Authority (�FCA�), which regulates LIBOR, publu icly announced its intention to stop
persuading or compelling banks to submiu t LIBOR rates after 2021. Since then, regulators, industry grr roups and certain
committees (e.g., the Alternarr tive Reference Rates Committee) have, among other things, publu ished recommended fall-back
language forff LIBOR-linked finff ancial instruments, identifieff d recommended alternarr tives forff certain LIBOR rates (e.g., the
Secured Overnight Financing Rate (�SOFR�) as the recommended alternative to U.S. Dollar LIBOR), and proposed
implementations of the recommended alternatives in floaff ting rate instruments. On November 30, 2020, ICE Benchmark
Administration Limited (�IBA�), the benchmark administrator for the U.S. Dollar (�USD�) LIBOR annon unced a proposal to
extend the publiu cation of the most commonly used USD LIBOR settings until June 30, 2023.

The administrator for LIBOR announced on March 5, 2021 that it will permanently cease to publish most LIBOR
settings beginning on January 1rr , 2022 and cease to publish thet overnirr ght, one-month, thrt ee-month, six-month and 12-month
USD LIBOR settings on July 1, 2023. Accordingly, the FCA has stated that is does not intend to persuade or compem l banks
to submiu t to LIBOR after such respective dates. Until such time, however, FCA panel banks have agreed to continue to
support LIBOR.

Banking regulators issued guidance strongly encouraging banks to cease entering into new contracts that use USD
LIBOR as a referenceff rate as soon as practicable and in anya event by December 31, 2021. Accordingly, United has taken
steps to ensure that no new contracts using LIBOR will be originated after Decemberm 31, 2021. At this time, United intends
to prioritize SOFR and Prime as the preferredrr alternatives to LIBOR; however, these preferred alternatives could change
over time based on markerr t developments. There can be no assurances on which benchmark rate(s) may replace LIBOR or
how LIBOR will be determined forff purposes of financial instruments that are currently referencing LIBOR when it ceases
to exist. The discontinuance of LIBOR may result in uncertainty or differff ences in the calculation of the appa licabla e interest
rate or payment amount depending on the terms of the governing documents, may adversely affecff t the value of our floating
rate obligations, loans, deposits, derivatives, and other financial instruments tied to LIBOR rates and may also increase
operational and other risks to the Company and the indusd try.

In addition, the implementation of LIBOR reforff m proposals may result in increased compliance costs and
operational costs, including costs related to continued participation in LIBOR and the transition to a replacement reference
rate or rates. We cannot reasonabla y estimate the expected cost.

REGULATORY AND LITIGATGG IONTT RISKII SKK

United is subjeb ct to extensive governmerr nt regulation and supeu rvision.

United is subjeb ct to extensive federalff and state regulation, supeu rvision and examination which vests significant
discretion in the various regulatory authorities. Banking regulations are primarily intended to protect depositors� funds,
federal deposit insurance funds and the banking system as a whole, not shareholders. These regulations affect United�s
lending practices, capia tal structrr ure,tt investmenttt practices, dividend policy, operations and growth,t among othert things. These
regulations also impose obligations to maintain appropriate policies, proceduresdd and controls, among other things, to detect,
prevent and report money launaa dering anda terrorist financing and to verify the identities of United�s customers. Congress and
federal regulatory arr gencies continualn ly review banking laws, regulations and policies for possible changes. The Dodd-Franka
Act, enacted in July 2010, instituted majoa r changes to the banking and finff ancial institutit ons regulatory rr egimes. Other
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changes to statutes, regulations or regulatory policies, including changes in interpretation or implementation of statutes,
regulations or policies, could affectff United in substantial and unpredictable ways.aa Such changes could subjeu ct the Company
to additional costs, limit the typesy of financial servicrr es and products United may offerff and/ordd increase the abila ity ot f
nonbanks to offerff competing finaff ncial servicrr es and products, among other things. United expends substantial effortff and
incurs costs to improve its systems, audit capabilities, staffinff g and training in order to satisfy regulatory requirements, but
the regulatory arr uthorities may determine that such efforff ts are insufficient. Failure to comply with relevant laws, regulations
or policies could result in enforcff ement and other legal actions, sanctions by regulatory arr gencies, civil money and criminal
penalties, the loss of FDIC insurance, the revocation of a banking charter, significant finff es and/or reputation damage, which
could have a material adverse effecff t on United�s business, financial condition and results of operations. In this regard,
government authorities, including the bank regulatory arr gencies, are pursuing aggressive enforcemff ent actions with respect to
compliance and other legal matters involving finff ancial activities, which heightens the risks associated with actual and
perceived complimm ance faiff lures. Directives issued to enforff ce such actions may be confidential and thust , in some instances, we
are not permitted to publicly disclose these actions. Any of the foregff oing could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations. See the section captioned �Regulation and Supervision� included in
Item 1. While the Companm y has policies and procedures designed to prevent any such violations, there can be no assurance
that such violations will not occur.

In the normal course of business, United and its subsidiaries are routinely subject to examinations and challenges
frff om feff deral and state tax authorities regarding the amount of taxes due in connection with investments that the Company
has made and the businesses in which United has engaged. Recently, federalff and state taxing authorities have become
increasingly aggressive in challenging tax positions taken by finff ancial institutions. These tax positions may relate to tax
compliance, sales and use, fraff nchise, gross receipts, payroll, property and income tax issues, including tax base,
apportionment and tax credit planning. The challenges made by tax authorities may result in adjud stments to the timing or
amount of taxable income or deductions or the allocation of income among tax jurisdictions. If any such challenges are
made and are not resolved in the Compamm nya �s favor,ff they could have a material adverse effeff ct on United�s finff ancial condition
and results of operations.

The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (a �CFPB�) may reshapea the consumer financial laws through rulemaking and
enforcemff ent of the prohibitions against unfaiff r, deceptive and abusive business practices. Complmm iance with any such change
may impact the business operations of depository institutt ions offering consumer finff ancial producdd ts or services, including
United Bank.

The CFPB has broad rulr emaking authority to administer and carry out the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act with
respect to financial institutions that offer covered finff ancial products and services to consumers. The CFPB has also been
directed to write rules identifyingff practices or acts that are unfair, deceptive or abusive in connection with any transaction
with a consumer forff a consumer financial product or servicrr e, or the offeff ring of a consumer finff ancial producdd t or servicrr e. The
concept of what may be considered to be an �abusive� practice is relatively new under the law. Moreover, United Bank is
supervised and examined by the CFPB for compliance with the CFPB�s regulations and policies. The costs and limitations
related to this additional regulatory reporting regimen have yet to be fulff ly determined, although they may be material and
the limitations and restrictions that will be placed upou n United Bank with respect to its consumer productd offering and
services may produce significaff nt, material effeff cts on United Bank (and United�s) profitabia lity.

United is subjeb ct to higher regulatory capital requirq ements and failure to comply with these standards may impact dividend
payments, equity repurchases and executive compem nsation.

United and United Bank are each required to complm y with at ppa licable capia tal adequacqq y standards establa ished by the
Federal Reserverr Board (the �FRB�). From time to time, the FRB changes these capitaa l adequacy standards. In particular,
the capital requirements appla icable to United under the Basel III rules became fully effeff ctive on January 1rr , 2019. Under the
Basel III rules, United is required to maintain a common equity Tier 1 capital ratio of 4.5%, a Tier 1 capitala ratio of 6%, a
total capital ratio of 8%, and a leverage ratio of 4%. In addition, United must maintain an additional capital conservation
bufferff of 2.5% of total risk weighted assets.

Banking institutions that fail to meet the effective minimum ratios including thet capiaa tal conservation buffer will be
subju ect to constraints on capital distributions, including dividends and share repurchases, and certain discretionary executive
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compensation. The severity of the constraints depends on the amount of the shortfall and the institution�s �eligible retained
income� (that is, four quarter trailing net income, net of distributions and tax effects not reflected in net income).

The Basel III changes have resulted in generally higher minimum capitaa al ratios than in the past that requires United
and its subsu idiaries to maintain capital buffers above minimum requirements to avoid restrictions on capiaa tal distributions and
executive bonus payments. In addition, the appa lication of more stringent capital requirq ements forff United could, among other
things, result in lower returns on invested capital, requiq re the raising of additional capital and result in additional regulatory
actions if United were to be unabla e to complym with such requirements. Implementation of changes to asset risk weightings
for risk based capital calculations, items included or deducted in calculating regulatory capital and/od r additional capital
conservation bufferff s could result in management modifying its business strategy and could limit United�s abia lity to make
distributions, including paying dividends.

United�s earnings are significantly affecff ted by the fiscal and monetary policies of the fedff eral government and its agencies.

The policies of the Federal Reserve impact United significantly. The Federal Reserve regulates the supply of
money and credit in the United States. Its policies directly and indirectly influence the rate of interest earned on loans and
paid on borrowings and interest-bearing deposits and can also affecff t the value of finff ancial instruments we hold. Those
policies determine to a significant extent our cost of funff ds for lending and investing. Changes in those policies are beyond
our control and are diffiff cult to predict. Federal Reserverr policies can also affect our borrowersr , potentially increasing the risk
that they may fail to repay their loans. For examplem , a tightening of the money supply by the Federal Reserve could reduce
the demand forff a borrower�s productsdd and services. This could adversely affectff the borrower�s earnirr ngs and ability to repay
its loan, which could have a material adverse effect on our finff ancial condition and results of operations.
United may be terminated as a servicer of mortgage loans, be required to repurchase a mortgarr ge loan or reimburse investors
for credit losses on a mortgage loan, or incur costs, liabilities, fines and other sanctions if we fail to satisfy off ur servicing
obligations, including our obligations with respect to mortgage loan foreclosure actions.

United, through its mortgage banking subsidu iary, Crescent, acts as servicer for approximately $3.7 billion of
mortgage loans owned by third parties as of December 31, 2021. As a servicer for those loans, United has certain
contractuat l obligations, including forecff losing on defaulted mortgage loans or, to the extent applicable, considering
alternatrr ives to foreclosure such as loan modifications or short sales. If United commits a material breach of its obligations as
servicer, United may be subju ect to termination as servicer if the breach is not cured within a specified period of time
following notice, causing United to lose servicing income.

In some cases, United may be contractually obligated to repurchase a mortgage loan or reimburse the investor for
credit losses incurred on the loan as a remedy for servirr cing errors with respect to the loan. If United has increased
repurchase obligations becausea of claims that United did not satisfy our obligations as a servicer, or increased loss severity
on such repurchases, United may have a significant reduction to net servicing income within its mortgage banking
noninterest income. United may incur costs if United is required to, or if United elects to, re-execute or re-file documents or
take other action in its capacity at s a servicer in connection with pending or completed foreclosures. United may incur
litigation costs if the validity of a foreclosure action is challenged by a borrower. If a court were to overturn arr foreclosure
becausea of errors or deficiencies in the forff eclosure process, United may have liabia lity to the borrower and/or to any title
insurer of the property sold in forff eclosure if the required process was not folff lowed. These costs and liabia lities may not be
legally or otherwise reimbursable to United. In addition, if certain documents required forff a forff eclosure action are missing
or defective, United could be obligated to cure the defectff or repurchase the loan. United may incur liabia lity to securitization
investors relating to delays or deficiencies in its processing of mortgage assignments or other documents necessary to
comply with state law governinrr g foreff closures. The faiff r value of United�s mortgage servicing rights may be negatively
affecff ted to the extent our servicrr ing costs increase becausa e of higher foreclosure costs. United may be subject to fines and
other sanctions imposed by federalff or state regulators as a result of actual or perceived deficff iencies in our foreclosure
practices or in the foreclosure practices of other mortgrr age loan servicers. Any of these actions may harm United�s reputation
or negatively affectff its home lending or servicing business.
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United may be required to repurchase mortgage loans or indemnify buyers against losses in some circumstances, which
could harm liquidq ity, results of operations and financial condition.

When mortgage loans are sold, whether as whole loans or pursuant to a securitization, United is required to make
customary representations and warranties to purchasers, guarantors and insurers, including the government sponsored
enterprises, about the mortgage loans and the manner in which they were originated. Whole loan sale agreements require
repurchase or substitute mortgage loans, or indemnification of buyers against losses, in the event United breaches these
representations or warranties. In addition, United may baa e required to repurchase mortgrr age loansa as a result of early payment
default of the borrower on a mortgage loan. With respect to loans that are originated through United�s broker or
correspondent channels, the remedies available against the originating broker or correspondent, if any, may not be as broad
as the remedies availabla e to purchasers, guarantors and insurers of mortgage loans against United. United facff es furthert risk
that the originating broker or correspondent, if anya , may not have finff ancial capaa city ttt o perform remedies that otherwirr se may
be available. Therefore, if a purchaser, guarantor or insurer enforceff s its remedies against United, it may not be able to
recover losses from the originating broker or correspondent. If repurchase and indemnity dt emands increase and such
demands are valid claims and are in excess of United�s provision forff potential losses, its liquidity,t results of operations and
financial condition may be adversely affected.

RISKSSS RELATED TO ACQUISUU ITISS ONII ACTIVITY

Potential acquisitions may disrupt our business and dilute stockholder value

We generally seek merger or acquisition parta ners that are culturat lly similar and have experienced manaa gement anda
possess either significant market presence or have potential for imprm oved profitff ability ttt hrough finff ancial management,
economies of scale or expanded services. Acquiring other banks, businesses, or branches involves various risks commonly
associated with at cquiq sitions, including, among other things, (i) potential exposure to unknown or contingent liabilities of the
target compam ny; (ii) exposure to potential asset quality it ssues of the target company; (iii) potential disruption to our
business; (iv) potential diversion of our management�s time and attention; (v) the possible loss of key employees and
customers of the target company; (vi) difficff ulty in estimating the value of the target company; and (vii) potential changes in
banking or tax laws or regulations that may affect the target compam ny.

Acquisitions typically involve the payment of a premium over book and market values, and, therefore, some
dilution of our tangible book value and net income per common share may occur in connection with any futff urtt e transaa action.
Acquisitions may also result in potential dilution to existing shareholders of our earnings per share if we issue common
stock in connection with the acquisition. Furthermore, failure to realize the expected revenue increases, cost savings,
increases in geographic or product presence, and/odd r other projected benefits from an acquisition could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financiaa al condition and results of operations. In addition, from time to time, bank regulators
may restrict the Compam ny from making acquisitions. See �Regulation and Superu vision" in Item 1, "Business," of thist Form
10-K for additional detail and further discussion of these matters.

Acquisitions may be delayed, impem ded, or prohibited due to regulatory issues

Acquisitions by financial institutions, including us, are subju ect to approval by a variety of fedff eral and state
regulatory agencies (collectively, �regulatory approvals�). The process forff obtaining these requiqq red regulatory approvals has
become subsu tantially more difficult since the global finaff ncial crisis, and our ability to engage in certain merger or
acquisiq tion transactions depends on the bank regulators' views at the time as to our capia tal levels, quality ot f management,
and overall condition, in addition to their assessment of a variety of other factors, including our compliance with law.
Regulatory approvals could be delayed, impeded, restrictively conditioned or denied due to existing or new regulatory
issues we have, or may have, with regulatory arr gencies, including, without limitation, issues related to Bank Secrecy Act
compliance, Community Rt einvestment Act issues, fairff lending laws, fair housing laws, consumer protection laws, unfair,
deceptive, or abusive acts or practices regulations and other laws and regulations. We may fail to pursue, evaluate or
complete strategic and competitively significant acquisq ition opportunities as a result of our inabia lity, or perceived or
anticipated inability,t to obtain regulatory approvals in a timely manner, under reasonabla e conditions or at all. Difficff ulties
associated with potential acquisitions that may result fromff these factors could have a material adverse effectff on our
business, finff ancial condition and results of operations.
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SECURITYUU OWNERNN SHIPHH RISKSII

United�s stock price can be volatile.

Stock price volatility may make it more diffiff cult forff United shareholders to resell their common stock when they
want and at prices they findff attractive. United�s stock price can faa lucff tuate significantly in response to a variety of factors,
including, among other things:

� Actual or anticipated negative variations in quarterly results of operations;
� Negative recommendations by securities analysts;
� Poor operating and stock price perforff marr nce of other companies that investors deem comparabla e to

United;
� News reports relating to negative trends, concerns and other issues in the financial services industrd yrr

or the economy in general;
� Negative perceptions in the marketplace regarding United and/or its compem titors;
� New technology used, or services offered,ff by compem titors;
� Adverse changes in interest rates or a lending environment with prolonged low interest rates;
� Adverse changes in the real estate markerr t;
� Negative economic news;
� Failure to integrate acquisitions or realize anticipated benefits from acquisitions;
� Adverse changes in government regulations; and
� Geopolitical conditions such as acts or threats of terrorism or military conflicts.

General market fluctuattt ions, industry facff tors and general economic and political conditions and events, such as
economic slowdowns or recessions, interest rate changes or credit loss trends, could also causea United�s stock price to
decrease regardless of operating results.

Dividend payments by United�s subsidiaries to United and by United to its shareholders can be restricted.

The declaration and payment of futuff re cash dividends will depend on, among other things, United�s earnings, the
general economic and regulatory crr limate, United�s liquidity anda capitaa al requirements, and other factff ors deemed relevanta by
United�s board of directors. Federal Reserve Board policy limits the payment of cash dividends by bank holding
companies, without regulatory appra oval, and requirq es that a holding company serverr as a source of strength to its banking
subsidiaries.

United�s principal source of funds to pay dividends on its common stock is cash dividends from its subsidiaries.
The payment of these dividends by its subsu idiaries is also restricted by federal and state banking laws and regulations. As
of December 31, 2021, approximately $158.6 million was availablea for dividend payments from United Bank to United
without regulatory ar ppa roval.

An investment in United common stock is not an insured deposit.

United common stock is not a bank deposit and, therefore,ff is not insured against loss by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporatrr ion, any other deposit insurance funff d or by any other public or private entity. Investment in United
common stock is inherently risky for the reasons described in this section and elsewhere in this report arr nd is subjeb ct to the
same markerr t forff ces that affeff ct the price of common stock in any company. As a result, someone who acquires United
common stock, could lose some or all of their investment.

Failure to maintain effectff ive internal controls over financial reporting in the future could impair United�s abia lity to
accurately and timely report its financial results or prevent fraud, resulting in loss of investor confidff ence and adversely
affecting United�s business and stock price.

Effective internal controls over financial reporting are necessary to provide reliabla e finff ancial reportsrr and prevent
fraud. Management believes that United�s internal controls over financia al reporting are currerr ntly effeff ctive. Manaa gement will
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continually review and analyze the Company�s internal controls over financial reportirr ng for Sarbar nes-Oxley Section 404
complm iance. Any failure to maintain, in the future, an effective internal control environment could impact United�s abia lity ttt o
report its financial results on an accurate and timely basis, which could result in regulatory actions, loss of investor
confidence, and adversely impact United�s business and stock price.

Certain banking laws may have an anti-takeover effeff ct.

Provisions of federal banking laws, including regulatory approval requirements, could make it more difficff ult to be
acquirq ed by a third party,t even if perceived to be beneficff ial to United�s shareholders. These provisions effectiff vely inhibit a
non-negotiated merger or other business combination, which could adversely affecff t the market price of United�s common
stock.

GENERAL RISKS

United may elect or be compelled to seek additional capital in the futuff re, but capital may not be availabla e when it is needed.

United is required by federal and state regulatory authorities to maintain adequate levels of capital to support the
Company�s operations. In addition, United may elect to raise additional capital to support the Compam ny�s business or to
finance acquisitions, if any, or United may otherwise elect to raise additional capital.

United�s ability to raise additional capia tal, if needed, will depend on conditions in the capital markerr ts, economic
conditions and a numberm of other factors, many of which are outside the Compam ny�s control, and on United�s finff ancial
performance. Accordingly, United cannot be assured of its abilia ty to raise additional capia tal if needed or on terms acceptablea
to the Company. If United cannot raise additional capital when needed, it may have a material adverse effect on the
Company�s finaff ncial condition, results of operations and prospects.

New accounting or tax pronouncements or interpretr ations may be issued by the accounting profession, regulators or other
government bodies which could change existing accounting methods. Changes in accounting methods could negatively
impact United�s results of operations and financial condition.

Current accounting and tax rules, standards, policies and interpretations influence the methods by which finff ancial
institutions conducd t business, implement strategic initiatives and tax compliance, and govern frr inaff ncial reporting and
disclosures. These laws, regulations, rulrr es, standards, policies, and interprrr etations are constantly evolving and may changea
significff antly over time. Events that may not have a direct impact on United, such as the bankruptcrr y of major U.S.
companies, have resulted in legislators, regulators and auta horitative bodies, such as the Financial Accounting Standards
Board, the SEC, the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, and various taxing authorities, responding by adopting
and/ordd proposing substantive revision to laws, regulations, rules, standards, policies, and interpretations. New accounting
pronouncements and varyinrr g interprerr tations of accounting pronouncements have occurred and may occur in the future.ff A
change in accounting standards may adversely affect reported finff ancial condition and results of operations.

United could facff e unanticipated environmental liabilities or costs related to real property owned or acquired through
foreclosure. Compliance with federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations, including those related to
investigation and clean-up of contaminated sites, could have a negative effect on expenses and results of operations.

A significant portion of United�s loan portfolff io is secured by real property.tt During thet ordinary course of business,
United may foreclose on and take title to properties securing certarr in loans. In doing so, there is a risk that hazardous or toxic
substances could be found on these properties. If hazardous or toxic substances are fouff nd, United may be liablea for
remediation costs, as well as for personal injury and property damage. Environmental laws may require United to incur
substantial expenses and may materially reduce the affectff ed property�s value or limit United�s abia lity to use or sell the
affected property. In addition, future laws or more stringent interpretations or enforff cement policies with respect to existing
laws may increase exposure to environmental liability. Although United has policies and procedures to perform an
environmental review before initiating any foreff closure action on real propertyrr , thest e reviews may not be suffiff cient to detect
all potential environmental hazards. The remediation costs and any other financial liabia lities associated with an
environmental hazard could have a material adverse effect on results of operations.
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Severe weather, natural disasters, public health issues, acts of war or terrorism, and other external events could significantly
impact United�s ability tt o conduct business.

Severe weather, natural disasters, public health issues, acts of war or terrorism, and other externarr l events could
affeff ct the stability ot f United�s deposit base, impair the ability ott f borrowers to repay outstanding loans, impair the value of
collateral securing loans, adversely impact United�s employee base, cause significant property dt amage, result in loss of
revenue, and / or cause the Company to incur additional expenses. Although management has establa ished disaster recovery
policies and procedures, the occurrence of any such event could havea a material adverse effect on United�s business, which,
in turn, could have a material adverse effect on the Compam ny�s finff ancial condition and results of operations.

Increasing scrutiny and evolving expectations from customers, regulators, investors, and othet r stakeholders with rt espect to
United�s environmental, social and governance practices may imposm e additional costs on us or expose us to new or
additional risks.

Companies are faciff ng increasing scrutiny from customers, regulators, investors, and other stakeholders related to
their environmental, social and governance ("ESG") practices and disclosure. Investor advocacy groups,u investment funff ds
and influeff ntial investors are also increasingly focused on thest e practices, especially as thet y relate to the environment, healtht
and safety, diversity,t laba or conditions and human rights. Increased ESG-related compliance costs for United as well as
among our suppu liers, vendors and various other parties within our supplu y chain could result in increases to our overall
operational costs. Failure to adapta to or comply with regulatory requirq ements or investor or stakeholder expectations and
standards could negatively impact United�s reputation, ability ttt o do business with certain partners,tt access to capia tal, and our
stock price. New government regulations could also result in new or more stringent forms of ESG oversight and expanding
mandatory arr nd voluntary reporting, diligence, and disclosure.

Climate change and related legislative and regulatory initiatives may materially affectff United�s business and results of
operations.

The effects of climate change continue to create an alarming level of concern for the state of the global
environment. As a result, the global business community has increased its political and social awareness surrounding the
issue, and the United States has entered into international agreements in an attemptm to reduce global temperatures, such as
reentering the Paris Agreement. Further, the U.S. Congress, state legislatures and federal and state regulatory arr gencies
continue to propose numerous initiatives to supplement the global effort trr o combat climate change. Similar and even more
expansive initiatives are expected under the current administration, including potentially increasing supervisory
expectations with respect to banks� risk management practices, accountu ing for thet effeff cts of climate changea in stress testing
scenarios and systemic risk assessments, revising expectations for credit portfolio concentrations based on climate-related
factors and encouraging investment by banks in climate-related initiatives and lending to communities disproportiorr nately
impacted by the effects of climate change. The lack of empirical data surrorr unding the credit and other financial risks posed
by climate change render it impossible to predict how specifically climate change may impact our financial condition and
results of operations; however, the physical effecff ts of climate change may also directly impact us. Specifically,
unprn edictable and more freqff uent weather disasters may aaa dversely impam ct the value of real propertyrr securing the loans in our
portfolff ios. Additionally, if insurance obtained by our borrorr wers is insufficff ient to cover any losses sustained to the collateral,
or if insurance coverage is otherwise unavailable to our borrowers, the collateral securing our loans may be negatively
impacted by climate change, which could impact our financial condition and results of operations. Further, the effectsff of
climate change may negatively impact regional and local economic activity,t which could lead to an adverse effect on our
customers and impact the communities in which we operate.

We are also subjeu ct to reputational risk fromff shareholder concerns aboa ut our practices related to climate change,
our carbon footprint and our business relationships with customers who operate in carbon-intensive indusdd tries. Our
business, reputation and abia lity to attract and retain employees may also be harmed if our response to climate change is
perceived to be ineffective or insufficient.

Climate change also exposes us to transition risks associated with the transition to a less carbon-dependent
economy. Transition risks may result froff m changes in policies; laws and regulations; technologies; and/or market
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preferenceff s to address climate change. Such changes could materially, negatively impact our business, results of operations,
financial condition and/or our reputation, in addition to having a similar impact on our customers. We have customers who
operate in carbor n-intensive industdd ries like oil and gas that are exposed to climate risks, such as those risks related to the
transition to a less carbon-dependent economy, as well as customers who operate in low-carbon industries that may be
subjeb ct to risks associated with new technologies. Federal and state banking regulators and supervisory arr uthaa orities, investors
and other stakeholders have increasingly viewed financial instituttt ions as important in helping to address the risks related to
climate change both directly and with respect to their customers, which may result in financial institutions coming under
increased pressure regarding the disclosure and management of their climate risks and related lending and investment
activities. Given that climate change could impose systemic risks upon the finff ancial sector, either via disrupr tions in
economic activity rt esulting fromff the physical impacts of climate changa e or changes in policies as the economy tmm ransa itions to
a less carbon-intensive environment, we face regulatory risk of increasing focus on our resilience to climate-related risks,
including in the context of stress testing for various climate stress scenarios. Ongoing legislative or regulatory uncertainties
and changes regarding climate risk management and practices may result in higher regulatory, compliance, credit and
reputational risks and costs.

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

Item 2. PROPERTIES

Offices

United is headquaq rtered in the United Center at 500 Virginia Street, East, Charleston, West Virginia. United�s
executive offices are located in Parkersburg, West Virginia at Fifth and Avery Sr treets. United operates two hundred and
twenty-one (221) full service officesff �forty-srr even (47) officesff located throughout West Virginia, one hundred and one
(101) offices in the Shenandoah Valley region, the Northern Neck, the Richmond and Lynchburg metropolitan areas of
Virginia and the Northern Virginia, Maryland and Washington, D.C. metropolitan area, forty-three (43) officff es in the
Mountains, Piedmont, Coastal Plains and Tidewater regions of North Carolina, twenty-five (25) offices in the Coastal,
Midlands, and Upstate regions of South Carolina, four (4) offices in southwestern Prr ennsylvania and one (1) officff e in
southeastern Ohio. United owns fortyff -one (41) of its West Virginia facilities while leasing six (6) of its offices under
operating leases. In Virginia, United leases forty-five (45) of its branches under operating leases while owning thirtyrr -eight
(38) branches. United owns three (3) branches and leases eight (8) of its branches under operating leases in Maryland. In
Washington, DC, United leases all seven (7) of it branch facilff ities under operating leases. United leases twenty-five (25) of
its branch offices in North Carolina under operating leases while owning eighteen (18) branches. In South Ct arolina, United
owns twenty (20) of its facilities while leasing under operating leases five (5) branch offices. United owns all fourff (4) of its
Pennsylvania facilities. In Ohio, United owns its one branch. United leases operations centers in the Charleston, West
Virginia and Chantilly, Virginia areas and owns two operations centers in the Morgantown, West Virginia area and
Washington, North Carolina.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

United and its subsidiaries are currently involved in various legal proceedings in the normal course of business.
Management is vigorously pursuing all its legal anda factuatt l defenses and, after consultation with legal counsel, believes that
all such litigation will be resolved with no material effecff t on United�s finff ancial position.

Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Stock

As of January 31, 2022, 200,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $2.50 per share, were authorized forff
United, of which 141,489,812 were issued, including 4,968,281 shares held as treasury shares. The outstanding shares are
held by appa roximately 9,378 shareholders of record, as well as 45,805 shareholders in street name as of January 31, 2022.
The unissued portion of United' s authorized common stock (subju ect to registration appra oval by the SEC) and the treasury
shares are availabla e forff issuance as the Board of Directors determines advisable.a United offerff s its shareholders the
opportunt ity to invest dividends in shares of United stock through its dividend reinvestment plan. United has also
established stock option plans and a stock bonus plan as incentive for certain eligible officff ers. In addition to the aboa ve
incentive plans, United is occasionally involved in certain mergers in which additional shares could be issued and
recognizes that additional shares could be issued forff other appropriate purposes.

In November of 2018, United�s Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase plan,a whereby United could buy uuu puu
to 3,352,000 shares of the Company�s common stock on the open market at prevailing prices through November 7, 2019.
United repurchased 1,879,150 under this plan prior to its expiration. The Board of Directors approved a new plan in October
of 2019 to repurchase up to 4,000,000 shares of the Compam ny�s common stock on the open markerr t at prevailing prices.
During 2021 and 2020, United repurchased 306,204 and 660,000 shares, respectively, under this repurchase plan. As of
December 31, 2021, United still has 3,033,796 shares availabla e forff repurchase under the plan.

The Board of Directors believes that the availability of authorized but unissued common stock of United is of
considerable value if opportunities should arise for the acquisq ition of other businesses through the issuance of United's
stock. Shareholders do not have preemptive rights, which allow United to issue additional authorized shares without first
offering them to current shareholders.

Currently, United has only one voting class of stock issued and outstanding and all voting rights are vested in the
holders of United's common stock. On all matters subjeu ct to a vote of shareholders, the shareholders of United will be
entitled to one vote forff each share of common stock owned. Shareholders of United have cumulative voting rights with
regard to election of directors.

United�s common stock is traded over the counter on the National Association of Securities Dealers Automated
Quotations System, Global Select Market (�NASDAQ�) under the trading symbol UBSI. The closing sale price reported forff
United�s common stock on February 2r 2, 2022, the last practicabla e date, was $36.26.

On December 23, 2008, the shareholders of United authorized the issuance of preferrff ed stock up tu o 50,000,000
shares with a par value of $1.00 per share. The authorized preferred stock may be issued by the Company�s Board of
Directors in one or more series, from time to time, with each such series to consist of such number of shares and to have
such voting powers, full or limited, or no voting powers, and such designations, preferences and relative, participating,
optional or other special rights, and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, as shall be stated in the resolution
or resolutions providing for the issuance of such series adopted by the Board of Directors. Currently, no shares of preferff rerr d
stock have been issued.

The authorization of preferred stock will not have an immediate effect on the holders of the Company�s common
stock. The actual effect of the issuance of any shares of preferred stock upon the rights of the holders of common stock
cannot be stated until the Board of Directors determines the specificff rights of any shares of preferred stock. However, the
effectsff might include, among other things, restricting dividends on common stock, diluting the voting power of common
stock, reducdd ing the market price of common stock or impairing the liquidation rights of the common stock without further
action by the shareholders. Holders of the common stock will not have preemptive rights with respect to the preferred
stock.
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There are no preemptive or conversion rights or, redemption or sinking fund provisions with respect to United's
stock. All of the issued and outstanding shares of United's stock are fully paid and non-assessable.

Stock Performance Graph

The following StoSS ck Performance Graph and related information shall not be deemed �solicitingmaterial� or to be
�file� d� with the SecSS urities and ExcEE hange CommissCC ion, nor shall such informatff ion be incorporrr ated by rb efereff nce into anyn
future filing under the Securities Act of 1o 933 or Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amended, except to ttt hett extent that
United spes cifii cally incorpor rates it by refere ence into such filff ing.

The folff lowing graph compares United's cumulative total shareholder return (assuming reinvestment of dividends)
on its common stock forff the five-year period ending December 31, 2021, with the cumulative total return (rr assuming
reinvestment of dividends) of the Standard and Poor's Midcap 400 Index and with the NASDAQ Bank Index. The
cumulative total shareholder return assumes a $100 investment on December 31, 2016 in the common stock of United and
each index and the cumulative returtt n is measured as of each subseu quent fiscal year-end. There is no assurance that t United's
common stock performance will continue in the futff urt e with the same or similar trends as depicted in the graph.

Period Ending
12/31/16 12/31/17 12/31/18 12/31/19 12/31/20 12/31/21

United Bankshares, Inc. 100.00 77.87 72.39 93.25 82.56 96.06
NASDAQ Bank Index 100.00 105.46 88.40 109.95 101.70 145.34
S&P Mid-Capa Index 100.00 116.23 103.33 130.37 148.16 184.81
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Issuer Repurchases

The table below includes certairr n information regarding United�s purchase of its common shares during the three
months ended December 31, 2021:

Period

Total
Number of

Shares
Purchased

(1) (2)
Average Price
Paid per Share

Total Number
of Shares

Purchased as
Part of Publu icly

Announced
Plans (3)

Maximum
Number of

Shares that May
Yet be Purchased
Under the Plans

(3)

10/01 � 10/31/2021 0 $ 00.00 0 3,033,796
11/01 � 11/30/2021 4 $ 36.70 0 3,033,796
12/01 � 12/31/2021 0 $ 00.00 0 3,033,796
Total 4 $ 36.70

(1) Includes shares exchanged in connection with the exercise of stock options under United�s
stock option plans. Shares are purchased pursuant to the terms of the appa licable stock
option plan and not pursuant to a publicly announced stock repurchase plan. For the quaq rter
ended Decemberm 31, 2021, no shares were exchanged by participants in United�s stock
option plans.

(2) Includes shares purchased in open market transactions by United forff a rabbi trust to provide
payment of benefits under a deferred compem nsation plan forff certain key officers of United
and its subsidiaries. For the quarter ended December 31, 2021, the following shares were
purchased for the deferred compensation plan: Novembem r 2021 �4 shares at an average
price of $36.70.

(3) In October of 2019, United�s Board of Directors appa roved a repurchase plan to repurchase
up to 4,000,000 shares of United�s common stock on the open market (the 2019 Plan). The
timing, price and quantity of purchases under the plans are at the discretion of manaa gement
and the plan may be discontinued, suspended or restarted at anya time depending on the factsff
and circumstances.

Item 6. [RESERVED]

Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Congress passed the Private Securities Litigation Act of 1995 to encourage corporr rations to provide investors with
information aboa ut the compam ny�s anticipated futff ure financial perforff mance, goals, and strategies. The act provides a safeff
haven for such disclosure; in other words, protection froff m unwarranted litigation if actuat l results are not the same as
management expectations.

United desires to provide its shareholders with sound information about past perforff mance and future trends.
Consequenq tly, any forwff ard-looking statements contained in this report, in a report incorporar ted by reference to this report,
or made by management of United in this report, in any other reportsrr and filff ings, in press releases and in oral statements,
involve numerous assumptions, risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking statements can be identifieff d by the use of the
words �expect,� �may,� �could,� �intend,� �project,� �estimate,� �believe,� �anticipate,� and other words of similar
meaning. Such forward-looking statements are based on assumptm ions and estimates, which although believed to be
reasonable, may turnt out to be incorrect, such as statements about the potential impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic.
Therefore, undue reliance should not be placed upon these estimates and statements. United cannot assure that any of these
statements, estimates, or beliefs will be realized and actual results may differff from those contemplm ated in these �forward-
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looking statements.� United unduu ertakrr es no obligation to publiu cly upduu ate anya forward-looking statements, whether as a result
of new information, futurt e events, or otherwise.

The discussion in Item 1A, �Risk Factors,� lists some of the facff tors that could causea United�s actual results to varyrr
materially fromff those expressed or implied by anya forward-looking statements, anda such discussion is incorporr rated into thist
discussion by reference.

CORONAVIRUS (�COVID-19�) PANDEMIC

During 2020, and to a lesser extent in 2021, the COVID-19 pandemic had a severe disruptiu ve impact on the U.S.
and global economy. AsA the pandemic is ongoing and dynamic in nature, there are manya uncertainties related to COVID-19
including, among other things, the ongoing impact to our customers, employees and vendors; the impact to the finff ancial
services and banking industry; and the impact to the economy as a whole as well as the effect of actions taken, or that may
yet be taken, or inaction by governmenrr tal autha orities to contain the outbreak or to mitigate its impacm t (both economic and
health-related). Refer to our 2020 Form 10-K and our Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2021 for further
information regarding (i) the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our operations and our results thereof, as well as the
impact on our financial position and (ii) legislative and regulatory actions taken related to the COVID-19 pandemic,
particularly as they relate to the banking and financial services industry.

The CARES Act was enacted in March 2020 and, among other provisions, authorized the Small Business
Administration (�SBA�) to guarantee loans under the Paycheck Protection Program (�PPP�) forff small businesses that meet
eligibility requiq rements in order to keep their workers on the payroll and funff d specified operating expenses. Subsu equent
legislation extended the authority of the SBA to guaranty loans under the PPP through August 8, 2020. In Decemberm 2020,
the Economic Aid to Hard-Hit Small Businesses, Nonprofits, and Venues Act reauthorized the SBA to guarantee loans
under the PPP through March 31, 2021, and the PPP Extension Act of 2021 extended that authorization through June 30,
2021 for applications received by the SBA prior to June 1, 2021.

On March 11, 2021, the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (the �ARP Act�) was enacted, implementing a
$1.9 trillion package of stimulus and relief proposals. Among other things, the ARP Act provides (i) additional funff ding forff
the PPP program and an expansion of the program for the benefitff of certain nonprofits, (ii) funding forff the SBA to make
targeted granta s forff restauranta s and similar establa ishments, (iii) direct cash payments of up tu o $1,400 to individuadd ls, subjeb ct to
income provisions, (iv) an increase in the maximum annual Child Tax Credit, subject to income limitation provisions,
(v) $300 a week in expanded unemployment insurance lasting through Septemberm 6, 2021 and makes $10,200 in
unemplm oyment benefits tax free for households, subjecb t to income limitation provisions, (vi) tax relief making any student
loan forgiveness incurred between December 31, 2020, and January 1, 2026 non-taxablea income, and (vii) funding to
support state and local governmerr nts; K-12 schools and higher education; the Centers for Disease Control; publu ic transit;
rental assistance; child care; and airline industry wrr orkers.

On March 27, 2021, the COVID-19 Bankruptcu y Relief Extension Act of 2021 was enacted, extending the
bankrupr tcy relief provisions enacted in the CARES Act of 2020 bill until March 27, 2022. These provisions provide
financially distressed small businesses anda individuals greater access to bankruprr tcy relief. We are continuing to monitor the
potential development of additional legislation and furtff her actions taken by the U.S. government.

The above-mentioned significant fiscff al stimulus and monetary policy actions of the U.S. governmerr nt and Federal
Reserve have been contributing factors to an inflationary srr urge durid ng most of 2021. As a result, in December 2021, the
Federal Reserverr released projeo ctions whereby the midpoint of the projected appa ropriate target range for the federal funds
rate would rise to 0.9% by the end of 2022, to 1.6% by the end of 2023 and to 2.1% by the end of 2024. While there can be
no such assurance that any increases in the fedff eral funff ds rate will occur, these projections imply three 25 basis point
increases in the federff al funds rate in 2022, follff owed by three in 2023 and two in 2024.

Impacm t on ourOperations. In the states where United operates, manya jurisdictions declared health emergencies due
to the COVID-19 pandemic. The resulting closures of non-essential businesses and related economic disruptu ion impacted
our operations as well as the operations of our customers. Financial services were identifieff d as a Critical Infrastructure
Sector by the Department of Homeland Security. Accordingly, our business remained open. To address the issues arising as
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a result of COVID-19, United implemented several policies in order to facilitate the continuen d delivery of essential services
while maintaining a high level of safetff y forff our customers as well as our emplm oyees.

As of December 31, 2021, United does not anticipate significant challenges to our abila ity to maintain our systems
and controls in light of the measures we have taken regarding the COVID-19 pandemic. The Compam ny does not currently
face any material resource constraint through the implementation of our business continuity plans.

United is currently unable to fully assess or predict the extent of the effects of COVID-19 on its operations in the
future as the ultimate impact will depend on facff tors that are currently unknown and/or beyond our control.

Impactm on our FinaFF ncial Position and Results of Operatr ions. Although economic conditions impromm ved in thet year
of 2021, our business continued to be impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. In addition, significantaa uncertainties related to
the COVID-19 pandemic still exist including, among other things, the ongoing impact to our customers, employees,
vendors, counterparties and service providers; the impact to the finff ancial services and banking industry;rr and the impam ct to
the economy as a whole as well as the effect of actions taken, or that may yet be taken, or inaction by governmental
authorities to contain the COVID-19 outbreak and its variants or to mitigate its impacm t. Certain industries continue to be
impacted more severely than others, although all businesses were impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic to some degree
during the year of 2021 as they were in 2020. The economic pressures, existing and forecasted, as of end of each quarter
during 2020, couplu ed with the implementation of an expected loss methodology forff determining United�s provision for
credit losses as required by CECL contributed to an increased provision for credit losses for the year of 2020. Due to better
performance trends within the loan portfolio and the improved reasonable and supportablerr forecasts for future
macroeconomic scenarios used in the estimated of expected credit losses under the CECL accounting standard, since
December 31, 2020, our provision for credit losses significantly decreased for the year of 2021 resulting in a net benefit of
$23.97 million as compam red to an expense of $106.56 million for the year of 2020. The sustainability ot f the economic
recovery observed in 2021 remains unclear and significff ant volatility could continue for a prolonged period as the potential
exists for additional variants of COVID-19, including the recent Omicron variant, to impede the global economic recovery
and exacerbatr e geographa ic differences in the spread of, and response to, COVID-19.

The Company�s feeff income was reducd ed due to COVID-19. In keeping with guidance from regulators, the
Company actively worked with COVID-19 affecff ted customers during 2020 and 2021 to waive fees from a variety ott f
sources, such as, but not limited to, insufficient funff ds and overdraft fees, ATM fees, account maintenance fees, etc. Should
the pandemic and the global response escalate furtherrr as outbreaks and variants occur, it is possible that thet Compam ny could
reduce such feeff s in futff uret periods; however, at this time, the Compam ny is unabla e to projeo ct the materiality ott f such an impam ct
on the results of operations in futurt e periods.

The Companym �s interest income has and could continuen to be reduced duedd to COVID-19. In keeping with guidancea
from regulators, the Compam ny continues to work with COVID-19 affected borrowers to deferff their payments, interest, and
fees. While interest and feeff s continue to accruerr to income, through normal GAAP accounting, should eventualt credit losses
on these deferrerr d payments emerge, the related loans would be placed on nonaccrual status and interest income and fees
accrur ed would be reversed. In such a scenario, interest income in futuff re periods could be negatively impacted. The
Company assessed the collectability of the accrued interest receivables on the loans deferred under the CARES Act as of
December 31, 2021. Based on this assessment, the Company released reserves of $242 thousand for the year of 2021
resulting in the allowance for accrued interest receivablea s not expected to be collected of $8 thousand as of December 31,
2021 as compared to $250 thousand as of December 31, 2020. At this time, thet Company is unable to project thet materialityt
of such an impact on any possible future deferrals under new guidance related to COVID-19 affected borrowers, but
recognizes the breadth of the economic impact may affeff ct its borrowers� ability ttt o repay in future periods.

Capitaltt and liquidity. As of Decemberm 31, 2021, all of our capia tal ratios, and our subsidiary bank�s capital ratios,
were in excess of all regulatory requirements. While we believe that we have sufficient capia tal to withstand a second
economic recession brought about by COVID-19, our reported and regulatory capia tal ratios could be adversely impacted by
further credit loss expense. We rely on cash on hand as well as dividends from our subsiu diary brr ank to service our debt. If
our capita al deteriorates such that our subsidiary bank is unabla e to pay dividends to us for an extended period of time, we
may not be abla e to servicrr e our debt.

We maintain access to multiple sources of liquiq dity. Wholesale funff ding markets have remained open to us. Rates



38

for short-term fundff ing were volatile throughout 2020, but were more stablea in 2021. If fundff ing costs become elevated forff an
extended period of time, it could have an adverse effect on our net interest margin. If an extended recession caused large
numbers of our deposit customers to withdraw their funff ds, we might become more reliant on volatile or more expensive
sources of funding.

For a discussion of the United�s liquidity and capita al resources in light of the COVID-19 pandemic please referff to
the sections with thet captiaa ons of �Liquidity att nd Capiaa tal Resources� included in this Management�s Discussion anda Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (�MD&A�).

Lending opeo rations and accommodations to borrowers. In keeping with regulatory grr uidance to work with
borrowers during this unpren cedented situatt tion and as outlined in the CARES Act, the Company executed a payment deferff rarr l
program for its customers that are adversely affected by the pandemic. Depending on the demonstrated need of the client
and within the guidance of the CARES Act, the Company deferred either the full loan payment or the principal compom nent
of the loan payment forff stated period of time. As of December 31, 2021, United has 188 eligible loan modifications in
deferral on $18.04 million of loans outstanding under section 4013, �Temporary Relief from Troubleu d Debt
Restructurings,� of the CARES Act, down fromff 1,002 eligible loan modifications in deferralff on $399.86 million of loans
outstanding at Decemberm 31, 2020. In accordance with the CARES Act, these deferrals are not considered troubled debt
restructurit ngs. It is possible that these deferrarr ls could be extended further under any futff uret guidance; however, the volume
of these future potential extensions is unknown. It is also possible that in spite of our best effoff rts to assist our borrowerr rs and
achieve fulff l collection of our investment, these deferred loans could result in futurt e charge-offs with additional credit loss
expense charged to earnings; however, the amount of any futurt e charge-offs on deferred loans is unknown.

With the passage and extensions of the PPP, administered by the SBA, the Compam ny has actively participated in
assisting its customers with applications for resources through the program. PPP loans generally have a two-year or five-
year term and earn interest at 1%. The Compam ny believes that the majoa rity of these loans will ultimately be forgiven by the
SBA in accordance with the terms of the program. As of December 31, 2021, the Compam ny had 2,959 of PPP loans with a
balance of approximately $302.30 million. The Company recognized approximately $33.22 million in net feesff on PPP loans
during the year of 2021 as compared to $16.26 million year of 2020. At December 31, 2021, remaining feesff due from the
SBA of $10.41 million will be amortized and recognized over the life off f the associated loans. It is the Company�s
understanding that loans funded through the PPP program are fully guaranteed by the U.S. governmrr ent. Should those
circumstances changa e, the Company could be required to establa ish an aa llowance for credit loss through additional credit loss
expense charged to earnings.

The national public health ct risis arising from the COVID-19 pandemic (and publu ic expectations about it), combined
with other factors, including, but not limited to, inflation, labor shortages, supply chain disruprr tion and furff ther oil price
volatility, could, despite improvm ements in 2021, again destabia lize the finaff ncial marketrr s and geographies in which we
operate. The resulting economic pressure on consumers and uncertainty regarding the sustainability of any economic
improvements could furtff her impact the creditworthrr iness of potential and current borrowers. Borrower loan defaults that
adversely affecff t our earnings correlate with deteriorating economic conditions, which, in turn,rr are likely to impact our
borrowers� creditworthirr ness and our abia lity to make loans. See further information related to the risk exposure of our loan
portfolio under the captia on �Provision for Credit Losses� elsewhere in this discussion.

Retail operations. The Company has been committed to assisting our customers and communities duringd the
COVID-19 pandemic. For much of 2020 and the first part of 2021, most branch locations were converted to drive-thru only
in order to ensure the health and safety ot f our customers and team members. We continued to serverr our customers that
needed emergency branch access for account issues, safe deposit access and similar items by appointment. The Company
was able to open and close accounts effectff ively, through its drive through facility,t and our customer service center was
successfulff in managing the volume of incoming calls. We introduced temporarm y crr hanges to help with the finff ancial hardship
caused by COVID-19 for both our customers and non-customers, including waiving select deposit account feeff s including
overdraft fees, ATM fees and excessive withdrawal feesff for savings and money market accounts.

From mid-May to mid-June in 2021, we used a phased-in approach to reopen our lobbies throughout our
footprint. We have returned to full-ff servicrr e at all retail locations throughout our footprint. The customer service centers
continue to operate at full capacity with more normalized call volumes. We have continued to offer fee waivers for select
deposit accounts to help with the finff ancial hardship caused by the pandemic.
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The Company continues to place the utmost importance on the health and safety of our employees and customers.
We also continue to follow the appa licablea Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (�CDC�) guidance and comply with
any local or state mandates. The Company continues to closely monitor the pandemic and COVID-19 variants and will
adjud st its retail operations accordingly, as necessary.rr

As the COVID-19 pandemic continues to be on-going, there continues to be uncertainties related to its magnitudett ,
duration and persistent effects. This is particularly the case with the emergence, contagiousness and threat of new and
different strains of the virus as well as the availabia lity, acceptance and effectiveness of vaccines. As such, the COVID-19
pandemic could still, among other things, greatly affecff t our routine and essential operations due to staff aff bsenteeism,
particularly among key personnel; resulting in limited access to or closures of our branch facilities and other physical
offices; exacerbate operational, technical or security-related risks arising fromff a remote workforce; and result in adverse
governmrr ent or regulatory arr gency orders. Additionally, we are experiencing an increasingly competm itive labor marketrr due to
an on-going labora shortage which has been impacted and could continue to impam ct or ability to staff off pen positions and/or
retain existing employees and has resulted in and could continue to result in an increase in our staffing costs. The business
and operations of our third-party service providers, many of whom perform critical servirr ces forff our business, could also be
significaff ntly impacted by many of these same issues, which in turt n crr ould impact us. As a result, we continuen to be unable to
fully assess or predict the extent of the effecff ts of COVID-19 on our operations as the ultimate impacmm t will depend on factors
that are currently unknown and/or beyond our control.

ACQUISITIONS

On Decemberm 3, 2021, United acquired 100% of the outstanding common stock of Community Bt ankers Trust
Corporation (�Community Bankers Trust�), a Virginia corporation headquartered in Richmond, Virginia. Immediately
following the Merger, Essex Bank, a wholly-owned subsidiary orr f Community Bankers Trust, merged with and into United
Bank, a wholly-owned subsidiary of United. United Bank survived the Bank Merger and continues to exist as a Virginia
banking corporation. The acquisition of Community Bt ankers Trusrr t enhanced United�s existing presence in the DC Metro
MSA and took United into new markets including Baltimore, Annapolis, Lynchburg, Richmond, and the Northern Neck of
Virginia. It also strategically connected our Mid-Atlantic and Southeast footff print ts. The Community Bankers Trust merger
was accounted for under the acquisq ition method of accounting. At consummation, Community Bankers Trust had assets of
$1.79 billion, loans and leases, net of unearned income of $1.28 billion and deposits of $1.52 billion.

On May 1, 2020, United acquired 100% of the outstanding common stock of Carolina Financial Corporarr tion
(�Carolina Financial�), headquartered in Charleston, South Carolina. Immediately following the Merger, CresCom Bank, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Carolina Financial, merged with and into United Bank, a wholly-owned subsidiary of United
(the �Bank Merger)�. United Bank survived the Bank Merger and continues to exist as a Virginia banking corporr ration. The
acquisq ition of Carolina Financial affordeff d United the opportuntt ity to expand its existing footprt int in North Carolina and
South Carolina. The merger resulted in a combined company with more than 200 locations in some of the best banking
markets in the United States. CresCom Bank owned and operated Crescent Mortgage Company (�Crescent�), which is
based in Atlanta. Crescent is appra oved to originate loans in 48 states partnering with community banks, credit unions and
mortgage brokers. As a result of the merger, Crescent became an indirectly-owned subsidiary of United. The Carolina
Financial merger was accounted forff under the acquisition method of accounting. At consummation, Carolina Financial had
assets of $5.00 billion, loans and leases, net of unearned income of $3.29 billion and deposits of $3.87 billion.

The results of operations of Community Bt ankers Trust and Carolina Financial are included in the consolidated
results of operations from their date of acquiq sition. As a result of the Community Bankers Trust and Carolina Financial
acquisitions, the year of 2021 was impacted by increased levels of average balances, income, and expense as compam red to
the year of 2020. In addition, the year of 2021 included $21.42 million of merger-related expenses from Community
Bankers Trust acquisition as compared to $54.24 million of merger-related expenses froff m thet Carolina Financial acquisition
in the year of 2020.

TRANSITION FROM THE LONDON INTERBANK OFFERED RATE (LIBOR)

In 2017, the United Kingdom�s Financial Conduct Authority,t which regulates LIBOR, publicly announced its
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intention to stop persuading or compem lling banks to submit the rates used to calculate LIBOR after 2021. ICE Benchmark
Administration (the publisher of LIBOR) discontinued publication of the one-week and two-month U.S. Dollar LIBOR
settings on December 31, 2021, and plans to discontinue publiu cation of overnigrr ht, one-month,t three-month,t six-month, anda
twelve-month U.S. Dollar LIBOR settings on June 30, 2023. It is assumed that LIBOR will either cease to be provided by
any administrator or will no longer be representative of an acceptable market benchmark afterff these respective dates.
Additionally, the Federal Reserve Board, the Officeff of the Comptroller of the Currency, and the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation have issued joint supervisory grr uidance encouraging banks to cease entering into any new contracts using
LIBOR by December 31, 2021. Accordingly, United has taken steps to ensure that no new contracts using LIBOR will be
originated after December 31, 2021.

Working groupsu comprised of various regulators and other industry groups have been formff ed in the United States
and other countries in order to provide guidance on this topic. In particular, the Alternative Reference Rates Committee
(�ARRC�) has been formed in the United States by the Federal Reserve Board and the Federal Reserverr Banka of New York.rr
The ARRC has identified the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (�SOFR�) as its preferred alternative reference rate for
U.S. Dollar LIBOR. The ARRC has also published recommended fall-ff back language for LIBOR-linked financial
instruments, among numerous other areas of guidance. At this time, however, it is unclear to what extent these
recommendations will be broadly accepted by industry participants,nn whether they will continue to evolve, and what other
alternarr tives may be adopted by the broader markets that utilize LIBOR as a reference rate. United has formedff a projeo ct team
comprised of individuals across various lines of business throughout the company to identify rff isks, monitor market
developments, evaluate replacement benchmark alternatives, and manage the compam ny�s transition away from LIBOR. At
this time, United intends to prioritize SOFR and Prime as the preferred alternatives to LIBOR; however, these preferreff d
alternarr tives could change over time based on markerr t developments.

United has loans, derivative contracts, borrowings, and other financial instruments that are directly or indirectly
dependent on LIBOR. The transition froff m LIBOR will cause changes to paymenaa t calculations for existing contracts that use
LIBOR as thet reference rate. These changes will create varioa us risks surroundiu ng the finff ancial, operational, complianceaa and
legal aspects associated with changing certain elements of existing contracts. United will also be subjeb ct to risks
surrounding changes to models and systems that currently use LIBOR reference rates, as well as market and strategic risks
that could arise fromff the use of alternative reference rates. Additionally, United could faceff reputational risks if this
transition is not managed appropriately with it ts customers. While thet full impacmm t of the transition is not yet knowkk n, failure to
adequately manage the transition could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

INTRODUCTION

The folff lowing discussion and analysis presents the more significantaa changa es in financial condition as of December
31, 2021 and 2020 and the results of operations of United and its subsu idiaries forff each of the years then ended. This
discussion and the consolidated finff ancial statements and the notes to Consolidated Financial Statements include the
accounts of United Bankshares, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, unless otherwirr se indicated. Management has
evaluated all significant events and transactions that occurred afterff December 31, 2021, but prior to the date thet se financial
statements were issued, for potential recognition or disclosure required in these finff ancial statements. Referff to Management�s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included in our Annual Report on Form 1rr 0-K
filed with the SEC on March 1, 2021 (the 2020 Form 10-K) for a discussion and analysis of thet more significff ant facff tors that
affected periods prior to 2020.

This discussion and analysis should be read in conjuncu tion with tt het audited Consolidated Financial Statements and
accompam nying notes thereto, which are included elsewhere in this document.

USE OF NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

This discussion and analysis contains certain finff ancial measures that are not recognized under GAAP. Under SEC
Regulation G, publu ic companies making disclosures containing financial measures that are not in accordance with GAAP
must also disclose, along with each �non-GAAP� financial measure, certain additional inforff mation, including a
reconciliation of the non-GAAP financial measure to the closest comparable GAAP financial measure, as well as a
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statement of the company�s reasons for utilizing the non-GAAP financial measure.

Generally, United has presented a non-GAAP financial measure because it believes that this measure provides
meaningfulff additional information to assist in the evaluation of United�s results of operations or financial position.
Presentation of a non-GAAP finff ancial measure is consistent with how United�s management evaluates its perforff marr nce
internally and this non-GAAP financial measure is freff quently used by securities analysts, investors and other interested
parties in the evaluation of companies in the banking industry.rr Specificff ally, this discussion contains certain references to
financial measures identifieff d as tax-equiq valent (�FTE�) net interest income and return on average tangible equity.t
Management believes these non-GAAP financial measures to be helpfulff in understanding United�s results of operations or
financial position.

Net interest income is presented in this discussion on a tax-equiq valent basis. The tax-equivalent basis adjud sts for the
tax-favored statust of income froff m certain loans and investments. Although this is a non-GAAP measure, United�s
management believes this measure is more widely used within the finff ancial services industry arr nd provides better
comparability of net interest income arising from taxabla e and tax-exemptm sources. United uses this measure to monitor net
interest income performff ance and to manage its balance sheet composition.

Average tangible equity is calculated as GAAP total shareholders� equity minus total intangible assets. Tangible
equity ctt an thus be considered a more conservative valuation of the company. When considering net income, a return on
average tangible equity ctt an be calculated. Management provides a returtt n orr n average equiq ty to facilitate the understanding of
as well as to assess the quality and composition of United�s capital structure.tt This measure, along with others, is used by
management to analyze capia tal adequacq y and performanff ce.

However, this non-GAAP information should be considered supplemental in nature and not as a substitute for
related financff ial information prepared in accordance with GAAP. Where the non-GAAP financial measure is used, the
comparable GAAP financial measure, as well as reconciliation to that comparabla e GAAP financff ial measure, as well as a
statement of the company�s reasons forff utilizing the non-GAAP financial measure, can be found within this discussion and
analysis. Investors should recognize that United�s presentation of this non-GAAP financial measure might not be
comparable to a similarly titled measure at other companies.

APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting and reporting policies of United conform with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. In
preparing the consolidated finff ancial statements, management is required to make estimates, assumptmm ions and judgments thatt
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements anda accompam nying notes. These estimates, assumptm ions and
judgments, which are reviewed with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, are based on information available as
of the date of the financial statements. Actuat l results could differ from these estimates. These policies, along with the
disclosures presented in the financial statement notes and in this financial review, provide information on how significant
assets and liabia lities are valued in the finff ancial statements and how those values are determined. Based on the valuation
techniques used and the sensitivity ott f finff ancial statement amounts to the methods, assumptions, and estimates underlying
those amounts, management has identifiedff the determination of the allowance for loan and lease losses, the calculation of
the income tax provision, and the use of fair value measurements to account forff certairr n finff ancial instruments to be the
accounting areas that require the most subjective or complm ex judgments, and as such could be most subject to revision as
new information becomes availabla e. The most significant accounting policies followed by United are presented in Note A,
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

The allowance for loan and lease losses is an estimate of the expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortized cost to present the net amount expected to be collected as of the balance sheet date. Such allowance is based on
the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (contractual term). Determirr ning the allowance forff loan losses
requires management to make estimates of expected credit losses that are highly uncertain and requirq e a high degree of
judgment. At December 31, 2021, the allowance forff loan losses was $216.02 million and is subject to periodic adjustment
based on management�s assessment of expected credit losses in the loan portfolio. Such adjustment froff m period to period
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can have a significff ant impact on United�s consolidated financial statements. To illustrate the potential effect on thet financa ial
statements of our estimates of the allowance for loan losses, a 10% increase in the allowance forff loan losses would have
required $21.60 million in additional allowance (funded by additional provision for loan losses), which would have
negatively impacm ted the year of 2021 net income by approximately $17.07 million, after-tax or $0.13 diluted per common
share. Management�s evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses and the appa ropriate provision forff loan
losses is based upon a quarterly evaluation of the loan portfolio. This evaluation is inherently subjeb ctive and requires
significant estimates, including estimates related to the amounts and timing of future cash flows, value of collateral, losses
on pools of homogeneous loans and leases based on historical loss experience, and consideration of qualitative facff tors such
as current economic trends, all of which are susceptible to constant and significant change. The allowance allocated to
specificff credits and loan pools grouped by similar risk characteristics is reviewed on a quarterly basis and adjud sted as
necessary based upon subsequent changes in circumstances. In determirr ning the components of the allowance for loan
losses, management considers the risk arising in part froff m, but not limited to, qualitative factors which include charge-offff
and delinquenq cy trends, current business conditions and reasonable and suppu ortablea economic foreff casts, lending policies
and procedurd es, the size and risk characteristics of the loan portfolio, concentrations of credit, and other various factors.
The methodology used to determine the allowance forff loan losses is described in Note A, Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements. A discussion of the facff tors leading to changes in the amount of the allowance for loan losses is included in the
Provision for Credit Losses section of this Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations (�MD&A�). For a discussion of concentrations of credit risk, see Item 1, under the capta ion of Loan
Concentrations in this Form 10-K.

Income Taxes

United�s calculation of income tax provision is inherently complex due to the various different tax laws and
jurisdictions in which we operate and requires management�s use of estimates and judgments in its determination. The
currer nt income tax liability att lso includes income tax expense related to our uncertain tax positions as required in ASC Topic
740, �Income Taxes.� Changes to the estimated accrued taxes can occur due to changa es in tax rates, implementation of new
business strategies, resolution of issues with taxing authorities and recently enacted statutory,rr judicial and regulatoryr
guidance. These changes can be material to the Company�s operating results for any particular reporting period. The
analysis of the income tax provision requirqq es the assessments of the relative risks and merits of the approaa priate tax treatment
of transactions, filiff ng positions, filing methods and taxable income calculations afteff r considering statutest , regulations,
judicial precedent and other information. United strives to keep abreast of changes in the tax laws and the issuance of
regulations which may impam ct tax reporting anda provisions forff income tax expense. United is also subjeb ct to audit by federal
and state authorities. Becausa e the application of tax laws is subjeb ct to varying interpretations, results of these audits may
producedd indicated liabilities which differff from United�s estimates and provisions. United continually evaluates its exposure
to possible tax assessments arising from audits and records its estimate of probable exposure based on current facts and
circumstances. The potential impact to United�s operating results forff any of the changes cannot be reasonably estimated.
See Note O, Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information regarding United�s ASC Topic 740 disclosures.

Use of Fair Value MeaMM surements

United determines the fair value of its financial instruments based on the faiff r value hierarchy establa ished in ASC
Topic 820, whereby the fairff value of certain assets and liabia lities is an exit price, representing the amount that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabila ity in an orderly transaction between market participants. ASC Topic 820
establishes a three-level hierarchy for disclosure of assets and liabia lities recorded at fair value. The classification of assets
and liaba ilities within the hierarchy is based on whether the inpun ts in the methodology for determining fairff value are
observable or unobservable. Observable inputn s reflect marketr -based infoff rmation obtained from independent sources (Level
1 or Level 2), while unobservabrr le inputs reflect management�s estimate of market data (Level 3). For assets and liabilities
that are actively traded and have quoted prices or observarr blea market data, a minimal amount of subjeb ctivity concerning fairff
value is needed. Prices and values obtained from third party vendors that do not reflect forced liquidation or distressed sales
are not adjusted by management. When quoted prices or observablerr marketa data are not availabla e, management�s judgment
is necessary to estimate fair value.

At December 31, 2021, appra oximately 16.02% of total assets, or $4.70 billion, consisted of financial instrumr ents
recorded at fairff value. Of this total, approximately 88.70% or $4.17 billion of these finff ancial instruments used valuation



43

methodologies involving observabla e market data, collectively Level 1 and Level 2 measurements, to determine faiff r value.
Approximately 11.30% or $531.18 million of these financial instrumerr nts were valued using unobservable market
informaff tion or Level 3 measurements. Most of these finff ancial instrumerr nts valued using unobservabla e markerr t information
were loans held for sale at our mortgage banking segment. At Decemberm 31, 2021, only $3.73 million or less than 1% of
total liabia lities were recorded at fair value. This entire amountuu was valued using methodologies involving observarr bla e markerr t
data. United does not believe that any changes in the unobservable inpun ts used to value the finff ancial instruments mentioned
above would have a material impact on United�s results of operations, liquidity, or capia tal resources. See Note W for
additional informff ation regarding ASC Topic 820 and its impact on United�s finff ancial statements.

Any material effecff t on the financial statements related to these critical accounting areas is furtheff r discussed in this
Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

2021 COMPARED TO 2020

United�s total assets as of December 31, 2021 were $29.33 billion, which was an increase of $3.14 billion or
12.01% from December 31, 2020. The acquisition of Community Bankers Trust on December 3, 2021 added $1.80 billion
in total assets, including purchase accounting amounts. Portfolff io loans and leases increased $432.24 million or 2.46%, cash
and cash equivalents increased $1.55 billion or 70.12%, investment securities increased $1.11 billion or 34.82%, goodwill
increased $89.65 million or 4.99%, other assets increased $125.13 million or 21.41%, bank premises and equipment
increased $21.40 million or 12.17%, and operating lease right-of-use assets increased $12.42 million or 17.87%. Partially
offsetff ting these increases was a decrease of $214.52 million or 29.84% in loans held for sale and a $2.56 million or 3.82%
decrease in interest receivabla e. Total liabilities increased $2.72 billion or 12.44% from year-end 2020. This increase in total
liabila ities was due mainly to an increase of $2.77 billion or 13.43% in deposits mainly due to organic growth and the
Community Bt ankers Trust acquisition. In addition, operating lease right-of-lease liabilities increased $13.49 million or
18.43% mainly due to the Community Bankers Trust acquisition. Partially offsetting these increases was a decrease of
$60.43 million or 6.00% in borrowings. Shareholders� equity it ncreased $421.01 million or 9.80% from year-end 2020 due
primarily to the acquisition of Community Bt ankers Trustr and earnirr ngs net of dividends.

The following discussion explains in more detail the changes in financial condition by major category.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2021 increased $1.55 billion or 70.12% from year-end 2020.
Communitu y Btt ankers Trustrr added $39.44 million upouu n consummation of the acquisqq ition. Interest-bearing deposits with othet r
banks increased $1.56 billion or 81.82% as United increased its liquidity dtt ued to the COVID-19 pandemic by placing excess
cash in an interest-bearing account with the Federal Reserve. Cash and due from banks decreased $14.49 million or 4.87%
due to a $40.86 million decrease in cash-in-process with the Federal Reserve which was partially offset by a $24.37 million
increase in cash. Federal funff ds increased $104 thousand or 12.64%. During the year of 2021, net cash of $609.54 million
and $15.65 million were provided by operating activities and investing activities, respectively, while net cash of $923.91
million was provided by finff ancing activities. Furtherrr details related to changes in cash and cash equiq valents are presented in
the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Securities

Total investment securities at December 31, 2021 increased $1.11 billion or 34.82% from year-end 2020.
Community Btt ankers Trust added $395.25 million in investment securities, including purchase accounting amounts, upou n
consummation of the acquisition. Securities availabla e forff sale increased $1.09 billion or 36.88%. This change in securities
availablea for sale reflects $387.20 million acquirqq ed from Community Btt ankers Trust, $730.35 million in sales, maturitiestt and
calls of securities, $1.52 billion in purchases, and a decrease of $73.81 million in markerr t value. Securities held to maturity
declined $211 thousand or 17.41% from year-end 2020 due to maturities and calls of securities. Equity securities were
$12.40 million at Decembem r 31, 2021, an increase of $1.69 million or 15.73% due mainly to net purchases. Other
investment securities increased $18.75 million or 8.49% from year-end 2020 due to increases of $14.05 million in
investment tax credits andaa $4.63 million in Federal Reserverr Bank (�FRBRR �) stock due to Community Btt ankers Trust merger.
Partially offsetting these increases was a decline of $5.90 million in Federal Home Loan Bank (�FHLB�) stock.
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The following table summarizes the changes in the availablea for sale securities since year-end 2020:

The following table summarizes the changes in the held to maturt ity securities since year-end 2020:

(1) net of allowance for credit losses of $19 thousand.
(2) net of allowance for credit losses of $23 thousand.

At December 31, 2021, gross unrealized losses on available for sale securities were $34.42 million. Securities with
the most significant gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2021 consisted primarily of agency residential mortgage-
backed securities and agency commercial mortgage-backed securities.

As of December 31, 2021, United�s availablea for sale mortgage-backed securities had an amortized cost of $1.83
billion, with an estimated fair value of $1.83 billion. The portfolio consisted primarily of $1.12 billion in agency residential
mortgage-backed securities with a fairff value of $1.11 billion, $74.97 million in non-agency residential mortgage-backed
securities with an estimated faiff r value of $74.55 million, and $633.80 million in commercial agency mortgage-backed
securities with an estimated fair value of $639.93 million.

As of December 31, 2021, United�s availablea for sale corporate securities had an amortized cost of $1.29 billion,
with an estimated fairff value of $1.29 billion. The portforr lio consisted of $17.29 million in single issue trust preferred
securities with an estimated fair value of $16.81 million. In addition to the single issue trust preferred securities, the
Company held positions in various other corporate securities, including asset-backed securities with an amortized cost of
$659.83 million and a faiff r value of $656.57 million and other corporrr ate securities, with an amortized cost of $611.55
million and a fairff value of $611.92 million.

United�s available forff sale single issue trust preferred securities had a fair value of $16.81 million as of December
31, 2021. Of the $16.81 million, $8.29 million or 49.32% were investment grade; $3.22 million or 19.13% were split rated;
and $5.30 million or 31.55% were unrated. The two largest exposures accounted for 75.34% of the $16.81 million. These
included Truisr t Bank at $7.36 million and Emigrant Bank at $5.30 million. All single issue trust preferred securities are
currently receiving fulff l scheduled principal and interest payments.

During 2021, United did not recognize any credit losses on its availabla e forff sale investmet nt securities. Management
does not believe that any individual security with an unrealized loss as of December 31, 2021 is impairem d. United believes
the decline in value resulted from changes in market interest rates, credit spreads and liquidity, not a deterioration of credit.
Based on a review of each of the securities in the available for sale investment portfoliff o, management concluded that t it was
more likely than not that it would be ablea to realize the cost basis investment and appropriate interest payments on such
securities. United has the intent and the ability to hold these securities until such time as the value recovers or the securities
mature. As of December 31, 2021, there was no allowance for credit losses related to the Compam ny�s availabla e forff sale
securities. However, United acknowlkk edges that any securities in an unrealized loss position may be sold in future periods in

December 31 December 31
(Dollars in thousands)s 2021 2020 $ Change % Change
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S.

Government corporationrr s and agencies $ 81,850 $ 66,344 $ 15,506 23.37%
State and political subdivisions 847,298 565,160 282,138 49.92%
Mortgage-backed securities 1,828,244 1,625,812 202,432 12.45%
Asset-backed securities 656,572 294,623 361,949 122.85%
Single issue trust preferredff securities 16,811 17,027 (216) (1.27%)
Corporate securities 611,924 384,393 227,531 59.19%

Total available forff sale securities, at fairff value $ 4,042,699 $ 2,953,359 $ 1,089,340 36.88%

December 31 December 31
(Dollars in thousands)s 2021 2020 $ Change % Change

State and political subdivisions $ 981 (1) $ 1,192 (2) $ (211) (17.70%)
Other corporate securities 20 20 0 0.00%

Total held to maturity securities, at amortized cost $ 1,001 $ 1,212 $ (211) (17.41%)
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response to significant, unanticipated changes in asset/liabila ity mt anagement decisions, unanticipated futff urt e market
movements or business plan changes.

Further informar tion regarding the amortized cost and estimated faiff r value of investment securities, including
remaining maturities as well as a more detailed discussion of management�s impairment analysis, is presented in Note C,
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Loans held for sale

Loans held for sale decreased $214.52 million or 29.84% from year-end 2020. Loan sales in the secondary marketrr
exceeded originations durid ng the year of 2021. Originations of loans for the year of 2021 were $6.19 billion while sales of
loans were $6.41 billion. Loans held forff sale were $504.42 million at December 31, 2021 as comparm ed to $718.94 million at
year-end 2020.

Portfolio Loans

Loans and leases, net of unearned income, increased $432.24 million or 2.46% from year-end 2020 mainly as a
result of the Community Bt ankers Trust acquisition which added $1.30 billion, including purchase accounting amounts, in
portfolio loans and leases. Otherwise, portfoliff o loans and leases, net of unearned income, decreased $882.15 million from
year-end 2020. Since year-end 2020, commercial, finff ancial and agricultural loans and leases increased $457.99 million or
4.28% as commercial real estate loans increased $1.05 billion or 15.81% while commercial loans and leases (not secured by
real estate) decreased $592.06 million or 14.60%. In addition, construction and land development loans increased $187.82
million or 10.28%. Partially offsetff ting the increases in loans and leases was a decrease of $208.33 million or 5.34% in
residential real estate loans. Consumer loans remained flat, decreasing $8.76 million or less than 1% dued to a decrease in
indirect auta omobile financing.

The following table summarizes the changes in the major loan classes since year-end 2020:

December 31 December 31
(Dollars in thousands)s 2021 2020 $ Change % Change
Loans held foff r sale $ 504,416 $ 718,937 $ (214,521) (29.84%)

Commercial, financial, and agricultural:
Owner-occupied commercial real estate $ 1,733,176 $ 1,622,687 $ 110,489 6.81%
Nonowner-occupieu d commercial real estate 5,957,288 5,017,727 939,561 18.72%
Other commercial loans 3,462,361 4,054,418 (592,057) (14.60%)

Total commercial, finanff cial, and agricultural $ 11,152,825 $ 10,694,832 $ 457,993 4.28%
Residential real estate 3,691,560 3,899,885 (208,325) (5.34%)
Construction & land development 2,014,165 1,826,349 187,816 10.28%
Consumer:

Bankcard 8,913 8,937 (24) (0.27%)
Other consumer 1,183,844 1,192,580 (8,736) (0.73%)

Total gross loans $ 18,051,307 $ 17,622,583 $ 428,724 2.43%
Less: Unearned income (27,659) (31,170) 3,511 (11.26%)

Total Loans, net of unearned income $ 18,023,648 $ 17,591,413 $ 432,235 2.46%
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The folff lowing table shows the maturity of loans and leases, outstanding as of December 31, 2021:

Less Than One To Five to Greater than
(In tII housands) One Year Five Years Fifteen Years Fifteen Years Total

Commercial, finff ancial and agrigg cultural:
Owner-occupied $ 123,870 $ 697,487 $ 875,471 $ 36,348 $ 1,733,176
Nonowner-occupied 807,598 3,214,142 1,798,851 136,697 5,957,288
Other commercial 955,967 1,850,893 521,777 133,724 3,462,361

Residential real estate 170,692 516,414 708,830 2,295,624 3,691,560
Constructionrr & land development 596,597 1,130,280 229,718 57,570 2,014,165
Consumer:

Bankcard 209 8,704 0 0 8,913
Other consumer 31,290 632,499 519,489 566 1,183,844

Total $ 2,686,223 $ 8,050,419 $ 4,654,136 $ 2,660,529 $ 18,051,307

At December 31, 2021, for loans and leases dued after one year, interest rate information is as follows:

One To Five to Greater than
(In thousands) Five Years Fifteen Years Fifteff en Years Total
Commercial, finff ancial and agricultural:

Owner-occupied
Outstanding with fixed interest rates $ 549,291 $ 390,432 $ 11,265 $ 950,988
Outstanding with adjustable interest rates 148,196 485,039 25,083 658,318
Total owner-occupieu d 697,487 875,471 36,348 1,609,306

Nonowner-occupieu d
Outstanding with fixed interest rates $ 2,255,557 $ 925,611 $ 6,768 $ 3,187,936
Outstanding with adjustabd le interest rates 958,585 873,240 129,929 1,961,754
Total non-owner occupiuu ed 3,214,142 1,798,851 136,697 5,149,690

Other commercial
Outstanding with fixed interest rates $ 1,619,871 $ 323,700 $ 79,786 $ 2,023,357
Outstanding with adjustad ble interest rates 231,022 198,077 53,938 483,037
Total other commercial 1,850,893 521,777 133,724 2,506,394

Residential real estate
Outstanding with fixed interest rates $ 322,802 $ 248,501 $ 766,537 $ 1,337,840
Outstanding with adjustabld e interest rates 193,612 460,329 1,529,087 2,183,028
Total residential real estate 516,414 708,830 2,295,624 3,520,868

Construction
Outstanding with fixed interest rates $ 443,315 $ 86,702 $ 38,541 $ 568,558
Outstanding with adjd ustable interest rates 686,965 143,016 19,029 849,010
Total construction 1,130,280 229,718 57,570 1,417,568

Consumer:
Bankcard
Outstanding with fixed interest rates $ 956 $ 0 $ 0 $ 956
Outstanding with adjustabd le interest rates 7,748 0 0 7,748
Total bankcard 8,704 0 0 8,704

Other consumer
Outstanding with fixed interest rates $ 632,081 $ 519,295 $ 566 $ 1,151,942
Outstanding with adjustabld e interest rates 418 194 0 612
Total other consumer 632,499 519,489 566 1,152,554

Total outstanding with fixff ed interest rates $ 5,823,873 $ 2,494,241 $ 903,463 $ 9,221,577
Total outstanding with adjd ustable rates $ 2,226,546 $ 2,159,895 $ 1,757,066 $ 6,143,507
Total $ 8,050,419 $ 4,654,136 $ 2,660,529 $ 15,365,084
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More inforff mation relating to loans is presented in Note D, Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Other Assets

Other assets increased $125.13 million or 21.41% froff m year-end 2020. The Communitu y Btt ankers Trust acquisition
added $51.83 million in other assets plus an additional $3.40 million in core deposit intangibles. The cash surrender value of
bank-owned life insurance policies increased $122.78 million, of which $31.32 million was acquirq ed from Community
Bankers Trusr t while the remaining increase was due to purchases of new policies, totaling $85.00 million. Deferrerr d tax
assets increased $10.59 million due mainly to the deferred taxes recorded on the purchase accounting adjud stments in the
Community Bankers Trusr t acquisition. The remainder of the increase in other assets is the result of a $17.23 million net
pension asset that was recorded in 2021, previously a liabia lity, due to an increase in the discount rate used in the year-end
evaluation and an increase in fair value of plan assets during 2021. Partialrr ly offsetting these increases were decreases of
$7.40 million in income tax receivable, $11.00 million in derivative assets, $7.77 million in other real estate owned
properties (�OREO�) dued to sales and write downs, and $2.51 million in core deposit intangibles due to amortization.

Deposits

Deposits represent United�s primary source of funduu ing. Total deposits at Decembem r 31, 2021 increased $2.77 billion
or 13.43%, mainly as the result of the Community Bankers Trust acquisition. Community Bankers Trust added $1.52
billion in deposits, including purchase accounting amounts. In terms of compom sition, noninterest-bearing deposits increased
$1.58 billion or 21.27% ($350.39 million added fromff Community Bankers Trust acquisition) while interest-bearing deposits
increased $1.19 billion or 9.03% ($1.17 billion added fromff Community Bt ankers Trusrr t acquisq ition) from December 31,
2020. Organically, deposits grew $1.24 billion from year-end 2020 due to new customers and the economic stimulus,
liquiq dity ct oncerns as well as a volatile stock market as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Noninterest-bearing deposits consist of demand deposit and noninterest bearina g money market (�MMDA�) account
balances. The $1.58 billion increase in noninterest-bearing deposits was due to increases in commercial noninterest-bearing
deposits of $2.97 billion or 73.04%, personal noninterest-bearing deposits of $407.18 million or 37.04% and publu ic
noninterest-bearing deposits of $65.86 million or 50.41%. Partially offsetting these increases in noninterest bearing
MMDAs was a $1.98 billion decrease in sweep activity.

Interest-bearing deposits consist of interest-bearing checking (�NOW�), regular savings, interest-bearing MMDA,
and time deposit account balances. NOW accounts increased $2.93 billion or 367.01% since year-end 2020 while regular
savings accounts increased $357.58 million or 27.85%, partially as the result of the Community Bt ankers Trust merger.
Excluding sweep activity from NOW accounts to interest-bearing MMDAs to reducd e United�s reserve requirement at its
Federal Reserverr Bank, NOW accounts increased $637.21 million or 20.57% mainly dued to a $363.05 million increase in
personal NOW accounts, a $142.26 million increase in commercial NOW accounts, and a $131.90 million increase in publu ic
funds NOW accounts. Partirr ally offsetff ting these increases in interest-bearing deposits is a $1.83 billion or 22.31% decrease
in interest-bearing MMDAs. In particular, personal MMDAs decreased $789.76 million, commercial MMDAs decreased
$409.01 million, and public MMDAs decreased $602.52 million. These decreases were due to a $2.30 billion decrease in
sweep activity from NOW accounts to interest-bearing MMDAs. The increase of $357.58 million in regular savings was
mainly dued to a $326.72 million increase in personal savings accounts and a $27.51 million increase in commercial savings
accounts.

Time deposits under $100,000 increased $51.02 million or 5.21% froff m year-end 2020. This increase in time
deposits under $100,000 was the result of a $79.50 million increase in fixed Certificates of Deposits (�CDs�) under
$100,000 as a result of the Community Bt ankers Trustrr acquisition. This increase was partially offset by a $30.50 million
decrease in CDs under $100,000 obtained through the use of deposit listing services.

Since year-end 2020, time deposits over $100,000 decreased $326.92 million or 16.96% as fixed rate CDs
decreased $34.22 million, brokered certificates of deposits decreased $99.64 million, and publiu c funff ds CDs over $100,000
decreased $121.19 million. In addition, Certifrr icff ate of Deposit Account Registry Servirr ce (�CDARS�) CDs decreased $74.35
million.
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The table below summarizes the changes by deposit category since year-end 2020:
December 31 December 31

(Dollars in thousands)s 2021 2020 $ Change % Change
Demand deposits $ 8,980,547 $ 5,428,398 $ 3,552,149 65.44%
Interest-bearing checking 3,734,355 799,635 2,934,720 367.01%
Regular savings 1,641,404 1,283,823 357,581 27.85%
Money market accounts 6,361,887 10,165,334 (3,803,447) (37.42%)
Time deposits under $100,000 1,031,008 979,988 51,020 5.21%
Time deposits over $100,000 (1)(2) 1,601,062 1,927,982 (326,920) (16.96%)

Total deposits $ 23,350,263 $ 20,585,160 $ 2,765,103 13.43%
(1) Includes time deposits of $250,000 or more of $640,752 and $889,334 at December 31, 2021 and December 31,

2020, respectively.
(2) Includes $375,510 and $645,304 of uninsured time deposits at December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020,

respectively.

At December 31, 2021, the scheduled maturt ities of time deposits are as follows:
Year Amount
(In tII housands)s
2022 $ 2,093,001
2023 337,252
2024 112,686
2025 59,813
2026 and thereafteff r 29,318

TOTAL $ 2,632,070

Maturities of estimated uninsured time deposits of $100,000 or more outstanding at December 31, 2021 are
summarized as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 3 months
or less

Over 3
through
6 months

Over 6
through 12
months

Over 12
months

Time deposits in amounts in excess of the FDIC Insuranceaa limit $ 78,437 $145,134 $ 61,767 $ 90,172

The amounts of uninsured time deposits of $100,000 or more outstanding at December 31, 2021 are based on
estimates using the same methodologies and assumptions used for regulatory reporting requirements.

The average daily amount of deposits and rates paid on such deposits is summarized forff the years ended Decembem r
31:

2021 2020 2019
Interest Interest Interest

Amount Expense Rate Amount Expense Rate Amount Expense Rate
(Dollars in thousands)

Demand deposits $ 8,281,268 $ 0 0.00% $ 6,433,349 $ 0 0.00% $ 4,388,664 $ 0 0.00%
NOW and money
market deposits 9,438,738 23,498 0.25% 7,617,049 40,322 0.53% 6,297,715 88,591 1.41%
Savings deposits 1,455,305 2,085 0.14% 1,149,201 2,087 0.18% 963,954 2,501 0.26%
Time deposits 2,462,044 16,037 0.65% 2,952,944 36,170 1.22% 2,342,969 44,557 1.90%

TOTAL $ 21,637,355 $ 41,620 0.19% $18,152,543 $ 78,579 0.43% $13,993,302 $ 135,649 0.97%

More informff ation relating to deposits is presented in Note K, Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Borrowings

Total borrowir ngs at December 31, 2021 decreased $60.43 million or 6.00% since year-ea nd 2020. During thet year of
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2021, short-term borrowings decreased $13.46 million or 9.46% duedd to a $13.46 million decrease in securities sold under
agreements to repurchase. Community Bankers Trust added $6.76 million in short-term brr orrowings, which were repaid by
December 31, 2021. Long-term brr orrorr wings decreased $46.98 million or 5.43% froff m year-end 2020 dued to long-term FHLB
advances decreasing $52.33 million as payments exceeded new borrowings while issuances of trustrr preferred capital
securities increased $5.35 million. Including purchase accountu ing amounts, Communm ity Btt ankers Trustrr added $67.79 million
in long-term FHLB advances which were repaid prior to year-end and $3.71 million in trust preferreff d capital securities.

The table below summarizes the change in the borrowing categories since year-end 2020:
December 31 December 31

(Dollars in thousands)s 2021 2020 $ Change % Change
Short-term securities sold under agreements to repurchase $ 128,844 $ 142,300 $ (13,456) (9.46%)
Long-term Frr HLB advances 532,199 584,532 (52,333) (8.95%)
Subordinated debt 9,872 9,865 7 0.07%
Issuances of trust preferff red capital securities 275,323 269,972 5,351 1.98%

Total borrowings $ 946,238 $ 1,006,669 $ (60,431) (6.00%)

For a further discussion of borrowings see Notes L and M, Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilities at December 31, 2021 decreased $6.71 million or 3.31% froff m year-end
2020. In particular, income tax payable decreased $3.55 million due to timing differences and interest payabla e decreased
$2.21 million due to the net repayment of FHLB advances. In addition, derivative liabilities decreased $9.37 million dued to
a change in faiff r value and United�s net pension liability decreased $1.75 million due to an increase in the discount rate used
in the year-end evaluation and an increase in faiff r value of plan assets durd ing 2021, resulting in a pension asset at year end.
Partially offsetting these decreases were increases of $1.08 million in dividends payablea , $7.48 million in deferreff d
compensation, $1.25 million in accrued loan expenses, and $4.65 million in other accrued expenses. Community Bt ankers
Trusrr t added $12.81 million of accruerr d expenses and other liabilities.

Shareholders� Equity

Shareholders� equity at t December 31, 2021 was $4.72 billion, which was an increase of $421.01 million or 9.80%
from year-end 2020, mostly as the result of the Community Bankers Trust acquisition and earnings net of dividends. The
Community Bankers Trust transaction added approximately $260.28 million in shareholders� equity as 7,135,771 shares
were issued fromff United�s autha orized but unissued shares forff the merger at a cost of approximately $252.32 million.

Retained earnings increased $185.38 million or 15.38% fromff year-end 2020. Earnings net of dividends forff the year
of 2021 were $185.38 million.

Accumulated other comprm ehensive income decreased $27.26 million or 121.85% from year-end 2020 due mainly to
a decrease of $56.61 million in the fair value of United�s available forff sale investment portfolff io, net of deferrff ed income
taxes. The after-tax accretion of pension costs was $2.55 million forff the year of 2021 while the after-tax pension accounting
adjud stment at year-end 2021 resulted in an increase of $13.80 million. During the year of 2021, United recognized an
upward fair value adjustmd ent of $13.00 million on new cash flow hedges.

During the fouff rth quarter of 2020, United began repurchasing its common stock on the open market under
repurchase plans approved by United�s Board of Directors. United repurchased 306,204 shares in 2021 at a cost of $9.96
million or an average share price of $32.52.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

Net income for the year 2021 was $367.74 million or $2.83 per diluted share, an increase of $78.72 million or
27.23% from $289.02 million or $2.40 per diluted share for the year of 2020. Higher net income for the year 2021 compared
to the year of 2020 was primarily due to lower provision of credit losses due to better performance trends within the loan
portfolio and an improved future macroeconomic forecast under the Current Expected Credit Loss (�CECL�) accounting
standard, as well as the impact from the Community Bankers Trust and Carolina Financial acquisitions.

As previously mentioned, United complem ted its acquisition of Communitu y Btt ankers Trusrr t on Decemberm 3, 2021, andaa
of Carolina Financial on May 1, 2020. The results of operations for both Community Bankers Trust and Carolina Financial
are included in the consolidated results of operations from the date of the acquisq ition. As a result, the year of 2021 reflected
higher average balances, income, and expense as compam red to the year of 2020. In addition, the year of 2021 included
merger-related expenses of $21.42 million related to the Community Bankers Trust acquisition comparem d to merger-related
expenses of $54.24 million associated with the acquisition of Carolina Financial in 2020.

United�s return orr n average assets for the year of 2021 was 1.35% and the return on average shareholders' equity
was 8.30% as compared to 1.20% and 7.30% for the year of 2020. United�s Federal Reserve peer groupu �s (bank holding
companies with total assets over $10 billion) most recently reported annualized average return orr n assets and annualized
average return on equiq ty were 1.34% and 12.52%, respectively, forff the first nine months of 2021. For the year of 2021,
United�s returtt n on average tangible equity was 14.18%, as compam red to 12.90% the year of 2020.

Year Ended

(Dollars in thousands) December 31,
2021

December 31,
2020

Return on Average Tangible Equity:
(a) Net Income (GAAP) $ 367,738 $ 289,023

Average Total Shareholders' Equity (GAAP) 4,430,688 3,956,969
Less: Average Total Intangibles (1,837,609) (1,716,738)

(b) Average Tangible Equity (non-GAAP) $ 2,593,079 $ 2,240,231

Return on Tangible Equity (non-GAAP)
[(a) / (b)] 14.18% 12.90%

Net interest income forff the year of 2021 was $742.73 million, ana increase of $52.96 million or 7.68% fromff the prior
year. The increase in net interest income occurred because total interest income was flat, decreasing $3.27 million while
total interest expense decreased $56.23 million from the year of 2020.

The provision forff credit losses was a benefitff of $23.97 million for the year 2021 as compared to an expense of
$106.56 million forff the year of 2020. Noninterest income was $278.09 million for the year of 2021 which was a decrease of
$76.65 million or 21.61% from the year of 2020. Noninterest expense was $581.94 million which was flat froff m the year of
2020, increasing $3.73 million or less than 1%.

Income taxes forff the year of 2021 were $95.12 million as compam red to $70.72 million forff the year of 2020. United�s
effective tax rate was approximately 20.6% and 19.7% for years ended Decemberm 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, as
compared to 19.8% forff 2019.

Business Segments

United operates in two business segments: community bt anking and mortgage banking.

Community Banking

Net income attributable to the community banking segment for the year of 2021 was $327.08 million compared to
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net income of $190.34 million forff the year of 2020. The higher net income within the community btt anking segment was duedd
primarily to a lower provision forff credit losses and higher net interest income. The fulff l year of 2021 was impacted by the
Carolina Financial acquisition as compared to eight months in 2020. In addition, the year of 2021 was impacted by one
month of the Community Btt ankers Trust acquisition.

Net interest income increased $53.40 million to $731.31 million for thet year of 2021, compam red to $677.91 million
for the same period of 2020. Generally, net interest income for the year of 2021 increased fromff the year of 2020 due to an
increase in average earning assets as a result of the Carolina Financial acquisition, PPP loan activity and to a larger decline
in the average cost of funds as compared to the average yield on earning assets.

Provision forff credit losses was a net benefit of $23.97 million forff the year of 2021 compared to a provision expense
of $106.56 million forff the same period of 2020. The decrease for the year of 2021 was due mainly to a provision for credit
losses of $28.95 million recorded on purchased non-credit deteriorated (�non-PCD�) loans from Carolina Financial durdd ing
the second quarter of 2020 which was partialrr ly offset by the provision forff credit losses of $12.29 million recorded on non-
PCD loans from Community Bt ankers Trust, the better performance trends within the loan portfolff io as well as improved
reasonable and supportable forff ecasts for future macroeconomic scenarios used in the estimation of expected credit losses
under the CECL accounting standard.

Noninterest income forff the year of 2021 increased $9.88 million to $99.97 million as compared to $90.09 million
for the year of 2020. The increase for the year of 2021 was due mainly to increased fees fromff trustrr servicrr es, fees from
brokerage servirr ces, fees from deposit services, bankcard feesff and merchant discounts and other miscellaneous income.

Noninterest expense was $443.46 million forff the year ended Decemberm 31, 2021, compam red to $423.93 million forff
the same period of 2020. The increase of $19.52 million in noninterest expense was primarily attributable to the additional
employees and branch offices fromff the Community Bankers Trust and the Carolina Financial acquisitions as most major
categories of noninterest expense showed increases.

Mortgage Banking

The mortgage banking segment reported net income of $43.93 million forff the year of 2021 as compared to net
income of $116.71 million for the year of 2020. Noninterest income, which consists mainly of realized and unreu alized gains
associated with the fair value of commitments and loans held for sale, was $183.22 million for the year of 2021 as comparem d
to $276.19 million forff the year of 2020. The decrease in 2021 was due mainly to the mark-to-market impact of a declining
locked pipeline and a lower margin on loans sold in the secondary mrr arket. Noninterest expense was $138.51 million for the
year of 2021 as comparm ed to $140.63 million the year of 2020. Noninterest expense consists mainly of salaries,
commissions and benefits of mortgage segment employees. The decrease in 2021 was due mainly to lower employee
incentives, overtime and commissions expense related to decreased mortgage banking producdd tion.

Consolidated Results of Operations by Major Category

The folff lowing table sets forthrr certain consolidated income statement information of United:
Year Ended

(Dollars in thousands)s 2021 2020 2019
Income Statement Summary:
Interest income $ 795,117 $ 798,382 $ 762,562
Interest expense 52,383 108,609 184,640
Net interest income 742,734 689,773 577,922
Provision for credit losses (23,970) 106,562 21,313
Other income 278,092 354,746 150,484
Other expense 581,943 578,217 382,654
Income beforff e income taxes 462,853 359,740 324,439
Income taxes 95,115 70,717 64,340
Net income $ 367,738 $ 289,023 $ 260,099
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Net Interest Income

Net interest income represents the primary crr omponent of United's earnings. It is the differff ence between interest
income from earning assets and interest expense incurredr to fund thet se assets. Net interest income is impactm ed by changes in
the volume and mix of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, as well as changes in market interest rates.
Such changes, and their impact on net interest income in 2021 and 2020, are presented below.

Net interest income for the year of 2021 was $742.73 million, which was an increase of $52.96 million or 7.68%
from the year of 2020. The $52.96 million increase in net interest income occurred because total interest income was flat,
decreasing $3.27 million while total interest expense decreased $56.23 million fromff the year of 2020. Generally, interest
income for the year of 2021 decreased slightly from the year of 2020 due mainly to a decline in the yield on average earning
assets, mainly as a result a decline in market interest rates, especially on investment securities, while interest expense
decreased primarily also duedd to the decline in marker t interest rates which resulted in lower funding costs. For the purpose of
this remaining discussion, net interest income is presented on a tax-equivq alent basis to provide a comparison among all
types of interest earning assets. The tax-equivalent basis adjusd ts for the tax-favored status of income froff m certarr in loans and
investments. Although this is a non-GAAP measure, United�s management believes this measure is more widely used
within the financial servirr ces industrydd and provides better comparability ot f net interest income arising froff m taxable and tax-
exempt sources. United uses this measure to monitor net interest income performff ance and to manage its balance sheet
composition.

Tax-equiq valent net interest income forff the year of 2021 was $746.95 million, an increase of $53.29 million or
7.68% from the year of 2020. The increase in net interest income and tax-equivalent net interest income was primarily due
to an increase in average earnirr ng assets from the Carolina Financial acquisition and PPP loans as well as lower interest
expense on deposits and borrowings partiarr lly offset by lower acquired loan accretion income. Average earnirr ng assets for thet
year of 2021 increased $2.81 billion or 13.15% fromff the year of 2020 due to a $523.90 million or 3.09% increase in average
net loans and leases, including loans held for sale, a $1.66 billion or 110.61% increase in average short-term investments
and a $628.01 million or 21.52% increase in average investment securities. The net interest spread forff the year of 2021
decreased 2 basis points froff m the year of 2020 duedd to a 45 basis point decrease in the average yield on earning assets
partially offset by a 43 basis point decrease in the average cost of fundsff . Loan accretion on acquired loans and leases was
$33.86 million and $41.77 million for the year of 2021 and 2020, respectively, a decrease of $7.91 million. The net interest
margin of 3.09% for the year of 2021 was a decrease of 15 basis points from the net interest margin of 3.24% for the year of
2020.

United�s tax-equivalent net interest income also includes the impact of acquisition accounting fairff value
adjustments. The following table provides the discount/pre/ mium and net accretion impact to tax-equivalent net interest
income forff the year ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019.

Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31

(Dollars in thousands) 2021 2020 2019
Loan Accretion $ 33,857 $ 41,766 $ 38,803
Certificates of deposit 4,305 7,925 791
Long-term borrowings 684 1,278 1,074
Total $ 38,846 $ 50,969 $ 40,668

The following table reconciles the difference between net interest income and tax-equiqq valent net internn est income forff
the year ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019.

Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31

(Dollars in thousands) 2021 2020 2019
Net interest income (GAAP) $ 742,734 $ 689,773 $ 577,922
Tax-equivalent adjustment (non-GAAP) (1) 4,218 3,888 3,735
Tax-equivalent net interest income (non-GAAP) $ 746,952 $ 693,661 $ 581,657

(1) The tax-equivalent adjustment combines amounts of interest income on federally nontaxable loans and investment securities
using the statutory federal income tax rate of 21% for 2021, 2020, and 2019. All interest income on loans and investment
securities was subju ect to state income taxes.
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The follff owing tablea shows the consolidated daily average balance of majora categories of assets and liabilities for
each of the three years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 with the consolidated interest and rate earned or paid on
such amount. The interest income and yields on federally nontaxable loans and investmenttt securities are presented on a tax-
equivalent basis using the statutory frr edff eral income tax rate of 21% for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019.
Interest income on all loans and investment securities was subject to state taxes.

Year Ended
December 31, 2021

Year Ended
December 31, 2020

Year Ended
December 31, 2019

(Dollars in thousands)
Average
Balance

Interest
(1)

Avg.
Rate
(1)

Average
Balance

Interest
(1)

Avg.
Rate
(1)

Average
Balance

Interest
(1)

Avg.
Rate
(1)

ASSETS
Earning Assets:

Federal funds sold, securities
repurchased under
agreements to resell & other
short-term investments $ 3,162,814 $ 8,734 0.28% $ 1,501,771 $ 9,780 0.65% $ 733,865 $ 21,338 2.91%

Investment Securities:
Taxable 3,193,414 54,678 1.71% 2,700,416 61,808 2.29% 2,485,767 70,789 2.85%
Tax-exempt 352,843 9,129 2.59% 217,836 6,285 2.89% 139,277 4,412 3.17%

Total Securities 3,546,257 63,807 1.80% 2,918,252 68,093 2.33% 2,625,044 75,201 2.86%
Loans and leases, net of
unearned income (2) 17,714,288 726,794 4.10% 17,151,291 724,397 4.22% 13,879,662 669,758 4.83%

Allowance for credit losses (225,740) (186,640) (76,731)
Net loans and leases 17,488,548 4.16% 16,964,651 4.27% 13,802,931 4.85%

Total earnirr ng assets 24,197,619 $ 799,335 3.30% 21,384,674 $ 802,270 3.75% 17,161,840 $ 766,297 4.47%
Other assets 3,058,476 2,752,396 2,313,628

TOTAL ASSETS $27,256,095 $24,137,070 $19,475,468

LIABILITIES
Interest-Bearing Funds:

Interest-bearing deposits $13,356,087 $ 41,620 0.31% $11,719,194 $ 78,579 0.67% $ 9,604,638 $ 135,649 1.41%
Short-term borrowings 132,489 693 0.52% 145,768 1,027 0.70% 140,483 2,347 1.67%
Long- term borrowrr ings 819,440 10,070 1.23% 1,645,783 29,003 1.76% 1,821,504 46,644 2.56%

Total Interest-Bearing Funds 14,308,016 52,383 0.37% 13,510,745 108,609 0.80% 11,566,625 184,640 1.60%
Noninterest-bearing deposits 8,281,268 6,433,349 4,388,664
Accrued expenses and other
liabilities 236,123 236,007 184,104

TOTAL LIABILITIES 22,825,407 20,180,101 16,139,393
SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY 4,430,688 3,956,969 3,336,075

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY $27,256,095 $24,137,070 $19,475,468

NET INTEREST INCOME $ 746,952 $ 693,661 $ 581,657

INTEREST SPREAD 2.93% 2.95% 2.87%

NET INTEREST MARGIN 3.09% 3.24% 3.39%

(1) The interest income and the yields on federally nontaxable loans and investment securities are presented on a tax-equivalentqq basis
using the statutory federal income tax rate of 21% for 2021, 2020 and 2019.

(2) Nonaccruing loans are included in the daily average loan amounts outstanding.
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The following table sets forth a summary for the periods indicated of the changes in consolidated interest earned
and interest paid detailing the amounts attributablea to (i) changes in volume (change in the average volume times the prior
year's average rate), (ii) changes in rate (change in the average rate times the prior year's average volume), and (iii) changes
in rate/volume (change in the average volume times the change in average rate).

2021 Compared to 2020 2020 Compared to 2019
Increase (Decrease) Due to Increase (Decrease) Due to

Rate/ Rate/
(In thousands)s Volume Rate Volume Total Volume Rate Volume Total
Interest income:

Federal funds sold, securities
purchased under agreements
to resell and other short-termrr
investments $ 10,797 $ (5,557) $ (6,286) $ (1,046) $ 22,346 $ (16,585) $ (17,319) $ (11,558)

Investment securities:
Taxable 11,290 (15,662) (2,758) (7,130) 6,117 (13,920) (1,178) (8,981)
Tax-exempt (1) 3,902 (654) (404) 2,844 2,490 (390) (227) 1,873

Loans (1),(2) 22,370 (18,661) (1,312) 2,397 153,343 (80,057) (18,647) 54,639

TOTAL INTEREST INCOME 48,359 (40,534) (10,760) (2,935) 184,296 (110,952) (37,371) 35,973

Interest expense:
Interest-bearing deposits $ 10,967 $ (42,189) $ (5,737) $ (36,959) $ 29,815 $ (71,074) $ (15,811) $ (57,070)
Short-term borrowings (93) (262) 21 (334) 88 (1,306) (102) (1,320)
Long-termrr borrowings (14,544) (8,723) 4,334 (18,933) (4,498) (14,572) 1,429 (17,641)

TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE (3,670) (51,174) (1,381) (56,226) 25,405 (86,952) (14,484) (76,031)

NET INTEREST INCOME $ 52,029 $ 10,640 $ (9,378) $ 53,291 $ 158,891 $ (24,000) $ (22,887) $ 112,004

(1) Yields and interest income on federally tax-exempt loans and investment securities are computed on a fully tax-equivalent basis using
the statutory federal income tax rate of 21% for 2021, 2020 and 2019.

(2) Nonaccruing loans are included in the daily average loan amounts outstanding.

Provision for Credit Losses

United�s provision for credit losses was a net benefit of $23.97 million for the year of 2021 while the provision for
credit losses was an expense of $106.56 million for the year of 2020. United�s provision for credit losses relates to its
portfolff io of loans and leases, held-to-maturity securities and interest receivable on loans which are discussed in more detail
in the following paragraphs.

The provision for loan and lease losses for the year of 2021 was a net benefit of $23.72 million as compared to
provision expense of $106.29 million for the year of 2020. Net charge-offsff for the year of 2021 were $8.72 million as
compared to $23.60 million for the year of 2020. The year of 2021 included a provision for loan losses of $12.29 million
recorded on purchased non-credit deteriorated (�non-PCD�) loans from Community Bankers Trust.rr The year of 2020
included a provision for loan losses of $28.95 million recorded on non-PCD loans from Carolina Financial. The decrease in
the provision in relation to the year of 2020 was primarily driven by improvements in the reasonable and supportabla e
forecasts of future macroeconomic conditions on the estimate of expected credit losses under CECL. The decrease in the
provision in relation to the prior year was also due to the impactm of better performance trends within the loan portfolio. Net
charge-offsff as a percentage of average loans and leases were 0.05% and 0.14% for the year of 2021 and 2020, respectively.

As of December 31, 2021, nonpn erforming loans and leases were $90.76 million or 0.50% of loans and leases, net of
unearned income as compared to $132.21 million or 0.75% of loans and leases, net of unearned income at December 31,
2020. The components of nonperformiff ng loansa and leases include: 1) nonaccrualrr loans and leases, 2) loans and leases which
are contractuat lly past due 90 days or more as to interest or principal, but have not been put on a nonaccruar l basis and 3)
loans and leases whose termsrr have been restructured for economic or legal reasons dud e to financial difficulties of the
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borrowers.

Loans and leases past dued 90 days or more were $18.88 million at Decembem r 31, 2021, an increase of $5.05 million
or 36.49% from $13.83 million at year-end 2020. This increase was primarily due to several large commercial relationships
that have exceeded their stated maturity dates as of December 31, 2021. At Decemberm 31, 2021, nonaccrual loans anda leases
were $36.03 million, which was a decrease of $26.69 million or 42.56% from $62.72 million at year-end 2020. This
decrease was due to the repayment of fivff e large commercial nonaccrual loans as well as the charge-off of two commercial
relationships and troublu ed debt restructurintt g designations for three large commercial nonaccruarr l loansa . Restructrr urtt ed loans
were $35.86 million at December 31, 2021, a decrease of $19.80 million or 35.58% from $55.66 million at year-end 2020.
The decrease was mainly dued to the repayment of six large commercial relationships and charge-off off f three commercial
restructuredt loans during the year of 2021. The loss potential on these loans has been properly evaluated and allocated
within the Company�s allowance for loan losses.

Nonperformff ing assets include nonperformirr ng loans and leases and real estate acquiq red in foreclosure or other
settlement of loans (�OREO�). Total nonperforming assets of $105.59 million, including OREO of $14.82 million at
December 31, 2021, represented 0.36% of total assets.

United maintains an allowance for loan and lease losses and a reserve for lending-related commitments. The
combined allowance for loan and lease losses and reserve for lending-related commitments is considered thet allowancea for
credit losses. At December 31, 2021, the allowance for credit losses was $247.46 million as compam red to $255.08 million at
December 31, 2020.

At Decemberm 31, 2021, the allowance forff loan and lease losses was $216.02 million as compam red to $235.83
million at December 31, 2020. The decrease in the allowance for loan and lease losses was due mainly to improved
reasonable and suppu ortable forecasts for future macroeconomic scenarios used in the estimation of expected credit losses
offseff t slightly by the allowance amount recorded for Community Bankers Trust acquisq ition. As a percentage of loans and
leases, net of unearned income, the allowance for loan losses was 1.20% at December 31, 2021 and 1.34% at Decemberm 31,
2020. The ratio of the allowance for loan and lease losses to nonperforming loansa and leases or coverage ratio was 238.00%
and 178.38% at December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively. The increase in this ratio was due mainly to a
larger decline in nonperforming loans and leases than in the allowance for loan and lease losses.

The following table summarizes United�s credit loss experience forff loan and leases losses, based on loan categoriesaa ,
for the year of 2021 and 2020:
(Dollars in thousands) 2021 2020
Commercial, financial and agrigg cultural:
Owner-occupied
Loans & leases charged off $ 414 $ 2,195
Recoveries 869 795

Net loans & leases (recovered) charged off $ (455) $ 1,400
Average gross loans & leases outstanding 1,612,387 1,360,791

Net (recoveries) charge-offs as a percentage of average gross loans & leases
outstanding (0.03%) 0.10%

Nonowner-occupied
Loans & leases charged off $ 3,531 $ 6,134
Recoveries 1,907 1,023

Net loans & leases charged off $ 1,624 $ 5,111
Average gross loans & leases outstanding 5,045,006 4,400,468

Net charge-offs aff s a percentage of average gross loans & leases outstanding 0.03% 0.12%

Other Commercial
Loans & leases charged off $ 6,182 $ 17,350
Recoveries 4,307 4,461

Net loans & leases charged off $ 1,875 $ 12,889
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(Dollars in thousands) 2021 2020
Average gross loans & leases outstanding 3,777,988 3,656,586
Net charge-offsff as a percentage of average gross loans & leases outstanding 0.05% 0.35%

Residential Real Estate
Loans & leases charged off $ 6,016 $ 1,760
Recoveries 2,400 1,063

Net loans & leases charged off $ 3,616 $ 697
Average gross loans & leases outstanding 3,624,157 4,360,168

Net charge-offsff as a percentage of average gross loans & leases outstanding 0.10% 0.02%

Construction
Loans & leases charged off $ 560 $ 2,027
Recoveries 604 1,513

Net loans & leases (recovered) charged off $ (44) $ 514
Average gross loans & leases outstanding 1,961,661 1,622,820
Net (recoveries) charge-offs as a percentage of average gross loans & leases
outstanding (0.00%) 0.03%

Consumer:
Bankcard
Loans & leases charged off $ 190 $ 221
Recoveries 42 52

Net loans & leases charged offff $ 148 $ 169
Average gross loans & leases outstanding 8,298 8,830
Net charge-offs aff s a percentage of average gross loans & leases outstanding 1.78% 1.91%

Other consumer
Loans & leases charged off $ 2,404 $ 3,296
Recoveries 449 479

Net loans & leases charged off $ 1,955 $ 2,817
Average gross loans & leases outstanding 1,174,323 1,196,911

Net charge-offsff as a percentage of average gross loans & leases outstanding 0.17% 0.24%

Total
Loans & leases charged off $ 19,297 $ 32,983
Recoveries 10,578 9,386

Net loans & leases charged off $ 8,719 $ 23,597
Average gross loans & leases outstanding 17,203,820 16,606,574

Net charge-offsff as a percentage of average gross loans & leases outstanding 0.05% 0.14%

Nonaccrual loans & leases $ 58,449 $ 103,903
Allowance for loan & lease losses 216,016 235,830
Loans & leases (net of unearned income) 18,023,648 17,591,413

Allowance forff loan & lease losses as a percentage of loans (net of unearned
income) 1.20% 1.34%

Nonaccrual loans as a percentage of loans & leases (net of unearned income) 0.32% 0.59%

Allowance for loan & lease losses as a percentage of nonaccruarr l loans & leases 369.58% 226.97%

United continues to evaluate risks which may impact its loan and lease portfolios. As a result of the COVID-19
pandemic and resulting economic uncertainty given the rapidly changing economic impact, the Companm y reviewed its loana
and lease portfoliff o segments, assessing thet likely impact of COVID-19 on each segment and established relevant quaqq litative
adjustment factors. Reserves are initially determined based on losses identifieff d froff m the PD/LGD and Cohort mrr odels
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which utilize the Company�s historical information. Then any qualq itative adjusd tments are applied to account forff the
Company�s view of the future. If current conditions underlying any qualitative adjud stment factor were deemed to be
materially differenff t than historical conditions, then an adjud stment was made forff that factor.

The year of 2021 qualitative adjustments include analyses of the following:

 �

 �

 The forecast forff real GDP and the unemployment rate improved in 2021, 2022 and 2023 as compam red to
forecasts and expectations at the end of 2020.

 Greater risk of loss is probablea in the hotel and accommodations portfoliff o due to weakened economic
conditions brought on by the pandemic and labora shortages which resulted in a more negative forecast
relative to other portfoliff os and a longer projected recovery period to extend into late 2023 or 2024.

 Consideration was given to the $1.9 trillion American Rescue Plan (effecff tive March 11, 2021) durd ing the
2021 forecast selection process as the stimulus package had a positive impact on the economy throughout
2021.

 Reversion to historical loss data occurs via a straight-line method duridd ng the year following the one-year
reasonable and supportarr blea forecast period.

The following is a summary or f loans and leases outstanding as a percent of gross loans at Decembem r 31:
2021 2020

Commercial, financial & agricultural 61.78% 60.69%
Residential real estate 20.45% 22.13%
Construction & land development 11.16% 10.36%
Consumer 6.61% 6.82%

Total 100.00% 100.00%

United�s review of the allowance for loan and lease losses at Decemberm 31, 2021 produced decreased reserves in
three of the fourff loan categories as compared to December 31, 2020. The allowance related to the commercial, finaff ncial &
agricultural loan pool decreased $15.61 million. The residential real estate reserve decreased $2.72 million. The consumer
loan pool decreased $1.80 million. Each of these decreases were primarily due to improved economic conditions and
improved expectations within the reasonable and supportable forff ecast. The real estate construction and development loan
pool reserve increased $318 thousand primarily due to increased outstanding balances in the land and land development
segment.

An allowance is establisa hed forff estimated lifetimeff losses for loans that are individuad lly assessed. Nonperforming
commercial loans and leases are regularly reviewed to identify eff xpected credit losses. A loan is individually assessed forff
expected credit losses when the loan does not share similar characteristics with other loans in the portfolio. Measuring
expected credit losses of a loan requires judgment and estimates, and the eventuat l outcomes may differ from those
estimates. Expected credit losses are measured based upon the present value of expected futurett cash flows froff m the loan
discounted at the loan�s effective rate or the fair value of collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. When the selected
measure is less than the recorded investment in the loan, an expected credit loss has occurred. The allowance forff loans and
leases that were individuald ly assessed was $6.53 million at December 31, 2021 and $7.78 million at Decembem r 31, 2020. In

 Past events � This includes portfolio trends related to business conditions; past due, nonaccrualrr , and graded
loans and leases; and concentrations.

Current conditions United considered the continued impact of COVID-19 on the economy as well as loan deferff rals
and modificaff tions made in light of the pandemic when making determinations related to factor adjusd tments, such as
changes in economic and business conditions, collateral values, external factors and past due loans and leases.

Reasonable and supportablepp forecasts The forecast is determined on a portfolio-by-portforr lio basis by relating the
correlarr tion of real GDP and the unemployment rate to loss rates to forecasts of those variabla es. The reasonable and
supporuu tablrr e forecast selection is subjectb ive in nature and requiqq res more judgment comparedaa to the other componentmm s of
the allowance. Assumptions for the economic variables were the following:
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comparison to the prior year-end, this element of the allowance decreased by $1.25 million primarily due to charge-off of
previously recognized allocations for probable credit losses on individuad lly assessed loans as well as repayment of
individually assessed loans.

Management believes that the allowance for credit losses of $247.46 million at December 31, 2021 is adequate to
provide for expected losses on existing loans and lending-related commitments based on inforff mation currently availabla e.
United's loan administration policies are focused on the risk characteristics of the loan portfolio in termsrr of loan approval
and credit quality.t The commercial loan portfolio is monitored for possible concentrations of credit in one or more
industries. Management has lending limits as a percentage of capa ital per typey of credit concentration in an effort to ensure
adequate diversification within the portfolio. Most of United�s commercial loans are secured by real estate located in West
Virginia, southeastern Ohio, Pennsylvania, Virginia, Marylr and, North Carolina, South Carolina, and the District of
Columbia. It is the opinion of management that these commercial loans do not pose any unusual risks and that adequaq te
consideration has been given to these loans in establisa hing the allowance for credit losses.

The provision forff credit losses related to held to maturt ity st ecurities forff the year of 2021 and 2020 was immaterial.
The allowance forff credit losses related to held to maturt ity securities was $19 thousand as of December 31, 2021 as
compared to $23 thousand as of Decemberm 31, 2020. There was no provision for credit losses recorded on availabla e forff sale
investment securities for the year of 2021 and 2020 and no allowance forff credit losses on available for sale investment
securities as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. Due to loan interest payment deferrals granted by United under the CARES
Act, United assessed the collectabia lity of the accrued interest receivables on these deferrirr ng loans as of December 31, 2021.
As a result of this assessment, United released reserves of $242 thousand for the year of 2021. The allowance for accrued
interest receivables not expected to be collected as of December 31, 2021 was $8 thousand as compamm red to $250 thousand at
December 31, 2020.

Management is not aware of any potential problem loans or leases, trends or uncertainties, which it reasonabla y
expects, will materially impact futff ure operating results, liquiq dity, or capital resources which have not been disclosed.
Additionally, management has disclosed all known material credits, which cause management to have serious doubts as to
the ability of such borrowers to complm y with the loan repayment schedules.

Other Income

Other income consists of all revenues, which are not included in interest and feeff income related to earning assets.
Noninterest income has been and will continue to be an important factor for improving United's profitff ability. Recognizing
the importance, management continues to evaluate areas where noninterest income can be enhanced.

Noninterest income for the year of 2021 was $278.09 million, which was a decrease of $76.65 million or 21.61%
from the year of 2020. The decrease was due to a decline in income froff m mortgage banking activities.

Income from mortgage banka ing activities totaled $171.69 million for thet year of 2021 compared to $266.09 million
for the year of 2020. The decrease of $94.40 million or 35.48% for the year of 2021 was dued mainly to a decline in the fair
value of derivatives associated with at declining pipeline and a lower sales margin. Mortgage loan sales were $6.41 billion in
the year of 2021 as comparm ed to $6.26 billion in the year of 2020. Mortgage loans originated for sale were $6.19 billion for
the year of 2021 as compared to $6.53 billion forff the year of 2020.

Mortgage loan servicing income increased $3.39 million forff the year of 2021 due to increased mortgage servicing
activity as a result of the Carolina Financial acquisition.

United recognized a net gain of $2.68 million on investment securities� activity in 2021 as compared to a net gain
of $3.16 million on investment securities activity in 2020. In particular, United recognized net gains of $1.55 million on the
sales, calls and redemption of available-a for-sale securities investment securities, $670 thousand on equity stt ecurities and
$455 thousand on an equitq y security without a readily determinable markerr t value for the year of 2021 as compam red to a net
gains of $2.50 million on the sales, calls and redemptim on of available-for-sale securities investment securities and $578
thousand on equity securities forff the year of 2020. In addition, United did not recognize any impairment on investment
securities for the year of 2021 and 2020.
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Fees from trust services for the year of 2021 were $16.55 million, an increase of $2.65 million or 19.05% fromff the
year of 2020 due to an increase in managed assets.

Fees from brokerage servirr ces for the year of 2021 were $15.56 million, an increase of $3.80 million or 32.33%
from the year of 2020 due to increased volume.

Fees from deposit services for the year of 2021 were $38.69 million, an increase of $3.86 million or 11.07% from
the year of 2020. Debit card income increased $1.76 million, overdraft fees increased $866 thousand and account analysis
fees increased $759 thousand.

United recognized a net gain of $2.23 million in the year of 2020 on the sale-leaseback of a bank premise.

Bankcard fees for the year of 2021 increased $1.42 million or 34.90% fromff the year of 2020 due to an increase in
interchange income from increased volume.

Other miscellaneous income increased $5.32 million or 198.43% mainly due to an increase in prepayment fees
received on Delegated Underwriting and Servicing (�DUS�) securities.

Other Expense

Just as management continues to evaluate areas where noninterest income can be enhanced, it strit ves to improve the
efficiency of its operations to reduce costs. Other expense includes all items of expense other than interest expense, the
provision forff credit losses and income tax expense. Noninterest expense forff the year of 2021 was $581.94 million, which
was flaff t fromff the year of 2020, increasing $3.73 million or less than 1%.

Employee compem nsation for the year of 2021 increased $5.31 million or 1.93% from the year of 2020. This increase
was due mainly to additional employees froff m the Community Bankers Trust and Carolina Financial acquiq sitions partially
offsetff by lower commissions, overtime and incentives expenses primarily related to decreased mortgage banking
productdd ion.

Employee benefits expense for the year of 2021 increased $5.00 million or 10.23% as compared to the year of
2020. Federal Insurance Contributions Act (�FICA�) expense forff the year of 2021 increased $1.07 million due mainly to
the additional employees from the Community Bankers Trust and Carolina Financial acquisitions. In addition, health
insurance expense for the year of 2021 increased $4.34 million due to higher premiums and additional employees from the
Community Bankers Trust and Carolina Financial acquisiq tions. For the year of 2021, postretirement expense, which
includes expense associated with United�s pension plan, supplemental early retirement plans (�SERPs�) and Savings and
Stock Investment Plan (�401K plan�), decreased $942 thousand fromff the year of 2020. United uses certain valuation
methodologies to measure the fairff value of the assets within United�s pension plan which are presented in Note P, Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. The funded statustt of United�s pension plan is based upon the fairff value of the plan
assets compared to the projected benefitff obligation. The determir nation of the projected benefit obligation and the associated
periodic benefitff expense involves significaff nta judgment and estimation of futurtt e employee compensation levels, the discount
rate and the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets. If United assumes a 1% increase or decrease in the estimation
of future emplm oyee compenm sation levels while keeping all other assumptions constant, the benefitff cost associated with the
pension plan would increase by approa ximately $901 thousand and decrease by appra oximately $826 thousand, respectively.
If United assumes a 1% increase or decrease in the discount rate while keeping all other assumptm ions constant, the benefit
cost associated with the pension plan would decrease by approximately $3.13 million and increase by appraa oximately $3.58
million, respectively. If United assumes a 1% increase or decrease in the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets
while keeping all other assumptions constant, the benefit cost associated with the pension plan would decrease by
approximately $1.90 million and increase by approximately $1.90 million, respectively.

Net occupau ncy expense increased $731 thousand or 1.77% forff the year of 2021 as compared to the prior year. The
increase was dued mainly to increases of $3.53 million in building maintenance expense and $1.30 million in depreciation
due mainly to the officff es added in the Community Bankers Trust and Carolina Financial acquisitions partially offset by a
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decline of $1.11 million in building rental expense due to the closing of certain leased offices.

Equipment expense increased $5.12 million or 24.53% for the year of 2021 as compam red to the year of 2020. The
increase was due mainly to increases in equipment maintenance of $3.53 million and depreciation of $1.91 million due
mainly to the Community Bankers Trustrr and Carolina Financial acquiq sitions.

Data processing expense decreased $3.97 million or 11.22% for the year of 2021 as compared to the year of 2020.
The decrease for year of 2021 was due mainly to a $9.66 million penalty to terminate Carolina Financial�s data processing
contract incurred in 2020 as compared to $3.47 million of merger-related termination and conversion expenses associated
with the Community Bankers Trust acquisition in 2021.

Mortgage loan servicing expense and impairment for the year of 2021 increased $2.82 million froff m the year of
2020. The increase was due to an increase in mortgage servicing activity at s a result of the acquisition of Carolina Financial
and Crescent Mortgage. In addition, United recorded a temporary impaim rment charge, net of recoveries of $500 thousand on
its mortgage servicing rights during the year of 2021 as compared to a temporarm y irr mpairment charge on its mortgage
servicing rights of $1.38 million during the year of 2020.

During the year of 2021, United incurred penalties of $15 thousand in the year of 2021 to prepay caa ertairr n long-termrr
FHLB advances assumed in the Community Bt ankers Trust acquisition. United incurred similar penalties of $10.39 million
to prepay three long-term FHLB advances during the year of 2020.

Other expense forff the year of 2021 increased $1.27 million or 1.06% froff m the year of 2020. Included in other
expense for the year of 2021 were merger-related expenses of $3.01 million for the Community Bankers Trust acquisition as
compared to $13.07 million for the Carolina Financial acquisition for the year of 2020. The expense forff the reserve for
unfunded commitments for the year of 2021 increased $1.69 million from the year of 2020, excluding amounts that are
included in the merger-related expenses above. In addition, the amortization of income tax credits, which reduces the
effectff ive tax rate, for the year of 2021 increased $2.90 million anda expense on automated teller machine (�ATM�) increased
$1.22 million. Several other general operating expenses increased as well dued mainly to the Community Btt ankers Trusrr t anda
Carolina Financial acquisq itions.

Income Taxes

For the year ended Decemberm 31, 2021, income taxes were $95.12 million, compamm red to $70.72 million for 2020, anaa
increase of $24.40 million or 34.50%. The increase was due to higher earnings. United�s effective tax rate was
approximately 20.6% and 19.7% for years ended Decemberm 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, as compared to 19.8% for
2019. For further details related to income taxes, see Note O, Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Quarterly Results

Net income forff the first quarter of 2021 was $106.90 million or $0.83 per diluted share as compam red to earninrr gs of
$40.18 million or $0.40 per diluted share for the first quarter of 2020. Higher net income for the first quarter of 2021
compared to the firff st quarter of 2020 was primarily dued to higher income froff m mortgage banking activities, driven by an
elevated volume of mortgage loan originations and sales in the secondary mrr arket, the impact of the Carolina Financial
acquisition and a lower provision forff credit losses primarily dued to better perforff mance trends within the loan portfolio and
an improved future macroeconomic forecast under the CECL accounting standard. Net interest income forff the firff st three
months of 2021 was $190.96 million, an increase of $49.44 million or 34.94% fromff net interest income of $141.52 million
for the first three months of 2020. The increase of $49.44 million in net interest income occurred becausea total interest
income increased $25.18 million while total interest expense decreased $24.27 million from the first quarter of 2020. The
provision forff credit losses was $143 thousand forff the firstff three months of 2021 as compared to $27.12 million for the first
three months of 2020. This decrease in the provision for credit losses was mainly dued to the impact of better performance
trends within the loan portfolio as well as improved reasonable and supportabla e forff ecasts for future macroeconomic
scenarios used in the estimation of expected credit losses under the CECL accounting standard. Noninterest income was
$92.57 million for the firstff three months of 2021, an increase of $55.77 million or 151.52% from the first three months of
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2020 due mainly to increased income from mortgage banking activities due to an elevated volume of mortgarr ge loan
originations and sales in the secondary market as well as the addition of mortgage banking operations from the Carolina
Financial acquiq sition. Noninterest expense for the firff st three months of 2021 increased $47.79 million or 47.26% from the
first three months of 2020 due mainly to the Carolina Financial acquisition as well as duedd to higher emplom yee incentives and
commissions expense mainly related to higher mortgage banking production. Income taxes increased $17.68 million or
178.74% for the first three months of 2021 as compared to the first three months of 2020. The effective tax rate was 20.50%
and 19.75% for the first quarter of 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Net income forff the second quarq ter of 2021 was $94.84 million or $0.73 per diluted share, as compam red to $52.69
million or $0.44 per diluted share for the prior year second quaq rter. Net interest income forff the second quarter of 2021 was
$186.52 million, which was an increase of $15.92 million, or 9.33%, fromff the second quarter of 2020. The increase in net
interest income occurred becausea total interest income increased $1.47 million while total interest expense decreased $14.45
million from the second quaq rter of 2020. The provision for credit losses was a net reduction in expense of $8.88 million forff
the second quarter of 2021, while the provision for credit losses was an expense of $45.91 million forff the second quarter of
2020. This decrease in the provision for credit losses was mainly due to the impact of better performaff ncea trends withit n the
loan portfolio as well as improm ved reasonabla e and supportablu e forecasff ts for future macroeconomic scenarios used in the
estimation of expected credit losses under the CECL accounting standard. In addition, a provision forff loan losses of $28.95
million was recorded on purchased non-PCD loans from Carolina Financial durid ng the second quaq rter of 2020. For the
second quarter of 2021, noninterest income was $62.85 million, which was a decrease of $25.54 million or 28.90% from the
second quarter of 2020 primarily driven by a decrease in income froff m mortgage banking activities due primarily to the
mark-to-market impact of a declining interest rate lock commitment pipeline. For the second quaq rter of 2021, noninterest
expense decreased $10.42 million or 6.98% from the second quarter of 2020 primarily due to a decrease in data processing
expense which included a contract termination penalty it ncurred in the second quarter of 2020 associated with the Carolina
Financial acquisition. Income taxes for the second quarter of 2021 were $24.46 million as compared to $11.02 million forff
the second quarter of 2020. For the quarters ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, United's effective tax rate was 20.50% and
17.30%, respectively.

Net income forff the third quarter of 2021 was $92.15 million or $0.71 per diluted share, as compam red to $103.78
million or $0.80 per diluted share for the prior year third quarterrr . Net interest income for the third quarterr r of 2021 was
$181.58 million, which was a decrease of $4.09 million, or 2.20%, from the third quarter of 2020. The decrease in net
interest income occurrer d because total interest income decreased $16.19 million while total interest expense decreased
$12.10 million from the third quarter of 2020. The provision for credit losses was a net benefit of $7.83 million for thet third
quarter of 2021, while the provision forff credit losses was an expense of $16.78 million, forff the thirdt quarter of 2020. For the
third quarter of 2021, noninterest income was $68.62 million, which was a decrease of $66.84 million or 49.34% from the
third quarter of 2020 primarily driven by a decrease in income from mortgage banking activities due primarily to a lower
mortgage loan origination and sale volume and the mark-to-market impact of a declining locked pipeline. For the third
quarter of 2021, noninterest expense decreased $29.32 million or 17.09% froff m the third quarter of 2020 primarily due to a
decrease in employee compensation due to lower employee incentives and commissions related to mortgage banking
productd ion as well as a lower employee headcount. For the third quarter of 2021, income tax expense was $23.60 million as
compared to $28.97 million forff the third quarter of 2020 primarily dued to lower earnings and a lower effective tax rate. For
the quarters ended Septembem r 30, 2021 and 2020, United's effective tax rate was 20.39% and 21.82%, respectively.

Net income for the fourth quaq rter of 2021 was $73.85 million or $0.56 per diluted share as compam red to earnirr ngs of
$92.37 million or $0.71 per diluted share for the fourff th quarter of 2020. Net interest income forff the fouff rth quarter of
2021was $183.68 million, which was a decrease of $8.31 million or 4.33% from the fourth quarter of 2020. The $8.31
million decrease in net interest income occurred becausea total interest income decreased $13.72 million while total interest
expense decreased $5.41 million from the fourtff h quartq er of 2020. Tax-equivalent net interest income, which adjusts for the
tax-favored status of income from certain loans and investments, forff the fouff rth quarter of 2021 was $184.71 million, a
decrease of $8.32 million or 4.31% from the fourff th quarter of 2020. Average earning assets forff the fouff rth quarter of 2021
increased $1.81 billion or 7.84% fromff the fourff th quarter of 2020 dued to a $862.00 million or 4.72% increase in average net
loans, including loans held for sale, a $1.84 billion or 104.14% increase in average short-term investments and a $833.62
million or 27.07% increase in average investment securities. For the fourth quarter of 2021, the provision forff credit losses
was a benefit of $7.41 million as compared to an expense of $16.75 million for the fouff rth quartq er of 2020. The decrease in
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the provision in relation to the prior year quarter was driven by the impact of improvm ements in the reasonable and
suppou rtabla e forecastff s of futff urtt e macroeconomic conditions on the estimate of expected credit losses under CECL partially
offseff t by a provision for loan losses of $12.29 million recorded on purchased non-credit deteriorated (�non-PCD�) loans
from Community Bt ankers Trust. Noninterest income for the fourth quarter of 2021 was $54.05 million, which was a
decrease of $40.03 million or 42.55% from the fourth quaq rter of 2020. The lower amount of noninterest income was dued
mainly to a decline of $43.45 million in income from mortgage banking activities due to a lower volume of mortgage loan
originations and sales in the secondary mrr arket.rr Noninterest expense for the fourth quarter of 2021 was $151.79 million, a
decrease of $4.33 million or 2.77% from the fourtff h quarter of 2020. In particular, employee compensation decreased $5.46
million due to lower employee commissions, incentives and overtime related to mortgage banking production partially
offset by $2.53 million of merger-related expenses fromff the Community Bankers Trustrr acquisition as well as additional
employees from the acquisition. OREO expense decreased $2.07 million due to a decrease in net losses on the sale of
OREO properties and fewer declines in the faiff r value of OREO properties. Partially offsetting the decreases in noninterest
expense were increases in data processing expense of $3.57 million primarily due to $3.47 million of merger-related
expenses associated with the Community Bankers Trust acquisition. Other expense increased $1.70 million driven by an
increase in the reserve for unfunded loan commitments of $2.80 million, including $844 thousand related to loan
commitments acquired fromff Community Bankers Trust.

Additional quarterly financial data forff 2021 and 2020 may be found in Note Z, Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The Effectff of Inflatff ion

The Effect of Regulatory Policies and Economic Conditions

United�s business and earnings are affected by the monetary arr nd fiscal policies of the United States government, its
agencies and various other governmrr ental regulatory ar uthorities. The Federal Reserverr Board regulates the suppu ly of money
in order to influeff nce general economic conditions. Among the instruments of monetary policy available to the Federal
Reserve Board are (i) conducting open market operations in United States government obligations, (ii) changing the
discount rate on financial institution borrowings, (iii) imposing or changing reserve requirements against financial
institution deposits, and (iv) restricting certain borrowings and imposing or changing reserve requirements against certain
borrowings by financial institutions and their affiliates. These methods are used in varying degrees and combim nations to
affectff directly the availability of bank loans and deposits, as well as the interest rates charged on loansa and paid on deposits.

United�s business and earnings are also affected by general and local economic conditions. Certain credit marker ts
can experience difficff ult conditions and volatility. Downtut rns in the credit market can ca ause a decline in the value of certain
loans and securities, a reducd tion in liquidity and a tightening of credit. A downturn irr n the credit market often signals a
weakening economy that can cause job losses and thus distress on borrowers and their ability tt o repay loans. Uncertairr nties
in credit markets and the economy present significant challenges forff the finff ancial services indusd try.

United's income statements generally reflectff the effectff s of inflation. Since interest rates, loan demand and deposit
levels are impacted by inflation, the resulting changes in the interest-sensitive assets and liabilities are included in net
interest income. Similarly,yy operating expenses such as salaries, rents andmaintenance include changing prices resulting
from inflation. One item that would not reflect inflationary changes is depreciation expense. Subsequent to the
acquisition of depreciable assets, inflation causes price levels to rise; therefore, historically presented dollar values do
not reflect this inflationary condition. While recent economic conditions in the United States have seen improving trends
since the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, there can be no assurance that this improvement will continue. Economic
and inflationary pressure on consumers and uncertainty regarding continuing economic improvement could result in
changes in consumer and business spending, borrowing and savings habits. Such conditions could have a material
adverse effectff on the credit quality of our loans and our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Management will monitor the impact of inflation as conditions warrant.
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Regulatory policies and economic conditions have had a significant effectff on the operating results of financial
institutions in the past and are expected to continue to do so in the futff ure; however, United cannot accurately predict the
nature, timing or extent of any effectff such policies or economic conditions may have on its future business and earnings.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

In the opinion of management, United maintains liquiq dity that is sufficff ient to satisfy its depositors� requirements
and the credit needs of its customers. Like all banks, United depends upon its ability to renew maturing deposits and other
liabila ities on a daily basis and to acquireq new fundsff in a variety of markerr ts. A significant source of funds available to United
is �core deposits�. Core deposits include certain demand deposits, statement and special savings and NOW accounts. These
deposits are relatively stable, and they are the lowest cost source of fundff s available to United. Short-term borrowings have
also been a significant source of funds. These include federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to
repurchase as well as advances from the FHLB. Repurchase agreements represent funds which are obtained as the result of a
competitive bidding process.

Liquid assets are cash and those items readily convertible to cash. All banks must maintain suffiff cient balances of
cash and near-cash items to meet the day-to-day demands of customers and United�s cash needs. Other than cash and due
from banks, the available for sale securities portfoliff o and maturing loans are the primary sources of liquidity.

The goal of liquidity management is to ensure the abia lity to access funding which enables United to efficiently
satisfy the cash floff w requiq rements of depositors and borrorr wers and meet United's cash needs. Liquidity it s managed by
monitoring funds� availability fromff a number of primary sources. Substantial funff ding is availablea from cash and cash
equivalents, unused short-term borrowing and a geographically dispersed network of branches providing access to a
diversified and substantial retail deposit market.

Short-term needs can be met through a wide array of outside sources such as correspondent and downstream
correspondent federff al funds and utilization of Federal Home Loan Bank advances.

Other sources of liquidity at vailabla e to United to provide long-term as well as short-term funding alternatives, in
addition to FHLB advances, are long-term certificff ates of deposit, lines of credit, borrowings that are secured by bank
premises or stock of United's subsidiaries and issuances of trustr preferredrr securities. In the normal course of business,
United through its Asset Liabia lity Committee evaluates these as well as other alternative funding strategies that may be
utilized to meet short-term and long-term funding needs. See Notes L and M, Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Cash flows provided by operations in 2021 were $609.54 million due mainly to net income of $367.74 million for
the year of 2021. In 2020, cash flows provided by operations were $140.45 million due mainly to net income of $289.02
million for the year of 2020. In 2021, net cash of $15.65 million was provided by investing activities which was primarily
due to net loan repayments of $882.15 million and net cash of $39.42 million acquirq ed in the Community Bankers Trust
merger partially offset by $813.94 million of purchases of investment securities over proceeds from sales of investment
securities and the purchase of $85.00 million of bank-owned life insurance policies. In 2020, net cash of $137.59 million
was provided by investing activities which was primarily due to net cash of $629.11 million provided in the acquisition of
Carolina Financial and $123.00 million of proceeds from sales of investment securities over purchases. Partially offsetting
these cash inflows from investing activities was loan growth of $619.98 million, mainly from the PPP loans. During the
year of 2021, net cash of $923.91 million was provided by financing activities due primarily to net growth of $1.25 billion
in deposits. This source of cash from funding activities was partially offset by net repaymaa ent of $40.21 million in short-term
borrowings, net repayment of $97.79 million in long-term Frr HLB advances and cash dividends paid of $181.28 million for
year of 2021. During the year of 2020, net cash of $1.09 billion was provided by finff ancing activities due primarily to net
growth of $2.86 billion in deposits. This source of cash from funding activities was partially offset by net repayment of
$232.35 million in short-term borrowings, net repayment of $1.35 billion in long-term FHLB advances and cash dividends
paid of $162.71 million forff year of 2020. The net effect of the cash flowff activities was an increase in cash and cash
equivalents of $1.55 billion for the year of 2021 as compam red to an increase in cash and cash equivalents of $1.37 billion for
the year of 2020. See the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

United enters into derivative contracts, mainly to protect against adverse interest rate movements on the value of
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certain assets or liabilities, under which it is required to either pay cash to or receive cash fromff counterparties depending on
changes in interest rates. Derivative contracts are carried at fair value and not notional value on the consolidated balance
sheet and therefore do not represent the amounts that may ultimately be paid under these contracts. Further discussion of
derivative instruments is included in Note S, Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

United is also a party to finaff ncial instruments with off-balance-sheetff risk in the normal course of business to meet
the financing needs of its customers. These finff ancial instruments include loan commitments and standbyd letters of credit.
United's maximum exposure to credit loss in thet event of nonpen rformanca e by thet counterpartrr y ttt o the financial instrumrr ent for
the loan commitments and standby letters of credit is the contractuat l or notional amount of those instrumrr ents. United uses
the same policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet instruments. Since
many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not
necessarily represent future cash requirements.

The following table details the amounts of significant commitments and letters of credit as of Decembem r 31, 2021:

(In thousands) Amount
Commitments to extend credit:

Revolving open-end secured by 1-4 residential $ 827,034
Credit card and personal revolving lines 167,799
Commercial 6,424,509

Total unused commitments $ 7,419,342
Financial standby letters of credit $ 68,379
Perforff mance standby letters of credit 96,364
Commercial letters of credit 14,774

Total letters of credit $ 179,517

Commitments generally have fixeff d expiration dates or other termination clauses, generally within one year, and
may require the payment of a fee.ff Further discussion of commitments is included in Note R, Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

United anticipates it can meet its obligations over the next 12 months and has no material commitments for capital
expenditures.t There are no known trends, demands, commitments, or events that will result in or that are reasonably likely
to result in United's liquidity increasing or decreasing in any material way. United also has lines of credit available. See
Notes L and M to the accompanying unaudia ted Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more details regarding the
amounts available to United under lines of credit.

The Asset Liabia lity Committee monitors liquidity to ascertain that a liquidity position within certain prescribed
parameters is maintained. No changes are anticipated in the policies of United's Asset Liability Committee.

United�s capital position is finaff ncially sound. United seeks to maintain a proper relationship between capital and
total assets to support growth and sustain earnings. United has historically generated attractive returns on shareholders�
equity. United is well-capitalized based upon regulatory grr uidelines. United�s risk-based capital ratio is 15.43% at December
31, 2021 while its Common Equitq y Tt ier 1 capital, Tier 1 capital and leverage ratios are 13.39%, 13.39% and 10.95%,
respectively. The December 31, 2021 ratios reflects United�s election of a five-year transition provision, allowed by the
Federal Reserverr Board and other federal banking agencies in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, to delay forff two years
the full impact of CECL on regulatory capia tal, followed by a three-year transition period. The regulatory rrr equirements for a
well-capita alized finff ancial institutitt on are a risk-based capital ratiaa o of 10.0%, a Common Equiqq ty Tier 1 capital ratio of 6.5%, a
Tier 1 capital ratio of 8.0% and a leverage ratio of 5.0%.

Total shareholders' equitq y wtt as $4.72 billion at Decemberm 31, 2021, increasing $421.01 million or 9.80% from year-
end 2020 as a result mainly of the Community Bankers Trust acquisition and earnirr ngs net of dividends. Common stock
increased $18.88 million or 5.64% due to 7,135,771 shares issued in the Community Bt ankers Trust acquisition. Surplus
increased $255.48 million or 8.83% mainly due to the Community Bankers Trust acquisition. Retained earnings increased
$185.38 million or 15.38% due to earnings net of dividends for the year. Accumulated other comprehensive income
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decreased $27.26 million due mainly to an after-tax decrease in the faiff r value of availablea for sale securities. Treasury stock
increased $11.48 million or 7.21% due to the repurchase of 306,204 shares of United common stock under a stock
repurchase plan approved by United�s Board of directors in Novembem r of 2019.

United's equity to assets ratio was 16.09% at December 31, 2021 as compared to 16.41% at December 31, 2020.
The primary capia tal ratio, capital and reserves to total assets and reserverr s, was 16.79% at Decemberm 31, 2021 as compared
to 17.22% at December 31, 2020. United's average equity to average asset ratio was 16.26% at December 31, 2021 as
compared to 16.39% at December 31, 2020. All of these finff ancial measurements reflect a finff ancially sound position.

During the fouff rth quarter of 2021, United�s Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of $0.36 per share.
Dividends per share of $1.41 forff the year of 2021 represented an increase over the $1.40 per share paid forff 2020. Total cash
dividends declared to common shareholders were $182.36 million forff the year of 2021 as compared to $171.88 million forff
the year of 2020. The year 2021 was the forty-eighth consecutive year of dividend increases to United shareholders.

Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The objeb ctive of United�s Asset/Liability Management function is to maintain consistent growth in net interest
income within United�s policy guidelines. This objective is accomplished through the management of balance sheet
liquiq dity at nd interest rate risk exposures due to changes in economic conditions, interest rate levels and customer
preferences.

Interest Rate Risk

Management considers interest rate risk to be United�s most significant market risk. Interest rate risk is the
exposure to adverse changes in United�s net interest income as a result of changes in interest rates. United�s earnings are
largely dependent on the effective management of interest rate risk.

Management of interest rate risk focuses on maintaining consistent growth in net interest income within Board-
approved policy limits. United�s Asset/Liatt bila ity Mt anagement Committee (�ALCO�), which includes senior management
representatives and reports to thet Board of Directors, monitors and manaa ges interest rate risk to maintain an acceptable level
of change to net interest income as a result of changes in interest rates. Policy established forff interest rate risk is stated in
terms of the change in net interest income over a one-year and two-year horizon given an immediate and sustained increase
or decrease in interest rates. The current limits approved by the Board of Directors are structured on a staged basis with
each stage requiring specific actions.

United emplm oys a variety ot f measurement techniques to identinn fy and manage its exposure to changing interest rates.
One such technique utilizes an earnings simulation model to analyze the sensitivity of net interest income to movements in

interest rates. The model is based on actualtt cash flows and repricing characteristics for on and off-balanff ce sheet instruments
and incorporates markerr t-based assumptm ions regarding the impact of changing interest rates on thet prepayment rate of certain
assets and liabilities. The model also includes executive management projections for activity levels in producdd t lines offered
by United. Assumptions based on the historical behavior of deposit rates and balancesa in relation to changes in interest rates
are also incorporr rated into thet model. Rate scenarios could involve parallel or nonpan rallel shifts in the yield curve, depending
on historical, current, and expected conditions, as well as the need to capta urett any material effects of explicit or embedded
options. These assumptions are inherently unceu rtain and, as a result, the model canna ot precisely measure net interest income
or precisely predict the impact of fluctuatt ions in interest rates on net interest income. Actual results will differ from
simulated results due to timing, magnitudet and frequeq ncy of interest rate changes as well as changes in market conditions
and management�s strategies.

Interest sensitive assets and liabilities are defined as those assets or liabia lities that maturtt e or are repriced within a
designated time fraff me. The principal funff ction of managing interest rate risk is to maintain an appropriate relationship
between those assets and liabia lities that are sensitive to changing marker t interest rates. The difference between rate sensitive
assets and rate sensitive liabila ities for specified periods of time is known as the "GAP." Earnings-simulation analysis
captures not only the potential of these interest sensitive assets and liabia lities to maturett or reprice, but also the probabila ityt
that they will do so. Moreover, earnings-simulation analysis considers the relative sensitivities of these balance sheet items
and projects their behavior over an extended period of time. United closely monitors the sensitivity of its assets and
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liabia lities on an on-going basis and projects the effect of various interest rate changes on its net interest margin.

The folff lowing table shows United�s estimated earnings sensitivity profilff e as of Decembem r 31, 2021 and Decembem r
31, 2020:

Change in Interest Rates
(basis points)

Percentage Change in Net Interest Income
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

+200 4.61% (4.32%)
+100 2.70% (2.61%)
-100 (0.98%) 0.03%
-200 (2.42%) (0.05%)

At December 31, 2021, given an immediate, sustained 100 basis point upward shock to the yield curverr used in the
simulation model, net interest income forff United is estimated to increase by 2.70% over one year as compared to a decrease
of 2.61% at December 31, 2020. A 200 basis point immediate, sustained upward shock in the yield curve would increase
net interest income by an estimated 4.61% over one year as of Decemberm 31, 2021, as compared to a decrease of 4.32% as
of December 31, 2020. A 100 basis point immediate, sustained downward shock in the yield curve would decrease net
interest income by an estimated 0.98% over one year as of December 31, 2021 as compared to an increase of 0.03%, over
one year as of December 31, 2020. A 200 basis point immediate, sustained downward shock in the yield curve would
decrease net interest income by an estimated 2.42% over one year as of Decembem r 31, 2021 as compared to a decrease of
0.05% over one year as of December 31, 2020.

In addition to the one year earnina gs sensitivity analysis, a twott -year analysis is also performed. Compamm red to the one
year analysis, United is projected to show improved performance in year two withit n thet upward rate shock scenarios. Given
an immediate, sustained 100 basis point upwau rd shock to the yield curverr used in the simulation model, net interest income
for United is estimated to increase by 6.03% in year two as of December 31, 2021. A 200 basis point immediate, sustained
upward shock in the yield curve would increase net interest income by an estimated 10.21% in year two as of Decemberm 31,
2021. A 100 basis point immediate, sustained downward shock in the yield curve would decrease net interest income by ana
estimated 6.75% in year two as of Decembem r 31, 2021. A 200 basis point immediate, sustained downward shock in the yield
curve would decrease net interest income by an estimated 8.71% in year two as of December 31, 2021.

This analysis does not include the potential increased refinancing activities, which should lessen the negative
impact on net income fromff falling rates. While it is unlikely marketrr rates would immediately move 100 or 200 basis points
upward or downward on a sustained basis, this is another tool used by management and the Board of Directors to gauge
interest rate risk. All of these estimated changes in net interest income are and were within thet policy guidelines establa ished
by the Board of Directors.

To further aid in interest rate management, United's subsiu diary br ank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank
(�FHLB�). The use of FHLB advances provides United with a low risk means of matching maturities of earnirr ng assets and
interest-bearing fundsff to achieve a desired interest rate spread over the life of the earning assets. In addition, United uses
credit with large regional banks and trust preferred securities to provide funding.

As part of its interest rate risk management strategy, United may use derivative instruments to protect against
adverse price or interest rate movements on the value of certain assets or liabilities and on future cash flows. These
derivatives commonly consist of interest rate swapsa , caps, floors, collars, futures, forward contracts, written and purchased
options. Interest rate swapsa obligate two parties to exchange one or more payments generally calculated with rt eferff ence to a
fixed or variabla e rate of interest applied to the notional amount. United accounts for its derivative activities in accordance
with the provisions of ASC Topic 815, �Derivatives and Hedging.�

Extension Risk

A key feature of most mortgage loans is thet ability of thet borrowr er to repay principal earlier than scheduled. This is
called a prepayment. Prepayments arise primarily dued to sale of the underlying property, refinancing, or foreclff osure. In
general, declining interest rates tend to increase prepayments, and rising interest rates tend to slow prepayments. Like othert
fixed-income securities, when interest rates rise, the value of mortgage- related securities generally declines. The rate of
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prepayments on underlying mortgages will affectff the price and volatility ot f mortgarr ge-related securities and may shortenrr or
extend the effeff ctive maturity of the security beyond what was anticipated at the time of purchase. If interest rates rise,
United�s holdings of mortgage-related securities may experience reduced returns if the borrowers of the underlying
mortgages pay off their mortgages later than anticipated. This is generally referred to as extension risk.

At December 31, 2021, United�s mortgage related securities portfoliff o had an amortized cost of $1.8 billion, of
which approximately $813.6 million or 44% were fixed rate collateralized mortgarr ge obligations (�CMOs�). These fixedff rate
CMOs consisted primarily of planned amortization class (�PACs�), sequential-pay and accretion directed (�VADMs�)
bonds having an average life off f approximately 4.4 years and a weighted average yield of 1.76%, under current projeco ted
prepayment assumptions. These securities are expected to have moderate extension risk in a rising rate environment.
Current models show that an immediate, sustained upwu ard shock of 300 basis points, the average life of these securities
would only extend to 6.4 years. The projected price decline of the fixed rate CMO portfolio in rates up 300 basis points
would be 15%, or less than the price decline of a 7-year treasury note. By compam rison, the price decline of a 30-year 2%
coupou n mortgrr age backed security (t �MBS�) in rates higher by 300 basis points would be approximately 22.8%.

United had approximately $593.2 million in fixed rate Commercial Mortgage Backed Securities (CMBS) with a
projected yield of 2.08% and a projected average life of 5.2 years on December 31, 2021. This portfrr olff io consisted primarily
of Freddie Mac Multifamily K securities and Fannie Mae Delegated Underwriting and Servirr cing (�DUS�) securities with a
weighted average maturity (�WAM�) of 8 years.

United had approximately $9 million in 15-year mortgage backed securities with a projecto ed yield of 2.71% and a
projeo cted average life of 2.9 years as of December 31, 2021. This portfoliff o consisted of seasoned 15-year mortgage paper
with a weighted average loan age (�WALA�) of 9.2 years and a weighted average maturity (�WAM�) of 7.8 years.

United had approximately $211.3 million in 20-year mortgage backed securities with a projeco ted yield of 1.51%
and a projeo cted average life off f 6.2 years on December 31, 2021. This portfolio consisted of seasoned 20-year mortgage
paper with a weighted average loan age (�WALA�) of 1.6 years and a weighted average maturity (�WAM�) of 18.3 years.

United had approximately $132.4 million in 30-year mortgage backed securities with a projected yield of 2.30%
and a projected average life of 5 years on December 31, 2021. This portfolio consisted of seasoned 30-year mortgage papeaa r
with a weighted average loan age (�WALA�) of 4.1 years and a weighted average maturity (�WAM�) of 23.4 years.

The remaining 4% of the mortgage related securities portfolio on Decemberm 31, 2021, included floating rate CMO,
CMBS and mortgage backed securities.
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MANAGEMENT�S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of United Bankshares, Inc. (thet �Companm y�) is responsible forff establa ishing and maintaining effective
internalr control over finff ancial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The
Company�s internal control over finff ancial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance to the Compam ny�s
management and board of directors regarding the preparation and faiff r presentation of publisu hed finff ancial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Therefore,ff even thost e systems determined to be effeff ctive can provide only reasonable assuranceaa with rt espect
to financial statement preparation and presentation.

Management assessed the effeff ctiveness of the Companm y�s internal controlt over financial reporting as of Decemberm
31, 2021. In making this assessment, management used thet criteria set forff th by the Committee of Sponsoring Organiza ations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control � Integrated Framework (rr 2013 framework). Based on our
assessment, we believe that, as of December 31, 2021, the Company�s internal control over finff ancial reporting is effectff ive
based on those criteria.

Ernst & Young LLP (�Ernst & Young�), the independent registered publiu c accounting firm who audited the
Company�s consolidated finaff ncial statements, has also issued an attestation report orr n the effectiveness of the Company�s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021. Ernst & Young�s report on the effectiveness of the
Company�s internal control over financial reporting appea ars on the following page.

Richard M. Adams, Chairman of the W. Mark Tatterson, Executive Vice President
Board and Chief Executive Officerff and Chief Financial Officer

March 1, 2022
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of United Bankshares, Inc.

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited United Bankshares, Inc. and subsidiaries� internal control over finff ancial reporting as of December 31, 2021,
based on criteria established in Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). In our opinion, United Bankshares, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
Company) maintained, in all material respects, effective internar l control over finff ancial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based
on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated
statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in shareholders� equity and cash flowsff for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes and our report dated March 1, 2022 expressed an unqualifieff d opinion
thereon.

Basis for Opinion

The Company�s management is responsible for maintaining effeff ctive internal control over financial reporting and forff its
assessment of the effectiveff ness of internalrr control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management�s Report orr n
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company�s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be
independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federaff l securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects.

Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over finff ancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis forff our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company�s internar l control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliabia lity of financial reporting and the preparation of finff ancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company�s internal control over financial reportirr ng includes thost e policies and procedurdd es that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary trr o permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company�s
assets that could have a material effect on the financiaff l stataa ements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subjeb ct to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Charleston, West Virginia
March 1, 2022
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Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of United Bankshares, Inc.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of United Bankshares, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of
Decembem r 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in sharea holders'
equity and cash floff ws for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes (collectively
referredff to as the �consolidated finff ancial statements�). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Company at Decemberm 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2021, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the Company�s internalr control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on criteria established in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadwadd y Commission (2013
framework) and our report dated March 1, 2022 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Adoption of New Accounting Standard

As discussed in Notes A and F to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for credit
losses as of January 1rr , 2020. As explained below, auditing the company�s allowance for credit losses was a critical audit matter.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility ott f the Compam ny�s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company�s finff ancial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required
to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether thet financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether duedd to errorr r
or fraud. Our audits included performiff ng procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether dued to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the finff ancial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that was
communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are
material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The
communication of the critical audit matter does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and
we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the
accounts or disclosures to which they relate.
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Allowance forff Loan Losses

The Company�s loan portfolio totaled $18 billion as of December 31, 2021, and the associated allowance forff
loan losses (ALL) for the loan portfolio was $216 million. As discussed above and in Notes A and F to the
consolidated finff ancial statements, the ALL is an estimate of the expected credit losses on loans at amortized
cost to present the net amount expected to be collected as of the balance sheet date. The ALL is based on the
credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset. Management pools its loans based on similar risk
characteristics and assigns an appropriate calculation method to estimate the expected credit losses. For loans
that do not share risk characteristics, management evaluates the ALL on an individual basis based on the
present value of expected futureff cash flows using the loan�s effective interest rate, or as a practical expedient,
the faiff r value of the collateral if the loan is collateral-dependent. For loans not specifically reviewed on an
individual basis, management measures the ALL using a probability of default/loss given default method or
cohort method based on portfrr olff io segment. Management also records quaqq litative adjustments to expected credit
losses for diffeff rences in current loan-specific risk characteristics such as diffeff rences in underwrrr iting standards,
portfolio mix, delinquency level or term as well as reasonable and supportable forecast adjustments for changes
in macroeconomic and environmental conditions, such as changes in unemployment rates, gross domestic
product or other relevant factff ors, that have not been fully captured in the allowance calculation.

Auditing management�s estimate used in determining the ALL forff the loan portfolio involved a high degree of
subjectu ivity in evaluating management�s determination of the forecast selection used to derive the reasonable
and supportable forecast qualitative adjustment.

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of controls over the
Company�s ALL process forff the loan portfolio. Controls tested included, among others, those over the risk
rating process, the identification of indicators of impairment, management�s review and approval of the
calculations used to determine the ALL, including the underlying data and data inputs and outputs of those
calculations, and management�s evaluation and review of the qualq itative adjustments, including thet reasonablea
and supportable foreff cast qualitative adjustment.

To test the Company�s reasonable and supportable forecast qualitative adjustment for the loan portfolio, we
tested the underlying data used in the estimate calculation to determine it was accurate, complete and relevant.
Further, we evaluated management�s basis for the adjustment in relation to changes in economic conditions and
forecasts. Our procedures included evaluating management�s inputs and assumptions used in determining the
qualitative adjustment by comparing the information to internal and external source data including, among
others, the economic forecasts utilized by the Company and third-partyrr economic outlook reportsrr . We involved
our internal modeling specialists in evaluating the model methodology, performaff nce and governance. In
addition, we evaluated the overall ALL amount, inclusive of the qualitative adjusd tments, and whether the
amount appropriately reflects losses expected in the loan portfolios as of the consolidated balance sheet date.
For example, we evaluated the Company�s analysis of their historical loss experience and peer losses to the
Company�s recorded ALL to test the ALL in totality.tt We also reviewed subsequent events and transactions and
considered whether they corroborate or contradict the Company�s conclusion.

We have served as the Company�s auditor since 1986.
Charleston, West Virginia
March 1, 2022

Description
of the Matter

How We
Addressed the
Matter in Our
Audit
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
UNITED BANKSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Dollars in thousands,dd except par value) December 31 December 31

2021 2020
Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 282,878 $ 297,369
Interest-bearing deposits with other banks 3,474,365 1,910,876
Federal funds sold 927 823
Total cash and cash equivalents 3,758,170 2,209,068
Securities available for sale at estimated fair value (amortized cost-$4,031,494 at December 31, 2021 and $2,868,346

at December 31, 2020, allowance for credit losses of $0 at December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020) 4,042,699 2,953,359
Securities held to maturity, net of allowance for credit losses of $19 at December 31, 2021 and $23 at December 31,

2020 (estimated fair value-$1,020 at Decembem r 31, 2021 and $1,212 at December 31, 2020) 1,001 1,212
Equity securities at estimated fair value 12,404 10,718
Other investment securities 239,645 220,895
Loans held for sale (measured using fairff value option-$504,416 at December 31, 2021 and $698,341 at December 31,

2020)
504,416 718,937

Loans and leases 18,051,307 17,622,583
Less: Unearned income (27,659) (31,170)

Loans and leases, net of unearned income 18,023,648 17,591,413
Less: Allowance for loan and lease losses (216,016) (235,830)

Net loans and leases 17,807,632 17,355,583
Bank premises and equipment 197,220 175,824
Operating lease right-of-useff assets 81,942 69,520
Goodwill 1,886,494 1,796,848
Mortgage servicing rights, net of valuation allowance of $883 and $1,383 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively 23,144 20,955

    Accrued interest receivable, net of allowance for credit losses of $8 and $250 at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively 64,512 66,832

Other assets 709,623 584,496

TOTAL ASSETS $ 29,328,902 $ 26,184,247
Liabilities
Deposits:

Noninterest-bearing $ 8,980,547 $ 7,405,260
Interest-bearing 14,369,716 13,179,900

Total deposits 23,350,263 20,585,160
Borrowings:

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 128,844 142,300
Federal Home Loan Bank (�FHLB�) borrowings 532,199 584,532
Other long-term borrowings 285,195 279,837

Reserve forff lending-related commitments 31,442 19,250
Operating lease liabilities 86,703 73,213
Accruedr expenses and other liabilities 195,628 202,335

TOTAL LIABILITIES 24,610,274 21,886,627
Shareholders� Equity
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value; Authorized-50,000,000 shares, none issued 0 0
Common stock, $2.50 par value; Authorized-200,000,000 shares; issued-141,360,266 and 133,809,374 at December

31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively, including 4,967,508 and 4,620,867 shares in treasury at December
31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively 353,402 334,523

Surplus 3,149,955 2,894,471
Retained earnings 1,390,777 1,205,395
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) gain (4,888) 22,370
Treasury stock, at cost (170,618) (159,139)

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY 4,718,628 4,297,620

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY $ 29,328,902 $ 26,184,247
See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
UNITED BANKSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) Year Ended December 31
2021 2020 2019

Interest income
Interest and fees on loans and leases $724,493 $ 721,829 $ 666,950
Interest on federal funds sold and other short-term investments 8,734 9,780 21,338
Interest and dividends on securities:

Taxable 54,678 61,808 70,789
Tax-exempt 7,212 4,965 3,485

Total interest income 795,117 798,382 762,562
Interest expense
Interest on deposits 41,620 78,579 135,649
Interest on short-term borrowings 693 1,027 2,347
Interest on long-term borrowings 10,070 29,003 46,644

Total interest expense 52,383 108,609 184,640
Net interest income 742,734 689,773 577,922

Provision for credit losses (23,970) 106,562 21,313
Net interest income after provision for credit losses 766,704 583,211 556,609

Other income
Fees froff m trust services 16,552 13,903 13,873
Fees froff m brokerage services 15,559 11,758 10,136
Fees froff m deposit services 38,689 34,833 33,768
Bankcard feesff and merchant discounts 5,485 4,066 4,674
Other service charges, commissions, and fees 2,990 2,596 2,241
Income from bank-owned life insurance 6,840 7,217 7,339
Income from mortgage banking activities 171,692 266,094 76,951
Mortgage loan servicing income 9,605 6,213 0
Net gain on the sale of bank premises 0 2,229 0
Net investment securities gains 2,676 3,155 175
Other income 8,004 2,682 1,327

Total other income 278,092 354,746 150,484
Other expense
Employee compensation 279,970 274,661 173,962
Employee benefitsff 53,871 48,870 35,745
Net occupancy expense 42,034 41,303 34,850
Other real estate owned (�OREO�) expense 5,388 5,748 5,336
Equipment expense 25,979 20,861 14,210
Data processing expense 31,446 35,420 22,232
Mortgage loan servicing expense and impairment 12,246 9,431 423
Bankcard processing expense 1,706 1,735 1,877
FDIC insurance expense 8,346 10,132 8,070
FHLB prepayment penalties 15 10,385 5,105
Other expense 120,942 119,671 80,844

Total other expense 581,943 578,217 382,654

Income before income taxes 462,853 359,740 324,439
Income taxes 95,115 70,717 64,340

Net income $ 367,738 $ 289,023 $ 260,099
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
UNITED BANKSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) Year Ended December 31
2021 2020 2019

Earnings per common share:
Basic $ 2.84 $ 2.40 $ 2.55
Diluted $ 2.83 $ 2.40 $ 2.55

Dividends per common share $ 1.41 $ 1.40 $ 1.37

Average outstanding shares:
Basic 129,276,452 120,017,247 101,585,599
Diluted 129,512,853 120,090,232 101,852,577

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
UNITED BANKSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Dollars in thousands) Year Ended December 31
2021 2020 2019

Net income $ 367,738 $ 289,023 $ 260,099

Change in net unrealized (loss) gain on available-for-ff sale (�AFS�)
securities, net of tax (56,611) 57,249 26,245

Change in net unrealized gain on cash flow hedge, net of tax 13,001 3,358 0
Change in definff ed benefit pension plan, net of tax 16,352 (3,368) (4,145)

Comprehensive income, net of tax $ 340,480 $ 346,262 $ 282,199

See notes to consolidated financial statements



76

See notes to consolidated financialff statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
UNITED BANKSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Dollars in thousands, exee cept per share datadd )a Accumulated

Common Stock Other Total
Par Retained Comprehensive Treasury Shareholders�

Shares Value Surplus Earnings (Loss) Income Stock Equity
Balance at January 1, 2019 105,239,121 $ 263,098 $2,134,462 $ 1,013,037 $ (57,019) $ (101,954) $ 3,251,624
Cumulative effect of adopting Accounting

Standard Update 2016-02 0 0 0 (1,049) 0 0 (1,049)
Reclass due to adopting Accounting Standard

Update 2017-12 0 0 0 0 50 0 50
Comprehensive income:

Net income 0 0 0 260,099 0 0 260,099
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 0 0 0 0 22,100 0 22,100
Total comprehensive income, net of tax 282,199

Stock based compensation expense 0 0 4,914 0 0 0 4,914
Purchase of treasury stock (1,020,864 shares) 0 0 0 0 0 (35,673) (35,673)
Distribution of treasury srr tock for deferred
compensation plan (27 shares) 0 0 0 0 0 1 1

Cash dividends ($1.37 per share) 0 0 0 (139,508) 0 0 (139,508)
Grant of restricted stock (126,427 shares) 126,427 316 (316) 0 0 0 0
Forfeitff ure of restricted stock (4,149 shares) 0 0 162 0 0 (162) 0
Common stock options exercised (128,742
shares) 128,742 322 953 0 0 0 1,275
Balance at December 31, 2019 105,494,290 263,736 2,140,175 1,132,579 (34,869) (137,788) 3,363,833
Cumulative effect of adopting Accounting

Standard Update 2016-13 0 0 0 (44,331) 0 0 (44,331)
Comprehensive income:

Net income 0 0 0 289,023 0 0 289,023
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 0 0 0 0 57,239 0 57,239
Total comprehensive income, net of tax 346,262

Stock based compensation expense 0 0 5,980 0 0 0 5,980
Acquisition of Carolina Financial Corporation

(28,031,501 shares) 28,031,501 70,079 747,751 0 0 0 817,830
Purchase of treasury stock (679,331 shares) 0 0 0 0 0 (21,317) (21,317)
Distribution of treasury srr tock for deferred
compensation plan (29 shares) 0 0 0 0 0 1 1

Cash dividends ($1.40 per share) 0 0 0 (171,876) 0 0 (171,876)
Grant of restricted stock (182,847 shares) 182,847 457 (457) 0 0 0 0
Forfeiff ture of restricted stock (946 shares) 0 0 35 0 0 (35) 0
Common stock options exercised (100,736
shares) 100,736 251 987 0 0 0 1,238
Balance at December 31, 2020 133,809,374 334,523 2,894,471 1,205,395 22,370 (159,139) 4,297,620
Comprehensive income:

Net income 0 0 0 367,738 0 0 367,738
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax 0 0 0 0 (27,258) 0 (27,258)
Total comprehensive income, net of tax 340,480

Stock based compensation expense 0 0 8,018 0 0 0 8,018
Acquisition of Community Bankers Trust

Corporation (7,135,771 shares) 7,135,771 17,839 242,440 0 0 0 260,279
Purchase of treasury stock (339,241 shares) 0 0 0 0 0 (11,211) (11,211)
Cash dividends ($1.41 per share) 0 0 0 (182,356) 0 0 (182,356)
Grant of restricted stock (182,344 shares) 182,344 456 (456) 0 0 0 0
Forfeiturff e of restricted stock (7,400 shares) 0 0 268 0 0 (268) 0
Common stock options exercised (232,777

shares) 232,777 584 5,214 0 0 0 5,798
Balance at December 31, 2021 141,360,266 $ 353,402 $3,149,955 $ 1,390,777 $ (4,888) $ (170,618) $ 4,718,628
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
UNITED BANKSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(D(( ollars irr n thousands)s Year Ended December 31
2021 2020 2019

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 367,738 $ 289,023 $ 260,099
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Provision for credit losses (23,970) 106,562 21,313
Amortization and accretion (8,672) (29,900) (29,771)
Loss on sales of bank premises, OREO, leases and equipment 460 1,214 294
Write-downs on bank premises, OREO, leases and equipment 5,100 3,803 3,618
Depreciation 16,583 13,464 9.329
(Gain) loss on securities (2,676) (3,155) (175)
Loans originated for sale (6,190,675) (6,528,080) (2,574,434)
Proceeds fromff sales of loans 6,566,304 6,521,198 2,513,717
Gain on sales of loans (161,108) (258,784) (76,951)
Mortgage repurchase loan losses paid, net of recoveries (1,188) (888) 0
Stock-based compensation 8,018 5,980 4,914
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation arrangements 303 351 223
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 3,015 (174) 14,205
Amortization of tax credit investments 12,718 9,950 4,271
Originations of mortgage servicing rights (10,584) (7,310) 0
Impairment of mortgage servicing rights 629 1,383 0
Increase in cash surrender value of bank-owned life iff nsurance policies (6,836) (5,959) (1,458)
Contribution to pension plan 0 (20,000) 0
Amortization of net periodic pension costs 2,073 3,004 3,635

Changes in:
Interest receivable 2,562 1,106 2,512
Other assets 42,704 46,267 (23,449)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (12,959) (8,608) 20,073

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 609,539 140,447 151,965
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds frff om maturities and calls of held to maturity securities 215 211 7,000
Proceeds frff om sales of securities available for sale 52,820 192,085 374,764
Proceeds frff om maturities and calls of securities available for sale 679,082 515,983 337,793
Purchases of securities availaba le for sale (1,522,076) (596,923) (771,290)
Proceeds frff om sales of equity securities 1,250 1,650 2,011
Purchases of equity securities (2,266) (1,379) (895)
Proceeds frff om sales and redemptim ons of other investment securities 11,790 148,766 80,270
Purchases of other investment securities (34,755) (137,395) (129,747)
Purchases of bank-owned life insurance policies (85,000) 0 0
Redemption of bank-owned life insurance policies 1,114 5,729 2,829
Purchases of bank premises and equipment (15,380) (19,025) (11,083)
Proceeds frff om sales of bank premises and equipment 1,618 4,354 251
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash paid 39,420 629,107 0
Proceeds frff om sales of OREO properties 5,675 14,398 10,026
Net change in loans and leases 882,147 (619,976) (285,248)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 15,654 137,585 (383,319)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash dividends paid (181,277) (162,713) (138,939)
Acquisition of treasury stock (11,211) (21,317) (35,673)
Proceeds frff om exercise of stock options 5,206 1,241 1,272
Distribution of treasury srr tock foff r defeff rred compensation plan 0 1 1
Repayment of long-term Federal Home Loan Bank borrrr owings (597,791) (1,847,000) (1,135,000)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings 500,000 500,000 1,475,000
Changes in:

Time deposits (275,900) 584,175 28,408
Other deposits 1,525,093 2,271,510 (169,945)
Federal fundsff purchased, securities sold under agreements to repurchase

and other short-trr erm borrowings (40,211) (232,354) 23,327
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 923,909 1,093,543 48,451

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,549,102 1,371,575 (182,903)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,209,068 837,493 1,020,396

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 3,758,170 $ 2,209,068 $ 837,493
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
UNITED BANKSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(D(( ollars irr n thousands)s Year Ended December 31
2021 2020 2019

Supplemental inforff mation
Cash paid for:

Interest on deposits and borrorr wed funds $ 54,591 $ 115,347 $ 182,549
Income taxes 101,227 65,378 56,459

Noncash investing activities:
Transferff s of loans to OREO 2,769 28,038 13,185
Transfers of held to maturitt y dt ebt securities to available forff sale debt

securities 0 0 11,544
Acquisition of subsidiaries:

Assets acquired, net of cash 1,763,843 4,172,611 0
Liabilities assumed 1,619,438 4,302,722 0
Goodwill 76,454 318,834 0

See notes to consolidatdd ed financial statemtt ents
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

UNITED BANKSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

December 31, 2021

NOTE A--SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations: United Banksa hares, Inc. (�United�, the �Company�) is a financial holding company headquartq ered in
Charleston, West Virginia. United considers all of West Virginia to be included in its market area. This area includes the
five largest West Virginia Metropolitan Statistical Areas (�MSA�): the Parkersburg MSA, the Charleston MSA, the
Huntington MSA, the Morgantown MSA and the Wheeling MSA. United serves the Ohio counties of Lawrence, Belmont,
Jefferson and Washington and Fayette county in Pennsylvania primarily becausea of their close proximity to the Ohio and
Pennsylvania borders and United banking offices located in those counties or in nearbyr West Virginia. United�s Virginia
markets include the Maryland, northern Vrr irginia and Washington, D.C. MSA, the Winchester MSA, the Harrisonburg
MSA, and the Charlottesville MSA. Through its acquisition of Carolina Financial, United�s markerr t also includes the
Coastal, Midlands, and Upstate regions of South Carolina, including the Charleston (Charleston, Dorchester and Berkeley
Counties), Myrtle Beach (Horry and Georgetown Counties), Columbia (Richlanda and Lexington Counties), and the Upstate
(Greenville and Spartanburg Counties) areas as well as areas in North Carolina including Wilmington (New Hanover
County), Raleigh-Durham (Durham and Wake Counties), Charlotte-Concord-Gastonia (NC and SC) and the southeastern
coastal region of North Carolina (Bladen, Brunswick, Columbus, Cumberland, Dupluu in and Robeson Countu ies). Through its
acquisition of Communiu ty Bankers Trusrr t, United added new markets in Baltimore and Annapolis, Marylrr and anda Lynchbuh rg
and Richmond, Virginia as well as the Northern Neck of Virginia. United considers all of the above locations to be the
primary market areas for the business of its banking and mortgage banking subsidiaries.

Operating Segments: United operates in two business segments: community banking and mortgage banking. Through its
community btt anking segment, United offersff a fulff l range of banking products and services through various delivery channels.
Included among the banking producd ts and services offeff red are the acceptance of deposits in checking, savings, time and
money market accounts; the making and servicing of personal, credit card, commercial, and floor plan loans; and the
making of construction and real estate loans. Also offered are trust and brokerage services, safe deposit boxes, and wire
transfers. The mortgage banking segment engages primarily in the origination and acquisiq tion of residential mortgrr ages for
sale into the secondary marketr though George Mason Mortgage, LLC (�George Mason�) anda Crescent Mortgage Company
(�Crescent�), indirectly owned subsidiaries of United. In addition, United through its mortgage banking subsidiary,r
Crescent, may retain the rights to service a portion of the loans sold in the third-party market, as part of its mortgage
banking activities, forff which United receives service fee income. In addition, at certarr in times United may purchase rights to
service from third parties. These rights are known as mortgage servicing rights, or MSRs, where the owner of the MSR acts
on behalf of the mortgage loan owner and has the contractual right to receive a stream of cash floff ws in exchange for
performing specifieff d mortgage servicrr ing funff ctions.

Basis of Presentation: The consolidated finff ancial statements and the notes to consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of United and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significff ant intercompanym accounts and transactions have been
eliminated in the consolidated finff ancial statements.

United determir nes whether it has a controlling finff ancial interest in an entity by first evaluating whether the entity is a voting
interest entity ott r a variabla e interest entity (�VIE�) under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Voting interest
entities are entities in which the total equity investment at risk is sufficff ient to enable the entity to finff ance itself
independently and provides the equity holders with the obligation to absorb lr osses, the right to receive residual returns and
the right to make decisions about the entity�s activities. United consolidates voting interest entities in which it has all, or at
least a majority of, tff he voting interest. As defined in applicabla e accounting standards, VIEs are entities that lack one or more
of the characteristics of a voting interest entity.t A controlling finff ancial interest in a VIE is present when an enterprise has
both the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly impact the VIE�s economic performance and an
obligation to absa orb losses or the right to receive benefits that could potentially be significff ant to the VIE. The enterprr ise
with a controlling financial interest, known as the primary beneficiary, consolidates the VIE. United�s wholly owned and
indirect wholly owned statuttt ory trustrr subsiu diaries are VIEs for which United is not thet primary beneficiary.rr Accordingly, its
accounts are not included in United�s consolidated financialff statements.
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The accounting and reporting policies of United conform with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements, management is requirq ed to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could diffeff r froff m those estimates. To confoff rm
to the 2021 presentation, certain reclassifications have been made to prior period amounts, which had no impact on net
income, comprm ehensive income or shareholders� equity.t In the opinion of management, all adjusd tments necessary forff a fairff
presentation of finaff ncial position and results of operations have been made. Such adjustments are of a normal anda recurring
naturt e.

The Company has evaluated events and transactions subsu equent to December 31, 2021 through the date these financial
statements were issued. Based on definitions and requiq rements of generally accepted accounting principles forff �Subsequent
Events,� the Company has not identified any events that would require adjusd tments to, or disclosure in the finff ancial
statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: United considers cash and dued from banks, interest-bearing deposits with other banks and
federal funds sold as cash and cash equivalents.

Debt securities: The Compam ny accounts for debt securities in two categories: held-to-maturity (�HTM�) and available-for-
sale (�AFS�). Premiums and discounts on debt securities are deferred and recognized into income over the contractual lifeff
of the asset using the effective interest method.

HTM securities are accounted forff at amortized cost, but the Compam ny must have both the positive intent and the ability tt o
hold those securities to maturity. There are very limited circumstances under which securities in the HTM category can be
sold without jeopardizing the cost basis of accounting forff the remainder of the securities in this category.rr Substantially all of
the Company�s HTM debt securities are issued by state and political subdivisions (municipalities). As of December 31,
2021, United considers its HTM debt securities portfolio to be immaterial.

AFS securities are accounted forff at fair value. Gains and losses realized on the sale of these securities are accounted for
based on the specific identificff ation method. Unrealized gains and losses for AFS securities are excluded froff m earninrr gs and
reported net of the related tax effect in the accumulated other comprehensive income component of shareholders' equity.

Allowance for Credit Losses (HTM Debt Securities): For held-to-maturtt ity dt ebt securities, the Companym is required to utilize
a current expected credit losses (�CECL�) methodology to estimate expected credit losses. As of December 31, 2021 and
2020, the Company recorded an allowance forff credit losses of $19,000 and $23,000, respectively, on its HTM debt
securities portforr lio.

Allowance forff Credit Losses (AFS Debt Securities): The impairment model for available-for-sale (�AFS�) debt securities
diffeff rs from the CECL methodology applied forff HTM debt securities because AFS debt securities are measured at fair value
rather than amortized cost. Although ASC Topic 326, �Financial Instruments � Credit Losses� replaced the legacy other-
than-temporm ary irr mpairment (�OTTI�) model with at credit loss model, it retained the funff damental nature of the legacy OTTI
model. For AFS debt securities in an unrealized loss position, the Company first assesses whether it intends to sell, or it is
more likely than not that it will be required to sell, the security beforff e recovery of its amortized cost basis. If either criteria
is met, the security�s amortized cost basis is written down to fairff value through income. For AFS debt securities where
neither of the criteria are met, the Compam ny evaluates whether the decline in faiff r value has resulted from credit losses or
other factff ors. In making this assessment, management considers the extent to which fair value is less than amortized cost,
any changes to the credit rating of the security by a rating agency, andaa adversedd conditions specifically related to the security,
among other factors. If this assessment indicates that a credit loss exists, the present value of cash flowff s expected to be
collected fromff the security are compam red to the amortized cost basis of the security. If the present value of cash flows
expected to be collected is less than the amortized cost basis, a credit loss exists and an allowance forff credit losses is
recorded forff the credit loss, limited to the amount that the fairff value is less than the amortized cost basis. Any remaining
discount that has not been recorded through an allowance forff credit losses is recognized in other comprehensive income.
An entity may no longer consider the length of time faiff r value has been less than amortized cost. Changes in the allowance
for credit losses are recorded as a provision (or release) for credit losses. Losses are charged against the allowance when
management believes the uncollectibility ot f an AFS security is confirmed or when either of the criteria regarding intent or
requirement to sell is met. As of December 31, 2021, the Compam ny determined that the unrealized loss positions in AFS
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securities were not the result of credit losses, and therefore, an allowance for credit losses was not recorded.

Equity securities: Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values (marketable) are measured at fair
value, with changes in the fairff value recognized in Net investment securities gains in the Consolidated Statements of
Income.

Other investment securities: Certain security investments such as Federal Reserverr Bank stock and Federal Home Loan Bankaa
stock that do not have readily determinable fairff values (non-marketable) are accounted for at cost minus impairment, if anyaa ,
plus or minus changes resulting from observable price changes in orderly transaa actions for the identical or similar investment
of the same issuer, also referred to as the measurement alternative. Any adjustments to the carrying value of these
investments are recorded in Other income in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Securities Purchased Under Resale Agreements and Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase: Securities purchased
under agreements to resell and securities sold under agreements to repurchase are accounted forff as collateralized financing
transactions. They are recorded at the amounts at which the securities were acquired or sold plus accrued interest.
Securities, generally U.S. government and fedff eral agency securities, pledged as collateral under these financing
arrangements cannot be repledged or sold, unless replaced, by the secured party. The fairff value of the collateral either
received from or provided to a third party itt s continually monitored and additional collateral is obtained or is requested to be
returned to United as deemed appropriate.

Loans: Loans are reported at the principal amount outstanding, net of unearnerr d income, except loans acquired through
transfer (see below). Interest on loans is accrued and credited to operations using methods that produce a level yield on
individualdd principal amounts outstanding. Loan origination and commitment fees and related direct loan origination costs
are deferred and amortized as an adjustment of loan yield over the estimated life off f the related loan. Loan feeff s net of costs
accreted and included in interest income were $92,545,000, $76,064,000, and $39,026,000, forff the years of 2021, 2020 and
2019, respectively. The accrual of interest income on commercial and most consumer loans generally is discontinued when
a loan becomes 90 to 120 days past due as to principal or interest. When interest accrualsr are discontinued, unpan id interest
recognized in income in the current year is reversed, and interest accrued in prior years is charged to the allowance for loan
losses. Management may elect to continue the accrual of interest when the estimated net realizabla e value of collateral
exceeds the principal balance and accrued interest, and the loan is in the process of collection.

A loan is categorized as a troubled debt restructurit ng (�TDR�) if a concession is granted and there is deterioration in the
financial condition of the borrorr wer. A loan classified as a TDR will generally retain such classification until thet loan is paid
in full. However, a one-to-four-family residential mortgage TDR loan that yields a markerr t rate andaa demonstrates the abia lity
to pay under the termsr of the restrucrr tured note throt ugh a sustained period of repaymea nt performance, which is generally one
year, is removed from the TDR classification. Interest income on TDRs is accruedrr at the reduced rate and the loan is
returned to performing status once the borrower demonstrates the abia lity to pay under the terms of the restructured note
through a sustained period of repayment performance, which is generally six months.

TDRs can take the formff of a reduction of the stated interest rate, splitting a loan into separate loans and leases with market
terms on one loan and concessionary terms on the other loan, receipts of assets from a debtor in partiarr l or fulff l satisfaction of
a loan, the extension of the maturity date or dates at a stated interest rate lower than the current market rate for new debt
with similar risk, the reducd tion of the facff e amount or maturity amount of the debt as stated in the instrument or other
agreement, or the reduction of accrued interest or anya othert concessionarya type of renegotiated debt. Under United�s currer nt
loan policy, a loan is not recognized as a TDR until it becomes probable that the loan will be a TDR. In response to the
coronavirus (�COVID-19�) pandemic and its economic impact on our customers, United implemented a short-term
modification program that complied with the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, aff nd Economic Security (�CARES�) Act to provide
temporary payment relief to those borrowers directly impacted by COVID-19 who were not more than 30 days past dued as
of Decemberm 31, 2019. This program allowed for a deferral of payments froff m the period beginning March 1, 2020 until
January 1, 2022 or the date that is 60 days after the date on which the national emergency concerning the COVID-19
outbrt eak terminates. As provided forff under the CARES Act, these loan modifications were exempt by law from
classification as a TDR as defined by GAAP.

Loans Acquired Through Transfer: Acquired loans are recorded at fairff value at the date of acquisqq ition based on a discounted
cash flow methodology that considers various factors including the typey of loan and related collateral, classificff ation status,



82

fixed or variable interest rate, term of loan and whether or not the loan was amortizing, and a discount rate reflecting the
Company�s assessment of risk inherent in the cash floff w estimates. Certain purchased loansa are individually evaluated while
certain purchased loans are grouped together according to similar risk characteristics and are treated in the aggregate when
applying various valuation techniques. These cash flowff evaluations are inherently subjeb ctive as they require material
estimates, all of which may be susceptible to significff ant change.

Prior to January 1, 2020, loans acquired in a business combination that had evidence of deterioration of credit quality st ince
origination and forff which it was probablea , at acquisq ition, that the Companm y would be unabla e to collect all contractually
required payments receivable were considered purchased credit impaired (�PCI�). PCI loans were individually evaluated
and recorded at faiff r value at the date of acquisition with no initial valuation allowance based on a discounted cash flow
methodology that considered various factors including the type of loan and related collateral, classification status,t fixed or
variable interest rate, term of loan and whether or not the loan was amortizing, and a discountu rate reflectff ing thet Company�s
assessment of risk inherent in the cash floff w estimates. The diffeff rence between the undiscounted cash floff ws expected at
acquisition and the investment in the loan, or the �accretable yield,� was recognized as interest income on a level-yield
method over the life of the loan. Contractually requirq ed payments for interest and principal that exceed the undiscounted
cash floff ws expected at acquiq sition, or the �nonaccretable difference,� were not recognized on the balance sheet and did not
result in any yield adjud stments, loss accrualsr or valuation allowances. Increases in expected cash floff ws, including
prepaymaa ents, subsequent to the initial investment were recognized prospectively throt ugh adjud stment of thet yield on the loanaa
over its remaining life. Decreases in expected cash flows were recognized as impairment. Valuation allowances on PCI
loans reflected only losses incurred after the acquisition (meaning thet present value of all cash floff ws expected at acquisition
that ultimately were not to be received).

Subsequeq nt to January 1, 2020, loans acquired in a business combination that have experienced more-than-insignificff ant
deterioration in credit quality since origination are considered purchased credit deteriorated (�PCD�) loans. At the
acquisition date, an estimate of expected credit losses is made for groupsu of PCD loans with similar risk characteristics and
individual PCD loans without similar risk characteristics. This initial allowance for credit losses is allocated to individuad l
PCD loans and added to the purchase price or acquisition date faiff r values to establisa h the initial amortized cost basis of the
PCD loans. As the initial allowance for credit losses is added to the purchase price, there is no credit loss expense
recognized upon acquisition of a PCD loan. Any differff ence between the unpaid principal balance of PCD loans and the
amortized cost basis is considered to relate to noncredit factff ors and results in a discount or premium. Discounts and
premiums are recognized through interest income on a level-yield method over the life off f the loans. All loans and leases
considered to be PCI prior to January 1rr , 2020 were converted to PCD on that date.

For loans and leases acquired afteff r the adoption of ASC Topic 326, United will likely take several facff tors into consideration
when determining if loans and leases meet the definition of PCD. ASC Topic 326 lists some, but not all, facff tors for
consideration in the bifurcation of PCD versus non-PCD assets:

 Financial assets that are delinquent as of the acquisition date
 Financial assets that have been downgraded since origination
 Financial assets that have been placed on nonaccrual statust

For acquired loans not deemed purchased credit deteriorated at acquisition, the differences between the initial fairff value anda
the unpan id principal balance are recognized as interest income on a level-yield basis over the lives of the related loans.

Loans Held forff Sale: Loans held forff sale consist of one-to-four family conforming residential real estate loans originated
for sale in the secondary market.

Loans held forff sale within the mortgage banking segment are recorded under the fairff value option at a fair value measured
using valuations fromff investors for loans with similar characteristics adjusted forff the Company�s actualt sales experience
versus the investor�s indicated pricing.

Loans held for sale within the community banking segment are carried at the lower of cost or fairff value. The fair value is
based on the price secondary markets are currently offering for similar loans using observable market data which is not
materially different than cost due to the short duration between origination and sale.
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Gains and losses on sale of loans are recorded within income from mortgarr ge banking activities.

Allowance forff Loan and Lease Losses: On January 1rr , 2020, the Company adopted FASB ASU 2016-13, Financial
Instrumenr ts - Credit Losses (Topic 326), so the allowance calculation is based on the CECL methodology. Prior to Januaryrr
1, 2020, the calculation was based on the incurred loss methodology. The allowance for loan losses is an estimate of the
expected credit losses on finff ancial assets measured at amortirr zed cost to present the net amount expex cted to be collected as of
the balance sheet date. Such allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (contractuat l
term). Assets are charged off when United determines that such financial assets are deemed uncollectible or based on
regulatory rrr equirements, whichever is earlier. Charge-offs aff re recognized as a deduction from the allowance forff loan losses.
Expected recoveries of amounts previously charged-off, nff ot to exceed the aggregate of the amount previously charged-off,ff
are included in determining the necessary reserve at the balance sheet date.

United made a policy election to present the accrued interest receivable balance separately in its consolidated balanca e sheets
from the amortized cost of a loan. United estimates the allowance balance using relevant available information, from
internal and externarr l sources, relating to past events, current conditions and reasonable and supportablerr forecasts. Historical
credit loss experience provides the basis for the estimation of expected credit losses. Adjusd tments to historical loss
information are made forff diffeff rences in current loan-specificff risk characteristics such as differences in underwriting
standards, portfolio mix, delinquenq cy level or term as well as reasonable and suppu ortabla e forff ecast adjud stments for changes
in environmental conditions, such as changes in unemployment rates, propertyrr values or othert relevant facff tors. A reversion
to historical loss data occurs via a straight-line method durd ing the year following the one-year reasonable and supportablea
forff ecast period.

United pools its loans and leases based on similar risk characteristics in estimating expected credit losses. United has
identifiedff the follff owing portfolff io segments and measures the allowance forff credit losses using the follff owing methods:

 Method: Probability of Defaulta /Lott ss Given Default (PD/LGD)
 Commercial Real Estate Owner-Occupied
 Commercial Real Estate Nonowner-Occupied
 Commercial Other

 Method: Cohort
 Residential Real Estate
 Construction & Land Development
 Consumer
 Bankcard

Risk characteristics of commercial real estate owner-occupied loans and commercial other loans and leases are similar in
that they are normally dependent upon the borrower�s internal cash flow from operations to service debt. Commercial real
estate nonowner-occupied loans differff in that cash flow to service debt is normar lly dependent on external income from third
parties for use of the real estate such as rents, leases and room rates. Residential real estate loans are dependent upou n
individual borrowers who are affectff ed by changes in general economic conditions, demand for housing and resulting
residential real estate valuation. Construction and land development loans are impacted mainly by demand whethert for new
residential housing or forff retail, indusd trial, office and other typesyy of commercial construction withit n a given area. Consumer
loan pool risk characteristics are influff enced by general, regional and local economic conditions.

Loans that do not share risk characteristics are evaluated on an individual basis. Loans evaluated individually are not also
included in the collective evaluation. When management determines that foreclosure is probable or when the borrower is
experiencing financial difficulty at t the reporting date and repayment is expected to be provided substantially through the
operation or sale of the collateral but may also include other non-performing loans or TDRs, expected credit losses are
based on the fair value of the collateral at the reporting date, adjusted forff selling costs as appropria ate. These individually
evaluated loans are removed from their respective pools and typically represent collateral dependent loans. In addition, the
Company individually evaluates �reasonabla y expected� TDRs, which are identifieff d by the Company as a loan expected to
be classified as a TDR.

Expected credit losses are estimated over the contractuat l term of the loans and leases, adjusted forff expected prepayments
when appropriate. The contractualt term excludes expected extensions, renewals and modificaff tions unless either of the
following appa lies: management has a reasonable expectation at the reporting date that a troubled debt restructurit ng will be
executed with an individual borrower, or the extension or renewal options are included in the original or modified contract



84

at the reportirr ng date and are not unconditionally cancelable by United.

For past loans and leases acquired through the complm etion of a transfer, including loans and leases acquired in a business
combination, that had evidence of deterioration of credit quality since origination (�PCI�) and accounted for under ASC
Topic 310, an entity did not have to reassess whether any loans and leases previously accounted for as PCI meet the
definition of purchased credit deteriorated (�PCD�) loans and leases upon adoption of ASC Topic 326. Any changes in the
allowance for credit losses for these loans and leases were accounted for as an adjustment to the loan�s amortized cost basis
and not as a cumulative-effeff ct adjud stment to an entityt �s beginning retained earnings. Non-PCI loans and leases are now
classified as non-PCD loans and leases with the adoption of ASC Topic 326. In accordance with ASC Topic 326 guidance,
United calculated a PCD rate adjustment for all PCD loans and leases at adoption. Such adjud stment created a discount
balance forff any excess amount not deemed to be credit-related between the PCD recorded balance at the adoption date and
the contractual principal and interest balances outstanding.

At the acquisition date, an initial allowance for expected credit losses for non-PCD loansaa is estimated and recorded as credit
loss expense. The subsequ ueq nt measurement of expected credit losses forff all acquired loans is the same as the subsequent
measurement of expected credit losses for originated loans. For allowance forff credit losses under ASC Topic 326
calculation purposr es, United includes its acquired loans and leases in their relevant pool unless they meet the criteria forff
specificff review.

Prior to January 1, 2020, the allowance forff loan losses calculation as well as the provision for loan losses was based on the
incurred loss methodology. Under the incurred loss model, management estimated the losses on loans and leases when it
was "probablea " that the Company had already incurred losses based on information availabla e at that time. Once a loss was
probable, then the expected value of the estimated loss given defaula t was calculated and incorporated into the allowance.

Bank Premises and Equipment: Bank premises and equipment are stated at cost, less allowances for depreciation and
amortization. The provision for depreciation is computed principally by the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the respective assets. Useful lives range primarily from three to 15 years for furniture, fixff tures and equipq ment and
five to 40 years for buildings and improvements. Leasehold improvements are generally amortized over the lesser of the
term of the respective leases or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.

Other Real Estate Owned: At Decembem r 31, 2021 and 2020, other real estate owned (�OREO�) included in other assets in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets was $14,823,000 and $22,595,000, respectively. OREO consists of real estate acquired in
foreclosure or other settlement of loans. Such assets are carried at the lower of the investment in the assets or the faiff r value
of the assets less estimated selling costs. Any adjd ustment to the fair value at the date of transfer is charged against the
allowance forff loan losses. Any subsu equeq nt valuation adjustments as well as any costs relating to operating, holding or
disposing of the property are recorded in other expense in the period incurred. At December 31, 2021, the recorded
investment of consumer mortgage loans secured by residential real estate propertirr es for which formal foreclosure
proceedings are in process was $13,000. At December 31, 2020, there was no recorded investment of consumer mortgarr ge
loans secured by residential real estate properties for which forff mal forff eclosure proceedings are in process.

Intangible Assets: Intangible assets relating to the estimated fair value of the deposit base of the acquired institutions are
being amortized on an accelerated basis over a one to ten-year period. Management reviews intangible assets on an annual
basis, or sooner if indicators of impairment exist, and evaluates changes in facts and circumstances that may indicate
impairment in the carrying value. United incurred amortization expense of $5,908,000, $6,605,000, and $7,016,000, in
2021, 2020, and 2019, respectively, related to all intangible assets.

Goodwill is tested for impairmentrr at least annually or sooner if indicators of impairment exist. United may elect to perform
a quaq litative analysis to determine whether or not it is more-likely-than not that the faiff r value of a reporting unit is less than
its carryir ng amount. If United elects to bypass this qualitative analysis, or concludes via quaq litative analysis that it is more-
likely-than-not that the faiff r value of a reporting uniu t is less than ia ts carrying value, United may use eithet r a marketrr or income
quantitative approach, whichever is more practical, to determine the fair value of the reporting unit to compam re to its
carryr ing value. If the estimated fair value of the reporting unit is less than ia ts carrying value, an impmm airmentrr charge would be
recorded forff the excess, not to exceed the amount of goodwill allocated to the reporting unit. At each reporting date, the
Company considers potential indicators of impairmem nt. United utilized a quaq litative approach to test goodwill for
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impairment as of September 30, 2021. The goodwill impairment test did not identify any indicators of goodwill impairment.
As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, total goodwill appa roximated $1,886,494,000 and $1,796,848,000, respectively.

Mortgage Servicrr ing Rights, Fees and Costs: The Compamm nya initially measures servicing assets and liabia lities retained related
to the sale of residential loans held for sale (�MSRs�) at faiff r value. For subsequent measurement purposr es, the Company
measures servirr cing assets and liabilities using the amortization method.

MSRs are amortized in proportion to, and over the period of, estimated net servicing income. The amortization of thet MSRs
is analyzed periodically and is adjusted to reflect changes in prepayment rates and other estimates.

The Compam ny evaluates potential impam irment of MSRs based on the diffeff rence between the carrying amount and current
estimated fair value of the servicing rights. In determining impairment, the Company aggregates all servicing rights and
stratifies them into tranches based on predominant risk characteristics. If impairment exists, a valuation allowance is
established for any excess of amortized cost over the current estimated fair value by a charge to income. If the Company
later determines that all or a portion of the impairment no longer exists forff a particular tranche, a reductid on of the allowance
may be recorded as an increase to income.

Service fee income is recorded forff fees earned for servirr cing mortgage loans under servirr cing agreements with the Federal
national Mortgage Association (�FNMA�), the Federal home loan Mortgage Corporarr tion (�FHLMC�), Government
national Mortgage Association (�GNMA�) and certain private investors. The fees are based on a contractual percentage of
the outstanding principal balance of the loans serviced and are recorded in noninterest income. Amortization of MSRs and
mortgage servicing costs are charged to expense when incurred.

Accruedrr interest receivablea : Upon adoption of ASC Topic 326, the Company made the following elections regarding
accruer d interest receivabla e ("AIR"):

� Presenting accrued interest receivabla e balances separately from their underlying instrumrr ents within the
consolidated statements of finff ancial condition.

� Excluding accrued interest receivable that is included in the amortized cost of finff ancing receivables from related
disclosure requirements.

� Continuing our policy to write off accruedrr interest receivable by reversing interest income in cases where the
Compam ny does not reasonabla y expect to receive payment.

� Generally, not measuring an allowance forff credit losses forff accruedrr interest receivabla e dued to the Company�s
policy of writing off uncollectible accrued interest receivable balances in a timely manner. However, due to loana
interest payment deferrals on certain loans and leases granted by United under the CARES Act, United assessed
the collectabila ity of the accruedr interest receivablesa on these deferring loans and leases. As a result of this
assessment, United recorded an allowance for credit losses of $8,000 at Decemberm 31,2021 and $250,000 at
Decemberm 31, 2020 for accrued interest receivables not expected to be collected.

Revenue Recognition: Interest and dividend income, loans fees, fees from trust and brokerage servirr ces, deposit services
and bankcard fees are recognized and accruedrr as earned.

Descriptions of our revenue-generating activities that are within the scope of ASC Topic 606, which are presented in our
Consolidated Statements of Income as components of Other Income are discussed below. There are no significff ant
judgements relating to the amount and timing of revenue recognition for those revenue streams under the scope of ASC
Topic 606.

Fees froff m TruTT st Services

Revenue fromff trustr services primarily is comprised of fees earned froff m the management and administration of trusts and
other customer assets. Trust services include custody of assets, investment management, escrow services, and similar
fiducd iary activities. The Company�s performance obligation is generally satisfied over time and the resulting fees are
recognized monthly, based upon the month-end marketrr value of the assets under management and the applicabla e feeff rate.
Payment is generally received a fewff days after month end through a direct charge to customers� accounts.
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Fees from Brokerage Services

Revenue from brokerage servirr ces are recorded as the income is earned at the time the related servirr ce is perforff medr . In returnrr
for such services, the Compam ny charges a commission for the sales of various securities products primarily consisting of
investment company shares, annuity products, and corporar te debt and equity securities, for its selling and administrative
efforts. For account supervision, advisory arr nda administrative services, revenuen is recognized over a period of time as earned
based on customer account balances and activity.t

Fees from Deposie t ServSS ices

Service charges on deposit accounts consist of account analysis feeff s (i.e., net feesff earned on analyzed business and public
checking accounts), monthly service feesff , check orders, ATM activity fees, debit card fees, and other deposit account
related feeff s. Revenue is recognized when our perforff mance obligation is completed which is generally monthly for account
maintenance services or when a transaction has been complem ted (ATM or debit card activity)tt .

Bankcarkk d Frr eesFF and MerMM chant Discounts

Bankcard fees and merchant discounts are primarily comprm ised of credit card income and merchant servirr ces income. Credit
card income is primarily comprm ised of interchange fees earnerr d whenever the Companym �s credit cards are processed thrt ough
card payment networksrr such as Visa. Merchant servirr ces income mainly represents fees charged to merchants to process
their credit card transactions. The Company�s performance obligation for bankcard fees and interchange are largely
satisfied, and related revenue recognized at the time services are rendered. Payment is typically received immediately or in
the following month.

Advertisrr ing Costs: Advertising costs are generally expensed as incurred and included in Other Expense on the Consolidated
Statements of Income. Advertising expense was $5,781,000, $5,611,000, and $5,082,000, for the years of 2021, 2020, and
2019, respectively.

Income Taxes: Income tax expense is the total of the current year income tax duedd or refundable and the change in deferred
tax assets and liabila ities (excluding deferred tax assets and liabilities related to business combinations or components of
other comprehensive income). Deferred tax assets and liabia lities are the expected futurt e tax amounts forff the temporm ary
differences between carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabia lities, compum ted using enacted tax rates. A valuation
allowance, if needed, reduces defeff rred tax assets to the expected amount most likely to be realized. Realization of deferred
tax assets is dependent upon the generation of a sufficient level of future taxable income and recoverablea taxes paid in prior
years. Although realization is not assured, management believes it is more likely than not that all of the deferred tax assets
will be realized. Interest and/or penalties related to income taxes are reported as a component of income tax expense.

For uncertain income tax positions, United records a liability based on a recognition threshold of more-likely-than-a not, anda
a measurement attribute forff all tax positions taken on a tax return,r in order forff those tax positions to be recognized in the
financial statements.

United filff es a consolidated income tax return with its subsidiaries. Federal income tax expense or benefit has been allocated
to subsidiaries on a separate return basis.

Derivative Financial Instrumrr ents: United accounts for its derivative financial instruments in accordance with ASC Topic
815 which requires all derivative instruments to be carried at fair value on the balance sheet. United has designated certain
derivative instruments used to manage interest rate risk as hedge relationships with certain assets, liabilities or cash flows
being hedged. Certain derivatives used for interest rate risk management are not designated in a hedge relationship.

Derivative instruments designated in a hedge relationship to mitigate exposure to changes in the fairff value of an asset,
liabila ity,t or firm commitment attributable to a particular risk, such as interest rate risk, are considered fairff value hedges.
Derivative instruments designated in a hedge relationship to mitigate exposure to variability in expected futff ure cash flows,
or other types of forecasted transactions, are considered cash floff w hedges.

For a fairff value hedge, the fair value of the interest rate swap is recognized on the balance sheet as either a freestanding
asset or liability with a corresponding adjustment to the hedged financial instrument. Subsequeq nt adjud stments due to
changes in the fair value of a derivative that qualifies as a faiff r value hedge are offset in current period earnings. For a cash
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flow hedge, the faiff r value of the interest rate swap ia s recognized on the balance sheet as either a freestaff nding asset or
liabila ity wt ith a corresponding adjud stment to accumulated other comprehensive income within shareholders� equity, net of
tax. Subseu quent adjustments due to changes in the faiff r value of a derivative that quaq lifies as a cash flow hedge are offsetff to
accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax and reclassified into earnings in the same line associated with the
forecasted transaction when the forecasted transaction affeff cts earnirr ngs. Prior to 2019, any ineffeff ctive portirr on of a cash floff w
hedge was recognized immediately in earnings

At inception of a hedge relationship, United formally documents the hedged item, the particular risk management objeb ctive,
the nature of the risk being hedged, the derivative being used, how effectiveness of the hedge will be assessed and how the
ineffeff ctiveness of the hedge will be measured. United also assesses hedge effectiveness at inception and on an ongoing
basis using regression analysis. Hedge ineffectiff veness is measured by using the change in fairff value method. The change in
fair value method compam res the change in the fair value of the hedging derivative to the change in the faiff r value of the
hedged exposure, attributable to changes in the benchmark rate.

United is subject to the Dodd-Frank Act clearing requirement for eligible derivatives. United has executed and cleared
eligible derivatives through the London Clearing House (�LCH�). Variation margin at the LCH is distinguished as settled-
to-market and settled daily based on the prior day value, rather than collateralized-to-market.

United through its mortgage banking subsu idiaries enters into interest rate lock commitments to financa e residential mortgage
loans with its customers. These commitments, which contain fixed expiration dates, offeff r the borrower an interest rate
guarantee provided the loan meets underwriting guidelines and closes within the timeframe establa ished by United. Interest
rate risk arises on these commitments and subsequently closed loans if interest rates change between thet time of the interest
rate lock and the delivery orr f the loan to the investor. Market risk on interest rate lock commitments and mortgage loans held
for sale is managed using corresponding forwarr rd mortgage loan sales contracts. United is a partyrr to these forff warr rd mortgage
loan sales contracts to sell loans servicing released and short sales of mortgage-backed securities. When the interest rate is
locked with the borrower, the rate lock commitment, forward sale agreement, and mortgage-backed security position are
undesignated derivatives and marked to faiff r value through earnirr ngs. The fairff value of the rate lock derivative includes the
servicing premium and the interest spread for the difference between retail and wholesale mortgage rates. Income from
mortgage banking activities includes the gain recognized forff the period presented and associated elements of fair value.

United sells mortgage loans on either a best efforts or mandatory delivery basis. For loans sold on a mandatory delivery
basis, United enters into forff ward mortgage-backed securities (the �residual hedge�) to mitigate the effect of interest rate
risk. Both the rate lock commitment under mandatory delivery ar nd the residual hedge are recorded at fairff value through
earnings and are not designated as accounting hedges. At the closing of the loan, the loan commitment derivative expires
and United records a loan held forff sale at fair value and continues to mark these assets to market under the election of fair
value option. United closes out of the trading mortgage-backed securities assigned within the residual hedge and replaces
the securities with a forff ward sales contract once a price has been accepted by an investor and recorded at faiff r value. For
those loans selected to be sold under best effortsff delivery,rr at the closing of the loan, the rate lock commitment derivative
expires and the Company records a loan held forff sale at faiff r value under the election of fair value option and continuen s to be
obligated under the same forff ward loan sales contract entered into at inception of the rate lock commitment.

For derivatives that are not designated in a hedge relationship, changes in the fair value of the derivatives are recognized in
earnings in the same period as the change in the fairff value.

Off-balance-sheet credit exposures: United maintains a reserve forff lending-related commitments such as unfunded loan
commitments and letters of credit. United estimates expected credit losses over the contractualt period in which United is
exposed to credit risk via a contractuat l obligation to extend credit, unless that obligation is unconditionally cancellable by
United. The estimate includes consideration of the likelihood that funding will occur and an estimate of expected credit
losses on commitments expected to be funff ded over its estimated life. Methodology is based on a loss rate appa roach that
starts with the probability of funding based on historical experience. Similar to methodology discussed previously related to
the loans and leases receivablea portfolio, adjustments are made to the historical losses for current conditions anda reasonablea
and supportablrr e forff ecast. Adjusd tments to the reserve for lending-related commitments on off-balaff nce sheet credit exposures
is recorded as other expense in the consolidated statements of income. The reserve forff lending-related commitments is
separately classified on the balance sheet and is included in other liabilities. The combim ned allowance for loan losses and
reserve for lending-related commitments is considered the allowance for credit losses on loans and leases.
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Stock-Based Compensation: Compem nsation expense related to stock options, restricted stock awards (�RSA�) and restricted
stock units (�RSU�) issued to participants is based upou n the fair value of the award at the date of grant. The fair value of
stock options is estimated at the date of grant using a binomial lattice option pricing model, while the fairff value of RSAs is
based upou n the stock price at the date of grant. RSU grants could be time-vested RSUs, performff ance-vested RSUs, or a
combination of both. The value of the time-vested RSUs and the performarr nce-vested, based on a performance condition,
RSUs awarded is establisa hed as the fair market value of the stock at the time of the grant. The value of the performarr nce-
vested, based on a market condition, RSUs awarded is estimated through the use of a Monte Carlo valuation model as of the
grant date. Compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period forff all stock-based awards
and grants.

Stock-based compensation expense was $8,018,000 in 2021, $5,980,000 in 2020, and $4,914,000 in 2019.

Treasury Stock: United records common stock purchased forff treasury arr t cost. At the date of subsu equent reissuance, the
treasury stock account is reducd ed by the cost of such stock using the weighted-average cost method.

Trust Assets and Income: Assets held in a fidff ucd iary or agency capaca ity forff customers are not included in the balance sheets
since such items are not assets of the company. Trust income is reported on an accrualrr basis.

Earnir ngs Per Common Share: United calculates earnings per common share in accordance with ASC Topic 260, �Earnings
Per Share,� which provides that unvested share-based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends or
dividend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) are participating securities and shall be included in the computation of
earnings per share pursuant to the two-class method. United has determined that its outstanding non-vested restricted stock
awards are participating securities.

Under the two-class method, basic earningsrr per common share is computed by dividing net earnings allocated to common
stock by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the applicable period, excluding outstanding
participating securities. Diluted earnings per common share is computed using the weighted-average numberm of shares
determined for the basic earninrr gs per common share computation plus the dilutive effect of stock compensation using the
treasury stock method. Antidilutive stock options and restricted stock outstanding of 1,024,612, 1,926,840 and 857,511 for
the years ended Decemberm 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively, were excluded from the earnings per diluted common
share calculation.

The reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of basic earnings per share with that of diluted earnings per share
is presented as follows:

Year Ended December 31
(Dollars irr n thout sands, except per share) 2021 2020 2019

Distributed earnings allocated to common stock $ 181,614 $ 171,403 $ 139,167
Undistributed earnings allocated to common stock 185,082 116,879 120,337
Net earnings allocated to common shareholders $ 366,696 $ 288,282 $ 259,504
Average common shares outstanding 129,276,452 120,017,247 101,585,599
Dilutive effecff t of stock compensation 236,401 72,985 266,978
Average diluted shares outstanding 129,512,853 120,090,232 101,852,577

Earnings per basic common share $ 2.84 $ 2.40 $ 2.55
Earnings per diluted common share $ 2.83 $ 2.40 $ 2.55

Fair Value Measurements: United determines the fair values of its financial instruments based on the fair value hierarchy
establa ished in ASC Topic 820, which also clarifies that fair value of certain assets and liabia lities is an exit price,
representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability it n an orderly transaction
between markerr t participants.

ASC Topic 820 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniqueq s based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are
observable or unobservable. Observable inputsn reflect marketa data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable
inputs refleff ct United�s market assumptions.
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The three levels of the fair value hierarchy based on these two types of inpun ts are as follows:

Level 1 - Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets foff r identical assets and liabilities.
Level 2 - Valuation is based on observable inputs including quoq ted prices in active markets for similar

assets and liabilities, quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in less active
markets, and model-based valuation techniqueq s forff which significant assumptions can be
derived primarily frff om or corroborated by observable data in the markerr t.

Level 3 - Valuation is based on model-based techniques that use one or more significff ant inputs or
assumptions that are unobservable in the market.

When determining the fairff value measurements forff assets and liabia lities, United looks to active and observable markets to
price identical assets or liabilities whenever possible and classifies such items in Level 1. When identical assets and
liabilities are not traded in active markets, United looks to markerr t observable data for similar assets and liabia lities and
classifiesff such items as Level 2. Nevertheless, certain assets and liabilities are not actively traded in observarr bla e markerr ts and
United must use alternative valuation techniques using unobservabla e inputs to determine a fair value and classifies such
items as Level 3. For assets and liabia lities that are not actively traded, the fairff value measurement is based primarily upou n
estimates that require significant judgment. Therefore,ff the results may not be realized in an actuat l sale or immediate
settlement of the asset or liability. Additionally, there are inherent weaknesses in any calculation technique, and changea s in
the underlying assumptions used, including discount rates and estimates of future cash floff ws, could significantly affectff the
results of current or future values. The level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of inpun t that is
significant in the faiff r value measurement.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

In October 2021, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) issued Accounting Standards Update (�ASU�) No.
2021-08, �Business Combim nations (Topic 805): Accounting for contract assets and contract liabia lities from contracts with
customers�. ASU 2021-08 amends ASC 805 to add contract assets and contract liabila ities to the list of exceptions to the
recognition and measurement principles that t appa ly to business combim nations and to require that ana entity acquirer recognize
and measure contract assets and contract liabilities acquired in a business combim nation in accordance with Topic 606. As a
result of thet se amendments, it is expected that an acquirerqq will generally recognize and measure acquiqq red contract assets and
contract liabia lities in a manner consistent with how the acquireeq recognized and measured them in its preacquisition
financial statements. ASU No. 2021-08 is effectivff e forff publiu c business entities for fiscff al years beginning after December 15,
2022, including interim periods within those fiscff al years. The amendments should be applied prospectively to business
combinations occurring on or after the effective date of the amendments. Early adoption of the amendments is permirr tted.
ASU No. 2021-08 is not expected to have a material impact on the Compam ny�s finff ancial condition or results of operations.

In July 2021, the FASB issued ASU No. 2021-05, �Leases (Topic 842): Lessors-Certain Leases with Variabla e Lease
Payments (Topic 848)�. This new guidance requires a lessor to classify aff lease with variablea lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate as an operating lease at lease commencement if the lease would have been classified as a sales-
type lease or direct financing lease in accordance with the classificff ation criteria in ASC 842-10-25-2 and 25-3, respectively
and if the lessor would have recognized a selling loss at lease commencement. When applying the guidance in ASC 842-10-
24-3A, the lessor would not derecognize the underlying asset over its useful life.ff ASU No. 2021-05 is effective forff publiu c
business entities for fiscalff years beginning after Decemberm 15, 2021, including interim periods within those fiscal years.
Entities may elect to adopt the amendments through either a retrospective application to leases that commenced or were
modified after the beginning of the period in which ASC 842 was adopted or a prospective application to leases that
commence or are modifieff d subsequent to the date thet amendments in ASU 2021-05 are first applied. ASU No. 2021-05 was
adopted by United on January 1, 2022. The adoption did not have a material impact on the Company�s finff ancial condition
or results of operations

In January 2r 021, the FASB issued ASU No. 2021-01, �Refereff nce Rate Reform (Topic 848).� This update refinff es the scope
of ASC Topic 848 and permits entities to elect certain optional expedients and exceptions when accounting forff derivative
contracts and certain hedging relationships affecteff d by change in the interest rates used for discounting cash flows, for
computing variation margin settlements, and for calculating price alignment interest in connection with referff ence rate
reform activities under way in global finff ancial markets. ASU No. 2021-01 is effectivff e forff public business entities upon
issuance through Decemberm 31, 2022. United is implm ementing a transition plan to identify and modify its loans and other
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financial instruments with attributes that are either directly or indirectly influenced by LIBOR. The Company is assessing
ASU No. 2021-01 and its impact on the Company�s transition away fromff LIBOR forff its loan and other financial
instruments.

In August 2020, the FASB issued No. 2020-06, �Debt � Debt with Conversion and Other Options (Subtu opic 470-20) and
Derivatives and Hedging � Contracts in Entity�s Own Equity (Subtopic 815-40).� The amendments in the ASU remove
certain separation models for convertible debt instrumerr nts and convertible preferred stock that require the separation of a
convertible debt instrumer nt into a debt component and an equity ot r derivative compom nent. The ASU also amends the
derivative scope exception guidance for contracts in an entity�s own equity. The amendments remove three settlement
conditions that are required for equity contracts to qualify fff orff the derivative scope exception. In addition, the ASU expands
disclosure requirements for convertible instruments and simplifies areas of the guidance for diluted earnings-per-share
calculations that are impacted by the amendments. ASU No. 2020-06 is effectff ive forff publu ic business entities forff fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2021, including interim periods within those fisff cal years. Entities may elect to adopt the
amendments through either a modified retrospective method of transition or a fully retrospective method of transition. ASU
No. 2020-06 was adopted by United on January 1rr , 2022. The adoption did not have a material impact on the Company�s
financial condition or results of operations.

In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-04, �Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate Reform on Financial
Reporting.� The ASU provides �optional expedients and exceptions for applying generally accepted accounting principles
to contract modifications and hedging relationships, subju ect to meeting certain criteria, that reference LIBOR or another
reference rate expected to be discontinued.� ASU No. 2020-04 is effecff tive for public business entities on March 12, 2020
through December 31, 2022. United is implm ementing a transition plan to identify aff nd modify iff ts loans and other financial
instruments with attributes that are either directly or indirectly influeff nced by LIBOR. The Compam ny is assessing ASU No.
2020-04 and its impact on the Compam ny�s transition away fromff LIBOR for its loan and other financial instrumrr ents.

In February 2rr 020, FASB issued ASU No. 2020-03, �Codification Improvements to Financial Instrumrr ents.� This update
makes narrow-scope changes that are intended to improve the board�s standards for finff ancial instruments accounting,
including the credit losses standard issued in 2016, as part orr f FASB�s ongoing projeo ct to imprmm ove anda clarify its Accounting
Standards Codificff ation and avoid unintended application. ASU No. 2020-03 was effective forff publu ic business entities upou n
issuance of this final update in March 2020. ASU No. 2020-03 did not have a material impact on the Company�s finff ancial
condition or results of operations.

In January 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-01, �Investments�Equity Securities (Topic 321), Investments�Equ� ityt
Method and Joint Ventures (Topic 323), and Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815)�Clarifying the Interactions between
Topic 321, Topic 323, and Topic 815.� The new guidance addresses accounting forff the transition into and out of the equity
method and measuring certain purchased options and forwff ard contracts to acquire investments. ASU No. 2020-01 is
effecff tive for publiu c compam nies forff fiscal years, and interim fiscaff l periods within those fiscal years, beginning after
December 15, 2020; early adoption is permitted. ASU No. 2020-01 was adopted by United on January 1, 2021. The
adoption did not have a material impacm t on the Companm y�s finaff ncial condition or results of operations.

In Novemberm 2019, the FASB issued ASU No. 2019-08, �Compensm ation � Stock Compenm sation (Topic 718) and Revenue
from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Codification Imprm ovements�Share-Based Consideration Payablea to a
Customer.� ASU No. 2019-08 requires companies to measure and classify (on the balance sheet) share-based payments to
customers by appa lying the guidance in Topic 718, Compensation�nn Stock Compem nsation. As a result, the amount recorded
as a reducdd tion in revenue would be measured based on the grant-date fairff value of the share-based payment. The
amendments in this update become effectiff ve for annual periods and interim periods within those annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2019. ASU No. 2019-08 was adopted by United on January 1, 2020. The adoption did not have a
material impact on the Companm y�s finff ancial condition or results of operations.

In April 2019, the FASB issued ASU No. 2019-04, �Codificff ation Improvements to Topic 326, Financial Instrumrr ents �
Credit Losses, Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, and Topic 825, Financial Instruments.� The amendments clarify the
scope of the credit losses standard and address issues related to accrued interest receivabla e balances, recoveries, variabla e
interest rates and prepayments. The amendments also address partial-term fair valued hedges, fair value hedge basis
adjustments. The amendments to the credit losses and hedging standards have the same effectiff ve dates as those standards,
unless an entity has already adopted the standards. The amendments to recognition and measurement guidance are effective
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for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019; early adoption is permirr tted. ASU No. 2019-04 was adopted by United
on January 1, 2020. The adoption did not have a material impact on the Company�s finaff ncial condition or results of
operations.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-14, �Compensation � Retirement Benefits - Defined Benefits � General
(Topic 715-20): Disclosure Framework � Changes to the Disclosure Requirements forff Definff ed Benefit Plans.aa � This update
amends ASC Topic 715 to add, remove, and clarify disclosure requiq rements related to defined benefitff pension and other
post retirement plans. The ASU�s changes related to disclosures are part of the FASB�s disclosure framework project,
which the FASB launched in 2014 to improve effectiveness of disclosures in notes to financial statements. ASU No. 2018-
14 is effective for public companies for fiscal years, and interim fiscal periods within those fiscff al years, beginning after
December 15, 2020; early adoption is permitted. ASU No. 2018-14 was adopted by United on January 1, 2021. The
adoption did not have a material impacm t on the Companm y�s finaff ncial condition or results of operations.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-13, �Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820), Disclosure Framework �
Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement.� This amendment changes the faiff r value
measurement disclosure requirements of ASC Topic 820 and is the result of a broader disclosure projeo ct called FASB
Concepts Statement, Conceptual Framework for Financial Reportirr ng � Chapter 8: Notes to Financia al Statements, which was
finalized in August 2018. ASU No. 2018-13 is effectff ive forff all entities for fiscal years, and interim fisff cal periods within
those fisff cal years, beginning after Decembem r 15, 2019; early adoption is permittett d forff any eliminated or modified disclosure
upon issuance of this ASU. ASU No. 2018-13 was adopted by United on January 1, 2020 and did not have a material impact
on the Company�s finff ancial condition or results of operations.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-04, �Intangibles � Goodwill and Other (Topic 350).� ASU No. 2017-04
eliminates the requirement to calculate thet impliem d faiff r value of goodwill to measure a goodwill impairment charge. Instead,
entities will record an impairment charge based on the excess of a reportinrr g uniu t�s carryrr ing amount over its fairff value. ASU
2017-04 was adopted by United on January 1, 2020. The adoption of ASU 2017-04 did not have a material impact on the
Company�s finff ancial condition or results of operations.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, �Financial Instruments � Credit Losses.� ASU No. 2016-13 changa es the
impairment model forff most financial assets and certain other instruments that are not measured at fair value through net
income. The standard replaces the �incurred loss� approach with an �expected loss� model forff instruments measured at
amortized cost and requires entities to record allowances for available for sale debt securities rathet r that n reduce the carryirr ng
amountu under the current other-than-temporary impairmer nt (OTTI) model. ASU No. 2016-13 also simplifiesff the accounting
model forff purchased credit-impaired debt securities and loans and leases. Entities will appla y the standard�s provisions as a
cumulative-effectff adjud stment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the firff st reporting period in which the guidance is
effectiff ve. United engaged a third-party st ervirr ce provider to assist with the implementation of the new accounting standard.
ASU No. 2016-13 was adopted by United on January 1, 2020 using a modified retrospective appra oach. At the January 1rr ,
2020 date of adoption, based on forff ecasts of macroeconomic conditions and exposures at that time, the aggregate impact to
United was a net increase to the allowance for credit losses of $57,442,000 and a decrease to retained earningsrr of
$44,331,000, with the difference being an adjud stment to deferred tax assets. United has elected to phase-in the impact to
retained earnings using a five-year transition provision, allowed by the Federal Reserve Board and other fedff eral banking
agencies in response to the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, to delay for two years the full impam ct of ASU No. 2016-13
on regulatory cr apital, followed by a three-year transition period. The adoption of ASU No. 2016-13 had an insignificff ant
impact on the Company�s held to maturity and available for sale securities portfolios.

In Februaryrr 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, �Leases (Topic 842)�. ASU No. 2016-02 includes a lessee
accounting model that recognizes two types of leases, finance leases and operating leases, while lessor accounting will
remain largely unchanged from the current GAAP. ASU No. 2016-02 requires, amongst other things, that a lessee recognize
on the balance sheet a right-of-use asset and a lease liability ft orff leases with terms of more than twelve months. The
recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from a lease by a lessee will depend on its
classification as a finff ance or operating lease. In July 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-11 �Leases (Topic 842),
Targeted Improvements.� This update creates an additional transition method, and a lessor practical expedient to not
separate lease and non-lease components if specified criteria are met. The new transition method allows companies to use
the effective date of the new leases standard as the date of initial application transition. Companm ies that elect this transition
option will not adjud st their comparative period financiaa al information forff the effect of ASC Topic 842, nor will thet y make the
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new required lease disclosure forff periods before the effectivff e date. In addition, these companies will carry fr orwff ard their
ASC Topic 840 disclosures for comparm ative periods. The practical expedient permits lessors to make an accounting policy
election by class of underlying asset to not separate lease and non-lease componm ents if specifieff d criteria are met. In July
2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-10 �Codification Improvements to ASC Topic 842, Leases.� This update includes
narrow amendments to clarify hff ow to apply certain aspects of the new leases standard. The amendments address the rate
implicit in the lease, impairmentrr of the net investment in the lease, lessee reassessment of lease classificff ation, lessor
reassessment of lease term and purchase options, variabla e payments that depend on an index or rate and certain transition
adjustments. ASU 2018-10 does not make any substu antive changes to the core provisions or principals of the new leases
standard. United adopted the standard using the modified retrospective tratt nsition methot d on Januarn y 1rr , 2019. The Company
has evaluated and has elected the practical expedients, which allows forff existing leases to be accounted forff consistent with
current guidance, with the exception of the balance sheet recognition for lessees. Adoption of the standard resulted in the
recognition of additional net lease assets and lease liabilities of $67,040,000 and $70,692,000, respectively, as of January 1,
2019. Of the difference between these two amounts, $1,049,000 was recorded as an adjud stment to retained earnings.

NOTE B--MERGERS AND ACQUISITIONS

Community Bt ankers Trust Corporation

On December 3, 2021, United completed its acquisition of Community Btt ankers Trust Corporr ration (�Community Bankers
Trusr t�). Community Bankers Trust was merged with and into United (the �Merger�), pursuant to the terms of the
Agreement and Plan of Reorganization, dated June 2, 2021, by and between United and Community Bt ankers Trust (the
�Agreement�).

Under the termsrr of the Agreement, each outstanding share of common stock of Community Bankers Trust was converterr d
into the right to receive 0.3173 shares of United common stock, par value $2.50 per share. Also, pursuant to the Agreement,
at the effectff ive time of the Merger, each outstanding Community Bankers Trust stock option granted under a Community
Bankers Trust stock plan, whether vested or unvested as of the date of the Merger, vested as provided pursuant to the terms
of such Community Bankers Trust stock plan and converted into an option to acquire United common stock adjusted based
on the 0.3173 exchange ratio. Also, at the effecff tive time of the Merger, each restricted stock unit granted under a
Community Bt ankers Trust stock plan that was outstanding immediately prior to the effecff tive time of the Merger vested in
accordance with the formula and other terms of the Community Bankers Trust stock plan and converted into the right to
receive shares of United common stock based on the 0.3173 exchange ratio.

Immediately following thet Merger, Essex Bank, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Community Bankers Trusrr t, merged with at nda
into United Bank, a wholly-owned subsidiary orr f United (the �Bank Merger�) pursuant to an Agreement and Plan oaa f Merger,
dated June 2, 2021. United Bank survivrr ed the Bank Merger and continues to exist as a Virginia banking corporation.

The Community Bankers Trusrr t Merger was accounted forff under the acquisition method of accounting. The results of
operations of Community Bankers Trusrr t are included in the consolidated results of operations from the Acquisition Date.
The acquisition of Community Bankers Trusrr t will enhance United�s existing presence in the DC Metro MSA and will take
United into new markets including Baltimore, Annapoaa lis, Lynchburg, Richmond, and thet Northet rn Neck of Virginia. It also
strategically connects our Mid-Atlanta ic and Southeast footprints. As of the Acquiq sition Date, Community Bankaa ers Trust had
$1,788,842,000 in total assets, $1,282,997,000 in loans and leases, net of unearned income and $1,517,502,000 in deposits.
For the year of 2021, United recorded acquisition-related costs forff the Community Bt ankers Trust merger of $21,418,000,
including a provision forff credit losses of $12,288,000 forff non-PCD loans.

The aggregate purchase price was approximately $260,304,000, including common stock valued at $252,321,000, stock
options assumed valued at $7,958,000, and cash paid forff fractional shares of $25,000. The number of shares issued in the
transaction was 7,135,771, which were valued based on the closing market price of $35.36 forff United�s common shares on
December 3, 2021. The preliminary prr urchase price has been allocated to the identifiable tangible and intangible assets
resulting in preliminary ar dditions to goodwill, and core deposit intangibles of $76,454,000 and $3,398,000, respectively.
The goodwill recognized results fromff the expected synergies and potential earnings from the combination of United and
Community Bt ankers Trust. The core deposit intangible is expected to be amortized on an accelerated basis over ten years.
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Becausa e the consideration paid was greater than the net fairff value of the acquireq d assets and liabilities, the Company
recorded goodwill as part orr f the acquisition. None of the goodwill froff m the Community Bankers Trust acquisition is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes. United used an independent third party to help determine the fairff values of the
assets and liabia lities acquired fromff Community Bankers Trust.r As a result of the merger, United recorded preliminary fair
value discounts of $8,376,000 on the loans and leases acquired, $230,000 on land acquired, $50,000 on OREO properties
acquireq d and $415,000 on a trust preferred issuance, and premiums of $6,766,000 on investment securities acquired,
$492,000 on buildings acquired, $2,741,000 on interest-bearing deposits, and $457,000 on long-term FHLB advances,
respectively. United also recorded an allowance forff credit losses, including a reserve forff unfunded commitments, of
$25,920,000 on the loans and commitments acquireq d split between $12,788,000 forff purchased credit deteriorated (�PCD�)
loans which is part of the acquisition date fair value, and $13,132,000 forff non-PCD loans recorded to the provision for
credit losses. The discounts and premium amounts, except for discount on the land, OREO and FHLB advances acquired,
are being accreted or amortized on an accelerated or straight-line basis, based on the typeyy of asset or liability, over each
asset�s or liabia lity�s estimated remaining life aff t the time of acquisition. The FHLB advances acquired were subu sequently
repaid prior to year-end. At December 31, 2021, the discount on the trust preferff rerr d issuance had an estimated remaining lifeff
of 12.25 years and the premiums on the buildings, and interest-bearing deposits each had an average estimated remaining
life of 31.25 years, and 5.25 years, respectively.

Portfolio loans and leases acquired from Community Btt ankers Trust were recorded at their fair value at the Acquisq ition Date
based on a discounted cash flowff methodology. The estimated fair value incorporatrr es adjud stments related to market loss
assumptions and prevailing market interest rates for comparable assets and other marketrr factors such as liquidity from the
perspective of a market participant. Also, acquiq red portfrr olff io loans and leases were evaluated upon acquisition and classified
as either PCD, which indicates that the loan has experienced a more-than-insignificant deterioration in credit quality stt ince
origination, or non-PCD. United considered a variety ot f facff tors in evaluating thet acquired loans anda leases for a more-than-a
insignificant deterioration in credit qualq ity,t including but not limited to risk grades, delinquency, nonperforming status,t
current or previous troubled debt restructurintt gs or bankruk ptcuu ies, watch list credits and other qualitative factors that indicated
a deterioration in credit quality since origination. For PCD loans and leases, an initial allowance is determirr ned based on the
same methodology as other portfolio loans and leases. This initial allowanca e forff credit losses is allocated to individuadd l PCD
loans and leases and added to the acquisq ition date fair values to establish the initial amortized cost basis for the PCD loans
and leases. The differff ence between the unpaid principal balance (�UPB�), or par value, of PCD loans and leases and the
amortized cost basis is considered to relate to noncredit factors and resulted in a discountu of $3,561,000 at Acquisition Date.
This discount will be recognized through interest income on a level-yield method over the life off f the loans which is
estimated to be a weighted-average of 5.5 years. For non-PCD acquired loans andaa leases, the differences between thet initial
fair value and the UPB, or par value, are recognized as interest income on a level-yield basis over the lives of the related
loans and leases which is estimated to be a weighted-average of 5.6 years. The total faiff r value mark on the non-PCD loans
and leases at the Acquiq sition Date was $4,815,000. At the Acquisition Date, an initial allowance for expected credit losses
of $12,288,000 was recorded with a corresponding charge to the provision for credit losses in the Consolidated Statements
of Income. Subseu quent changes in the allowance for credit losses related to PCD and non-PCD loans and leases are
recognized in the provision for credit losses.

The folff lowing tablea provides a reconciliation of the difference between the purchase price and the par value of portfolio
PCD loans and leases acquired from Community Bankers Trust as of the Acquisition Date:

(Dollars in thousands)
Purchase price of PCD loans and leases at acquisition $ 360,638
Allowance for credit losses at acquisition 12,629
Non-credit discount at acquisition 3,561
Par value (UPB) of acquired PCD loans and leases at acquisition $ 376,828

The consideration paid forff Community Bankers Trust�s common equity and the preliminary amounts of acquired
identifiabff le assets and liabia lities assumed as of the Community Bankers Trust Acquiq sition Date were as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)
Purchase price:

Value of common shara es issued (7,135,771 shares) $ 252,321
Fair value of stock options assumed 7,958
Cash forff frff actional shares 25

Total purchase price 260,304
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Identifiable assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 39,445
Investment securities 395,249
Net loans and leases 1,279,384
Premises and equipment 25,857
Operating lease right-of-use asset 8,127
Core deposit intangible 3,398
Other assets 51,828

Total identifiable assets $ 1,803,288

Identifiabff le liaba ilities:
Deposits $ 1,520,243
Short-term borrowings 26,755
Long-term borrowings 51,500
Operating lease liaba ility 8,127
Other liabilities 12,813

Total identifiable liabilities 1,619,438
Preliminary faiff r value of net assets acquired including identifiableff intangible assets 183,850
Preliminary resulting goodwill $ 76,454

The operating results of United include operating results of acquired assets and assumed liabila ities subsequent to the
Acquisition Date. The operations of United�s central region of Virginia, which includes most of the acquirq ed operations of
Communituu y Btt ankers Trust provided $2,638,000 in total revenues (net interest income plus other income), and $1,008,000 in
net income for the year of 2021. These amounts are included in United�s consolidated finaff ncial statements as of and for thet
year of 2021. Community Bt ankers Trust�s results of operations prior to the Acquisition Date are not included in United�s
consolidated results of operations.

The following table presents certain unaudited pro formarr information for the results of operations for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, as if the Community Bankers Trust merger had occurred on January 1, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. These results combim ne the historical results of Community Bankers Trust into United�s consolidated statement
of income and, while certain adjustments were made forff the estimated impactm of certain fair valuation adjud stments and othert
acquisition-related activity,t they are not indicative of what would have occurred had the acquisition taken place on the
indicated date nor are they intended to represent or be indicative of futff urt e results of operations. In particular, no adjud stments
have been made to eliminate the amount of Community Bankers Trust�s provision forff credit losses for 2021 and 2020 that
may not have been necessary hrr ad the acquired loans and leases been recorded at fair value as of the beginning of 2021 and
2020. Additionally, United expects to achieve operating cost savings and other business synergies as a result of the
acquisition which are not refleff cted in the pro forma amounts.

Profoff rma
Year Ended
December 31

(Dollars in thousands) 2021 2020

Total Revenues (1) $ 1,099,946 $ 1,120,497
Net Income 396,022 319,176
(1) Represents net interest income plus other income

Carolina Financial Corporation

On May 1, 2020 (�Acquisition Date�), United acquireq d 100% of the outstanding shares of Carolina Financial Corporation
(�Carolina Financial�), a Delaware corporr ation headquartered in Charleston, South Carolina. Carolina Financial was
merged with and into United (the �Merger�), pursuant to the terms of the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated November
17, 2019, by and between United and Carolina Financial (the �Merger Agreement�). Upon completion of the Merger,
Carolina Financial ceased to exist and United survived and continues to exist as a West Virginia corporation.

Under the termsrr of the Merger Agreement, each outstanding share of common stock of Carolina Financial was converted
into the right to receive 1.13 shares of United common stock, par value $2.50 per share. Also pursuant to the Merger
Agreement, as of the effecff tive time of the Merger, each outstanding Carolina Financial stock option, whether vested or
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unvested as of the date of the Merger, at such option holder�s election, (i) vested and converted into an option to acquire
United common stock adjusted based on the 1.13 exchange ratio, or (ii) received cash consideration equal to the diffeff rence
between (a) the option�s exercise price and (b) $28.99, representing the volume weighted average trading price of the
Carolina Financial common stock on NASDAQ for the twenty fullff trading days ending on the second trading day
immediately preceding the closing date (the �CFC Closing Price�) multiplied by thet number of shares of Carolina Financial
common stock subju ect to such stock option. Also, at the effectiff ve time of the Merger, each restricted stock grant, restricted
stock unit grant or any other award of a share of Carolina Financial common stock subject to vesting, repurchase or other
lapsa e restriction under a Carolina Financial stock plan (other than a stock option) (each, a �Stock Award�) that was
outstanding immediately prior to the effectff ive time of the Merger, vested in accordance with the terms of the Carolina
Financial stock plan and at the election of the holder (i) converted into the right to receive shares of United common stock
based on the 1.13 exchange ratio or (ii) converted into cash in an amount equal to the CFC Closing Price multiplied by the
shares of Carolina Financial common stock subjeu ct to the Stock Award.

Immediately follff owing the Merger, CresCom Bank, a wholly-owned subsidiary orr f Carolina Financial, merged with and into
United Bank, a wholly-owned subsidiary of United (the �Bank Merger�). United Bank survived the Bank Merger and
continues to exist as a Virginia banking corporation. CresCom Bank owned and operated Crescent Mortgage Company
(�Crescent�), which is based in Atlanta, Georgia. As a result of the Bank Merger, Crescent became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of United Bank. For the year of 2021, United did not record any acquisition-related costs associated with the
Carolina Financial Merger as compared to acquisiqq tion-related costs of $54,240,000, including a provision forff credit losses of
$28,948,000 forff non-PCD loans, for the year of 2020.

The Carolina Financial Merger was accounted for under the acquisiq tion method of accounting. The results of operations of
Carolina Financial are included in the consolidated results of operations from the Acquisition Date. The acquisition of
Carolina Financial provided United the opportunt ity to expand its existing fooff tprint in North Carolina and South Carolina.
Carolina Financial had banking locations in North Carolina and South Carolina. As of the Acquisition Date, Carolina
Financial had $5,004,990,000 in total assets, $3,292,635,000 in loans and leases, net of unearned income and
$3,873,183,000 in deposits.

The aggregate purchase price was approximately $817,877,000, including common stock valued at $815,997,000, stock
options assumed valued at $1,833,000, and cash paid forff fractional shares of $47,000. The number of shares issued in the
transaction was 28,031,501, which were valued based on the closing marketrr price of $29.11 forff United�s common shares on
May 1, 2020. The purchase price was allocated to the identifiablea tangible and intangible assets resulting in additions to
goodwill, core deposit intangibles and the Crescent trade name intangible of $332,026,000, $3,408,000 and $196,000,
respectively. The goodwill recognized results fromff the expected synergies and potential earnings from the combim nation of
United and Carolina Financial. The core deposit intangible is being amortized on an accelerated basis over ten years. The
Crescent trade name provides a source of market recognition to attract potential clients and retain existing relationships.
United believes the Crescent trade name provides a competitive advantage anda is likely going to be used into perperr tuity att nda
thus will not be subjeb ct to amortization, but rather be evaluated forff impairment.

Becausa e the consideration paid was greater than the net fair value of the acquiq red assets and liabila ities, the Company
recorded goodwill as part of the acquiq sition. None of the goodwill fromff the Carolina Financial acquisq ition is expected to be
deducdd tible for tax purposes. United used an independent third party to help determirr ne the faiff r values of the assets and
liabila ities acquiq red froff m Carolina Financial. As a result of the merger, United recorded fair value discounts of $47,425,000
on the loans and leases acquired, $620,000 on investment securities, $272,000 on OREO, $4,831,000 on trust preferred
issuanca es and $135,000 on subordinated notes, respectively, and premiums of $5,908,000 on buildings acquired, $4,357,000
on land acquired, $12,818,000 on interest-bearing deposits, and $468,000 on long-term FHLB advances, respectively.
United also recorded an allowance for credit losses, including a reserve forff unfunded commitments, of $50,562,000 on the
loans and commitments acquired split between $19,797,000 for purchased credit deteriorated (�PCD�) loans and
$30,765,000 for non-PCD loans. The discounts and premium amounts, except forff discount on the land and OREO acquired,
are being accreted or amortized on an accelerated or straight-line basis, based on the typeyy of asset or liability, over each
asset�s or liabila ity�s estimated remaining life at the time of acquisition. At December 31, 2021, the discounts on
subordinated debt and trust preferred issuances had an average estimated remaining life of 6.00 years and 15.25 years,
respectively, and the premiums on the buildings, and interest-bearing deposits each had an aa vera age estimated remaining lifeff
of 30.00 years, and 3.60 years, respectively. The estimated fairff values of the acquired assets and assumed liabila ities,
including identifiablea intangible assets and goodwill were considered final as of June 30, 2021.
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Portfolio loans and leases acquired froff m Carolina Financial were recorded at their fair value at the Acquisition Date based
on a discounted cash flow methodology. The estimated fairff value incorporr ates adjusd tments related to market loss
assumptions and prevailing market interest rates for comparable assets and other markerr t factff ors such as liquidity from the
perspective of a market participant. Also, acquiq red portforr lio loans and leases were evaluated upon acquisition and classified
as either PCD, which indicates that the loan has experienced a more-than-insignificant deterioration in credit qualitytt since
origination, or non-PCD. United considered a variety ot f facff tors in evaluating thet acquiq red loansa and leases forff a more-than-a
insignificant deterioration in credit qualq ity,t including but not limited to risk grades, delinquency, nonperforming status,
current or previous troubled debt restructuringstt or bankruk ptcuu ies, watch list credits and other qualitative factors that indicated
a deterioration in credit quality since origination. For PCD loans and leases, an initial allowance is determirr ned based on the
same methodology as other portfolio loans and leases. This initial allowanca e forff credit losses is allocated to individuadd l PCD
loans and leases and added to the acquisq ition date fair values to establish the initial amortized cost basis for the PCD loans
and leases. The differff ence between the unpaid principal balance (�UPB�), or par value, of PCD loans and leases and the
amortized cost basis is considered to relate to noncredit factors and resulted in a discountu of $7,212,000 at Acquisition Date.
This discount was recognized through interest income on a level-yield method over the life off f the loans which is estimated
to be a weighted-average of 4.6 years. For non-PCD acquired loans and leases, the differenff ces between the initial fairff value
and the UPB, or par value, were recognized as interest income on a level-yield basis over the lives of the related loans and
leases which was estimated to be a weighted-average of 7.3 years. The total fairff value mark orr n the non-PCD loans and
leases at the Acquisition Date was $40,213,000. At the Acquisition Date, an initial allowance for expected credit losses of
$28,948,000 was recorded with a correspor nding charge to the provision for credit losses in the Consolidated Statements of
Income. Subsequent changes in thet allowance forff credit losses related to PCD and non-PCD loans and leases are recognized
in the provision for credit losses.

The follff owing table provides a reconciliation of the difference between the purchase price and the par value of portfolio
PCD loans and leases acquired from Carolina Financial as of the Acquisition Date:

(Dollars(( in thousands)
Purchase price of PCD loans and leases at acquisition $ 1,023,531
Allowance for credit losses at acquisition 18,635
Non-credit discount at acquisition 7,212
Par value (UPB) of acquired PCD loans and leases at acquisition $ 1,049,378

The consideration paid forff Carolina Financial�s common equity and the amounts of acquired identifiabla e assets and
liabila ities assumed as of the Carolina Financial Acquisition Date were as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)
Purchase price:

Value of common shares issued (28,031,501 shares) $ 815,997
Fair value of stock options assumed 1,833
Cash forff frff actional shares 47

Total purchase price 817,877

Identifiable assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 629,154
Investment securities 580,791
Loans held foff r sale 65,757
Net loans and leases 3,246,940
Premises and equipment 79,127
Operating lease right-of-uff se asset 9,861
Crescent trade name intangible 196
Core deposit intangible 3,408
Mortgage servicing rights 20,123
Other assets 159,218

Total identifiable assets $ 4,794,575

Identifiabff le liaba ilities:
Deposits $ 3,884,977
Short-term borrowings 332,000
Long-term borrowings 42,738



97

Operating lease liaba ility 9,861
Other liabilities 39,148

Total identifiable liabilities 4,308,724
Fair value of net assets acquired including identifiable intangible assets 485,851
Resulting goodwill $ 332,026

The operating results of United include operating results of acquired assets and assumed liabila ities subsequent to the
Acquisition Date. The operations of United�s North Carolina and South Carolina geographia c area, which includes the
acquireq d operations of Carolina Financial and Crescent Mortgage provided $198,234,000 in total revenues (net interest
income plus other income), and $100,242,000 in net income for the year of 2021. These amounts are included in United�s
consolidated finff ancial statements as of and forff the year of 2021. Carolina Financial�s results of operations prior to the
Acquisition Date are not included in United�s consolidated results of operations.

NOTE C--INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Securities Availabla e forff Sale

Securities held for indefinite periods of time are classifieff d as available forff sale and carried at estimated fair value. The
amortized cost and estimated fair values of securities availabla e forff sale are summarized as follows.

December 31, 2021
Gross Gross Allowance Estimated

(Dollars in thousands) Amortized Unrealized Unrealized For Credit Fair
Cost Gains Losses Losses Value

U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S.
Government corporations and agencies $ 82,136 $ 51 $ 337 $ 0 $ 81,850

State and political subdivisions 831,499 19,608 3,809 0 847,298
Residential mortgage-backed securities

Agency 1,120,423 9,173 15,822 0 1,113,774
Non-agency 74,965 306 726 0 74,545

Commercial mortgagrr e-backed securities
Agency 633,802 12,731 6,608 0 639,925

Asset-backed securities 659,830 49 3,307 0 656,572
Single issue trust preferredff securities 17,291 146 626 0 16,811
Other corporr rate securities 611,548 3,558 3,182 0 611,924
Total $ 4,031,494 $ 45,622 $ 34,417 $ 0 $ 4,042,699

December 31, 2020
Gross Gross Allowance Estimated

(Dollars in thousands) Amortized Unrealized Unrealized For Credit Fair
Cost Gains Losses Losses Value

U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S.
Government corporations and agencies $ 65,804 $ 543 $ 3 $ 0 $ 66,344

State and political subdivisions 538,082 27,330 252 0 565,160
Residential mortgage-backed securities

Agency 905,230 24,134 473 0 928,891
Non-agency 21,639 137 0 0 21,776

Commercial mortgagrr e-backed securities
Agency 644,774 31,009 638 0 675,145

Asset-backed securities 297,834 204 3,415 0 294,623
Single issue trust preferredff securities 18,230 167 1,370 0 17,027
Other corporate securities 376,753 7,648 8 0 384,393
Total $ 2,868,346 $ 91,172 $ 6,159 $ 0 $ 2,953,359
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For the adoption of ASC Topic 326, �Financial Instrumrr ents�Credit Losses,� United made a policy election to exclude
accruedrr interest from the amortized cost basis of availabla e-for-ff sale debt securities and report accrued interest separately in
�Accrued interest receivable� in the consolidated balance sheets. Availabla e-for-ff sale debt securities are placed on non-
accrual statust when we no longer expect to receive all contractualtt amounts due, which is generally at 90 days past due.
Accrued interest receivablea is reversed against interest income when a security is placed on non-accrualrr status.tt Accordingly,
United does not currently recognize an allowance forff credit loss against accruedr interest receivable on availabla e-forff -sale
debt securities. The tabla e aboa ve excludes accrued interest receivable of $15,353,000 anda $10,663,000 at December 31, 2021
and Decemberm 31, 2020, respectively, that is recorded in �Accrued interest receivable.�

The following is a summary orr f securities available for sale which were in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2021
and Decemberm 31, 2020.

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

(Dollars in thousands) Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

December 31, 2021
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of

U.S. Government corporations and
agencies $ 75,106 $ 334 $ 213 $ 3 $ 75,319 $ 337

State and political subdivisions 223,754 2,872 24,067 937 247,821 3,809
Residential mortgage-backed securities

Agency 680,320 13,167 71,392 2,655 751,712 15,822
Non-agency 55,336 726 0 0 55,336 726

Commercial mortgrr age-backed securities
Agency 136,071 2,912 70,543 3,696 206,614 6,608

Asset-backed securities 532,373 2,620 82,222 687 614,595 3,307
Trust preferreff d collateralized debt

obligations 0 0 0 0 0 0
Single issue trust preferredff securities 0 0 13,594 626 13,594 626
Other corporr rate securities 307,912 3,182 0 0 307,912 3,182
Total $ 2,010,872 $ 25,813 $ 262,031 $ 8,604 $ 2,272,903 $ 34,417

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

(Dollars in thousands) Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

December 31, 2020
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of

U.S. Government corporations and
agencies $ 297 $ 3 $ 0 $ 0 $ 297 $ 3

State and political subdivisions 30,480 252 0 0 30,480 252
Residential mortgage-backed securities

Agency 131,114 467 3,867 6 134,981 473
Non-agency 0 0 0 0 0 0

Commercial mortgagrr e-backed securities
Agency 83,395 638 0 0 83,395 638

Asset-backed securities 0 0 266,104 3,415 266,104 3,415
Trust preferff red collateralized debt

obligations 0 0 0 0 0 0
Single issue trust preferredff securities 0 0 13,804 1,370 13,804 1,370
Other corporr rate securities 8,494 8 0 0 8,494 8
Total $ 253,780 $ 1,368 $ 283,775 $ 4,791 $ 537,555 $ 6,159
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The folff lowing table shows the proceeds from maturities, sales and calls of available forff sale securities and the gross realized
gains and losses on sales and calls of those securities that have been included in earnings as a result of any sales and calls.
Gains or losses on sales and calls of availablea for sale securities were recognized by the specific identificff ation method.

Year Ended
(In(( thousands)dd 2021 2020 2019
Proceeds from maturities, sales and calls $ 731,902 $ 708,068 $ 712,557
Gross realized gains 1,673 4,618 1,542
Gross realized losses 122 2,116 1,445

At December 31, 2021, gross unrealized losses on available for sale securities were $34,417,000 on 562 securities of a total
portfolio of 1,489 available for sale securities. Securities with the most significff ant gross unrealized losses at December 31,
2021 consisted primarily of agency residential mortgage-backed securities and agency commercial mortgage-backed
securities.

In determining whether or not a security is impaired, management considered the severity of the loss in conjunction with
United�s positive intent and the more likely than not abia lity to hold these securities to recovery or f their cost basis or
maturity.

State and political subdivisions

United�s state and political subdivisions portfolio relates to securities issued by various municipalities located throughout
the United States. The total amortized cost of available forff sale state and political subdivision securities was $831,499,000
at Decemberm 31, 2021. As of December 31, 2021, approximately 53% of the portfolirr o was supported by the general
obligation of the issuing municipality, which allows forff the securities to be repaid by any means availablea to the
municipality. The majoria ty of the portfoliff o was rated AA or higher, and no securities within the portfolio were rated below
investment grade as of December 31, 2021. In addition to monitoring the credit ratings of these securities, management also
evaluates the financial perforff marr nce of the underlying issuers on an ongoing basis. Based upon manaa gement�s anaa lysis anda
judgment, it was determined that none of the state and political subdivision securities had credit losses at Decemberm 31,
2021.

Agency mc ortgage-backed securities

United�s agency mortgage-backed securities portfolff io relates to securities issued by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, and Ginnie
Mae. The total amortized cost of availablea for sale agency mortgage-backed securities was $1,754,225,000 at December 31,
2021. Of the $1,754,225,000 amount, $633,802,000 was related to agency commercial mortgage-backed securities and
$1,120,423,000 was related to agency residential mortgage-backed securities. Each of the agency mortgage-backed
securities provides a guarantee of full and timely payments of principal and interest by the issuing agency. Based upon
management�s analysis and judgment, it was determined that none of the agency mortgage-backed securities had credit
losses at December 31, 2021.

Non-agency residential mortgage-backedkk securities

United�s non-agency residential mortgage-backed securities portfolio relates to securities of various private labea l issuers.
The total amortized cost of availablea for sale non-agency residential mortgage-backed securities was $74,965,000 at
December 31, 2021. Of the $74,965,000, 100% was rated AAA. Based upon management�s analysis and judgment, it was
determined that none of the non-agency residential mortgage-backed securities had credit losses at December 31, 2021.

Asset-backed securities

As of Decemberm 31, 2021, United�s asset-backed securities portfolio had a total amortized cost balance of $659,830,000.
The entire portfrr oliff o was investment grade rated as of Decemberm 31, 2021. Approximately 48% of the portfolio relates to
securities that are backed by Federal Family Education Loan Program (�FFELP�) student loan collateral which includes a
minimumm of a 97% government repayment guaranty,t as well as additional credit support and subordination in excess of the
government guaranteed portion. Approximately 52% of the portfolio relates to collateralized loan oa bligation securities that
are all AAA rated. Upon reviewing this portfrr olff io as of December 31, 2021, it was determined that none of the asset-backed
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securities had credit losses.

Single issii ue trust prefee rred securities

The majoria ty of United�s single issue trusr t preferred portfrr oliff o consists of obligations froff m large cap ba anks (i.e. banks with
market capia talization in excess of $10 billion). All single issue trust preferred securities are currently receiving interest
payments. The amortized cost of availablea for sale single issue trust preferreff d securities as of Decembem r 31, 2021 consisted
of $8,456,000 in investment grade bonds, $3,070,000 in split rated bonds, and $5,765,000 in unrated bonds. Management
reviews each issuer�s current and projected earnings trends, asset quality, capitalization levels, and other key facff tors. UpoU n
completing the review for the fouff rth quaq rter of 2021, it was determined that none of the single issue trust preferred
securities had credit losses.

Corporate securities

As of December 31, 2021, United�s Corpor rate securities portfolio had a total amortized cost balance of $611,548,000. The
majority of the portfoliff o consisted of debt issuances of corporrr ations representing a variety of industries, including finff ancial
institutions. Of the $611,548,000, 87% had at least one rating above investment grade, 2% was below investment grade
rated, and 11% was unrated. For corporrr ate securities, management has evaluated thet near-term prospects of the investment
in relation to the severity of any unrealized loss. Based upou n management�s analysis and judgment, it was determined that
none of the corporar te securities had credit losses at December 31, 2021.

The amortized cost and estimated fairff value of securities availabla e forff sale at December 31, 2021 by contractuat l maturtt ity are
shown below. Expected maturitit es may diffeff r fromff contractualtt maturt ities because the issuers may have the right to call or
prepay obligations without penalties.

Maturit ties of mortgage-backed securities with an amortized cost of $1,829,190,000 and an estimated faiff r value of
$1,828,244,000 at Decemberm 31, 2021 are included below based upon contractuat l maturity.

Estimated
(In thousands) Amortized Fair

Cost Value
Due in one year or less $ 126,032 $ 126,564
Due after one year through five years 661,627 670,298
Due after five years through ten years 940,031 941,640
Due after ten years 2,303,804 2,304,197
Total $ 4,031,494 $ 4,042,699

Equity securities at fair value

Equity securities consist mainly of equity securities of financial institutions and mutuat l funff ds within a rabbi trust for the
payment of benefits under a deferred compem nsation plan forff certain key officers of United and its subsidiaries. The fair
value of United�s equity st ecurities was $12,404,000 at December 31, 2021 and $10,718,000 at December 31, 2020.

Year Ended
(In thousandsdd )s December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Net gains recognized during the period on equity securities sold $ 788 $ 579
Unrealized gains recognized during the period on equity securities still held at period end 69 147
Unrealized losses recognized during the period on equity securities still held at period end (187) (75)
Net gains recognized during the period $ 670 $ 651

Other investment securities

During the fouff rth quarter of 2021, United evaluated all of its cost method investments to determine if certain events or
changes in circumstances durd ing the fourth quarter of 2021 had a significaff nt adverse effect on the fairff value of any of its
cost method securities. United determined that t there was no individual security ttt hat t experienced an adverse event during the
fourth quarter. There were no other events or changes in circumstances during the fourtff h quaq rter which would have an
adverse effecff t on the fair value of its cost method securities.
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The carrying value of securities pledged to secure publu ic deposits, securities sold under agreements to repurchase, and for
other purporr ses as required or permitted by law, approximated $1,871,328,000 and $1,942,087,000 at Decembem r 31, 2021
and Decemberm 31, 2020, respectively.

The fair value of mortgage-backed securities is affected by changes in interest rates and prepaymaa ent speeds. When interest
rates decline, prepayment speeds generally accelerate dued to homeowners refinancing their mortgages at lower interest rates.
This may result in the proceeds being reinvested at lower interest rates. Rising interest rates may decrease the assumed
prepayment speed. Slower prepayment speeds may extend the maturity of the security beyond its estimated maturity.
Therefore, investors may not be abla e to invest at current higher market rates due to the extended expected maturity of the
security. United had a net unrealized loss of $946,000 at December 31, 2021 and a net unrealized gain of $54,169,000 at
December 31, 2020 on all mortgage-backed securities.

NOTE D�LOANS AND LEASES

Majoa r classes of loans and leases are as follows:

(In tII housands)tt December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Commercial, finff ancial and agricultural:

Owner-occupied commercial real estate $ 1,733,176 $ 1,622,687
Nonowner-occupied commercial real estate 5,957,288 5,017,727
Other commercial 3,462,361 4,054,418

Total commercial, finanff cial & agriculturu al 11,152,825 10,694,832
Residential real estate 3,691,560 3,899,885
Construction & land development 2,014,165 1,826,349
Consumer:

Bankcard 8,913 8,937
Other consumer 1,183,844 1,192,580

Less: Unearned income (27,659) (31,170)
Total gross loans $ 18,023,648 $ 17,591,413

The tabla e abovea does not include loans held forff sale of $504,416,000 and $718,937,000 at December 31, 2021 and
December 31, 2020, respectively. Loans held forff sale consist of single-family residential real estate loans originated forff sale
in the secondary market.

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, loans-in-process of $112,109,000 and $57,214,000 and overdraftsff from deposit accountu s
of $14,270,000 and $42,193,000, respectively, are included within the approa priate loan classifications above. The
outstanding loan balances in the table above also include unamortizrr ed loan fees of $66,081,000 and $91,562,000 at
December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.

United's subsidiary br ank has made loans, in the normal course of business, to the directors and officff ers of United and its
subsidiaries, and to their associates. The aggregate dollar amount of these loans was $32,990,000 and $35,756,000 at
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. During 2021, $3,435,000 of new loans were made and repayments totaled
$6,201,000.

NOTE E--CREDIT QUALITY

Management monitors the credit quality of its loans and leases on an ongoing basis. Measurement of delinquency and past
due statust are based on the contractualt termsrr of each loan. United considers a loan to be past due when it is 30 days or more
past its contractual payment due date.

For all loan classes, past dued loans and leases are reviewed on a monthly basis to identify lff oans and leases forff nonaccrual
status. Generally, when collection in full of the principal and interest is jeopardized, the loan is placed on nonaccrualrr status.
The accrual of interest income on commercial and most consumer loans generally is discontinued when a loan becomes 90
to 120 days past due as to principal or interest. However, regardless of delinquenq cy status, if a loan is fulff ly secured and in
the process of collection and resolution of collection is expected in the near term (generally less than 9a 0 days), then the loan
will not be placed on nonaccrualrr statustt . When interest accruals are discontinuen d, unpan id interest recognized in income in the
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current year is reversed, and unpaid interest accrued in prior years is charged to the allowance for credit losses. United's
method of income recognition forff loans and leases that are classified as nonaccrualrr is to recognize interest income on a cash
basis or appla y the cash receipt to principal when the ultimate collectibility of principal is in doubt. Nonaccrual loans and
leases will not normally be returned to accrual status unless all past due principal and interest has been paid and the
borrower has evidenced their ability to meet the contractual provisions of the note. Generally, a loan is categorized as a
TDR if a concession is granted and there is deterioration in the finff ancial condition of the borrower. The portfoliff o of TDR
loans is monitored monthly.

In response to the coronavirus (�COVID-19�) pandemic and its economic impacm t on our customers, United implemented a
short-term modification program that complm ied with the Coronavirusrr Aid, Relief, aff ndaa Economic Security (tt �CARES�) Act to
provide temporary payment relief to those borrorr wers directly impacted by COVID-19 who were not more than 30 days past
due as of December 31, 2019. This program allowed forff a deferral of payments from the period beginning March 1, 2020
until the earlier of January 1, 2022 or the date that is 60 days after the date on which the national emergency concerning the
COVID-19 outbreak terminates. As provided for under the CARES Act, these loan modificff ations are exempt by law fromff
classification as a TDR as defined by GAAP. As of December 31, 2021, United has 188 eligible loan modifications in
deferraff l under section 4013, �Temporary Rrr elief fromff Troublu ed Debt Restructuritt ngs,� of the CARES Act on $18,039,000 of
loans outstanding, down significff antly fromff 1,002 eligible loan modifications in deferralff on $399,857,000 of loans
outstanding at December 31, 2020.

As of December 31, 2021, United had TDRs of $35,856,000. Of the $35,856,000 aggregate balance of TDRs at December
31, 2021, $22,421,000 was on nonaccrual and $102,000 was 90 days or more daysaa past due. As of December 31, 2020,
United had TDRs of $55,657,000. Of the $55,657,000 aggregate balance of TDRs at December 31, 2020, $41,185,000 was
on nonaccrual and $197,000 was 30-89 days past dued . All these amounts are included in the appropriate categories in the
�Age Analysis of Past Due Loans� tabla e on a subsequent page. As of December 31, 2021, there was a commitment to lend
additional funds of $110,000 to a debtor owing a receivable whose termsrr have been modified in a TDR. During the year of
2021, advances totaling $14,000 were made to this debtor under a loan that had been previously modified. No advances
were made to this debtor during the year of 2021 under a loan that had been previously modifiedff .

The folff lowing tables sets forthrr the balances of TDRs at December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 and the reasons for
modification:

(In thousands)
Reason for modification December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Interest rate reducd tion $ 3,163 $ 10,774
Interest rate reduction and change in terms 1,412 2,346
Forgiveness of principal 0 214
Concession of principal and term 19 22
Extended maturity 4,831 4,414
Transferff of asset 5,407 0
Change in terms 21,024 37,887

Total $ 35,856 $ 55,657

The following table sets forth United�s troubled debt restructurit ngs that have been restructured during the year ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, segregated by class of loans:

Troubled Debt Restructurings
For the Year Ended

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

(Dollars in thousands)s Number of
Contracts

Pre-
Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Post-
Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Number of
Contracts

Pre-
Modificff ation
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Post-
Modificff ation
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Commercial real estate:
Owner-occupied 5 $ 2,155 $ 2,293 21 $ 18,579 $ 16,659
Nonowner-occupied 3 6,362 6,130 7 2,577 2,525

Other commercial 2 328 328 21 3,830 2,858
Residential real estate 9 1,660 1,651 22 4,271 3,284
Constructionrr & land 0 0 0 13 4,607 3,760
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Troubled Debt Restructurings
For the Year Ended

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

(Dollars in thousands)s Number of
Contracts

Pre-
Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Post-
Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Number of
Contracts

Pre-
Modificff ation
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

Post-
Modificff ation
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

development
Consumer:

Bankcard 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other consumer 0 0 0 3 69 20

Total 19 $ 10,505 $ 10,402 87 $ 33,933 $ 29,106

The following table sets forth United�s troubled debt restructurtt ings, based on their post-modificff ation outstanding recorded
balance, that have been restructured duringd the year ended Decemberm 31, 2021 and 2020, segregated by the reason for
modificff ation:

Year Ended
(In thousands)
Reason forff modification

December 31,
2021

December 31,
2020

Interest rate reducd tion $ 155 $ 9,560
Interest rate reduction and change in termsr 1,412 662
Forgiveness of principal 0 214
Concession of principal and term 0 22
Transfer of asset 5,407 0
Extended maturity 2,754 4,414
Change in terms 674 14,234

Total $ 10,402 $ 29,106

The loansa and leases were evaluated individually forff allocation withit n United�s allowance for loan losses. The modificatiaa ons
had an immaterial impact on the finff ancial condition and results of operations for United.

The folff lowing table presents troubled debt restrucr turings, by class of loan, that had charge-offs during the year ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020. These loans were restructured during the twelve months ended Decemberm 31, 2021 anda 2020
and subsu equenq tly defaula ted, resulting in principal charge-offs dff uring the year of 2021 and 2020. The recorded investment
amounts presented were as of the December 31, 2021 and 2020 balance sheet dates.

Year Ended
December 31, 2021

Year Ended
December 31, 2020

(In thousands) Number of
Contracts

Recorded
Investment

Number of
Contracts

Recorded
Investment

Troubled Debt Restructurings
Commercial real estate:
Owner-occupied 0 $ 0 0 $ 0
Nonowner-occupieu d 0 0 0 0

Other commercial 0 0 0 0
Residential real estate 1 0 0 0
Construction & land development 2 0 1 690
Consumer:
Bankcard 0 0 0 0
Other consumer 0 0 0 0

Total 3 $ 0 1 $ 690
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The following table sets forth United�s age analysis of its past due loans and leases, segregated by class of loans and leases:
Age Analysis of Past Due Loans and Leases

As of December 31, 2021

(In thousands) 30-89 Days
Past Due

90 Days or
more Past

Due
Total Past

Due
Current &
Other

Total
Financing
Receivables

90 Days or
More Past
Due &
Accruing

Commercial real estate:
Owner-occupied $ 7,522 $ 13,325 $ 20,847 $ 1,712,329 $ 1,733,176 $ 611
Nonowner-occupied 5,791 18,829 24,620 5,932,668 5,957,288 545

Other commercial 21,444 15,883 37,327 3,425,034 3,462,361 6,569
Residential real estate 19,488 23,495 42,983 3,648,577 3,691,560 8,241
Construction & land

development 6,599 3,096 9,695 2,004,470 2,014,165 383
Consumer:
Bankcard 100 187 287 8,626 8,913 187
Other consumer 17,264 2,615 19,879 1,163,965 1,183,844 2,445

Total $ 78,208 $ 77,430 $ 155,638 $ 17,895,669 $ 18,051,307 $ 18,981

Age Analysis of Past Due Loans and Leases
As of December 31, 2020

(In thousands) 30-89 Days
Past Due

90 Days or
more Past

Due
Total Past

Due
Current &
Other

Total
Financing
Receivables

90 Days or
More Past
Due &
Accruing

Commercial real estate:
Owner-occupied $ 4,556 $ 28,479 $ 33,035 $ 1,589,652 $ 1,622,687 $ 0
Nonowner-occupied 6,837 29,292 36,129 4,981,598 5,017,727 1,284

Other commercial 13,796 26,274 40,070 4,014,348 4,054,418 1,001
Residential real estate 32,743 24,892 57,635 3,842,250 3,899,885 8,574
Construction & land

development 1,919 5,885 7,804 1,818,545 1,826,349 461
Consumer:
Bankcard 362 156 518 8,419 8,937 156
Other consumer 14,765 2,757 17,522 1,175,058 1,192,580 2,356

Total $ 74,978 $ 117,735 $ 192,713 $ 17,429,870 $ 17,622,583 $ 13,832

The following table sets forthrr United�s nonaccrualrr loans and leases, segregated by class of loans and leases:

At December 31, 2021 At December 31, 2020

(In thousands)dd Nonaccruals

With No
Related

Allowance
for Credit
Losses

90 Days or
More Past
Due &

Accruing Nonaccruals

With No
Related

Allowance for
Credit Losses

90 Days or
More Past
Due &
Accruing

Commercial Real Estate:
Owner-occupied $ 12,714 $ 12,714 $ 611 $ 28,479 $ 28,479 $ 0
Nonowner-occupied 18,284 18,284 545 28,008 16,070 1,284

Other Commercial 9,314 8,261 6,569 25,273 13,149 1,001
Residential Real Estate 15,254 14,298 8,241 16,318 14,769 8,574
Construction 2,713 2,713 383 5,424 4,484 461
Consumer: 0 0
Bankcard 0 0 187 0 0 156
Other consumer 170 170 2,445 401 401 2,356

Total $ 58,449 $ 56,440 $ 18,981 $ 103,903 $ 77,352 $ 13,832

Interest income recognized on nonaccruarr l loans was insignificant during the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

For the adoption of ASC Topic 326, United elected the practical expedient to measure expected credit losses on collateral
dependent loans and leases based on the difference between the loan�s amortized cost and the collateral�s fairff value,
adjud sted forff selling costs. The following tablea presents the amortirr zed cost basis of collateral-dependent loans and leases in
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which repayment is expected to be derived substantially through the operation or sale of the collateral and where the
borrower is experiencing financial diffiff culty, by class of loans and leases as of December 31, 2021 anda December 31, 2020:

Collateral Dependent Loans and Leases
At December 31, 2021

(In thousands) Residential
Property

Business
Assets Land

Commercial
Property Other Total

Commercial real estate:
Owner-occupied $ 0 $ 38 $ 0 $ 9,775 $ 11,223 $ 21,036
Nonowner-occupied 7,085 0 703 8,665 52,299 68,752

Other commercial 2,093 15,225 0 0 732 18,050
Residential real estate 16,749 0 0 0 0 16,749
Construction & land

development 0 0 4,770 0 1,103 5,873
Consumer:

Bankcard 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other consumer 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total $ 25,927 $ 15,263 $ 5,473 $ 18,440 $ 65,357 $ 130,460

Collateral Dependent Loans and Leases
At December 31, 2020

(In thousands) Residential
Property

Business
Assets Land

Commercial
Property Other Total

Commercial real estate:
Owner-occupied $ 1,480 $ 138 $ 0 $ 18,097 $ 21,737 $ 41,452
Nonowner-occupied 16,400 0 2,898 10,167 18,230 47,695

Other commercial 5,424 20,429 0 258 2,345 28,456
Residential real estate 21,006 229 34 0 803 22,072
Construction & land

development 39 0 17,408 0 746 18,193
Consumer:
Bankcard 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other consumer 0 0 0 0 1 1

Total $ 44,349 $ 20,796 $ 20,340 $ 28,522 $ 43,862 $ 157,869

United categorizes loans and leases into risk categories based on relevant information aboa ut the ability of borrowers to
service their debt: current finff ancial information, historical paymea nt experience, credit documentation, underlying collateral
(if any), public inforff mation and current economic trends, among other factors.

United uses the following definitff ions for risk ratings:

 Pass
 Special Mention
 Substandard
 Doubtful

For United�s loans with a corporate credit exposure, United anaa lyzes loans individually to classify tff het loans as to credit risk.
Review and analysis of criticized (special mention-rated loans in the amount of $1,000,000 or greater) and classified
(substandard-rated and worse in the amount of $500,000 and greater) loans is completed once per quarter. Review of notes
with committed exposure of $2,000,000 or greater is completed at least annually. For loans with a consumer credit
exposure, United internally assigns a grade based upouu n an iaa ndividuadd l loan�s delinquency status.t United reviews and updu ates,
as necessary, these grades on a quarterly basis.

Special mention loans, with a corporatrr e credit exposure, have potential weaknesses that deserve management�s close
attention. If left uff ncorrectr ed, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of thet repayment prospects for the loansa
or in the Company�s credit position at some future date. Borrowers may be experiencing adverse operating trends (declining
revenues or margins) or an ill proportioned balance sheet (e.g., increasing inventory wrr ithout an increase in sales, high
leverage, tight liquidity). Adverse economic or marketrr conditions, such as interest rate increases or the entry of a new
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competitor, may also suppu ort arr special mention rating. Nonfinff ancial reasons forff rating a credit exposure special mention
include management problems, pending litigation, an ineffectivff e loan agreement or other material strut ctural weaknekk ss, and
any other significant deviation froff m prudent lending practices. For loans with a consumer credit exposure, loans that are
past due 30-89 days are generally considered special mention.

A substandard loan with a corporar te credit exposure is inadequatq ely protected by the current sound worth and paying
capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any.aa Loans so classified havea a well-definff ed weaknekk ss, or weakneskk ses,
that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt by the borrower. They are characterized by the distinct possibility that the
Company will sustain some loss if the deficff iencies are not corrected. They require more intensive supervu ision by
management. Substandard loans are generally characterized by current or expected unpu rofitff able operations, inadequate debt
service coverage, inadequate liquiq dity, or marginal capita alization. Repayment may depend on collateral or other credit risk
mitigants. For some subsu tandard loans, the likelihood of fullff collection of interest and principal may be in doubt and thus,
placed on nonaccrual. For loans with a consumer credit exposure, loans that are 90 days or more past dued or that have been
placed on nonaccrual are considered substandard.

A loan with corporar te credit exposure is classified as doubtfulff if it has all the weaknesses inherent in one classified as
substandard with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection in fulff l, on the basis of currently existing
facts, conditions, and values, highly queq stionabla e. A doubtfu ulff loan has a high probabia lity of total or substantial loss, but
because of specificff pending events that t may strengthen the loan, its classification as loss is deferred. Doubtu ful borror wers are
usually in defauff lt, lack adequate liquiq dity or capital, and lack thet resources necessary to remain an oa perating entity.tt Pending
events can include mergers, acquisitions, liquidations, capital injecn tions, the perfection of liens on additional collateral, thett
valuation of collateral, and refinancing. Generally, there are not any loans with a consumer credit exposure that are
classified as doubtful.ff Usually, they are charged-off prior to such a classification.

Based on the most recent analysis performed, the risk category orr f loans and leases by class of loans is as follows:ff

Commercial Real Estate � Owner-occupied Revolving
loans

converted to
term loans

Term Loans Revolving loans
amortized cost

basis Total
(In(( thousands)dd Origination Year
As of December 31, 2021 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 Prior

Internal Risk Grade:
Pass $ 319,007 $ 310,893 $ 161,075 $ 135,472 $ 168,874 $ 539,640 $ 39,117 $ 401 $ 1,674,479
Special Mention 0 0 51 5,399 712 20,672 959 0 27,793
Substandard 0 55 38 661 1,304 27,458 839 244 30,599
Doubtful 0 0 0 0 0 305 0 0 305

Total $ 319,007 $ 310,948 $ 161,164 $ 141,532 $ 170,890 $ 588,075 $ 40,915 $ 645 $ 1,733,176

YTD charge-offs 0 0 0 0 (44) (370) 0 0 (414)
YTD recoveries 0 0 0 0 13 856 0 0 869
YTD net charge-offs $ff 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ (31) $ 486 $ 0 $ 0 $ 455

Revolving
loans

converted to
term loans

Term Loans Revolving loans
amortized cost

basis Total
(In(( thousands)dd Origination Year
As of December 31, 2020 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 Prior

Internal Risk Grade:
Pass $ 280,779 $ 152,851 $ 162,027 $ 198,610 $ 282,214 $ 443,312 $ 22,303 $ 0 $ 1,542,096
Special Mention 0 1,206 3,772 754 2,013 20,792 0 453 28,990
Substandard 1,935 62 0 1,117 3,788 43,354 864 149 51,269
Doubtful 0 0 0 0 0 332 0 0 332

Total $ 282,714 $ 154,119 $ 165,799 $ 200,481 $ 288,015 $ 507,790 $ 23,167 $ 602 $ 1,622,687

YTD charge-offsff 0 0 0 0 0 (2,195) 0 0 (2,195)
YTD recoveries 0 0 0 0 0 795 0 0 795
YTD net charge-offsff $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ (1,400) $ 0 $ 0 $ (1,400)
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Commercial Real Estate � Nonowner-occupied Revolving
loans

converted to
term loans

Term Loans Revolving loans
amortized cost

basis Total
(In(( thousands)dd Origination Year
As of December 31, 2021 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 Prior

Internal Risk Grade:
Pass $ 1,558,474 $ 925,508 $ 707,570 $ 460,660 $ 397,003 $ 1,490,548 $ 102,561 $ 2,039 $ 5,644,363
Special Mention 819 2,953 113,655 5,826 372 40,534 2,793 0 166,952
Substandard 0 714 13,042 28,411 1,095 102,711 0 0 145,973
Doubtful 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total $ 1,559,293 $ 929,175 $ 834,267 $ 494,897 $ 398,470 $ 1,633,793 $ 105,354 $ 2,039 $ 5,957,288

YTD charge-offsff 0 0 0 0 0 (3,531) 0 0 (3,531)
YTD recoveries 0 0 0 0 0 1,907 0 0 1,097
YTD net charge-offs $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ (1,624) $ 0 $ 0 $ (1,624)

Revolving
loans

converted to
term loans

Term Loans Revolving loans
amortized cost

basis Total
(In(( thousands)dd Origination Year
As of December 31, 2020 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 Prior

Internal Risk Grade:
Pass $ 929,001 $ 592,109 $ 596,260 $ 481,894 $ 502,417 $ 1,496,135 $ 118,404 $ 2,112 $ 4,718,332
Special Mention 0 105,104 0 391 8,902 78,591 0 0 192,988
Substandard 392 14,620 7,435 1,564 10,824 71,572 0 0 106,407
Doubtful 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total $ 929,393 $ 711,833 $ 603,695 $ 483,849 $ 522,143 $ 1,646,298 $ 118,404 $ 2,112 $ 5,017,727

YTD charge-offsff (38) 0 (300) 0 (3,394) (2,402) 0 0 (6,134)
YTD recoveries 0 0 0 0 0 1,023 0 0 1,023
YTD net charge-offs $ (38) $ 0 $ (300) $ 0 $ (3,394) $ (1,379) $ 0 $ 0 $ (5,111)

Other commercial Revolving
loans and leases
converted to
term loans

Term Loans and leases Revolving loans
and leases

amortized cost
basis Total

(In(( thousandsdd )s Origination Year

As of December 31, 2021 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 Prior

Internal Risk Grade:
Pass $ 924,726 $ 557,422 $ 306,945 $ 107,426 $ 87,090 $ 76,032 $ 1,211,865 $ 2,038 $ 3,273,544
Special Mention 1,880 0 31,614 3,012 1,801 3,390 76,987 61 118,745
Substandard 793 11 1,561 4,930 2,146 18,963 41,357 205 69,966
Doubtful 0 0 0 0 0 106 0 0 106

Total $ 927,399 $ 557,433 $ 340,120 $ 115,368 $ 91,037 $ 98,491 $ 1,330,209 $ 2,304 $ 3,462,361

YTD charge-offsff 0 (87) (31) (200) (174) (5,650) (40) 0 (6,182)
YTD recoveries 0 3 30 86 34 4,154 0 0 4,307
YTD net charge-offsff $ 0 $ (84) $ (1) $ (114) $ (140) $ (1,496) $ (40) $ 0 $ (1,875)

Revolving
loans and leases
converted to
term loans

Term Loans and leases Revolving loans
and leases

amortized cost
basis Total

(In(( thousands)dd Origination Year

As of December 31, 2020 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 Prior

Internal Risk Grade:
Pass $ 1,702,787 $ 370,059 $ 200,588 $ 112,170 $ 119,582 $ 257,638 $ 1,172,699 $ 2,668 $ 3,938,191
Special Mention 333 384 4,754 1,300 138 8,231 40,048 86 55,274
Substandard 1,649 830 2,241 2,606 6,565 30,308 16,222 360 60,781
Doubtful 0 0 0 0 37 135 0 0 172

Total $ 1,704,769 $ 371,273 $ 207,583 $ 116,076 $ 126,322 $ 296,312 $ 1,228,969 $ 3,114 $ 4,054,418

YTD charge-offsff 0 0 (959) (23) (3,525) (12,843) 0 0 (17,350)
YTD recoveries 94 864 18 12 684 2,789 0 0 4,461
YTD net charge-offs $ 94 $ 864 $ (941) $ (11) $ (2,841) $ (10,054) $ 0 $ 0 $ (12,889)
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Residential Real Estate Revolving
loans

converted to
term loans

Term Loans Revolving loans
amortized cost

basis Total
(In(( thousands)dd Origination Year
As of December 31, 2021 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 Prior

Internal Risk Grade:
Pass $ 815,693 $ 568,323 $ 383,250 $ 315,211 $ 178,101 $ 931,730 $ 455,705 $ 2,972 $ 3,650,985
Special Mention 0 0 0 223 91 12,251 2,339 0 14,904
Substandard 464 0 444 617 2,763 19,773 1,497 113 25,671
Doubtful 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total $ 816,157 $ 568,323 $ 383,694 $ 316,051 $ 180,955 $ 963,754 $ 459,541 $ 3,085 $ 3,691,560

YTD charge-offff s 0ff 0 (37) (38) (167) (5,774) 0 0 (6,016)
YTD recoveries 0 0 0 0 3 2,384 13 0 2,400
YTD net charge-offs $ 0 $ 0 $ (37) $ (38) $ (164) $ (3,390) $ 13 $ 0 $ (3,616)

Revolving
loans

converted to
term loans

Term Loans Revolving loans
amortized cost

basis Total
(In(( thousands)dd Origination Year
As of December 31, 2020 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 Prior

Internal Risk Grade:
Pass $ 603,714 $ 624,142 $ 640,535 $ 292,700 $ 282,547 $ 975,913 $ 436,728 $ 4,224 $ 3,860,503
Special Mention 0 267 0 192 2,325 6,623 800 0 10,207
Substandard 0 282 440 3,263 3,516 20,967 201 227 28,896
Doubtful 0 0 0 0 0 279 0 0 279

Total $ 603,714 $ 624,691 $ 640,975 $ 296,155 $ 288,388 $ 1,003,782 $ 437,729 $ 4,451 $ 3,899,885

YTD charge-offs 0ff 0 0 0 (1) (1,759) 0 0 (1,760)
YTD recoveries 0 0 0 101 0 961 1 0 1,063
YTD net charge-offs $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 101 $ (1) $ (798) $ 1 $ 0 $ (697)

truction and Land Development Revolving
loans

converted to
term loans

Term Loans Revolving loans
amortized cost

basis Total
(In(( thousands)dd Origination Year
As of December 31, 2021 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 Prior

Internal Risk Grade:
Pass $ 767,351 $ 518,291 $ 278,020 $ 152,062 $ 18,371 $ 74,532 $ 192,421 $ 0 $ 2,001,048
Special Mention 0 69 3,261 0 0 1,237 995 0 5,562
Substandard 332 0 280 925 0 5,272 746 0 7,555
Doubtful 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total $ 767,683 $ 518,360 $ 281,561 $ 152,987 $ 18,371 $ 81,041 $ 194,162 $ 0 $ 2,014,165

YTD charge-offsff 0 0 0 0 (177) (383) 0 0 (560)
YTD recoveries 0 0 0 0 133 471 0 0 604
YTD net charge-offs $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ (44) $ 88 $ 0 $ 0 $ 44

Revolving
loans

converted to
term loans

Term Loans Revolving loans
amortized cost

basis Total
(In(( thousands)dd Origination Year
As of December 31, 2020 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 Prior

Internal Risk Grade:
Pass $ 420,977 $ 663,113 $ 304,579 $ 127,377 $ 83,252 $ 53,713 $ 145,431 $ 0 $ 1,798,442
Special Mention 0 0 4,689 557 0 1,420 995 0 7,661
Substandard 0 250 1,535 0 216 17,499 746 0 20,246
Doubtful 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total $ 420,977 $ 663,363 $ 310,803 $ 127,934 $ 83,468 $ 72,632 $ 147,172 $ 0 $ 1,826,349

YTD charge-offsff 0 0 0 0 0 (2,027) 0 0 (2,027)
YTD recoveries 0 0 0 0 0 1,513 0 0 1,513
YTD net charge-offs $ff 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ (514) $ 0 $ 0 $ (514)
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Bankcard Revolving
loans

converted to
term loans

Term Loans Revolving loans
amortized cost

basis Total
(In(( thousands)dd Origination Year
As of December 31, 2021 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 Prior

Internal Risk Grade:
Pass $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 8,626 $ 0 $ 8,626
Special Mention 0 0 0 0 0 0 100 0 100
Substandard 0 0 0 0 0 0 187 0 187
Doubtful 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 8,913 $ 0 $ 8,913

YTD charge-offsff 0 0 0 0 0 0 (190) 0 (190)
YTD recoveries 0 0 0 0 0 0 42 0 42
YTD net charge-offs $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ (148) $ 0 $ (148)

Term Loans
Revolving loans
amortized cost

basis

Revolving
loans

converted to
term loans Total

(In(( thousands)dd Origination Year

As of December 31, 2020 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 Prior

Internal Risk Grade:
Pass $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 8,419 $ 0 $ 8,419
Special Mention 0 0 0 0 0 0 362 0 362
Substandard 0 0 0 0 0 0 156 0 156
Doubtful 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 8,937 $ 0 $ 8,937

YTD charge-offsff 0 0 0 0 0 0 (221) 0 (221)
YTD recoveries 0 0 0 0 0 0 52 0 52
YTD net charge-offs $ff 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ (169) $ 0 $ (169)

Other Consumer Revolving
loans

converted to
term loans

Term Loans Revolving loans
amortized cost

basis Total
(In(( thousands)dd Origination Year
As of December 31, 2021 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 Prior

Internal Risk Grade:
Pass $ 479,933 $ 299,582 $ 237,742 $ 121,924 $ 30,288 $ 10,878 $ 3,475 $ 0 $ 1,183,822
Special Mention 0 0 2 1 0 10 8 0 21
Substandard 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Doubtful 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total $ 479,933 $ 299,583 $ 237,744 $ 121,925 $ 30,288 $ 10,888 $ 3,483 $ 0 $ 1,183,844

YTD charge-offff s (ff 101) (776) (709) (483) (126) (203) (6) 0 (2,404)
YTD recoveries 5 86 51 101 18 186 2 0 449
YTD net charge-offs $ (96) $ (690) $ (658) $ (382) $ (108) $ (17) $ (4) $ 0 $ (1,955)

Term Loans
Revolving loans
amortized cost

basis

Revolving
loans

converted to
term loans Total

(In(( thousands)dd Origination Year

As of December 31, 2020 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 Prior

Internal Risk Grade:
Pass $ 419,768 $ 401,958 $ 231,172 $ 74,550 $ 34,435 $ 7,466 $ 6,110 $ 0 $ 1,175,459
Special Mention 0 0 0 0 0 14,763 2 0 14,765
Substandard 3 0 0 0 0 2,352 0 0 2,355
Doubtful 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1

Total $ 419,771 $ 401,958 $ 231,172 $ 74,550 $ 34,435 $ 24,582 $ 6,112 $ 0 $ 1,192,580

YTD charge-offsff (136) (1,013) (1,040) (393) (228) (484) (2) 0 (3,296)
YTD recoveries 3 74 113 30 43 216 0 0 479
YTD net charge-offs $ (133) $ (939) $ (927) $ (363) $ (185) $ (268) $ (2) $ 0 $ (2,817)

TE F�ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES

United adopted the CECL methodology forff measuring credit losses as of January 1, 2020. All disclosures as of and forff the
year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are presented in accordance with ASC 326. The Company did not recast
comparative finff ancial periods and has presented those disclosures under previously applicable GAAP. As a result of the
applying ASC 326 forff the years of 2021 and 2020, there is a lack of compam rability in both the allowance forff loan losses and
provisions forff credit losses to the year of 2019.
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The allowance forff loan losses is an estimate of the expected credit losses on finaff ncial assets measured at amortized cost to
present the net amount expected to be collected as of the balance sheet date. For a detailed discussion of the CECL
methodology used to estimate the allowance forff loan losses, see Note A, "Summary or f Significff ant Accounting Policies."

United made a policy election to present the accrued interest receivable balance separately in its consolidated balanca e sheets
from the amortizerr d cost of a loan. Accruerr d interest receivablea was $49,029,000 (net of an allowance for credit losses of
$8,000) and $56,143,000 (net of an allowance forff credit losses of $250,000) at Decemberm 31, 2021 anda December 31, 2020,
respectively, related to loans and leases are included separately in �Accruedrr interest receivable� in the consolidated balance
sheets. Due to loan ia nterest payment deferrals granta ed by United undu er the CARES Act, United assessed thet collectability ott f
the accruer d interest receivabla es on these deferring loans and leases. As a result of this assessment, United recorded an
allowance for credit losses of $8,000 and $250,000 forff accrued interest receivables not expected to be collected as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. For all classes of loans and leases receivable, the accrual of interest is
discontinued when the contractual payment of principal or interest has become 90 days past due, unless the loan is well
secured and in the process of collection. Interest received on nonaccrual loansa and leases, generally is either applied against
principal or reported as interest income, according to management�s judgment as to the collectabila ity of principal.

The following table represents the accrued interest receivabla e as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

Accrued Interest Receivable
(In thousandsdd )s At December 31, 2021 At December 31, 2020

Commercial Real Estate:
Owner-occupieu d $ 4,172 $ 5,001
Nonowner-occupied 14,901 15,989

Other Commercial 9,335 12,320
Residential Real Estate 10,347 12,558
Construction 7,411 7,314
Consumer:
Bankcard 0 0
Other consumer 2,871 3,211

$ 49,037 $ 56,393
Less: Allowance forff credit losses (8) (250)
Total $ 49,029 $ 56,143

The folff lowing table represents the accrued interest receivabla es written off by reversing interest income for the year ended
December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

Accrued Interest Receivables Written Off
by Reversing Interest Income

(In thousandsdd )s Year Ended
2021 2020

Commercial Real Estate:
Owner-occupied $ 33 $ 163
Nonowner-occupied 114 185

Other Commercial 40 87
Residential Real Estate 419 173
Construction 8 509
Consumer:
Bankcard 0 0
Other consumer 176 125

Total $ 790 $ 1,242

United maintains an allowance for loan losses and a reserve forff lending-related commitments such as unfunff ded loan
commitments and letters of credit. For a detailed discussion of the methodology used to estimate the reserve forff lending-
related commitments, see Note A, "Summary of Significanta Accounting Policies." The reserve for lending-related
commitments of $31,442,000 and $19,250,000 at Decemberm 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively, is separately
classified on the balance sheet and is included in other liabilities. The combined allowance forff loan losses and reserve for
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lending-related commitments is considered the allowance for credit losses.

For the year of December 31, 2021, the allowance for credit losses decreased fromff December 31, 2020 due to better
performance trends within the loan portfolff io and improved macroeconomic facff tors surrounding the COVID-19 pandemic
considered in the determination of the allowance for loan and lease losses at Decembem r 31, 2021. Reserves are initially
determined based on losses identifiedff from the PD/LGD and Cohort models which utilize the Company�s historical
inforff mation. Then any qualitative adjusd tments are applied to account for the Compam ny�s view of the future. If current
conditions underlying any qualitative adjud stment factor were deemed to be materially different than historical conditions,
then an adjustment was made for that facff tor.

The year of 2021 qualitative adjustments include analyses of the folff lowing:

 Past events � This includes portfolio trends related to business conditions; past due, nonaccrualrr , and graded loans
and leases; and concentrations.

 Current conditions � United considered the continued impmm act of COVID-19 on the economy as well as loan deferff rarr ls
and modifications made in light of the pandemic when making determinations related to factor adjud stmet nts, such as
changes in economic and business conditions, collateral values, external factors and past due loans and leases.

 Reasonabla e and supportabla e forecastsff � The forff ecast is determined on a portfolio-by-portfolio basis by relating the
correlation of real GDP and the unemployment rate to loss rates to forecasts of those variaba les. The reasonable and
supportabla e forff ecast selection is subjective in nature and requires more judgment compared to the other
components of the allowance. Assumptions for the economic variables were the following:

 The forecast forff real GDP and the unemployment rate improved in 2021, 2022 and 2023 as compam red to
forecasts and expectations at the end of 2020.

 Greater risk of loss is probablea in the hotel and accommodations portfoliff o due to weakened economic
conditions brought on by the pandemic and labora shortages which resulted in a more negative forecast
relative to other portfoliff os and a longer projected recovery period to extend into late 2023 or 2024.

 Consideration was given to the $1.9 trillion American Rescue Plan (effecff tive March 11, 2021) durdd ing the
2021 forecast selection process as the stimulus package had a positive impact on the economy throughout
2021.

 Reversion to historical loss data occurs via a straight-line method durid ng the year following the one-year
reasonable and supportarr blea forecast period.

A progression of the allowance for loan losses, by portfolio segment, forff the periods indicated is summarized as folff lows:

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses and Carrying Amount of Loans and Leases
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

(In thousands)

Commercial Real Estate

Other
Commercial

Residential
Real
Estate

Construction
& Land

Development Bankcard

Allowance
for

Estimated
Imprecision Total

Owner-
occupied

Nonowner-
occupied

Other
Consumer

Allowance for
Loan and Lease
Losses:

Beginning
balance $ 23,354 $ 49,150 $ 78,138 $ 29,125 $ 39,077 $ 322 $ 16,664 $ 0 $ 235,830

Allowance forff
PCD loans

(acquired during
the period) 1,241 4,363 5,009 1,192 823 0 1 0 12,629

Charge-offs (ff 414) (3,531) (6,182) (6,016) (560) (190) (2,404) 0 (19,297)
Recoveries 869 1,907 4,307 2,400 604 42 449 0 10,578

Provision (10,607) (9,733) (2,840) (297) (549) 143 159 0 (23,724)

Ending balance $ 14,443 $ 42,156 $ 78,432 $ 26,404 $ 39,395 $ 317 $ 14,869 $ 0 $ 216,016
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Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses and Carrying Amount of Loans and Leases
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

(In thousands)

Commercial Real Estate

Other
Commercial

Residential
Real
Estate

Construction
& Land

Development Bankcard

Allowance
for

Estimated
Imprecision Total

Owner-
occupied

Nonowner-
occupied

Other
Consumer

Allowance forff
Loan and Lease
Losses:

Beginning
balance $ 5,554 $ 8,524 $ 47,325 $ 8,997 $ 3,353 $ 74 $ 2,933 $ 297 $ 77,057

Impact of the
adoption of ASU

2016-13 on
January 1, 2020 9,737 9,023 (4,829) 13,097 14,817 28 10,745 (297) 52,321

Impact of the
adoption of ASU
2016-13 for PCD

loans on
January 1, 2020 1,843 121 938 174 2,045 0 0 0 5,121

Initial allowance
for PCD loans

(acquired during
the period) 1,955 6,418 7,032 652 2,570 0 8 0 18,635

Charge-offs (ff 2,195) (6,134) (17,350) (1,760) (2,027) (221) (3,296) 0 (32,983)
Recoveries 795 1,023 4,461 1,063 1,513 52 479 0 9,386

Provision 5,665 30,175 40,561 6,902 16,806 389 5,795 0 106,293

Ending balance $ 23,354 $ 49,150 $ 78,138 $ 29,125 $ 39,077 $ 322 $ 16,664 $ 0 $ 235,830

A progression of the allowance for credit losses, which includes the allowance for loan losses and the reserve for lending-
related commitments, for the periods presented is summarized as follows:

Year Ended December 31
(In thousands) 2021 2020 2019
Balance of allowance for loan and lease losses at beginning of period $ 235,830 $ 77,057 $ 76,703
Cumulative effecff t adjustment for CECL 0 57,442 0

235,830 134,499 76,703
Initial allowance for acquired PCD loans 12,629 18,635 0
Gross charge-offs (ff 19,297) (32,983) (29,110)
Recoveries 10,578 9,386 8,151
Net charge-offs (8,719) (23,597) (20,959)
Provision forff loan and lease losses (23,724) 106,293 21,313
Balance of allowance for loan and lease losses at end of period $ 216,016 $ 235,830 $ 77,057
Reserve for lending-related commitments 31,442 19,250 1,733
Balance of allowance for credit losses at end of period $ 247,458 $ 255,080 $ 78,790

NOTE G--BANK PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Bank premises and equipment are summarized as follows:
December 31

(In thousands)dd 2021 2020
Land $ 60,551 $ 54,389
Buildings and improvements 194,053 166,926
Leasehold improvements 38,568 39,681
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 105,554 99,277

398,726 360,273
Less allowance for depreciation and amortization (201,506) (184,449)
Net bank premises and equipment $ 197,220 $ 175,824



113

Depreciation expense was $16,583,000, $13,464,000, and $9,329,000 for years ending Decembem r 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019,
respectively, while amortization expense was $331,000, $251,000 and $141,000 for the years ended December 31, 2021,
2020 and 2019, respectively.

NOTE H--LEASES

United determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. United and certain subsidiaries have entered into various
noncancelablea -operating leases forff branch and loan production offices as well as operating facilities. Operating leases are
included in operating lease right-of-use (�ROU�) assets and operating lease liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Operating leases with an initial term of 12 months or less are not recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Presently,
United does not have any finff ance leases.

United�s operating leases are subjecb t to renewal options under various terms. United�s operating leases have remaining
terms of 1 to 16 years, some of which include options to extend leases generally for periods of 5 years. United rents or
subleases certain real estate to third partirr es. Our sublease portfrr olff io generally consists of operating leases to other
organizations forff former branch offices.

ROU assets represent United�s right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent United�s
obligation to make lease payments arising fromff the lease. Operating lease ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at
commencement date based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term. As most of United�s leases do not
provide an implicit rate, the Compam ny uses its incremental borrowing rate based on the informff ation available at
commencement date in determirr ning the present value of lease payments. The operating lease ROU asset also includes any
lease payments made and excludes lease incentives. Lease terms may include options to extend the lease when it is
reasonably certairr n that United will exercise that option. Lease expense forff lease payments is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The components of lease expense were as folff lows:
Year Ended Year Ended

(In thousands)s
Classification

December 31,
2021

December 31,
2020

Operating lease cost Net occupau ncy expense $ 21,466 $ 22,575
Sublease income Net occupu ancy expense (1,256) (1,039)

Net lease cost $ 20,210 $ 21,536

Suppu lemental balance sheet information related to leases was as folff lows:

(In thousands) Classification December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Operating lease right-of-use assets Operating lease right-of-use assets $ 81,942 $ 69,520

Operating lease liabilities Operating lease liabila ities $ 86,703 $ 73,213

Other information related to leases was as follows:
December 31, 2021

Weighted-average remaining lease term:r
Operating leases 6.99 years

Weighted-average discount rate:
Operating leases 2.13%

Suppu lemental cash flow information related to leases was as folff lows:
Year Ended

(In thousands) December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Cash paid forff amounts in the measurement of lease liabilities:

Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 22,153 $ 22,409
ROU assets obtained in the exchange for lease liabilita ies 22,719 30,864

Maturities of lease liabia lities by year and in the aggregate, under operating leases with it nitial or remaining termsrr of one year
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or more, for years subsequeq nt to December 31, 2021, consists of the follff owing:

Year Amount
(Dollars in thousands)

2022 $ 19,490
2023 16,756
2024 12,191
2025 9,371
2026 8,237
Thereafter 27,002

Total lease payments 93,047
Less: imputed interest (6,344)

Total $ 86,703

NOTE I�INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The folff lowing is a summary orr f intangible assets subjeu ct to amortization and those not subjeb ct to amortization:
December 31, 2021

Community Banking Mortgage Banking Total

(In thousands)
Gross

Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Amortized intangible
assets:

Core
deposit
intangible
assets $ 105,165 ($ 82,028) $ 0 $ 0 $ 105,165 ($ 82,028)

Non-amortized
intangible assets:

George Mason
trade name $ 0 $ 1,080 $ 1,080
Crescent
trade name 0 196 196

Total $ 0 $ 1,276 $ 1,276

Goodwill not subjeb ct to
amortization $ 1,881,179 $ 5,315 $1,886,494

December 31, 2020
Community Banking Mortgage Banking Total

(In thousands)
Gross

Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Amortized intangible
assets:

Core
deposit
intangible
assets $ 101,767 ($ 76,120) $ 0 $ 0 $ 101,767 ($ 76,120)

Non-amortized
intangible assets:

George Mason
trade name $ 0 $ 1,080 $ 1,080
Crescent
trade name 0 196 196

Total $ 0 $ 1,276 $ 1,276

Goodwill not subjeb ct to
amortization $ 1,791,533 $ 5,315 $1,796,848
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The folff lowing table provides a reconciliation of goodwill:

(In tII housands)s
Community
Banking

Mortgage
Banking Total

Goodwill at December 31, 2020 $ 1,791,533 $ 5,315 $ 1,796,848
Addition to goodwill frff om Carolina Financial acquisition 13,192 0 13,192
Preliminary addition to goodwill frff om Communituu ytt Bankers Trustrr acquisition 76,454 0 76,454
Goodwill at December 31, 2021 $ 1,881,179 $ 5,315 $ 1,886,494

For the year of 2021, goodwill of $13,192,000 was recorded forff the Carolina Financial acquiq sition due to measurement
period adjustments in current and deferredr income taxes.

The following table sets forth the anticipated amortization expense for intangible assets for the years subsequent to 2021:
Year Amount

(Dollars in thousands)dd
2022 $ 5,516
2023 5,116
2024 3,639
2025 3,282
2026 2,758
2027 and thereafteff r 2,826

NOTE J--MORTGAGE SERVICING RIGHTS

Mortgage loans serviced for others are not included in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. The value of
mortgage servicing rights (�MSRs�) is included on the Company�s Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The unpain d principal balances of loans serviced forff others were approximately $3,698,998,000 and $3,587,953,000 at
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The estimated fair value of the mortgage servicing rights was $27,355,000 and $20,955,000 at December 31, 2021 and
December 31, 2020, respectively. The estimated fairff value of servirr cing rights at December 31, 2021 was determined using a
net servicing feeff of 0.26%, average discount rates ranging froff m 10.50% to 11.71% with a weighted average discountu rate of
10.60%, average constant prepayment rates (�CPR�) ranging from 12.59% to 21.20% with a weighted average prepayment
rate of 16.56%, depending upon the stratification of the specific servicing right, and a delinquenq cy rate, including loans on
forbearance of 2.09%. The estimated faiff r value of servicing rights at December 31, 2020 was determined using a net
servicing feeff of 0.26%, average discount rates ranging from 9.50% to 14.07% with a weighted average discount rate of
10.62%, average constant prepayment rates (�CPR�) ranging from 7.98% to 18.42% with a weighted average prepayment
rate of 14.60%, depending upon the stratification of the specific servicing right, and a delinquenq cy rate, including loans on
forbearar nce of 2.88%. Please refer to Note W in these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information concerning the fairff value of MSRs.

As disclosed in Note B of these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company acquired $20,123,000 of
mortgage servicing rights from its acquiqq sition of Carolina Financial Corporarr tion on May 1, 2020. The folff lowing presents the
activity in mortgage servicrr ing rights, including their valuation allowance for the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020:

(In thousands) Year Ended
December 31, 2021

Year Ended
December 31, 2020

MSRs beginning balance $ 22,338 $ 0
Addition from a qcquisition of subsi ydiary 0 20,123
Amount c papitalized 10,584 7,310
Amount amortized (8,895) (5,095)

MSRs ending balance $ 24,027 $ 22,338
MSRs valuation allowance beginning balance $ (1,383) $ 0

ggAggreggate additions ch garged and recoveries credited to opperations 1,129 0
MSRs i pmpairment (629) (1,383)

MSRs valuation allowance endingg balance $ (883) $ (1,383)
MSRs, net of valuation allowance $ 23,144 $ 20,955
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In determining impairment, the Company aggregates all servicing rights and stratifies them into tranches based on
predominant risk characteristics. The estimated amortizrr ation expense is based on current information regarding future loan
payments and prepayments. Amortization expense could change in futureff periods based on changes in the volume of
prepayments and economic factors.

NOTE K--DEPOSITS

The book value of deposits consisted of the following:
December 31

(In thousands) 2021 2020
Demand deposits $ 8,980,547 $ 5,428,398
Interest-bearing checking 3,734,355 799,635
Regular savings 1,641,404 1,283,823
Money market accounts 6,361,887 10,165,334
Time deposits under $100,000 1,031,008 979,988
Time deposits over $100,000 1,601,062 1,927,982
Total deposits $ 23,350,263 $ 20,585,160

Included in time deposits over $100,000 at Decemberm 31, 2021 and 2020 were time deposits of $250,000 or more of
$640,752,000 and $889,334,000, respectively. Interest paid on deposits approximated $43,562,000, $81,080,000, and
$136,360,000 in 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

United's subsidiary brr anks have received deposits, in the normalr course of business, from the directors and officers of United
and its subsiu diaries, and their associates. Such related party deposits were accepted on substau ntially the same terms,
including interest rates and maturities, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with unrelated persons.
The aggregate dollar amount of these deposits was $25,889,000 and $15,585,000 at Decemberm 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

NOTE L--SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, short-rr term borrowings were as folff lows:

December 31
(In thousands) 2021 2020
Federal fundsff purchased $ 0 $ 0
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 128,844 142,300
Total short-term borrowings $ 128,844 $ 142,300

Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase have been a significant source of funds for the
company. United has various unused lines of credit available fromff certain of its correspondent banks in the aggregate
amount of $230,000,000. These lines of credit, which bear interest at prevailing markerr t rates, permit United to borrow funds
in the overnight market, and are renewable annually subjeb ct to certain conditions.

At December 31, 2021, all the repurchase agreements were in overnight accounts. The rates offered on these funds varyrr
according to movements in the federal funds and short-term investment markerr t rates.

United has a $20,000,000 line of credit with at na unrelated finff ancial institutitt on to provide forff general liquiq dity needs. The line
is an unsecured, revolving line of credit. The line is renewabla e on a 360 day basis and carries an indexed, floating-rate of
interest. The line requiq res complm ianca e with vt arious finff ancial and nonfinff ancial covenantsa . At Decemberm 31, 2021, United had
no outstanding balance under this credit.

Interest paid on short-term borrowings approximated $693,000, $1,027,000, and $2,359,000 in 2021, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.
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NOTE M--LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

United's subsiu diary bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank (�FHLB�). Membership in the FHLB makes
availablea short-term and long-term borrowings from collateralized advances. All FHLB borrowings are collateralized by a
mix of single-familff y residential mortgage loans, commercial loans and investment securities. At December 31, 2021, the
total carrying value of loans pledged as collateral for FHLB advances appa roximated $4,515,388,000. United had an ua nuseuu d
borrowing amount as of December 31, 2021 of approa ximately $ll 7,142,780,000 available subju ect to delivery orr f collateral
after certairr n trigger points.

Advances may be called by the FHLB or redeemed by United based on predefined factors and penalties.

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, FHLB advances and the related weighted-average interest rates were as follows:
2021 2020

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average Average

Contractual Effectivff e Contractual Effectivff e
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Rate Rate Amount Rate Rate
FHLB advances $ 532,199 0.35% 0.55% $ 584,532 0.60% 0.75%

No overnight funds were included in the $532,199,000 and $584,532,000 above at Decembem r 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. The weighted-average effecff tive rate considers the effectff of any interest rate swapsa designated as fair value
hedges outstanding at year-end 2021 and 2020 to manage interest rate risk on its long-term debt. Additional information is
provided in Note S, Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

At Decemberm 31, 2021, United had a total of twenty statutory business trustsrr that were formed forff the purposr e of issuing or
participating in pools of trust preferred capital securities (�Capital Securities�) with the proceeds invested in junior
subordinated debt securities (�Debentures�) of United. The Debenturt es, which are subordinate and junior in right of
payment to all present and future senior indebtedness and certain other financial obligations of United, are the sole assets of
the trusr ts and United�s payment under the Debenturestt is the sole source of revenue for the trusts. United assumed
$4,124,000 in aggregate principal amount of a LIBOR-indexed floating rate subordinated note in the Community Bt ankers
Trust merger. United also assumed $10,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of fixed-to-floating rate subordinated notes
in the Carolina Financial acquisition. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the outstanding balance of the subordinated notes
was $9,872,000 and $9,865,000. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the outstanding balance of the Debenturest was
$275,323,000 and $269,972,000, respectively, and was included in the category of long-term debt on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets entitled "Other long-term borrowings." The Capital Securities are not included as a component of
shareholders' equity in the Consolidated Balanca e Sheets. United fulff ly and unconditionally guarantees each individuadd l trust's
obligations under the Capital Securities.

Under the provisions of the subordinated debt, United has the right to defer payment of interest on the suboru dinated debt at
any time, or from time to time, forff periods not exceeding five years. If interest payments on the subordinated debt are
deferredff , the dividends on the Capital Securities are also deferred. Interest on the subordinated debt is cumulative.

In accordance with the fully-phased in �Basel III Capital Rules� as published by United�s primary frr edff eral regulator, the
Federal Reserve, United is unable to consider the Capia tal Securities as Tier 1 capital, but rather the Capital Securities are
included as a component of United�s Tier 2 capital. United can include the Capital Securities in its Tier 2 capital on a
permanent basis.

Informff ation related to United�s statutory trusts is presented in the tabla e below:
(Dollars in thousands)

Description Issuance Date

Amount of
Capital

Securities Issued Stated Interest Rate Maturity Date
United Statutoryr Trust III December 17, 2003 $ 20,000 3-month LIBOR + 2.85% December 17, 2033
United Statutory Trr rust IV December 19, 2003 $ 25,000 3-month LIBOR + 2.85% January 23, 2034
United Statutoryr Trust V July 12, 2007 $ 50,000 3-month LIBOR + 1.55% October 1, 2037
United Statutot ry Tr rust VI September 20, 2007 $ 30,000 3-month LIBOR + 1.30% December 15, 2037
Premier Statutory Trust II September 25, 2003 $ 6,000 3-month LIBOR + 3.10% October 8, 2033



118

(Dollars in thousands)

Description Issuance Date

Amount of
Capital

Securities Issued Stated Interest Rate Maturity Date
Premier Statutory Trust III May 16, 2005 $ 8,000 3-month LIBOR + 1.74% June 15, 2035
Premier Statutoryr Trust IV June 20, 2006 $ 14,000 3-month LIBOR + 1.55% September 23, 2036
Premier Statutory Trust V December 14, 2006 $ 10,000 3-month LIBOR + 1.61% March 1, 2037
Centra Statutoryr Trust I September 20, 2004 $ 10,000 3-month LIBOR + 2.29% September 20, 2034
Centra Statutory Trr rust II June 15, 2006 $ 10,000 3-month LIBOR + 1.65% July 7, 2036
Virginia Commerce Trust II December 19, 2002 $ 15,000 6-month LIBOR + 3.30% December 19, 2032
Virginia Commerce Trust III December 20, 2005 $ 25,000 3-month LIBOR + 1.42% February 23, 2036
Cardinal Statutory Trust I July 27, 2004 $ 20,000 3-month LIBOR + 2.40% September 15, 2034
UFBC Capa ital Trust I December 30, 2004 $ 5,000 3-month LIBOR + 2.10% March 15, 2035
Carolina Financial Capital Trust I December 19, 2002 $ 5,000 Prime + 0.50% December 31, 2032
Carolina Financial Capital Trust II November 5, 2003 $ 10,000 3-month LIBOR + 3.05% January 7, 2034
Greer Capital Trust I October 12, 2004 $ 6,000 3-month LIBOR + 2.20% October 18, 2034
Greer Capital Trusrr t II December 28, 2006 $ 5,000 3-month LIBOR + 1.73% January 3rr 0, 2037
First South Preferrrr ed Trust I September 26, 2003 $ 10,000 3-month LIBOR + 2.95% September 30, 2033
BOE Statutory Trust I December 12, 2003 $ 4,000 3-month LIBOR + 3.00% December 12, 2033

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Debentures and their related weighted-average interest rates were as follows:
2021 2020

Weighted- Weighted-
(Dollars in thousands) Average Average

Amount Rate Amount Rate
United Statutot ryr Trust III $ 20,619 3.07% $ 20,619 3.08%
United Statutot ry Trust IV 25,774 2.98% 25,774 3.06%
United Statutoryr Trust V 51,547 1.68% 51,547 1.78%
United Statutory Trr rust VI 30,928 1.50% 30,928 1.52%
Premier Statutory Trust II 6,186 3.22% 6,186 3.34%
Premier Statutory Trust III 8,248 1.94% 8,248 1.96%
Premier Statutory Trust IV 14,433 1.77% 14,433 1.80%
Premier Statutory Trust V 10,310 1.78% 10,310 1.84%
Centra Statutoryrr Trust I 10,000 2.50% 10,000 2.53%
Centra Statutory Tr rust II 10,000 1.77% 10,000 1.89%
Virginia Commerce Trust II 12,936 3.57% 12,705 3.57%
Virginia Commerce Trust III 18,320 1.58% 17,794 1.63%
Cardinal Statutoryrr Trust I 15,620 2.60% 15,223 2.62%
UFBC Capa ital Trust I 3,761 2.30% 3,656 2.32%
Carolina Financial Capital Trust I 5,010 3.75% 4,998 3.75%
Carolina Financial Capital Trust II 9,420 3.17% 9,340 3.29%
Greer Capital Trust I 5,167 3.17% 5,075 2.42%
Greer Capital Trust II 3,983 2.32% 3,876 1.94%
First South Preferff rerr d Trust I 9,348 1.86% 9,260 3.19%
BOE Statutory Trust I 3,713 3.22% 0 0.00%

Total $ 275,323 $ 269,972

At December 31, 2021, the scheduled maturtt ities of long-term borrowings were as follows:
Year Amount

(D(( ollars in thousandsdd )s
2022 $ 519,508
2023 0
2024 0
2025 9,441
2026 8,249
2027 and thereafteff r 280,196

Total $ 817,394

Interest paid on long-term borrowings appra oximated $10,336,000, $33,240,000, and $43,830,000 in 2021, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.
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NOTE N--OTHER EXPENSE

The folff lowing details certain items of other expense forff the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31
(In tII housands) 2021 2020 2019
Legal, consulting & other professional services $ 17,616 $ 16,482 $ 12,360
Franchise & other taxes not on income 12,412 12,122 11,330
Expense for reserve on lending-relateaa d commitments 12,034 11,315 344
Automated Teller Machine (ATM) expenses 10,519 9,295 7,336

NOTE O--INCOME TAXES

The income tax provisions included in the consolidated statements of income are summarized as follows:

Year Ended December 31
(In thousands) 2021 2020 2019
Current expense:

Federal $ 76,574 $ 60,508 $ 43,337
State 14,516 10,656 6,798

Deferred expense:
Federal 2,742 (174) 12,522
Tax Act remeasurement 0 0 0
State 1,283 (273) 1,683

Total income taxes $ 95,115 $ 70,717 $ 64,340

The following is a reconciliation of income tax expense to the amount computed by appa lying the statutory federal income
tax rate to income before income taxes:

Year Ended December 31
(Dollars in thousands) 2021 2020 2019

Amount % Amount % Amount %
Tax on income before taxes

at statutory federal rate $ 97,199 21.0% $ 75,546 21.0% $ 68,132 21.0%
Plus: State income taxes

net of fedff eral tax benefitsff 11,520 2.5 8,202 2.3 6,690 2.1
108,719 23.5 83,748 23.3 74,822 23.1

Increase (decrease) resulting frff om:
Tax-exempt interest income (3,303) (0.7) (3,011) (0.8) (2,813) (0.9)
Tax credits (11,893) (2.6) (9,860) (2.7) (5,636) (1.7)
Other items-net 1,592 0.4 (160) (0.1) (2,033) (0.7)

Income taxes $ 95,115 20.6% $ 70,717 19.7% $ 64,340 19.8%

Fo yr years ended 2021, 2020 and 2019, United incurred federal income tax exppense of $587,000, $663,000, and $54,000,
respectively, applicable to the sales and calls of securities. Income taxes paid approaa ximated $101,227,000, $65,378,000, anda
$56,459,000 in 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Deferred income taxes reflecff t thet net tax effeff cts of tempom rary differff ences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabia lities for financial reporting purposr es and the amounts used for income tax
p ppurposes. At December 31, 2021, United had no federal or state net poperat ging loss carryyforwards.

Taxes not on income, which consists mainly of business fraff nchise taxes, were $12,412,000, $12,122,000, and $11,330,000,
for the years ended Decemberm 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively. These amounts are recorded in other expense in the
Consolidated Statements of Income.

Significaff nt components of United's deferrerr d tax assets and liabilities (included in other assets in the Consolidated Balance
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Sheets) at December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:
(In thousands)dd 2021 2020
Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for credit losses $ 57,659 $ 59,492
Accrued benefitff s payable 17,204 14,097
Other accrued liabilities 655 655
Pension plan accruals 0 409
Unrealized loss on securities available for sale 0 0
Other real estate owned 1,706 980
Lease liabilities under operating leases 20,202 17,059
Deferff red mortgage points 5,413 6,518
Purchase accounting intangibles 0 820

Total defeff rred tax assets 102,839 100,030
Deferred tax liabilities:

Premises and equipment 6,750 5,878
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale 2,890 20,087
Right-of-useff assets under operating leases 19,092 16,198
Pension plan accruals 4,497 0
Derivatives 4,970 1,020
Purchase accounting intangibles 6,369 0
Other 957 1,312

Total deferred tax liabilities 45,525 44,495
Net deferff rrr ed tax assets $ 57,314 $ 55,535

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, United believes that all of the deferreff d tax amounts shown above are more likely than not
to be realized based on an assessment of all availablea positive and negative evidence and therefore no valuation allowance
has been recorded.

In accordance with ASC Topic 740, �Income Taxes,� United records a liabia lity ftt orff uncertain income tax positions based on a
recognition threshold of more-likely-than-a not, anda a measurement attribute forff all tax positions taken on a tax return,tt in order
for those tax positions to be recognized in the financial statements.

Below is a reconciliation of the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefitsff :

December 31
(In thousands) 2021 2020

Unrecognized tax benefitsff at beginning of year $ 2,203 $ 1,568
Increase in unrecognized tax benefits as a result of tax positions
taken during the current period 199 1,158
Decreases in the unrecognized tax benefits as a result of a
lapsa e of the applicable statute of limitations (735) (523)
Unrecognized tax benefitsff at end of year $ 1,667 $ 2,203

The entire amount of unrecognized tax benefits, if recognized, would impact United�s effective tax rate. Over the next 12
months, the statute of limitations will close on certain income tax returns. However, at this time, United cannot reasonabla y
estimate the amount of tax benefits, if any, it may recognize over the next 12 months.

United is currently open to audit under the statutt e of limitations by the Internal Revenue Service forff the years ended
December 31, 2018, 2019 and 2020 and certain State Taxing authorities forff the years ended December 31, 2018 through
2020.

As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, the total amount of accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions was $727,000 anda
$668,000, respectively. United accounts forff interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as part of its provision for
federal and state income taxes. No interest or penalties were recognized in the results of operations forff the years of 2021,
2020 and 2019.
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NOTE P--EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

United has a defined benefit retirement plan covering qualified emplm oyees. Pension benefits are based on years of service
and the average of the employee�s highest five consecutive plan years of basic compensation paid during the ten plan years
preceding the date of determination. Contributions by United are intended to provide not only for benefits attributed to
service to date, but also for those expected to be earned in the futff ure.

In September of 2007, after a recommendation by United�s Pension Committee anda approval by United�s Board of Directors,
the United Bankshares, Inc. Pension Plan (a the �Plana �) was amended to change the partirr cipation rules. The decision to change
the participation rules forff the Plan folff lowed current industry tr rends, as many large and medium size companies have taken
similar steps. The amendment provided that employees hired on or after October 1, 2007, will not be eligible to participate
in the Plan. However, new employees will continue to be eligible to participate in United�s Savings and Stock Investment
401(k) plan. This change had no impact on current employees hired prior to October 1, 2007 as they will continue to
participate in the Plan, with no change in benefit provisions, and will continue to be eligible to participate in United�s
Savings and Stock Investment 401(k) Plan.

Net periodic pension costs, except for service cost, are recognized in employee benefits on the consolidated statements of
income. Servirr ce cost is recognized in employee compensation. Net consolidated periodic pension cost included the folff lowing
components:

(Dollars in thousands) Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020 2019

Service cost $ 2,936 $ 2,742 $ 2,173
Interest cost 4,241 5,222 5,931
Expected return on plan assets (11,874) (11,010) (9,434)
Recognized net actuarial loss 6,770 6,050 4,965
Net periodic pension cost $ 2,073 $ 3,004 $ 3,635

Weighted-Average Assumptions:
Discount rate 2.81% 3.42% 4.52%
Expected return on assets 6.25% 6.75% 7.00%
Rate of compensation increase (prior to age 40) 5.00% 5.00% n/a
Rate of compensation increase (ages 40-54) 4.00% 4.00% n/a
Rate of compensation Increase (prior to age 45) n/a n/a 3.50%
Rate of compensation Increase (otherwise) 3.50% 3.50% 3.00%

Amounts related to the Plan recognized as a compom nent of other comprehensive income were as follows:
(In tII housands)s Year Ended December 31,

2021 2020 2019
Net actuarial (gain) loss $ (14,286) $ 10,583 $ 10,324
Amortization of:

Prior service cost 0 0 0
Actuarial loss (6,770) (6,050) (4,965)

Total recognized in other comprehensive income $ (21,056) $ 4,533 $ 5,359

Included in accumulm ated other comprehensive income at Decemberm 31, 2021 are unrecognized actuaritt al losses of
$44,370,000 ($34,032,000 net of tax) that have not yet been recognized in net periodic pension cost.

The reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the projeo cted benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 and the accumulated benefit obligation at December 31, 2021 and 2020 are
as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) December 31,
2021 2020

Change in Projected Benefit Obligation
Projecteo d Benefitff Obligation at the Beginning of the Year $ 194,775 $ 173,777
Service Cost 2,936 2,742
Interest Cost 4,241 5,222
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(Dollars in thousands) December 31,
2021 2020

Actuarial Loss (2,369) 18,391
Benefits Paid (6,610) (5,357)
Projected Benefitff at the End of the Year $ 192,973 $ 194,775
Accumulated Benefit Obligation at the End of the Year $ 175,953 $ 176,635

Change in Plan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Year $ 193,022 $ 159,560
Actual Return on Plan Assets 23,792 18,819
Benefits Paid (6,610) (5,357)
Employer Contributions 0 20,000
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 210,204 $ 193,022

Net Amount Recognized
Funded Status $ 17,230 $ (1,753)
Unrecognized Transition Asset 0 0
Unrecognized Prior Service Cost 0 0
Unrecognized Net Loss 44,370 65,426
Net Amount Recognized $ 61,600 $ 63,673

Weighted-Average Assumptions at the End of the Year
Discount Rate 3.08% 2.81%
Rate of compensation Increase (prior to age 40) 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of compensation Increase (ages 40-54) 4.00% 4.00%
Rate of compensation Increase (prior to age 45) n/a n/a
Rate of compensation Increase (otherwise) 3.50% 3.50%

Asset allocation for the defined benefitff pension plan as of the measurement date, by asset category, is as folff lows:

Plan Assets
Target Allocation

2022
Allowable

Allocation Range
Percentage of
Plan Assets at

December 31,
2021

December 31,
2020

Equity Securities 60% 50-70% 65% 58%
Debt Securities 39% 20-50% 34% 37%
Other 1% 3-15% 1% 5%
Total 100% 100%

Equity securities include United common stock in the amounts of $3,839,000 (3%) at December 31, 2021 and $3,429,000
(2%) at December 31, 2020.

The policy, as established by the Pension Committee, primarily consisting of United�s Executive Management, is to invest
assets based upon the target allocations stated aboa ve. The assets are reallocated periodically to meet the above target
allocations. The investment policy is reviewed at least annually, subjeb ct to the approval of the Pension Committee, to
determine if the policy should be changed. Prohibited investments include, but are not limited to, futff urtt es contracts, private
placements, uncovered options, real estate, the use of margin, short sales, derivatives for speculative purposr es, and other
investments that are speculative in nature. In order to achieve a pruderr nt level of portfolio diversificaff tion, the securities of
any one compam ny are not to exceed 10% of the total plan assets, and no more than the 15% of total plan assets is to be
invested in any one industdd ry (other than securities of U.S. Government or Agencies). Additionally, no more than 15% of
the plan assets is to be invested in foreign securities, both equity at nd fixed. The expected long-term rate of return frr orff the
plan�s total assets is based on the expected return of each of the above categories, weighted based on the median of the
target allocation forff each class. United uses the corridor approach based on 10% of the greater of the projeo cted benefit
obligation and the market-related value of plan assets to amortize actuatt rial gains and losses.
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At December 31, 2021, the benefits expected to be paid in each of the next five fiscal years, and in thet aggregate forff the fivff e
years thereafter are as follows:

Year Amount
(D(( ollars in thousands)s

2022 $ 6,173
2023 7,084
2024 7,476
2025 7,907
2026 8,313
2027 through 2031 46,569

United made a discretionary contribution of $20,000,000 during the third quaq rter of 2020. United did not contribute to the
plan in 2021 or in 2019 as no contributions were requirq ed by funding regulations or law. For 2022, no contributions to the
plan are required by funff ding regulations or law. However, United may make a discretionary crr ontribution in 2022, the
amount of which cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.

In accordance with ASC Topic 715 and using the guidance contained in ASC Topic 820, the following is a description of
the valuation methodologies used to measure the plan assets at faiff r value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: These underlying assets are highly liquid U.S. governmrr ent obligations. The fairff value of cash
and cash equivalents approximates cost (Level 1).

Debt Securities: Securities of the U.S. Governmerr nt, municipalities, private issuers and corporations are valued at thet closing
price reported in the active market in which the individual security is traded, when available (Level 1). If quoted market
prices are not available, fairff values are measured utilizing independent valuation techniques of identical or similar securities
for which significant assumptm ions are derived primarily from or corroborated by observarr bla e market data. Using a market
approach valuation methodology, third party vtt endors compile prices froff m various sources and may determine the fairff value
of identical or similar securities by using pricing models that considers observable market data (Level 2).

Common and Preferreff d Stock: These securities are valued at the closing price on the respective stock exchange (Level 1).

Mutuatt l Funds: Generally, these securities are valued at the closing price reported in the active market in which the
individuad l mutual funff d is traded (Level 1).

The following tablea s present the balances of the plan assets, by faiff r value hierarchy level, as of December 31, 2021 and
2020:

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2021 Using

(In thousands)

Description
Balance as of

December 31, 2021

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significaff nt
Other

Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significaff nt
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Cash and Cash equivalents $ 1,641 $ 1,641 $ 0 $ 0
Fixed Income Mutual Funds:

Taxable 72,075 72,075 0 0
Equity Securities:

Common stock 34,198 34,198 0 0
Equity Mutual Funds:

Global equityt 5,407 5,407 0 0
Domestic equity large cap 47,387 47,387 0 0
Domestic equity small cap 30,176 30,176 0 0
International emerging equity 5,435 5,435 0 0
International equity developed 13,885 13,885 0 0

Total $ 210,204 $ 210,204 $ 0 $ 0
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Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2020 Using

(In thousands)

Description
Balance as of

December 31, 2020

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significaff nt
Other

Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significaff nt
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Cash and Cash equivalents $ 10,285 $ 10,285 $ 0 $ 0
Fixed Income Mutual Funds:

Taxable 70,331 70,331 0 0
Equity Securities:

Common stock 28,102 28,102 0 0
Equity Mutuat l Funds:

Global equityt 4,968 4,968 0 0
Domestic equity large cap 34,186 34,186 0 0
Domestic equity small cap 22,165 22,165 0 0
International emerging equityt 8,018 8,018 0 0
International equity developed 14,967 14,967 0 0

Total $ 193,022 $ 193,022 $ 0 $ 0

Common stock investments are diversified amongst various industries with no industry rrr epresenting more than 5% of the
total plan assets.

The United Bankshares, Inc. Savings and Stock Investment Plan (the Plan) is a definff ed contribution plan under Section
401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Each employee of United, who completes ninety (90) days of qualified servicrr e, is
eligible to partirr cipate in the Plan. Each particirr pant may contribute from 1% to 100% of compem nsation to his/her account,
subju ect to Internal Revenue Service maximum deferral limits. United matches 100% of the first 5% of salary deferred with
United stock. Vesting is 100% forff emplm oyee deferrals and the company match at the time the employee makes his/her
deferral. United's expense relating to the Plan approximated $7,984,000, $6,531,000, and $4,565,000 in 2021, 2020 and
2019, respectively.

The assets of United's defined benefit plan and 401(k) Plan each include investments in United common stock. At
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the combim ned plan assets included 1,578,389 and 1,437,641 shares, respectively, of United
common stock with an approximate fair value of $57,264,000 and $46,580,000, respectively. Dividends paid on United
common stock held by the plans approxa imated $2,060,000, $1,776,000, and $1,566,000 forff the years ended Decemberm 31,
2021, 2020, and 2019, respectively.

United has certain other supplemental deferrerr d compensation plans covering various key employees. Periodic charges are
made to operations so that the liability dt uedd each employee is fulff ly recorded as of the date of their retirement. Amounts
charged to expense have not been significff ant in any year.

NOTE Q--STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

On May 12, 2020, United�s shareholders approved the 2020 Long-Term Incentive Plan (�2020 LTI Plan�). The 2020 LTI
Plan became effective May 13, 2020. An award granted under the 2020 LTI Plan may consist of any non-qualified stock
options or incentive stock options, stock appreciation rights (�SARs�), restricted stock, restricted stock units, performff ance
units or other-stock-based award. These awards all relate to the common stock of United. The maximum number of shares
of United common stock which may be issued under the 2020 LTI Plan is 2,300,000. The 2020 LTI Plan will be
administered by a board committee appa ointed by United�s Board of Directors (the �Board�). Unless otherwise determined
by the Board, the Compensation Committee of the Board (the �Committee�) shall administer the 2020 LTI Plan. The
maximum number of options and stock appreciation rights, in the aggregate, which may be awarded to any individual key
employee during any calendar year is 100,000. The maximum numbem r of options and stock appreciation rights, in the
aggregate, which may be awarded to any non-employee director during any calendar year is 10,000 or, if such Award is
payable in cash, the Fair Market Value equivalent thereof. Tff he maximum number of shares of restricted stock or shares
subject to a restricted stock units award that may be granted durid ng any calendar year is 225,000 shares to any individual
key employee and 10,000 shares to any individual non-employee director. Subjeb ct to certain change in control provisions,
the 2020 LTI Plan provides that all awards of will vest as the Committee determines in the award agreement, provided that
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no awards will vest sooner than 1/3 per year over the first three anniversaries of the award. United adopted a clawback
policy that appa lies to named executive officers and other executive officeff rs and permits the Committee to cancel certain
awards and to recoup gu ains realized froff m previous awards should United be required to prepare an accounting restatement
due to materially inaccurate performance metrics. A Form Srr -8 was filed on May 29, 2020 with tt het Securities and Exchange
Commission to register all the shares which were availabla e forff the 2020 LTI Plan. The 2020 LTI Plan replaces the 2016 LTI
Plan.

During the year of 2021, a total of 182,344 of restricted stock, 136,896 of restricted stock units and 49,978 of non-qualifieff d
stock options were granted under the 2020 LTI Plan. Compensation expense of $8,018,000, $5,980,000, and $4,914,000
related to all share-based grants and awards under United�s Long-Term Irr ncentive Plans was incurred for the years 2021,
2020 and 2019, respectively. Compem nsation expense was included in employee compensation in the Consolidated
Statements of Income.

Stock Options

United currently has options outstanding from various option plans other than the 2020 LTI Plan (the �Prior Plans�);
however, no common shares of United stock are available for grants under the Prior Plans as these plans have expired.
Awards outstanding under the Prior Plans will remain in effect in accordance with their respective terms. The maximum
term for options granted under the plans is ten (10) years.

The fairff value of the options for 2021 was estimated at the date of grant using a binomial lattice option pricing model with
the follff owing weighted-average assumptions:m risk-free interest rates of 1.33%; dividend yield of 3.00%; volatility factors of
the expected market price of United�s common stock of 0.2503; and a weighted-average expected option life of 8.30 years,
respectively. The estimated faiff r value of the options at the date of granta was $5.83 for thet options granta ed during 2021. ASC
Topic 718, �Compensation � Stock Compensation� defines a lattice model as a model that produces an estimated fair value
based on the assumed changes in prices of a finaff ncial instrument over successive periods of time. A binomial lattice model
assumes at least two price movements are possible in each period of time.

A summary orr f activity under the United�s stock option plans as of December 31, 2021, and the changes during the year of
2021 are presented below:

Year ended December 31, 2021
Weighted Average

Aggregate Remaining
(Dollars in thousands, excepte per share amounts)s Intrinsic Contractual Exercise

Shares Value Term (Yrs.) Price
Outstanding at January 1, 2021 1,904,557 $ 34.14
Assumed in Community Bankers Trust merger 582,162 22.06
Granted 49,978 32.51
Exercised (232,777) 27.59
Forfeiff ted or expired (154,803) 27.63
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 2,149,117 $ 12,237 5.2 $ 32.01

Exercisable at December 31, 2021 1,754,083 $ 10,988 4.6 $ 31.56

The following table summarizes the status of United�s nonvested awards for the year ended Decemberm 31, 2021:

Shares

Weighted-Average
Grant Date Fair Value

Per Share
Nonvested at January 1, 2021 544,905 $ 6.93
Assumed in Community Bankers Trust merger 84,237 13.67
Granted 49,978 5.83
Vested (240,927) 7.32
Forfeited or expired (43,159) 12.82
Nonvested at December 31, 2021 395,034 $ 7.33

As of December 31, 2021, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested option awards was $1,174,000
with a weighted-average expense recognition period of 0.7 years. The total fair value of awards vested duridd ng the year
ended December 31, 2021, was $1,764,000.
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Cash received froff m options exercised under the Plans for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 was
$5,206,000, $1,241,000, and $1,272,000, respectively. During 2021 and 2020, 232,777 and 100,736 shares, respectively,
were issued in connection with stock option exercises. All shares issued in connection with stock option exercises for 2021
and 2020 were issued from authorized and unissued stock. The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted in
the year of 2021, 2020 and 2019 was $5.83, $5.65, and $7.16, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised
under the Plans during the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019 was $2,337,000, $1,917,000, and $1,932,000,
respectively.

ASC Topic 230, �Statement of Cash Flows,� requiq res the benefitsff of tax deducdd tions in excess of recognized compem nsation
cost to be reported as an operating cash floff w. This requirement reduces net operating cash floff ws. While the company
cannot estimate what those amounts will be in the futff uret (becausea they depend on, among other things, the date employees
exercise stock options), United recognized cash flowff s used in operating activities of $303,000, $351,000, and $223,000
from excess tax benefits related to share-based compem nsation arrangements forff the year of 2021, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

Restricted Stock

Under the 2020 LTI Plan, United may award restricted common shares to key employeesm and non-employee directors.
Restricted shares granted to participants will vest no sooner than 1/3 per year over the first three anniversaries of the award.
Unless determined by the Committee or the Board and provided in the award agreement, recipients of restricted shares do
not pay any consideration to United forff the shares, have the right to vote all shares subjeb ct to such grant and receive all
dividends with respect to such shares, whether or not the shares have vested. Presently, these nonvested participating
securities have an immaterial impacm t on diluted earnings per share. As of Decemberm 31, 2021, the total unrecognized
compensation cost related to nonvested restricted stock awards was $8,015,000 with a weighted-average expense
recognition period of 1.0 years.

The folff lowing summarizes the changes to United�s restricted common shares for the year ended December 31, 2021:

Number of
Shares

Weighted-Average
Grant Date Fair Value

Per Share
Outstanding at Januaryr 1, 2021 340,976 $ 35.41
Granted 182,344 35.97
Vested (131,949) 36.72
Forfeited (7,400) 36.20
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 383,971 $ 35.21

Restricted Stock Units

Under the 2020 LTI Plan, United may grant restricted stock units (�RSUs�) to key employees. These awards help align the
interests of these employees with the interests of the shareholders of United by providing economic value directly related to
the performance of the Company. These RSU grants could be time-vested RSUs, performance-vested RSUs, or a
combination of both. Currently, time-vested RSUs vest ratably over three years from the date of granta . Performance-vested
RSUs cliff-vest after assessment of the Company�s performance over a period of three years. The number of performance-
vested RSUs that vest is determined by two metrics measured relative to peers: Return on Average Tangible Common
Equity (�ROATCE�) and Total Shareholder Returt n (�TSR�). Based on ASC Topic 718, the ROATCE comparison is
considered a performance condition while the TSR comparison is considered a market condition. There will be no payout
of the performance-rr vested awards if the threshold performance is not achieved. United communicates the specificff threshold,
target, and maximum perforff mance-vested RSU awards and performance targets to the appa licabla e key employem es at the
beginning of a perforff mance period. Dividends are accrued but not paid in respect to the awards until the RSUs vest. The
holder does not have the right to vote the shares during the time and performance periods. The value of the time-vested
RSUs and the performance-vested, based on the performance condition, RSUs awarded is establa ished as the faiff r market
value of the stock at the time of the grant. The value of the performanff ce-vested, based on the markerr t condition, RSUs
awarded is estimated through the use of a Monte Carlo valuation model as of the grant date. The Company recognizes
expense on the RSUs in accordance with ASC Topic 718.



127

The following table summarizes the status of United�s nonvested RSUs during the year ended December 31, 2021:

Shares

Weighted-Average
Grant Date Fair Value

Per Share
Nonvested at January 1, 2021 0 $ 0.00
Granted 136,896 35.65
Vested 0 0.00
Forfeiff ted or expired 0 0.00
Nonvested at December 31, 2021 136,896 $ 35.65

As of Decemberm 31, 2021, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested restricted stock units was
$3,234,000 with a weighted-average expense recognition period of 1.2 years.

NOTE R--COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Lending-related ComCC mitments

United is a party to financial instruments with off-bff alance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing
needs of its customers and to alter its own exposure to fluctuattt ions in interest rates. These financial instruments include
loan commitments, standa bydd letters of credit, and interest rate swap aaa greements. The instrumerr nts involve, to varying degrees,
elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the financial statements.

United's maximum exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperforff mar nca e by thet counterpartrr y ttt o the financial instrumrr ent for
the loan commitments and standby letters of credit is the contractualt or notional amount of those instrumrr ents. United uses
the same policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet instruments. Collateral
may be obtained, if deemed necessary, based on management's credit evaluation of the counterparty.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the commitment contract. Commitments generally have fixff ed expiration dates or other termination clauses
and may require the payment of a feeff . Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upou n,
the total commitment amounts do not necessarily, and historically do not, represent futff urett cash requirq ements. The amount of
collateral obtained, if deemed necessary urr ponu the extension of credit, is based on management's credit evaluation of the
counterparr ty. United had approximately $7,419,342,000 and $5,730,876,000 of loan commitments outstanding as of
December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively, approximately 42% of which contractually expire within one
year. Included in the December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 amounts are commitments to extend credit of
$571,792,000 and $374,003,000, respectively, related to mortgrr age loan fa undff ing commimm tments of UniU ted�s mortgage banka ing
segment and are of a short-term nature.

Commercial and standby letters of credit are agreements used by United's customers as a means of improving their credit
standing in their dealings with others. Under these agreements, United guarantees certain finaff ncial commitments of its
customers. A commercial letter of credit is issued specificff ally to facff ilitate trade or commerce. Typiyy cally, under the terms of
a commercial letter of credit, a commitment is drawn upon when the underlying transaction is consummated as intended
between the customer and a third party.t As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, United had $14,774,000 and
$5,092,000 of commercial letters of credit outstanding. A standby letter of credit is generally contingent upon the faiff lure of
a customer to perform according to the termsrr of an underlying contract with a third party. United has issued standbyd letters
of credit of $164,743,000 and $134,916,000 as of Decemberm 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively. In accordanca e
with the Contingencies Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification, United has determined that t substantaa ially all
of its letters of credit are renewed on an annual basis and the fees associated with these letters of credit are immaterial.

Mortgat ge Repue rchase Reserver

United�s mortgage banking segment provides for its estimated exposure to repurchase loans previously sold to investors forff
which borrowers failed to provide full and accurate informarr tion on their loan appa lication or for which appraisals have not
been acceptabla e or where the loan was not underwritten in accordance with the loan program specifiedff by the loan investor,
and forff other exposure to its investors related to loan sales activities. United evaluates the merits of each claim and estimates
its reserve based on actuat l and expected claims received and considers the historical amounts paid to settle such claims.
United�s mortgrr age banking segment has a reserve of $1,150,000 and $1,216,000 as of Decemberm 31, 2021 and 2020,
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respectively.

United has derivative counter-party risk that may arise from the possible inabia lity of United�s mortgrr age banking segment�s
third partyrr investors to meet the terms of their forward sales contracts. United�s mortgrr age banking segment works with
third-party it nvestors that are generally well-capitalized, are investment grade and exhibit strong finff ancial performance to
mitigate this risk. United does not expect any third-party itt nvestor to fail to meet its obligation.

Legal Proceedings

United and its subsidiaries are currently involved in various legal proceedings in the normal course of business.
Management is vigorously pursuing all its legal anda factuatt l defenses and, after consultation with legal counsel, believes that
all such litigation will be resolved with no material effecff t on United�s finff ancial position.

Regulatory Matters

A variety of consumer products,d including mortgarr ge and deposit productsd , and certarr in fees and charges related to such
productsdd , have come under increased regulatory scrutiny. It is possible that regulatory arr uta horities could bring enforcff ement
actions, including civil money penalties, or take other actions against United in regard to these consumer products. United
could also determine of its own accord, or be required by regulators, to refundff or otherwise make remediation payments to
customers in connection with these producd ts. It is not possible at this time for management to assess the probability of a
material adverse outcome or reasonably estimate the amount of any potential loss related to such matters.

NOTE S--DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

United uses derivative instruments to help aid against adverse price changes or interest rate movements on the value of
certain assets or liabia lities and on futff ure cash flows. These derivatives may consist of interest rate swaps,a caps,a floors,
collars, futures, forward contracts, written and purchased options. United also executes derivative instruments with its
commercial banking customers to facilitate its risk management strategies.

During the second quaq rter of 2020, United entered into a new interest rate swap derivative designated as a cash flow hedge.
The notional amount of the cash flow hedge derivative totaled $250,000,000. The derivative is intended to hedge the
changes in cash flowsff associated with floff ating rate FHLB borrowings. United is required to pay-fixed 0.59% and receive-
variablea 1-month LIBOR with monthly resets. The tenor of the interest rate swap da erivative is 10 years with an expiration
date in June 2030. During the third quarter of 2020, United entered into an additional interest rate swap da erivative
designated as a cash floff w hedge. The notional amount of the cash flow hedge derivative totaled $250,000,000. The
derivative is intended to hedge the changes in cash floff ws associated with ft loatff ing rate FHLB borrowings. United is required
to pay-fixff ed 0.19% and receive-variable 1-month Lt IBOR with monthly resets. The tenor of the interest rate swap daa erivative
is 4 years with an expiration date in August 2024. As of Decemberm 31, 2021, United has determined that no forff ecasted
transactions related to its cash flowff hedges resulted in gains or losses pertaining to cash flowff hedge reclassification from
AOCI to income because the forecasted transactions became probabla e of not occurring. United estimates that $163,000 will
be reclassified from AOCI as an increase to interest expense over the next 12-months following Decembem r 31, 2021 related
to the cash floff w hedges. As of December 31, 2021, the maximum length of time over which forecasted transactions are
hedged is nine years.

United is subject to the Dodd-Frank Act clearing requirement for eligible derivatives. United has executed and cleared
eligible derivatives through the London Clearing House (�LCH�). Variation margin at the LCH is distinguished as settled-
to-market and settled daily based on the prior day value, rather than collateralized-to-market. The total notional amount of
interest rate swap derivatives cleared through the LCH include $500,000,000 for asset derivatives as of Decembem r 31, 2021.
The related fair value on a net basis approximate zero.
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The folff lowing tables disclose the derivative instrumer nts� location on the Compam ny�s Consolidated Balance Sheets and
the notional amount and faiff r value of those instrumer nts at December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

Asset Derivatives
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

(In thousands)
Balance
Sheet

Location
Notional
Amount

Fair
Value

Balance
Sheet

Location
Notional
Amount

Fair
Value

Cash Flow Hedges:
Interest rate swap ca ontracts
(hedging FHLB borrowings) Other assets $ 500,000 $ 21,328 Other assets $ 500,000 $ 4,378

Total Cash Flow Hedges $ 500,000 $ 21,328 $ 500,000 $ 4,378
Total derivatives designated as
hedging instruments $ 500,000 $ 21,328 $ 500,000 $ 4,378
Derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments

Forward loan sales commitments Other assets $ 33,349 $ 430 Other assets $ 62,418 $ 1,581
TBA mortgage-backed securities Other assets 133,747 127 Other assets 0 0
Interest rate lock commitments Other assets 467,472 10,380 Other assets 973,350 38,332
Total derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments $ 634,568 $ 10,937 $1,035,768 $ 39,913

Total asset derivatives $1,134,568 $ 32,265 $1,535,768 $ 44,291

Liability Derivatives
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

(In thousands)
Balance
Sheet

Location
Notional
Amount

Fair
Value

Balance
Sheet

Location
Notional
Amount

Fair
Value

Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments
Fair Value Hedges:

Interest rate swap ca ontracts
(hedging commercial loans) Other liabilities $ 72,447 $ 3,197 Other liabilities $ 77,011 $ 6,782

Total Fair Value Hedges $ 72,447 $ 3,197 $ 77,011 $ 6,782
Total derivatives designated as
hedging instruments $ 72,447 $ 3,197 $ 77,011 $ 6,782
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments

Forward loan sales commitments Other liabilities $ 15,005 $ 36 Other liabilities $ 0 $ 0
TBA mortgage-backed securities 550,000 470 0 0
Interest rate lock commitments Other liabilities 24,743 25 789,000 6,276
Total derivatives not designated
as hedging instruments $ 589,748 $ 531 $ 789,000 $ 6,276

Total liability derivatives $ 662,195 $ 3,728 $ 866,011 $ 13,058

The folff lowing table represents the carrrr yirr ng amount of the hedged assets/(liabilities) and the cumulative amount of fairff value
hedging adjusd tment included in the carryir ng amount of the hedged assets/(liabilities) that are designated as a faiff r value
accounting relationship as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

(In thousands)

Derivatives in Fair Value
Hedging Relationships

Location in the Statement
of Condition

December 31, 2021

Carrying Amount of
the Hedged
Assets/(Liabilities)

Cumulative Amount
of Fair Value Hedging
Adjustment Included
in the Carrying
Amount of the Hedged
Assets/(Liabilities)

Cumulative Amount of
Fair Value Hedging
Adjud stment Remaining forff
any Hedged Assets/
(Liabilities) forff which
Hedge Accounting has
been Discontinued

Interest rate swapsa Loans and leases, net of
unearned income

$ 73,232 $ (3,197) $ 0
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(In thousands)

Derivatives in Fair Value
Hedging Relationships

Location in the Statement
of Condition

December 31, 2020

Carrying Amount of
the Hedged
Assets/(Liabilities)

Cumulative Amount
of Fair Value Hedging
Adjustment Included
in the Carrying
Amount of the Hedged
Assets/(Liabilities)

Cumulative Amount of
Fair Value Hedging
Adjud stment Remaining forff
any Hedged Assets/
(Liabilities) forff which
Hedge Accounting has
been Discontinued

Interest rate swapsa Loans and leases, net of
unearned income

$ 77,810 $ (6,782) $ 0

Derivative contracts involve the risk of dealing with both bank customers and institutional derivative counterparties and
their ability to meet contractual terms. Credit risk arises from the possible inability of counterparties to meet the terms of
their contracts. United�s exposure is limited to the replacement value of the contracts rather than the notional amount of the
contract. The Compam ny�s agreements generally contain provisions that limit the unsecured exposure up to an agreed upon
threshold. Additionally, the Company attempts to minimize credit risk through certain approval processes established by
management.

The effecff t of United�s derivative financial instruments on its Consolidated Statements of Income forff the years ended
December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 is presented as folff lows:

Year Ended
(In thousands) Income Statement

Location
December 31,

2021
December 31,

2020
December 31,

2019
Derivatives in hedging relationships
Cash Flow Hedges:

Interest rate swap contracts Interest on long-term
borrowings $ (1,354) $ (578) $ 0

Fair Value Hedges:
Interest rate swap contracts Interest and fees on loans and

leases $ (1,744) $ (1,414) $ (95)
Total derivatives in hedging relationships $ (3,098) $ (1,992) $ (95)

Derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments

Forward loan sales commitments Income from Mortgage
Banking Activities (1,187) (725) 925

TBA mortgage-backed securities Income from Mortgage
Banking Activities 5,932 (3,825) 2,331

Interest rate lock commitments Income from Mortgage
Banking Activities (22,219) 21,299 3,607

Total derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments $ (17,474) $ 16,749 $ 6,863

Total derivatives $ (20,572) $ 14,757 $ 6,768

For the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, changes in the fairff value of any interest rate swaps attributed to
hedge ineffectiveness were recorded, but not significant to United�s Consolidated Statements of Income.

NOTE T--COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The changes in accumulated other comprehensive income are as folff lows:
For the Years Ended December 31

(In thousands) 2021 2020 2019
Net Income $ 367,738 $ 289,023 $ 260,099
Available for sale (�AFS�) securities:

AFS securities with OTTI charges during the period 0 0 (641)
Related income tax effeff ct 0 0 149

Less : OTTI charges recognized in net income 0 0 198
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For the Years Ended December 31
(In thousands) 2021 2020 2019

Related income tax effeff ct 0 0 (46)
Reclassification of previous noncredit OTTI to credit OTTI 0 0 2,188

Related income tax effeff ct 0 0 (510)
Net unrealized gains on AFS securities with OTTI 0 0 1,338

AFS securities � all other:
Change in net unrealized gains (losses) on AFS securituu ies arising during the period (72,257) 77,142 32,570

Related income tax effect 16,836 (17,974) (7,589)
Net reclassificaff tion adjustment forff (gains) losses included in net income (1,552) (2,502) (97)

Related income tax effect 362 583 23
(56,611) 57,249 24,907

Net effecff t of AFS securities on other comprehensive income (56,611) 57,249 26,245

Cash flow hedge derivatives:
Unrealized gain on cash floff w hedge before reclassification to interest expense 15,597 3,800 0

Related income tax effeff ct (3,634) (885) 0
Net reclassification adjustment for losses included in net income 1,354 578 0

Related income tax effect (316) (135) 0
Net effecff t of cash floff w hedge derivatives on other comprehensive income 13,001 3,358 0

Defined benefitff pension plan:
Net actuarial loss during the period 14,286 (10,583) (10,324)

Related income tax expense (483) 3,263 2,384
Amortization of prior service cost recognized in net income 0 0 0

Related income tax effeff ct 0 0 0
Amortization of net actuarial loss recognized in net income 6,770 6,050 4,965

Related income tax effect (4,221) (2,098) (1,170)
Net effecff t of change in definff ed benefitff pension plan on other comprehensive income 16,352 (3,368) (4,145)

Total change in other comprehensive income, net of tax (27,258) 57,239 22,100
Total Comprehensive Income $ 340,480 $ 346,262 $ 282,199

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income forff the year ended December 31, 2021 are as follows:

Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (AOCI) by Component (a)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

(Dollars in thousands)

Unrealized
Gains/Losses

on AFS
Securities

Unrealized
Gains/Losses
on Cash Flow

Hedges

Defined
Benefit
Pension
Items Total

Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 65,205 $ 3,358 $(46,193) $ 22,370
Other comprehensive income before reclassification (55,421) 11,963 0 (43,458)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (1,190) 1,038 16,352 16,200
Net current-period other comprehensive income, net of tax (56,611) 13,001 16,352 (27,258)

Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 8,594 $ 16,359 $(29,841) $ (4,888)

(a)All amounts are net-of-tax.
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Reclassifications out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (AOCI)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

(In thousands)

Details about AOCI Components

Amount
Reclassified
from AOCI

Affected Line Item in the Statement Where
Net Income is Presented

Availabla e foff r sale (�AFS�) securuu ities:
Net reclassification adjustmed nt for

gains included in net income $ (1,552) Net investment securities gains
(1,552) Total before tax

Related income tax effect 362 Tax expense
(1,190) Net of tax

Cash flowff hedge:
Net reclassification adjustd ment forff

losses included in net income $ 1,354 Interest expense
1,354 Total before tax

Related income tax effect (316) Tax expense
1,038 Net of tax

Pension plan:
Recognized net actuarial loss 14,286 (a)
Amortization of net actuarial loss 6,770 (b)

21,056 Total before tax
Related income tax effectff (4,704) Tax expense

16,352 Net of tax
Total reclassifications for the period $ 16,200

(a)This AOCI componem nt is included in the computation of changes in plan assets (see Note P, Employee Benefitff Plans)
(b)This AOCI component is included in the computation of net periodic pension cost (see Note P, Employee Benefitff Plans)

NOTE U--UNITED BANKSHARES, INC. (PARENT COMPANY ONLY) FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Condensed Balance Sheets
December 31

(In thousands) 2021 2020
Assets

Cash and due from banks $ 262,067 $ 158,147
Securities available for sale 5,758 7,138
Securities held to maturity 20 20
Equity securities 6,593 4,737
Other investment securities 13,055 10,725
Investment in subu sidiaries:
Bank subsidiaries 4,784,480 4,466,132
Nonbank subsiu diaries 33,449 30,287

Goodwill (16,715) (16,397)
Other assets 19,471 14,591

Total Assets $ 5,108,158 $ 4,675,380

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Subordinated notes $ 9,872 $ 9,865
Junior subordinated debentures of subu sidiary trusts 275,323 269,972
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 104,335 97,923
Shareholders' equity (including othert accumulated comprehensive loss of
$4,888 at December 31, 2021 and other accumulated comprehensive gain of
$22,370 at Decembm er 31, 2020)

4,718,628 4,297,620

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity $ 5,108,158 $ 4,675,380
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Condensed Statements of Income
Year Ended December 31

(In thousands) 2021 2020 2019
Income

Dividends from banking subsidiaries $ 287,500 $ 232,000 $ 249,000
Net interest income 335 202 126
Management feeff s:

Bank subu sidiaries 39,678 30,464 27,325
Nonbank subsidiaries 27 27 27

Other income 3,418 556 147
Total Income 330,958 263,249 276,625
Expenses

Operating expenses 47,273 53,880 38,569
Income Before Income Taxes and Equity
in Undistributed Net Income of Subsidiaries 283,685 209,369 238,056

Applicable income tax benefitff (779) (4,196) (2,123)
Income Before Equity in Undistributed Net
Income of Subsidiaries 284,464 213,565 240,179

Equity in undistributed net income of subu sidiaries:
Bank subsidiaries 83,507 75,054 19,557
Nonbank subu sidiaries (233) 404 363

Net Income $ 367,738 $ 289,023 $ 260,099

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31

(In thousands) 2021 2020 2019
Operating Activities

Net income $ 367,738 $ 289,023 $ 260,099
Adjd ustments to reconcile net income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity in undistributed net income
of subsidiaries (83,274) (75,458) (19,920)

Amortization of net periodic pension costs 203 315 302
Stock-based compensation 8,018 5,980 4,914
Excess tax benefits from stock-based
compensation arrangements 303 351 223

Net change in other assets and liabilities 2,519 (7) 1,770
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 295,507 220,204 247,388
Investing Activities

Net proceeds fromff sales of securuu ities 1,449 380 236
Net (purchases of) proceeds from sales of equity

securities
(1,016) (54) 1,116

Net cash paid in acquisition of subsidiary 1,072 (47) 0
Increase in investment in subu sidiaries (3,500) (5,573) (7,000)
Change in other investment securities (2,310) (672) (9,890)

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (4,305) (5,966) (15,538)

Financing Activities
Cash dividends paid (181,277) (162,713) (138,939)
Acquisition of treasury stock (11,211) (21,317) (35,673)
Proceeds from sale of treasury stock from deferrff ed

compensation plan 0 1 1
Proceeds froff m exercise of stock options 5,206 1,241 1,272

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (187,282) (182,788) (173,339)

Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 103,920 31,450 58,511

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 158,147 126,697 68,186

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 262,067 $ 158,147 $ 126,697
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NOTE V--REGULATORYMATTERS

United Bank is required to maintain average reserve balances with its Federal Reserve Bank. The average amount of those
consolidated reserve balances maintained forff the year ended Decemberm 31, 2021 were approximately $3,119,391,000. No
reserve balance forff the year ended Decemberm 31, 2021 was required. The average amount of those consolidated reserve
balances maintained and required for the year ended December 31, 2020, was approxa imately $1,409,598,000 and
$71,883,000, respectively.

The primary source of funds for the dividends paid by United to its shareholders is dividends received fromff United Bank.
Dividends paid by United Bank are subjeb ct to certain regulatory lrr imitations. Generally, the most restrictive provision
requires regulatory arr ppa roval if dividends declared in any year exceed that year's net income, as defined, plus the retained net
profits of the two preceding years.

During 2022, the retained net profits availablea for distribution to United by United Bank as dividends without regulatory
approval, are approximately $158,561,000, plus net income forff the interim period through the date of declaration.

Under Federal Reserve regulation, United Bank is also limited as to the amount they may loan to affiliaff tes, including the
parent companm y. Loans from United Bank to the parent company ann re limited to 10% of the banking subsiu diaries' capia tal and
surplr us, as defineff d, or $395,066,000 at December 31, 2021, and must be secured by qualifyiff ng collateral.

United�s subsidiary banks are subjecb t to various regulatory capia tal requirements administered by federal banking agencies.
Pursuant to capital adequacq y guidelines, United�s subsidiary banks must meet specific capital guidelines that involve
various quantitative measures of the banks� assets, liabia lities, and certain off-baff lance-sheet items as calculated under
regulatory accounting practices. United�s subsidiary banks� capia tal amounts and classifications area also subjeb ct to qualitative
judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

As previously mentioned, the new Basel III Capital Rules became effective for United and United Bankaa on January 1rr , 2015
(subject to a phase-in period). These new quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capia tal adequacqq y requiqq re
United and United Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios of total, Tier I capital, and common Tier I capital as
defined in the regulations, to risk-weighted assets, as definff ed, and of Tier I capital, as defined, to avera age assets, as definff ed.
Failure to meet minimum capita al requirements can initiate certarr in mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions
by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on United�s finff ancial statements. As of December 31,
2021, United exceeds all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subju ect.

At December 31, 2021, the most recent notification froff m its regulators, United andaa United Bank were categorized as well-
capitalized. To be categorized as well-capitalized, United must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier I risk-based,
Common Tier I risk-based, and Tier I leverage ratios as set forff th in the follff owing table. There are no conditions or events
since that notification that management believes would impact United�s well-capia talized status.t

United�s and United Bank�s capital amounts (in thousands of dollars) and ratios are presented in the following table.

Actual
For Capital

Adequacy Purposes
To Be Well-
Capitalized(Dollars in thousands)

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2021:
Total Capital (to Risk-
Weighted Assets):
United Bankshares $ 3,317,133 15.4% $ 1,719,342 8.0% $ 2,149,177 10.0%
United Bank 3,066,779 14.3% 1,715,234 8.0% 2,144,042 10.0%

Tier I Capital (to Risk-
Weighted Assets):
United Bankshares $ 2,877,791 13.4% $ 1,289,506 6.0% $ 1,719,342 8.0%
United Bank 2,925,437 13.6% 1,286,425 6.0% 1,715,234 8.0%

Common Tier I Capital
(to Risk Weighted Assets):
United Bankshares $ 2,877,791 13.4% $ 967,130 4.5% $ 1,396,965 6.5%
United Bank 2,925,437 13.6% 964,819 4.5% 1,393,627 6.5%
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Actual
For Capital

Adequacy Purposes
To Be Well-
Capitalized(Dollars in thousands)

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Tier I Capital
(to Average Assets):
United Bankshares $ 2,877,791 11.0% $ 1,050,891 4.0% $ 1,313,614 5.0%
United Bank 2,925,437 11.2% 1,049,526 4.0% 1,311,907 5.0%

As of December 31, 2020:
Total Capital (to Risk-
Weighted Assets):
United Bankshares $ 2,945,669 15.6% $ 1,515,403 8.0% $ 1,894,254 10.0%
United Bank 2,800,753 14.8% 1,511,961 8.0% 1,889,951 10.0%

Tier I Capital (to Risk-
Weighted Assets):
United Bankshares $ 2,519,595 13.3% $ 1,136,552 6.0% $ 1,515,403 8.0%
United Bank 2,669,210 14.1% 1,133,971 6.0% 1,511,961 8.0%

Common Tier I Capa ital
(to Risk Weighted Assets):
United Bankshares $ 2,519,595 13.3% $ 852,414 4.5% $ 1,231,265 6.5%
United Bank 2,669,210 14.1% 850,478 4.5% 1,228,468 6.5%

Tier I Capital
(to Average Assets):
United Bankshares $ 2,519,595 10.3% $ 975,099 4.0% $ 1,218,873 5.0%
United Bank 2,669,210 11.0% 974,912 4.0% 1,218,640 5.0%

United�s mortgage banking entities, George Mason and Crescent, are subju ect to net worth requirements issued by the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (�HUD�). Failure to meet minimum capital requirements of HUD can
result in certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions that, if undertakrr en, could have a direct material
effeff ct on George Mason�s and Crescent�s operations.

For George Mason and Crescent, the maximum net worth requirement of HUD at December 31, 2021 was $2,500,000.
George Mason�s net worth and Crescent�s net worth were $161,595,000 and $101,615,000 at December 31, 2021, which
both exceeded the HUD requirements.

NOTEW--FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In accordance with ASC Topic 820, the folff lowing describes the valuation techniqueq s used by United to measure certain
financial assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on a recurring basis in the financial statements.

Securities available for sale and equity stt ecurities: Securities available for sale and equity st ecurities are recorded at fair value
on a recurring basis. Fair value measurement is based upon quoted market prices, when availabla e (�Level 1�). If quoted
market prices are not available,a fair values are measured utilizing independent valuation techniques of identical or similar
securities for which significant assumptions are derived primarily froff m or corroborated by observable market data. Using a
market approach valuation methodology, third partyrr vendors compile prices based on observabrr le market inpun ts, which
include benchmark yields, reported trades, issuer spreads, benchmark securities, and �To Be Announced� prices (�Level
2�). Management internally reviews the fair values provided by third partyrr vendors on a monthly basis. Management also
performs a quarterly price testing analysis at the individuadd l security level which compam res the pricing provided by the third
party vendors to an independent pricing source�s valuation of the same securities. Variances that are deemed to be material
are reviewed by management. Additionally, to further assess the reliabila ity ot f the information received from third partyrr
vendors, management obtains documentation from third party vendors related to the sources, methodologies, and inputs
utilized in valuing securities classified as Level 2. Management analyzes this information to ensure the underlying
assumptions appear reasonabla e. Management also obtains an independent servicrr e audaa itor�s report frr roff m third party vt endors
to provide reasonablea assurance that appropriate controls are in place over the valuation process. Upon completing its
review of the pricing fromff third party vendors at Decemberm 31, 2021, management determined that the prices provided by
its third party pricing sources were reasonablea and in line with management�s expectations for the market values of these
securities. Therefore, prices obtained from third party vendors that did not reflect forced liquiq dation or distressed sales were
not adjusted materially by management at December 31, 2021. Management utilizes a numberm of factors to determirr ne if a
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market is inactive, all of which may requirq e a significaff nt level of judgment. Factors that management considers include: a
significff ant widening of the bid-ask spread, a considerablea decline in the volume and level of trading activity in the
instrument, a significff ant variance in prices among market participantsa , anda a significanta reductdd ion in thet level of observable
inputs. Any securities availablea for sale not valued based upon quotq ed market prices or third party pt ricing models that
consider observable markerr t data are considered Level 3. Currently, United does not have any availablea -for-sale securities
considered as Level 3.

Loans held forff sale: For residential mortgage loans sold in the mortgage banking segment, the loans closed are recorded at
fair value using the fair value option which is measured using valuations from investors forff loans with similar
characteristics as well as considering the probabia lity of the loan closing (i.e. the �pull-through� rate) (�Level 2�) with st ome
adjusted forff the Compam ny�s actualtt sales experience versus the investor�s indicated pricing (�Level 3�). The unobservable
input forff Level 3 valuations is the Compam ny�s historical sales prices. For December 31, 2021, the range of historical sales
prices increased the investor�s indicated pricing by a range of 0.19% to 0.51% with a weighted average increase of 0.29%.

Derivatives: United utilizes interest rate swaps to hedge exposure to interest rate risk and variability of cash floff ws
associated to changes in the underlying interest rate of the hedged item. These hedging interest rate swaps are classified as
either a faiff r value hedge or a cash flow hedge. United utilizes third-party vendors for derivative valuation purposes. These
vendors determine the appropriate fair value based on a net present value calculation of the cash flowsff related to thet interest
rate swapsa using primarily observable market inpun ts such as interest rate yield curves (�Level 2�). Valuation adjustments to
derivative fair values for liquidity at nd credit risk are also taken into consideration, as well as the likelihood of default by
United and derivative counterparties, the net counterparty exposure and the remaining maturt ities of the positions. Values
obtained from third party vendors are typicy ally not adjusted by managa ement. Manaa gement internally reviews the derivative
values provided by third party vendors on a quarterly basis. All derivative values are tested forff reasonableness by
management utilizing a net present value calculation.

For a fair value hedge, the fair value of the interest rate swap is recognized on the balance sheet as either a freesff tanding
asset or liability with a corresponding adjustment to the hedged financial instrument. Subsequeq nt adjd ustments due to
changes in the fairff value of a derivative that qualifies as a fairff value hedge are offset in current period earnirr ngs either in
interest income or interest expense depending on the naturt e of the hedged financial instrument. For a cash flow hedge, the
fair value of the interest rate swap is recognized on the balance sheet as either a freff estanding asset or liability with a
corresponding adjustment to accumulated other comprm ehensive income within shareholders� equqq ity, net of tax. Subsequent
adjustments due to changes in the fairff value of a derivative that qualifies as a cash floff w hedge are offsetff to accumulated
other comprm ehensive income, net of tax and reclassified into earnings in the same line associated with the forecasted
transaction when the forecasted transaction affects earnirr ngs.

The Compam ny records its interest rate lock commitments and forward loan sales commitments at faiff r value determined as
the amount that would be required to settle each of these derivative financial instruments at the balance sheet date. In the
normal course of business, United�s mortgage banking subsu idiaries enter into contractual interest rate lock commitments to
extend credit to borrowers with fixed expiration dates. The commitments become effective when the borrowers �lock-in� a
specifieff d interest rate within the timeframes establia shed by the mortgrr age compam nies. All borrowers are evaluated for credit
worthiness prior to the extension of the commitment. Market risk arises if interest rates move adversely between the time of
the interest rate lock by the borrower and the sale date of the loan to the investor. To mitigate the effect of the interest rate
risk inherent in providing rate lock commitments to borrowers, United�s mortgage banking subsidiaries enter into either a
forward sales contract to sell loans to investors when using best efforts or a TBA mortgage-backed security under
mandatory drr elivery. Fair values of TBA mortgage-backed securities are measured using valuations from investors for
mortgage-backed securities with similar characteristics (�Level 2�). The forward sales contracts lock in an interest rate and
price for the sale of loans similar to the specific rate lock commitments. Under the Company�s best efforts model, the rate
lock commitments to borrowers and the forward sales contracts to investors through to the date the loan closes are
undesignated derivatives and accordingly, are marked to fairff value through earnings. These valuations fall into a Level 2
category.rr For residential mortgage loans sold in the mortgarr ge banking segment, the interest rate lock commitments are
recorded at faiff r value which is measured using valuations from investors for loans with similar characteristics (�Level 2�)
with some adjusted forff the Company�s actuat l sales experience versus the investor�s indicated pricing (�Level 3�). The
unobservable input forff Level 3 valuations is the Company�s historical sales prices. For December 31, 2021, the range of
historical sales prices increased the investor�s indicated pricing by a range of 0.19% to 0.51% with a weighted average
increase of 0.29%.
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For interest rate swap derivatives that are not designated in a hedge relationship, changes in the fair value of the derivatives
are recognized in earnings in the same period as the change in the fair value. Unrealized gains and losses due to changes in
the fair value of other derivative financial instrumrr ents not in hedge relationship are included in noninterest income and
noninterest expense, respectively.

The following table presents the balances of financial assets and liabilia ties measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, segregated by the level of the valuation inpun ts within the faiff r value hierarchy:

Fair Value at December 31, 2021 Using

(In thousands)

Description

Balance as of
December 31,

2021

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Assets
Available for sale debt securities:

U.S. Treasury srr ecurities and
obligations of U.S. Government
corporations and agencies $ 81,850 $ 0 $ 81,850 $ 0

State and political subdivisions 847,298 0 847,298 0
Residential mortgage-backed securities

Agency 1,113,774 0 1,113,774 0
Non-agency 74,545 0 74,545 0

Commercial mortgage-backed securities
Agency 639,925 0 639,925 0

Asset-backed securities 656,572 0 656,572 0
Single issue trust preferred securities 16,811 0 16,811 0
Other corporr rate securities 611,924 5,758 606,166 0

Total available for sale securities 4,042,699 5,758 4,036,941 0
Equity securities:

Financial services industry 187 187 0 0
Equity mutuatt l funff ds (1) 6,406 6,406 0 0
Other equityt securities 5,811 5,811 0 0

Total equity securities 12,404 12,404 0 0
Loans held for sale 504,416 0 40,307 464,109
Derivative financial assets:

Interest rate swapa contrtt acts 21,328 0 21,328 0
Forward sales commitments 430 0 430 0
TBA mortgage-backed securities 127 0 66 61
Interest rate lock commitments 10,380 0 936 9,444

Total derivative financial assets 32,265 0 22,760 9,505
Liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities:
Interest rate swapa contrtt acts 3,197 0 3,197 0
Forward sales commitments 36 0 0 36
TBA mortgage-backed securities 470 0 0 470
Interest rate lock commitments 25 0 0 25

Total derivative financial liabilities 3,728 0 3,197 531

Fair Value at December 31, 2020 Using

(In thousands)

Description

Balance as of
December 31,

2020

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Assets
Available for sale debt securities:

U.S. Treasury securities and $ 66,344 $ 0 $ 66,344 $ 0
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Fair Value at December 31, 2020 Using

(In thousands)

Description

Balance as of
December 31,

2020

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

obligations of U.S. Government
corporations and agencies

State and political subdivisions 565,160 0 565,160 0
Residential mortgage-backed securities

Agency 928,891 0 928,891 0
Non-agency 21,776 0 21,776 0

Commercial mortgage-backed securities
Agency 675,145 0 675,145 0

Asset-backed securities 294,623 0 294,623 0
Single issue trust preferred securities 17,027 0 17,027 0
Other corprr orate securities 384,393 6,207 378,186 0

Total available for sale securities 2,953,359 6,207 2,947,152 0
Equity securities:

Financial services industry 134 134 0 0
Equity mutuatt l funff ds (1) 4,602 4,602 0 0
Other equityt securities 5,982 5.982 0 0

Total equity securities 10,718 10,718 0 0
Loans held for sale 698,341 0 43,608 654,733
Derivative financial assets:

Interest rate swapa contrtt acts 4,378 0 4,378 0
Forward sales commitments 1,581 0 1,581 0
TBA mortgage-backed securities 0 0 0 0
Interest rate lock commitments 38,332 0 6,321 32,011

Total derivative financial assets 44,291 0 12,280 32,011
Liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities:
Interest rate swapa contrtt acts 6,782 0 6,782 0
TBA mortgage-backed securities 6,276 0 6,276 0

Total derivative financial liabilities 13,058 0 13,058 0

(1) The equity mutual funds are within a rabbi trust for the paymeaa nt of benefitsff under a deferrff ed compensation plan forff certain key
officers of United and its subsidiaries.

There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 forff financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis durd ing the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

The folff lowing tabla es present additional information aboa ut financial assets and liabilities measured at fairff value at December
31, 2021 and 2020 on a recurring basis and for which United has utilized Level 3 inpun ts to determiner fair value. The amountu
of total gains or losses for the period included in earnings (or changes in net assets) attributabla e to the change in unrealized
gains or losses related to assets still held at the reporting date are recorded in Income from mortgage banking activities in
the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Loans held for sale
(In tII housands)s December 31,

2021
December 31,

2020

Balance, beginning of period $ 654,733 $ 384,375
Originations 4,984,363 5,699,581
Sales (5,313,758) (5,652,693)
Total gains or losses during the period recognized in earnings 138,771 223,470

Balance, end of period $ 464,109 $ 654,733
The amount of total gains forff the period included in earnings (or changes in net assets)
attributabla e to the change in unrealized gains or losses relating to assets still held at
reporting date $ 10,506 $ 25,194
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Derivative Financial Assets
TBA Securities

(In thousands) December 31,
2021

December 31,
2020

Balance, beginning of period $ 0 $ 0
Transfers other 61 0

Balance, end of period $ 61 $ 0
The amount of total gains forff the period included in earnings (or changes in net assets)
attributabla e to the change in unrealized gains or losses relating to assets still held at
reporting date $ 61 $ 0

Derivative Financial Assets
Interest Rate Lock
Commitments

(In thousands) December 31,
2021

December 31,
2020

Balance, beginning of period $ 32,011 $ 4,518
Transfers other (22,567) 27,493

Balance, end of period $ 9,444 $ 32,011
The amount of total gains forff the period included in earnings (or changes in net assets)
attributabla e to the change in unrealized gains or losses relating to assets still held at
reporting date $ 9,444 $ 32,011

Derivative Financial Liabilities
Forward Sales Commitments

(In thousands) December 31,
2021

December 31,
2020

Balance, beginning of period $ 0 $ 0
Transfers other 36 0

Balance, end of period $ 36 $ 0
The amount of total gains forff the period included in earnings (or changes in net assets)
attributabla e to the change in unrealized gains or losses relating to assets still held at
reporting date $ 36 $ 0

Derivative Financial Liabilities
TBA Securities

(In thousands) December 31,
2021

December 31,
2020

Balance, beginning of period $ 0 $ 0
Transfers other 470 0

Balance, end of period $ 470 $ 0
The amount of total gains forff the period included in earnings (or changes in net assets)
attributabla e to the change in unrealized gains or losses relating to assets still held at
reporting date $ 470 $ 0

Derivative Financial Liabilities
Interest Rate Lock

(In thousands) December 31,
2021

December 31,
2020

Balance, beginning of period $ 0 $ 0
Transfers other 25 0

Balance, end of period $ 25 $ 0
The amount of total gains forff the period included in earnings (or changes in net assets)
attributabla e to the change in unrealized gains or losses relating to assets still held at
reporting date $ 25 $ 0
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Fair Value Option

As of January 1, 2021, United elected the fairff value option forff new loans held forff sale originated in its community banking
segment after that date to mitigate a divergence between accounting losses and economic exposure. Prior to January 1rr ,
2021, United elected the faiff r value option only forff its loans held for sale in its mortgage banking segment.

The follff owing table refleff cts the change in fairff value included in earnings of financial instruments for which the fair value
option has been elected:

(In thousands)
Description

Year Ended
December 31, 2021

Year Ended
December 31, 2020

Income frff om mortgage banking activities $ (15,267) $ 14,947

The following tabla e reflects the difference between the aggregate fair value and the remaining contractuat l principal
outstanding for finff ancial instrur ments for which the faiff r value option has been elected:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

(In thousands)

Description

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Fair
Value

Fair Value
Over/(Under)

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Fair
Value

Fair Value
Over/(Under)

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Loans held for sale $ 493,340 $ 504,416 $ 11,076 $ 672,458 $ 698,341 $ 25,883

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a NonNN recurring Basisii

Certain financial assets are measured at fairff value on a nonrecurring basis in accordance with GAAP. Adjud stments to the
fair value of these assets usually result from the appa lication of lower-of-cost-or-market accounting or write-downs of
individuad l assets.

The folff lowing describes the valuation techniques used by United to measure certain finff ancial assets recorded at faiff r value on
a nonrecurring basis in the financial statements.

Loans held forff sale: Loans held forff sale within the community bt anking segment that are delivered on a best efforts basis are
carried at the lower of cost or fairff value. The fair value is based on the price secondary mrr arkets are currently offering forff
similar loans using observablea markerr t data which is not materially diffeff rent than cost due to the short duration between
origination and sale (�Level 2�). As such, United records any fairff value adjud stments forff these loans held for sale on a
nonrecurring basis. No nonrecurring fair value adjustments were recorded on loans held for sale durid ng the year ended
December 31, 2021. Gains and losses on sale of loans are recorded within income from mortgage banking activities on the
Consolidated Statements of Income.

Individually assessed loans: In the determination of the allowance forff loan losses, loans that do not share risk characteristics
are evaluated on an individual basis. Loans evaluated individually are not also included in the collective evaluation. When
management determines that forff eclosure is probabla e or when the borrower is experiencing finff ancial diffiff culty at the
reporting date and repayment is expected to be provided substantially through the operation or sale of the collateral,
expected credit losses are based on the fairff value of the collateral at the reportingrr date, adjud sted for selling costs as
appropriate. Fair value is measured using a market appa roach based on the value of the collateral securing the loans.
Collateral may be in the forff m of real estate or business assets including equipment, inventory,rr and accounts receivable. The
vast majora ity of the collateral is real estate. The value of real estate collateral is determined utilizing an aa ppraisaa al conducted
by an independent, licensed appra aiser outside of the Company using comparabla e property st ales (�Level 2�). However, if the
collateral is a house or building in the process of construction or if an appa raisal of the real estate property is over two years
old, then the fair value is considered Level 3. The value of business equipment is based upon an outside appa raisal if deemed
significant, or the net book value on the appa licable business� financial statements if not considered significff ant using
observable market data. Likewise, values for inventory and accounts receivables collateral are based on financia al statement
balances or aging reports (�Level 3�). For individuad lly assessed loans, a specificff reserve is established through the
allowance forff loan losses, if necessary,rr by estimating the fair value of thet underlying collateral on a nonrecurrirr ng basis. Any
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fair value adjud stments are recorded in the period incurred as provision for credit losses expense on the Consolidated
Statements of Income.

OREO: OREO consists of real estate acquired in foreclosure or other settlement of loans. Such assets are carried on the
balance sheet at the lower of the investment in the assets or the fair value of the assets less estimated selling costs. Fair
value is determined by one of two market approach methods depending on whether the property has been vacated and an
appraisal can be conducted. If the property has yet to be vacated and thus an appraisal cannot be performed, a Brokers Price
Opinion (i.e. BPO), is obtained. A BPO represents a best estimate valuation performeff d by a realtor based on knok wledge of
currer nt propertyrr values and a visual examination of the exterior condition of thet property.rr Once the property itt s subsequently
vacated, a formarr l appraisal is obtained and the recorded asset value appropriately adjusted. On the other hand, if the OREO
property has been vacated and an appa raisal can be conducdd ted, the fairff value of the property is determirr ned based upon the
appraisal using a market approach. An authorized independent appraa iser conducdd ts appraisals for United. Appraisals for
property other than ongoing constructrr ion are based on consideration of comparabla e property sales (�Level 2�). In contrast,
valuation of ongoing constructrr ion assets requires some degree of professionalff judgment. In conducting an appraisal for
ongoing constructirr on property,rr the appraaa iser develops two appraised amounts: an �as is� appraised value and a �completed�
value. Based on professiff onal judgment and their knowledge of the particular situatt tion, management determines the
appropriate fair value to be utilized for such property (t �Level 3�). As a matter of policy, valuations are reviewed at least
annually and appraisals are generally updated on a bi-annual basis with values lowered as necessary.

Intangible Assets: For United, intangible assets consist of goodwill and core deposit intangibles. Goodwill is tested for
impairment at least annually or sooner if indicators of impairment exist. United may elect to performff a qualitative analysis
to determine whether or not it is more-likely-than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount.
If United elects to bypass this qualitative analysis, or concludes via qualitative analysis that it is more-likely-than-not that
the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value, United may use either a market or income quantitative
approach to determir ne the fairff value of the reporting unit. If the faiff r value of the reporting unituu is less that n its carrying value,
an impam irment charge would be recorded foff r the difference, not to exceed the amount of goodwill allocated to the reportirr ng
unit. At each reporting date, the Compam ny considers potential indicators of impairm ment.rr United performedff its annual
goodwill impairment test on the Company's reporting units as of Septembem r 30, 2021. The goodwill impairment test did not
identify aff ny goodwill impairment. In subu sequent periods, economic uncertarr inty and volatility stt urrorr unding COVID-19 and
the performance of the Company�s stock as well as possible other impairment indicators could cause us to perform a
goodwill impam irment test which could result in an impairmentrr charge being recorded forff that period if the carryirr ng value of
goodwill was found to exceed fairff value. Core deposit intangibles relate to the estimated value of the deposit base of
acquirq ed institutions. Management reviews core deposit intangible assets on an annual basis, or sooner if indicators of
impairment exist, and evaluates changes in factff s and circumstances that may indicate impairment in the carrying value.
Other than those intangible assets recorded in thet acquisition of Communiu ty Bankers Trustrr in the fouff rth quarq terr r of 2021 anda
Carolina Financial in the second quarter of 2020, no other fair value measurement of intangible assets was made during the
year of 2021 and 2020.

Mortgage Servirr cing Rights (�MSRs�): A mortgage servicing right asset represents the amount by which the present value of
the estimated futff uret net cash flows to be received from servirr cing loans are expected to more that n adequately compem nsate the
Company forff performinff g the servicing. The Company initially measures servicing assets and liabia lities retained related to
the sale of residential loans held for sale (�mortgage servicing rights�) at fairff value. For subsu equenqq t measurement purporr ses,
the Company measures servicing assets and liabilities using the amortization method on a quarterly basis. The quarterly
determination of fairff value of servicing rights is provided by a third party at nd is estimated using a present value cash flow
model. The most important assumptions used in the valuation model are the anticipated rate of the loan prepayments and
discount rates. Although some assumptions in determining fair value are based on standards used by market participants,
some are based on unobservable inputs and therefore are classified in Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy. The unobservarr bla e
inputs for Level 3 valuations are market discount rates, anticipated prepayment speeds, projeco ted delinquency rates, and
ancillary fr eeff income net of servicing costs. For the unobservabrr le inpun ts used in the valuation of mortgage servicing rights at
December 31, 2021 and 2020, refer to Note J of these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company recorded a net recovery of $500,000 on mortgage servicrr ing rights in the year ended Decemberm 31, 2021. The
Compam ny recorded a $1,383,000 temporm ary irr mpairment of mortgage servicirr ng rights in the year ended Decemberm 31, 2020.
The Compam ny does not hedge the mortgage servicing rights positions and the impact of falff ling long-term interest rates
increased prepayment speed assumptions reducing the value of MSRs asset.
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The following table summarizes United�s finaff ncial assets that were measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis durd ing
the period:

(In thousands)

Description
Balance as of

December 31, 2021

Carrying value at December 31, 2021

YTD Gains
(Losses)

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Assets
Individually assessed loans $ 65,431 $ 0 $ 46,830 $ 18,601 $ (601)
OREO 14,823 0 3,209 11,614 (4,020)
Mortgage servirr cing rights 27,355 0 0 27,355 (629)

(In thousands)

Description
Balance as of

December 31, 2020

Carrying value at December 31, 2020

YTD Gains
(Losses)

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Assets
Loans held for sale $ 20,596 $ 0 $ 20,596 $ 0 $ (197)
Individuad lly assessed loans 37,498 0 14,467 23,031 1,318
OREO 22,595 0 22,595 0 (1,618)
Mortgage servirr cing rights 20,955 0 0 20,955 (1,383)

Fair Value of Other Financial InsII truments

The folff lowing methods and assumptions were used by United in estimating its fair value disclosures forff other financial
instruments:

Cash and Cash Equivalents: The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for cash and cash equivalents appa roximate
those assets' fair values.

Securities held to maturtt ity at nd other securities: The estimated fair values of securities held to maturtt ity at re based on quoted
market prices, where available.a If quoted market prices are not availablea , fairff values are measured utilizing independent
valuation techniqueq s of identical or similar securities forff which significant assumptions are derived primarily froff m or
corroborated by observabla e market data. Third party vendors compile prices from various sources and may determinrr e the
fair value of identical or similar securities by using pricing models that consider observable marketrr data. Any securities held
to maturity, not valued based upon the methods above, are valued based on a discounted cash flow methodology using
appropriately adjusted discount rates reflecff ting nonpen rforff mancerr and liquidqq ity rtt isks. Other securities consist mainly of shares
of Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Reserve Bank stock that do not have readily determinable fair values and are
carried at cost.

Loans and leases: The fairff values of certarr in mortgarr ge loans (e.g., one-to-fourff family residential), credit card loans, andaa othet r
consumer loans are based on quoted market prices of similar loans sold in conjun nction with securitization transactions,
adjusted forff differences in loan characteristics. The fair values of other loans and leases (e.g., commercial real estate and
rental property mt ortgarr ge loans, commercial and industrial loans, financial institution loans and agricultural loans) are
estimated using discounted cash floff w analyses, using market interest rates currently being offeff red forff loansa and leases with
similar termsr to borrowers of similar creditworthiness, which include adjustments for liquiqq dity concerns. For acquired PCD
loans, fair value is assumed to equaq l United�s carrying value, which represents the present value of expected futurett principal
and interest cash flowsff , as adjusted forff any Allowance forff Credit Losses recorded forff these loans.

Deposits: The fair values of demand deposits (e.g., interest and noninterest checking, regular savings and certain types of
money market accounts) are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting date (i.e., thet ir carrying
amounts). The carrying amounts of variable-rate, fixed-term money market accounts and certificates of deposit
approximate their fairff values at the reportirr ng date. Fair values of fixed-rate certificff ates of deposit are estimated using a
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discounted cash floff w calculation that applies interest rates currentrr ly being offered on certifrr icaff tes to a schedule of aggregated
expected monthly maturities on time deposits.

Short-term Borrowings:r The carrying amountsu of federal funff ds purchased, borrowings undu er repurcu hase agreements and anya
other short-term brr orrowings approximate their fair values.

Long-term Borrowings: The fairff values of United's Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings and trust preferred securities are
estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, based on United's current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of
borrowing arrangements.

Summary of Fair Values for All Financial InstrumenII ts

The estimated fairff values of United's financial instruments are summarized below:
Fair Value Measurements

(In thousands)

Carrying
Amount Fair Value

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significaff nt
Other

Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significff ant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

December 31, 2021
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,758,170 $ 3,758,170 $ 0 $ 3,758,170 $ 0
Securities available for sale 4,042,699 4,042,699 5,758 4,036,941 0
Securities held to maturity 1,001 1,020 0 0 1,020
Equity securities 12,404 12,404 12,404 0 0
Other securities 239,645 227,663 0 0 227,663
Loans held for sale 504,416 504,416 0 40,307 464,109
Net loans 17,807,632 17,119,202 0 0 17,119,202
Derivative finanff cial assets 32,265 32,265 0 22,760 9,505
Mortgage servicing rights 23,144 27,355 0 0 27,355
Deposits 23,350,263 23,334,431 0 23,334,431 0
Short-term borrowings 128,844 128,844 0 128,844 0
Long-term borrowings 817,394 773,291 0 773,291 0
Derivative financial liabilities 3,728 3,728 0 3,197 531

December 31, 2020
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,209,068 $ 2,209,068 $ 0 $ 2,209,068 $ 0
Securities available for sale 2,953,359 2,953,359 6,207 2,947,152 0
Securities held to maturity 1,212 1,212 0 192 1,020
Equity securities 10,718 10,718 10,718 0 0
Other securities 220,895 209,850 0 0 209,850
Loans held for sale 718,937 718,937 0 64,204 654,733
Net loans 17,355,583 16,559,797 0 0 16,559,797
Derivative finanff cial assets 44,291 44,291 0 12,280 32,011
Mortgage servicing rights 20,955 20,955 0 0 20,955
Deposits 20,585,160 20,583,607 0 20,583,607 0
Short-term borrowings 142,300 142,300 0 142,300 0
Long-term borrowings 864,369 815,991 0 815,991 0
Derivative financial liabilities 13,058 13,058 0 13,058 0

NOTE X-- VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

Variable interest entities (�VIEs�) are entities that either have a total equity investment that is insufficient to permit the
entity to finance its activities without additional subou rdinated finff ancial support or whose equity itt nvestors lack the
characteristics of a controlling finff ancial interest (i.e., abia lity to make significant decisions, through voting rights, right to
receive the expected residual returns of the entity, and obligation to absorb the expected losses of the entity)t . VIEs can be
structurt ed as corporations, trusts, partnershrr ips, or other legal entities. United�s business practices include relationships with
certain VIEs. For United, the business purposerr of these relationships primarily consists of funding activities in the forff m of
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issuing trust preferred securities.

United currently sponsors nineteen statutory brr usiness trusts that were created for the purpose of raising fundsu that originally
qualified for Tier I regulatory crr apital. As previously discussed, these trustsrr now are considered Tier II regulatory crr apital.
These trusrr ts, of which several were acquired through bank acquisitions, issued or participated in pools of trust preferred
capital securities to third-party investors with the proceeds invested in junior subordinated debt securities of United. The
Company, through a small capia tal contribution, owns 100% of the voting equity st hares of each trust. The assets, liabila ities,
operations, and cash flowsff of each trust are solely related to the issuance, administration, and repayment of the preferred
equity securities held by third-party it nvestors. United fully and unconditionally guarantees the obligations of each trust and
is obligated to redeem the junior subordinated debenturest upon maturit ty.

United does not consolidate these trusts as it is not the primary beneficiary of these entities becauseaa United�s wholly owned
and indirect wholly owned statutory trust subsidiaries do not have a controlling finff ancial interest in thet VIEs. A controlling
financial interest is present when an enterprise has both the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly
impact the VIE�s economic performanff ce and an obligation to absoa rb losses or the right to receive benefitff s that could
potentially be significant to the VIE. The enterprise with a controlling finff ancial interest, known as the primary brr eneficiary,rr
consolidates the VIE.

United, through its banking subsiu diary,r also makes limited partner equiq ty investments in various low income housing and
community dtt evelopment partnershrr ips sponsored by independent thirt d-parties. United invests in these partnertt ships to either
realize tax credits on its consolidated federal income tax return or for purposerr s of earning a return orr n its investment. These
partnerships are considered VIEs as the limited partners lack a controlling finff ancial interest in the entities through their
inabia lity to make decisions that have a significant effecff t on the operations and success of the partnerships. United�s limited
partner interests in these entities is immaterial, however; these partnerships are not consolidated as United is not deemed to
be the primary beneficiary.

The following table summarizes quantitative information about United�s significant involvement in unconsolidated VIEs:

As of December 31, 2021 As of December 31, 2020

(In thousands)
Aggregate
Assets

Aggregate
Liabilities

Risk Of
Loss (1)

Aggregate
Assets

Aggregate
Liabilities

Risk Of
Loss (1)

Trust prefeff rred securities $ 299,531 $ 288,499 $ 11,032 $ 295,466 $ 284,788 $ 10,678
(1) Represents investment in VIEs.

NOTE Y--SEGMENT INFORMATION

United operates in two business segments: community bt anking and mortgage banking. Through its community banking
segment, United offeff rs a fulff l range of products and services through various delivery channels. In particrr ular, the community
banking segment includes both commercial and consumer lending and provides customers with such productsd as
commercial loans, real estate loans, business financing and consumer loans. In addition, this segment provides customers
with several choices of deposit productd s including demand deposit accounts, savings accounts and certificates of deposit as
well as investment and finff ancial advisory services to businesses and individuald s, including financial planning,
retirement/estate planning, and investment management. The mortgage banking segment engages primarily in the
origination and acquisition of residential mortgages for sale into the secondary mr arkerr t though United�s mortgage banking
subsiu diaries, George Mason and Crescent. Crescent may retain servicing rights on their mortgrr age loans sold. At certain
times, Crescent may purchase rights to servirr ce loans froff m third parties.rr These rights are known as mortgage servicing rights
provide the owner with the contractual right to receive a stream of cash flows in exchange forff performing specified
mortgage servicing functions.

The community bt anking segment provides the mortgage banking segment (George Mason and Crescent) with short-term
funds to originate mortgarr ge loans through a warehouse line of credit and charges the mortgage banking segment interest
based on the 30-day LIBOR rate. These transactions are eliminated in the consolidation process.

The Company does not have any operating segments other than those reported. The �Other� category consists of financial
informaff tion not directly attributablea to a specificff segment, including interest income from investments and net securities
gains or losses of parent companm ies and their non-banking subsidiaries, interest expense related to subordinated notes of
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unconsolidated subsidiaries as well as the elimination of non-segment related intercompanm y transactions such as
management fees. The �Other� represents an overhead funcff tion rather than an operating segment.

Information about the reportablea segments and reconciliation of this inforff mar tion to the consolidated financia al statements at
and for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

At and For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
(In thousands) Community

Banking
Mortgage
Banking Other

Intersegment
Eliminations Consolidated

Net interest income $ 731,305 $ 10,497 $ (8,378) $ 9,310 $ 742,734
Provision for credit losses (23,970) 0 0 0 (23,970)
Other income 99,974 183,216 3,769 (8,867) 278,092
Other expense 443,457 138,508 (465) 443 581,943
Income taxes 84,715 11,275 (875) 0 95,115
Net income (loss) $ 327,077 $ 43,930 $ (3,269) $ 0 $ 367,738

Total assets (liabilities) $ 29,022,170 $ 691,642 $ 39,182 $ (424,092) $ 29,328,902
Average assets (liabilities) 26,910,956 659,105 27,445 (341,411) 27,256,095

At and For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
(In thousands) Community

Banking
Mortgage
Banking Other

Intersegment
Eliminations Consolidated

Net interest income $ 677,907 $ 8,853 $ (9,658) $ 12,671 $ 689,773
Provision for credit losses 106,562 0 0 0 106,562
Other income 90,092 276,185 730 (12,261) 354,746
Other expense 423,934 140,628 13,245 410 578,217
Income taxes 47,162 27,698 (4,143) 0 70,717
Net income (loss) $ 190,341 $ 116,712 $ (18,030) $ 0 $ 289,023

Total assets (liabilities) $ 25,892,396 $ 870,151 $ 31,623 $ (609,923) $ 26,184,247
Average assets (liabilities) 23,927,889 651,778 7,283 (449,880) 24,137,070

At and For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
(In thousands) Community

Banking
Mortgage
Banking Other

Intersegment
Eliminations Consolidated

Net interest income $ 583,547 $ 916 $ (12,472) $ 5,931 $ 577,922
Provision for credit losses 21,313 0 0 0 21,313
Other income 74,956 83,884 392 (8,748) 150,484
Other expense 314,710 72,288 (1,527) (2,817) 382,654
Income taxes 64,080 2,355 (2,095) 0 64,340
Net income (loss) $ 258,400 $ 10,157 $ (8,458) $ 0 $ 260,099

Total assets (liabilities) $ 19,564,036 $ 507,124 $ 17,777 $ (426,613) $ 19,662,324
Average assets (liabilities) 19,401,397 358,087 8,411 (292,427) 19,475,468

NOTE Z--QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

Quarterly finff ancial data for 2021 and 2020 is summarized below (dollars in thousands, except forff per share data):

(Dollars in thousands) 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
2021
Interest income $ 205,657 $ 200,186 $ 194,080 $ 195,194
Interest expense 14,697 13,669 12,501 11,516
Net interest income 190,960 186,517 181,579 183,678
Provision for credit losses 143 (8,879) (7,829) (7,405)
Mortgage banking income 65,395 36,943 42,012 27,342
Securities gains (losses), net 2,609 24 82 (39)
Other noninterest income 24,569 25,879 26,530 26,746
Noninterest expense 148,927 138,951 142,276 151,789
Income taxes 27,565 24,455 23,604 19,491
Net income (1) 106,898 94,836 92,152 73,852
Per share data:
Average shares outstanding (000s):
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(Dollars in thousands) 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
Basic 128,636 128,751 128,763 130,940
Diluted 128,891 129,034 128,960 131,296

Net income per share:
Basic $0.83 $0.73 $0.71 $0.56
Diluted $0.83 $0.73 $0.71 $0.56

Dividends per share $0.35 $0.35 $0.35 $0.36

2020
Interest income $ 180,482 $ 198,717 $ 210,269 $ 208,914
Interest expense 38,964 28,115 24,605 16,925
Net interest income 141,518 170,602 185,664 191,989
Provision for credit losses 27,119 45,911 16,781 16,751
Mortgage banking income 17,631 68,213 109,457 70,793
Securities losses, net 196 1,510 860 589
Other noninterest income 18,979 18,667 25,151 22,700
Noninterest expense 101,133 149,374 171,593 156,117
Income taxes 9,889 11,021 28,974 20,833
Net income (1) 40,183 52,686 103,784 92,370

Per share data:
Average shares outstanding (000s):

Basic 101,295 119,824 129,373 129,372
Diluted 101,399 119,888 129,455 129,479

Net income per share:
Basic $0.40 $0.44 $0.80 $0.71
Diluted $0.40 $0.44 $0.80 $0.71

Dividends per share $0.35 $0.35 $0.35 $0.35
(1) For furthrr er information, see the related discussion �Quarterly Results� included in Management�s Discussion and Analysis.

Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

This item is omitted since it is not applicablea .

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures
United Bankshares, Inc. (the Compam ny) maintains controls and procedures designed to ensure that it is abla e to

collect the inforff mation it is required to disclose in the reports it files with the SEC, and to process, summarize and disclose
this information within the time periods specifieff d in the rules of the SEC. Based on an evaluation of the Companm y�s
disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report conducted by the Company�s
management, with the partirr cipation of the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officff er, the Chief Executive and Chief
Financial Officer believe that these controls and procedures are effective to ensure that the Company is ablea to collect,
process and disclose the information it is required to disclose in the reports it files with the SEC within the required time
periods.

Management�s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Management�s Report on internal control over finff ancial reporting and the audit report of Ernst & Young LLP, the

Company�s independent registered public accounting firm, on internal control over finff ancial reportirr ng is included on pages
68-69 of this report and are incorporarr ted in this Item 9A by refereff nce.

Changes In Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There have not been any changes in the Companm y's internal control over financia al reporting (as such term is defineff d

in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the fiscal quarq terrr ended December 31, 2021 that have materially affected,
or are reasonably likely to materially affect,ff the Company's internal control over financial reporting.



147

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None

Item 9C. DISCLOSURES REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT
INSPECTIONS

None
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UNITED BANKSHARES, INC.
FORM 10-K, PART III

Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information regarding directors and executive officers of the registrant including thet ir reportirr ng compliance under
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is incorporated by reference from United�s definitff ive proxy statement
for the 2022 Annual Meeting of Shareholders under the caption �Directors Whose Termsrr Expire in 2022 anda Nominees for
Directors� under the heading �PROPOSAL 1: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS�, under the caption �Delinquentq Section 16(a)
Reports� under the heading �COMMON STOCK OWNEWW RSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANDAA
MANAGEMENT� and under the captions �Executive Officers� and �Family Relationships� under the heading
�GOVERNANCAA E OF THE COMPANY.�

United has adopted a code of ethics forff its Chief Executive Officer,ff Chief Financial Officer, Controller and persons
performing similar functions of the registrant in accordance with Section 406 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. A copy of
the code of ethics is posted on United�s web site at www.ubsi-inc.com.

Informff ation related to the registrant�s audit committee and its financial expert in accordance with Section 407 of
the Sarbar nes-Oxley Act of 2002 is incorporated by reference froff m United�s definiff tive proxy statement forff the 2022 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders under the captions �The Audit Committee� and the �Audit Committett e Financial Expert� under the
heading �GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY.�

Since the disclosure of the procedures in the definiff tive proxy statement for the 2021 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders, United has not adopted any changes to the procedures by which shareholders may recommend nominees to
United�s Board of Directors as set forth in Article II, Section 5 of the Restated Bylaws of United.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information regarding executive compensation is incorporated by reference fromff United�s definff itive proxy
statement for the 2022 Annual Meeting of Shareholders under the heading of �EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION�, under
the heading �COMPENSATION DISCUSSION ANDAA ANALYSIS (CD&A)�, and under the heading �REPORT OF THE
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.�

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANDMANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Informff ation regarding security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management and securities authorized
under equity compem nsation plans is incorporr rated by reference froff m United�s definiff tive proxy statement forff the 2022 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders under the caption �Directors Whose Terms Expire in 2022 and Nominees forff Directors� under the
heading �PROPOSAL 1: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS� and under the captia ons �Beneficiff al Ownership of Directors and
Named Executive Officers�, �Principal Shareholders of United� and �Related Shareholder Matters� under the heading
�COMMON STOCK OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT.�

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

Informff ation regarding certain relationships and related transactions is incorporated by reference from United�s
definff itive proxy statement for the 2022 Annual Meeting of Shareholders under the captions of �Related Party Transa actions�
and �Independence of Directors� under the heading �GOVERNANCRR E OF THE COMPANY.�
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Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVIR CES

Information regarding approval of audit and non-audit services by the Audit Committee as well as fees paid to
auditors is incorporarr ted by reference fromff United�s definitive proxy statement forff the 2022 Annual Meeting of Shareholders
under the captions �Pre-Approval Policies and Procedured s� and �Independent Registered Publu ic Accounting Firm Frr ees
Information� under the heading �AUDIT COMMITTEE AND INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGUU
FIRM.�
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UNITED BANKSHARES, INC.
FORM 10-K, PART IV

Item 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) List of Documents Filed as Part of This Report:

(1) Financial Statements

United�s consolidated financial statements required in response to this Item are incorporated by reference
from Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(2) Financial Statement Scheduldd es

United is not filing separate finff ancial statement schedules becausa e of the absence of conditions under which
they are required or because the required inforff mation is included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits Required by Item 601

Listing of Exhibits - See the Exhibits� Index on page 151 of this Form 10-K.

(b) Exhibits -- The exhibits to this Form 10-K begin on page # .

(c) Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules -- All other scheduldd es for which provision is made in
the applicable accounting regulation of the Securities and Exchange Commission are not required
under the related instructions or are inapplicabla e or pertain to items as to which the requiq red
disclosures have been made elsewhere in the financiaff l statements and notes thereto, and thereforeff
have been omitted.

All reports filed electronically by United with thet Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), including thet
annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, and current reports on Form 8-K, as well as any amendments
to those reports, are accessible at no cost on United�s web site at www.ubsu i-inc.com. These filff ings are also accessible on the
SEC�s web site at www.sec.gov.

# Filed with United�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for fisff cal year ended December 31, 2021.
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UNITED BANKSHARES, INC.

FORM 10-K

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit
No. Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated November 17, 2019, by and between United
Bankshares, Inc. and Carolina Financial Corporation (incorporated into this filing by
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Form 8-K dated Novembem r 17, 2019 and filedff Novembem r 18,
2019 for United Bankshares, Inc., File No. 002-86947)

2.2 Agreement and Plan of Reorganization, dated June 2, 2021, by and between United
Bankshares, Inc. and Community Bana kers Trust Corporation (incorporated into thit s filff ing by
referenceff to Exhibit 2.1 to the Form 8-K dated December 3, 2021 and filed Decemberm 3,
2021 for United Bankshares, Inc., File No. 002-86947)

3.1 Amended anda Restated Articrr les of Incorporrr ation (incorporated into this filing by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 1rr 0-Q dated March 31, 2017 and filed May 9,
2017 for United Bankshares, Inc., File No.002-86947)

3.2 Restated Bylaws (incorporr ated into this filing by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K dated and filff ed on March 20, 2020 for United Bankshares, Inc., File
No.002-86947)

4.1 Description of Registrant�s Securities (incorporr rated into this filing by reference to the
Annual Report on Form 10-K dated December 31, 2019 and filed March 2, 2020 for United
Bankshares, Inc., File No.002-86947)

10.1 Fourth Amended Emplm oyment Agreement for Richard M. Adams (incorporated into this
filing by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the 2011 Form 10-K dated Decembem r 31, 2011 and filff ed
Februaryrr 29, 2012 foff r United Bankshares, Inc., File No. 002-86947)

10.2 Third Amended Employment Agreement forff Richard M. Adams (incorporarr ted into thit s filff ing
by referff ence to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 8-K dated November 24, 2008 and filed November
26, 2008 for United Bankshares, Inc., File No. 002-86947)

10.3 Second Amended and Restated Supplemental Retirement Agreement forff Richard M. Adams
(incorporarr ted into this filff ing by referff ence to Exhibit 10.4 to the Form 8-K dated November
24, 2008 and filed November 26, 2008 for United Bankshares, Inc., File No. 002-86947)

10.4 First Amendment to Second Amended anda Restated Supplemental Retirement Agreement for
Richard M. Adams (incorporated into this filing by refereff nce to Exhibit 10.6 to the 2011
Form 10-K dated Decemberm 31, 2011 and filed February 2rr 9, 2012 for United Bankshares,
Inc., File No. 002-86947)

10.5 Amended and Restated Change of Control Agreement for Richard M. Adams, Jr. and James
J. Consagra, Jr. (incorporated into this filff ing by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Form 8-K
dated November 24, 2008 and fileff d November 26, 2008 for United Bankshares, Inc., File
No. 002-86947)

10.6 Form of 2017 Amendment to Amended and Restated Change of Control Agreement forff
Richard M. Adams, Jr. and James J. Consagra, Jr. (incorpor rated into this filing by reference
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Exhibit
No. Description

to Exhibit 10.6 to the 2017 Form 10-K dated December 31, 2017 and filed March 1, 2018 for
United Bankshares, Inc. File No.002-86947)

10.7 Form of the Amendment and First Restatement of the United Bankshares, Inc. Supplemental
Executive Retirement Agreement (Tier 2 SERP) for Richard M. Adams, Jr. and James J.
Consagra, Jr., Executive Vice-President (incorporated into this filing by reference to Exhibit
10.6 to the Form 8-K dated November 24, 2008 and filed November 26, 2008 forff United
Bankshares, Inc., File No. 002-86947)

10.8 Form of Second Amendment to 2008 Amended and Restated United Bankshares, Inc.
Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement for Richard M. Adams, Jr. and James J.
Consagra, Jr. (incorporated into this filing by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the 2017 Form 1rr 0-
K dated December 31, 2017 and fileff d March 1, 2018 for United Bankshares, Inc. File
No.002-86947)

10.9 Employment Agreement with J. Paul McNamara (incorporated into thit s filff ing by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Form S-4 Registration Statement of United Bankshares, Inc., Registration
No. 33-106890 filed July 9, 2003)

10.10 Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement for Craige Smith (incorporated into this
filing by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the 2013 Form 1rr 0-K dated Decembem r 31, 2013 and filff ed
on March 3, 2014 for United Bankshares, Inc., File No. 002-86947)

10.11 Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement for Mark Tatterson (incorporated into this
filing by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the 2013 Form 1rr 0-K dated Decembem r 31, 2013 and filff ed
on March 3, 2014 forff United Bankshares, Inc., File No. 002-86947)

10.12 Form of First Amendment to United Bankshares, Inc. Supplu emental Executive Retirement
Agreement for Craige Smith and Mark Tattett rson (incorporr rated into this filing by reference to
Exhibit 10.12 to the 2017 Form 10-K dated December 31, 2017 and filff ed March 1, 2018 for
United Bankshares, Inc. File No.002-86947)

10.13 Form of Independent Contractor Agreement with Peter A. Converse (incorporated into this
filing by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Form 8-K dated January 31, 2014 and filed
Februar ry 3, 2014 for United Bankshares, Inc., File No. 002-86947)

10.14 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by and between United Bankshares, Inc.,
United Bank and Michael P. Fitzgerald (incorporated into this filing by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the Form 8rr -K dated June 3, 2016 and fileff d June 6, 2016 forff United Bankshares, Inc.,
File No.002-86947)

10.15 Form of Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement with Darren K. Williams and
Douglas B. Ernest (incorporated into this filff ing by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the 2017
Form 10-K dated December 31, 2017 and fileff d March 1, 2018 for United Bankshares, Inc.
File No.002-86947)

10.16 Second Amended and Restated United Bankshares, Inc. Non-Qualifiedff Retirement and
Savings Plan (incorporrr ated into this filing by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Form 8-K dated
November 24, 2008 and filed November 26, 2008 forff United Bankaa shares, Inc., File No. 002-
86947)

10.17 Amended and Restated United Bankshares, Inc. Management Stock Bonus Plan
(incorpr orated into this filing by referff ence to Exhibit 10.10 to the Form 8-K dated November
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Exhibit
No. Description

24, 2008 and filed November 26, 2008 for United Bankshares, Inc., File No. 002-86947)

10.18 United Bankshares, Inc., United Bank, Inc. and United Bank Deferred Compensation Plan
for Directors (incorporr ated into this filing by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Form 8-K
dated November 24, 2008 and filed November 26, 2008 for United Bankshares, Inc., File
No. 002-86947)

10.19 United Bankshares, Inc., United Bank, Inc. and United Bank Rabbi Trustrr Agreement for
Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors (incorporated into this filing by reference to
Exhibit 10.13 to the Form 8-K dated November 24, 2008 and filed November 26, 2008 forff
United Bankshares, Inc., File No. 002-86947)

10.20 United Bankshares, Inc. 2011 Long-term Incentive Plan (incorporated into this filing by
reference to Exhibit A to 2011 Proxy Statement dated AprA il 8, 2011 and filff ed April 8, 2011
for United Bankshares, Inc., File No. 002-86947)

10.21 United Bankshares, Inc. 2016 Long-term Incentive Plan (incorporated into this filing by
reference to Exhibit A to 2016 Proxy Statement dated AprA il 4, 2016 and fileff d April 1, 2016
for United Bankshares, Inc., File No. 002-86947)

10.22 United Bankshares, Inc. 2020 Long-term Incentive Plan (incorporated into this filff ing by
reference to Exhibit A to 2020 Proxy Statement dated March 30, 2020 and filed March
30, 2020 forff United Bankshares, Inc., File No. 002-86947)

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant (filed herewith)

23.1 Consent of Ernstrr & Young LLP (filed herewith)

31.1 Certification as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302(a) of the Sarbar nes-Oxley Act of 2002
by Chief Executive Officer (filff ed herewith)

31.2 Certification as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302(a) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
by Chief Financial Offiff cer (filedff herewith)

32.1 Certificff ation Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbr anes-Oxley Act of 2002 by Chief Executive Offiff cer (furnished herewith)

32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbr anes-Oxley Act of 2002 by Chief Financial Offiff cer (furnished herewith)

101 Interactive data file (Inline XBRL) (filed herewith)

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document)
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requiq rements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused
this report trr o be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

UNITED BANKSHARES, INC.
(Registrant)

/s/ Richard M. Adams
Chairman of the Board

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signatures Title Date

/s/ Richard M. Adams Chairman of the Board, Director, March 1, 2022
and Chief Executive Offiff cer

/s/ W. Mark Tatterson Chief Financial Officer March 1, 2022
Chief Accounting Officer

/s/ Theodore J. Georgelas Director March 1, 2022

/s/ Mark R. Nesselroad Director March 1, 2022

/s/ P. Clinton Winter Director March 1, 2022

/s/ J. Paul McNamara Director March 1, 2022

/s/ Jerold L. Rexroad Director March 1, 2022

/s/ Mary Krr . Weddle Director March 1, 2022

/s/ Peter A. Converse Director March 1, 2022

/s/ Charles L. Capito, Jr. Director March 1, 2022

/s/ Patrice A. Harrir s Director March 1, 2022

/s/ Michael P. Fitzgerald Director March 1, 2022

/s/ Albert H. Small, Jr. Director March 1, 2022
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